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Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forward-looking statements” and information based on our beliefs and those of our general
partner. Forward-looking statements in this annual report are identifiable by the use of the following words and other similar words: “anticipates”,
“assumes”, “believes”, “budgets”, “could”, “estimates”, “expects”, “forecasts”, “goal”, “intends”, “may”, “might”, “plans”, “predicts”, “projects”,
“schedules”, “seeks”, “should, “targets”, “will” and “would”.

Such forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance and are based on
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable but such forward-looking statements
are subject to numerous risks, and uncertainties, including, but not limited to:

• economic and operating conditions that are outside of our control, including the supply, demand, and prices of crude oil and natural gas;
• the levels of competition we encounter;
• the activity levels of our customers;
• the availability of adequate sources of capital to us;
• our ability to comply with contractual obligations, including those under our financing arrangements;
• our operational performance;
• risks related to acquisitions and our growth strategy, including our recent acquisition of Compressor Systems, Inc.;
• the availability of raw materials and labor at reasonable prices;
• risks related to our foreign operations;
• the effect and results of litigation, regulatory matters, settlements, audits, assessments, and contingencies; and
• other risks and uncertainties under “Item 1A. Risk Factors” in this Annual Report and as included in our other filings with the U.S.

Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), which are available free of charge on the SEC website at www.sec.gov.

The risks and uncertainties referred to above are generally beyond our ability to control and we cannot predict all the risks and uncertainties
that could cause our actual results to differ from those indicated by the forward-looking statements. If any of these risks or uncertainties materialize,
or if any of the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary from those indicated by the forward-looking statements, and such
variances may be material.

All subsequent written and oral forward-looking statements made by or attributable to us or to persons acting on our behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by reference to these risks and uncertainties. You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. Each
forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular statement, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-
looking statements we may make, except as may be required by law.

 
Certain Defined Terms

Unless the context requires otherwise, when we refer to “we,” “us,” “our,” and “the Partnership,” we are describing CSI Compressco LP
(formerly named Compressco Partners, L.P.) and its wholly owned subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. References to “CSI Compressco GP” or “our
general partner” refer to our general partner, CSI Compressco GP Inc. References to “TETRA” refer to TETRA Technologies, Inc. and TETRA’s
controlled subsidiaries, other than us. References to “Compressco” refer to Compressco, Inc. and its controlled subsidiaries, other than us. References
to “TETRA International” refer to TETRA International Incorporated and TETRA International’s controlled subsidiaries. References to “Compressco
Partners Predecessor” or “our Predecessor” refer to the predecessor of CSI Compressco LP for accounting purposes. As further described elsewhere
in this Annual Report, our Predecessor consists of (1) all of the historical assets, liabilities and operations of Compressco, combined with (2) certain
assets, liabilities and operations of TETRA International conducting wellhead compression-based production enhancement services and related well
monitoring and automated sand separation services in Mexico. References to the “Initial Public Offering” refer to the Partnership’s initial public offering
of 2,670,000 common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership ("common units") at $20.00 per common unit completed on June
20, 2011 pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-155260) (the "Registration Statement"), initially filed on
November 10, 2008 by the Partnership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") pursuant to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the "Securities Act"), including a prospectus regarding the Initial Public Offering (the "Prospectus") filed with the SEC on June 16, 2011 pursuant to
Rule 424(b).
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PART I
 
Item 1. Business.
 
General

 
We are a provider of compression services and equipment for natural gas and oil production, gathering, transportation, processing, and

storage. We fabricate and sell standard and custom-designed compressor packages and oilfield fluid pump systems, and provide aftermarket
services and compressor package parts and components manufactured by third-party suppliers. We provide these compression services and
equipment to a broad base of natural gas and oil exploration and production, midstream, and transmission companies operating throughout
many of the onshore producing regions of the United States as well as in a number of foreign countries, including Mexico, Canada, and
Argentina.
 

We are one of the largest service providers of natural gas compression services in the United States, utilizing our fleet of compressor
packages that employs a full spectrum of low-, medium-, and high-horsepower engines. Low-horsepower compressor packages enhance
production for dry gas wells and liquid-loaded gas wells by deliquifying wells, lowering wellhead pressure, and increasing gas velocity. Our low-
horsepower compressor packages are also utilized in connection with oil and liquids production and in vapor recovery and casing gas system
applications. Low- to medium-horsepower compressor packages are typically utilized in wellhead and natural gas gathering systems and other
applications primarily in connection with natural gas and oil production. Our high-horsepower compressor package offerings are typically
utilized in midstream applications including natural gas gathering and centralized compression facilities.

Our equipment and parts sales business includes the fabrication and sale of standard compressor packages, custom-designed
compressor packages, and oilfield fluid pump systems designed and fabricated primarily at our facilities in Midland, Texas and Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma, as well as the sale of compressor package parts and components manufactured by third-party suppliers. We design and fabricate
natural gas reciprocating and rotary screw compressor packages up to 8,000 horsepower for sale to our customers. The compressor packages
that we fabricate are sold to customers for their use in various applications including gas gathering, gas lift, carbon dioxide injection, wellhead
compression, gas storage, refrigeration plant compression, gas processing, pressure maintenance, pipeline transmission, vapor recovery, gas
transmission, fuel gas boosters, and coal bed methane systems. Our pump systems can be utilized in multiple applications including oil and
liquids production, transfer, and pipeline transmission, as well as water injection and disposal and other systems.

Our aftermarket services business provides a full-range of services to customers who own compression equipment. These services
include operations, maintenance, overhaul, and reconfiguration services and may be provided under turnkey engineering, procurement and
construction contracts. Our aftermarket services are provided by our factory- and internally-trained technicians in most of the major oil and
natural gas producing basins in the United States.

Our growth strategy includes expanding our existing businesses – through internal growth and acquisitions – both in the U.S. and in
select foreign countries.
 

Our operations are organized into a single business segment. For financial information regarding our revenues and total assets, see
Note M –Geographic Information contained in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

 
Prior to our Initial Public Offering in June 2011, TETRA contributed to us substantially all of the business, operations, and related

assets and liabilities of our Predecessor. As a result of TETRA's contributions and the other formation transactions that occurred prior to our
Initial Public Offering, TETRA held a significant economic interest in us through its ownership of common units, subordinated units (which have
since been converted into common units), and its indirect general partner interest that represented an aggregate ownership interest in us of
approximately 82%, as well as incentive distribution rights. On August 4, 2014, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated July 20, 2014,
one of our subsidiaries acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Compressor Systems, Inc. ("CSI") for $825.0 million cash (the "CSI
Acquisition"). The CSI Acquisition purchase price was funded by the sale and issuance of new senior notes and common units and borrowings
under our revolving credit facility. A subsidiary of TETRA purchased a portion of the new equity issued and TETRA contributed cash to maintain
its
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approximately 2% general partner interest in us following the offering of the new common units. The issuance of the new common units,
including those purchased by TETRA, together with the contribution by TETRA of additional capital to maintain its general partner interest,
resulted in the net reduction of TETRA’s ownership interest in us from approximately 82% to approximately 44%. Through TETRA’s wholly
owned subsidiary, CSI Compressco GP Inc., TETRA will continue to manage and control us, despite its decreased ownership interest in us. As
of December 31, 2014, common units held by the public represent approximately a 56% ownership interest in us.

 
Certain of our domestic services are performed by our wholly owned subsidiary CSI Compressco Operating LLC, a Delaware limited

liability company (our “Operating LLC”), pursuant to contracts that our legal counsel has concluded generate qualifying income under
Section 7704 of the Internal Revenue Code, or “qualifying income.” We do not pay U.S. federal income taxes on the portion of our business
conducted by Operating LLC. CSI Compressco Sub Inc. and CSI, which are also wholly owned subsidiaries of ours, conduct substantially all of
our operations that our legal counsel has not concluded generate qualifying income, and pay U.S. federal income tax with respect to such
operations. We strive to ensure that all new domestic compression contracts are entered into by our Operating LLC and generate qualifying
income. We also pay state and local income taxes in certain states, and we incur income taxes related to our foreign operations.

We rely on our general partner’s board of directors and executive officers to manage our operations and make decisions on our behalf.
Our general partner is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of TETRA. Unlike shareholders in a publicly traded corporation, our unitholders are
not entitled to elect our general partner or its directors. All of our general partner’s directors are elected by TETRA. Our general partner does
not receive any management fee in connection with its management of our business. However, our general partner receives distributions based
on its limited and general partner interests and incentive distribution rights.
 

We are a Delaware limited partnership formed in October 2008. Our headquarters are located at 3809 S. FM 1788, in Midland, Texas.
Our phone number is 432-563-1170, and our website is accessed at www.compressco.com. Our common units are traded on the NASDAQ
Exchange under the symbol “CCLP.”

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Conduct, Financial Code of Ethics, and Audit Committee Charter, as well as our
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports are all
available, free of charge, on our website at www.compressco.com as soon as practicable after we file the reports with the SEC. Information
contained on or connected to our website is not, and shall not be deemed to be, a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated into
any other filings with the SEC. The documents referenced above are available in print at no cost to any unitholder who requests them by writing
or telephoning our Corporate Secretary.
 
Products and Services

 
We are a provider of compression services and equipment for natural gas and oil production, gathering, transmission, processing, and

storage. Natural gas compression is a mechanical process in which the pressure of a given volume of natural gas is increased to a higher
pressure. It is essential to the production and movement of natural gas. Compression is typically required numerous times in the natural gas
production and sales cycle, including (i) at the wellhead, (ii) throughout gathering and distribution systems, (iii) into and out of processing and
storage facilities and (iv) in natural gas pipelines. Compression is also utilized for gas lift, an artificial lift technique for producing oil that has
insufficient reservoir pressure. We fabricate and sell standard compressor packages, custom-designed compressor packages, and oilfield fluid
pump systems, and we sell compressor package parts and components manufactured by third-party suppliers. We also provide aftermarket
compression and other related services.

Compression Services

We utilize our fleet of compressor packages to provide a variety of compression services to our customers to meet their specific
requirements. Our fleet includes more than 6,000 compressor packages that provide more than 1.0 million in aggregate horsepower, employing
a wide spectrum of low-, medium-, and high-horsepower engines. We fabricate our compressor packages primarily at our fabrication facilities in
Midland, Texas and Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. The horsepower of our natural gas compressor package fleet as of December 31, 2014 is
summarized in the following table:
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Range of Horsepower Per
Package  Number of Packages  

Aggregate
Horsepower  % of Horsepower

0 - 100  4,411  207,869  19.0%

101 - 800  1,685  473,354  43.5%

801 and over  306  407,928  37.5%

Total  6,402  1,089,151  100.0%

Low-Horsepower (0-100 Horsepower) Compression Services. Our natural gas powered, low-horsepower compressor packages include
our GasJack® packages that are relatively compact and easy to transport to our customer’s well site. We utilize our electric powered, low-
horsepower VJack™ compressor packages to provide production enhancement services on wells where electric power is available. Our low-
horsepower packages allow us to perform wellhead compression, fluids separation, and optional gas metering services all from one skid,
thereby providing services that otherwise would generally require the use of multiple, more costly pieces of equipment. We utilize our low-
horsepower compressor packages to provide production enhancement for dry gas wells and liquid-loaded gas wells and backside auto injection
systems (“BAIS”). BAIS monitor tubing pressure to redirect gas flow into the casing annulus as needed to help gas wells unload liquids that
hinder production. We also utilize our low-horsepower compressor packages to collect hydrocarbon vapors that are a by-product of oil
production and storage (“vapor recovery”) and to reduce casing pressure of pumping oil wells to enhance oil production (“casing gas systems”).

 
Medium-Horsepower (101-800 Horsepower) Compression Services. Our medium-horsepower compressor packages are primarily

utilized to move natural gas from the wellhead through the field gathering system by boosting the pressure of the natural gas flowing through
the system. Additionally, these compressor packages are used to reinject natural gas into producing vertical and horizontal oil wells that have
insufficient reservoir pressure, to help lift liquids to the surface ("gas lift operations"). Typically, these applications require medium-horsepower
compressor packages located at or near the wellhead. These compressor packages are also used to increase the efficiency of low-capacity
natural gas fields by providing a central compression point from which the natural gas can be further processed and transported. These
compressor packages feature primarily three-stage compressors powered by natural gas engines ranging from 101 to 800 horsepower and
equipped with interstage coolers.

High-Horsepower (Over 801 Horsepower) Compression Services. Our high-horsepower compressor packages are primarily utilized in
midstream applications including natural gas gathering and centralized compression facilities. They move natural gas from individual wells or a
group of wells to boost the pressure while being moved into a gathering pipeline that leads to various types of processing facilities. A significant
number of these compressor packages in midstream applications also serve the dual purpose of gas lift operations by injecting a percentage of
the compressed natural gas into producing oil wells. Our high-horsepower compressor packages are also used in connection with the
movement of natural gas from gathering systems to storage facilities or the end user.

Other Related Services.    In certain Latin America markets, we provide well monitoring and sand separation services in connection
with our primary low-horsepower compression services. Well monitoring services include a variety of services that monitor and optimize
production from oil and gas wells. We utilize automated sand separators, which are high-pressure vessels with automated valve operation
functions, at the well to remove solids that would otherwise cause abrasive wear damage to compression and other equipment that is installed
downstream and inhibit production from the well. We also provide early production services (“EPS”) to a customer in Argentina through a
subcontract with TETRA. We rent the related equipment from TETRA under a separate rental agreement. Under our agreement with TETRA,
TETRA bears all of the risk associated with the EPS customer contract, and we retain a portion of the income generated under the EPS
contract.

Compression Services Contract Terms. Prior to the CSI Acquisition, our compression services were primarily performed under service
contracts using our low-horsepower compressor packages. A significant portion of these low-horsepower compression services are provided
under services contracts that our legal counsel has concluded will generate qualifying income that is not subject to U.S. federal income taxes.
Under these services contracts, we are responsible for providing our services in accordance with the particular specifications of a job. As owner
and operator, we are responsible for operating and maintaining the equipment we utilize to provide our services. Our domestic services
contracts typically have an initial term of one month and, unless terminated by us or our customers with 30-days' notice, continue on a month-
to-month basis thereafter. We charge our customers a
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fixed monthly fee for the services provided under the contract. If the level of services we provide falls below certain contractually-specified
percentages, other than as a result of factors beyond our control, our customers are generally entitled to request limited credits against our
service fees. To date, these credits have been insignificant as a percentage of revenue. Although CSI's contract compression business is very
similar in substance to ours, it was not conducted under service contracts. The CSI contracts typically have twelve month initial terms and are
month-to-month thereafter. Some customers may renew for additional twelve month extensions. Since our acquisition of CSI, we are in the
process of transitioning CSI customer contracts to service contracts.
 

We generally own the equipment we use to provide services to our customers, and we bear the risk of loss to this equipment to the
extent not caused by (i) a breach of certain obligations of the customer, primarily involving the service site and the fuel gas being supplied to
us, or (ii) an uncontrolled well condition. Utilizing our proprietary, satellite telemetry-based reporting system, we remotely monitor, in real time,
whether our services are being continuously provided at domestic customer well sites.
 

As owner of the equipment, we are obligated to pay ad valorem taxes levied on the equipment and related insurance expenses, and
we do not seek reimbursement for such taxes and expenses from our service agreement customers.

Equipment and Parts Sales
 
We fabricate and sell natural gas compressor packages for various applications, including: gas gathering, gas lift, carbon dioxide

injection, wellhead compression, gas storage, refrigeration plant compression, gas processing, pressure maintenance, pipeline transmission,
vapor recovery, pipeline station optimization, gas transmission, fuel gas boosters and coal bed methane systems. We sell engine parts,
compressor package parts, and a number of other parts manufactured by third parties that are utilized in natural gas compressor packages.

We also fabricate and sell oilfield fluid pump systems through our wholly-owned Pump Systems International, Inc. subsidiary. The
pump systems are fabricated at our facility in Midland, Texas or by third-party fabricators and they are sold primarily in South American, Asian
and Middle Eastern markets.

  Aftermarket Services

Through our aftermarket services operations, we provide a wide range of services to support the needs of customers who own
compression equipment. The services provided are primarily operation, maintenance, overhaul and reconfiguration services, which may be
provided under turnkey engineering, procurement and construction contracts. We have factory- and internally-trained technicians in most of the
major oil and natural gas producing basins in the United States to perform these services.

Compressor Package Fabrication Facilities and Sources of Raw Materials
 

At our facilities in Midland, Texas, and Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, we design, engineer, and fabricate a wide spectrum of natural gas
reciprocating and rotary screw compressor packages up to 8,000 horsepower, including both standard field compression equipment meeting
industry standards and specialty engineered compression equipment designed for unique customer specifications. We internally fabricate
skids, pressure vessels, and piping systems and join them with engines, compressors, and other components obtained from third-party
suppliers. The compressor packages are used in our services business and they are sold to major and independent oil and natural gas
exploration and production companies as well as midstream processing and transmission companies. We design, engineer, fabricate, and
market high quality gas compressor packages that have superior reputation in the industry as indicated by occasional sales to competitive
fleets and to end users who have their own compressor package fabrication capabilities.

A majority of the components we use to fabricate compressor packages and pump systems are obtained from third-party suppliers.
These components represent a significant portion of the cost of the compressor packages and pump systems. Some of the components used
in the assembly of our compressor packages and pump systems are obtained from a single supplier or a limited group of suppliers. Typical
contracts with these suppliers are for a period of twelve months. Should we experience a lack of availability of the components we use to
fabricate our packages and systems, we believe that there are adequate, alternative suppliers and that any impact would not be severe,
although short-term disruptions could be material. We occasionally experience long lead times for components from suppliers and, therefore, at
times make purchases in anticipation of future orders.
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Market Overview and Competition
 
Customers

 
We provide services to a broad base of natural gas and oil exploration and production companies as well as midstream and pipeline

transmission companies operating in many of the onshore producing regions of the United States. We also have operations in Latin America
and certain other foreign regions. While most of our domestic services are performed in Texas, the San Juan Basin, the Rocky Mountain
region, and the Mid-Continent region of the United States, we also have a presence in other U.S. producing regions. We continue to seek
opportunities to further expand our operations into other regions in the U.S. and elsewhere in the world.

 Our service contracts are generally terminable upon 30 days’ notice after the primary term has expired. Although we enter into short-
term contracts, many of our largest customers have been with us for over five years. Our largest customers for the year ended December 31,
2014, included PEMEX and DCP Midstream, which accounted for approximately 11.1% and 10.2%, respectively, of our consolidated revenues
for the year. Other major customers for the year ended December 31, 2014 included ConocoPhillips and BP America Production Company.
The loss of any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and our
ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

 
Competition
 
The natural gas compression services and compressor package fabrication and sale businesses are highly competitive. We experience

competition from companies that may be able to more quickly adapt to changes within our industry and changes in economic conditions as a
whole, more readily take advantage of available opportunities, and adopt more aggressive pricing policies. Primary competition for our low-
horsepower compression services business comes from smaller local and regional companies that utilize packages consisting of screw or
reciprocating compressors driven by a separate engine or motor. These local and regional competitors tend to compete on the basis of price,
as opposed to our focus on providing production enhancement value to the customer. Competition for our mid- and high-horsepower
compression services business comes primarily from large national and multinational companies who may have greater financial resources
than ours. Such competitors include Exterran, USA Compression, CDM Resource Management, J-W Power, and AXIP Energy Services. Our
competition in the standard compressor package fabrication and sale markets includes several large companies and a large number of small,
regional fabricators, including some of those who we compete with for compression services, as well as AG Equipment Company, SEC Energy
Products & Services, Enerflex, and others. Our competition in the custom-designed market usually consists of larger companies with the ability
to provide integrated projects and product support after the sale, including some of the competitors noted above. The ability to fabricate these
large custom-designed packages at our facilities near the point of end-use of many customers is often a competitive advantage.
 

Many of our compression services competitors compete on the basis of price. We believe our pricing has proven to be competitive
because of the significant increases in the value that results from use of our services, our customer service, trained field personnel, and the
quality of the compressor packages we use to provide our services.
 
Other Business Matters
 

Marketing
 
We utilize various marketing strategies to promote our services and compressor package and pump system products. Our account

managers attempt to build close working relationships with our existing and potential customers to educate them about our services and
products by scheduling personal visits, hosting and attending tradeshows and conferences, and participating in industry organizations. We
sponsor and make presentations at industry events that are targeted to production managers, compression specialists, and other decision
makers. Our marketing representatives also use these marketing opportunities to promote our value-added service initiatives, such as the use
of our proprietary satellite telemetry-based system, our wellsite optimization program, and our call center.
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Backlog
 
Our equipment and parts sales business includes the fabrication and sale of standard compressor packages, custom-designed

compressor packages, and pump systems. Our custom-designed packages are typically greater in size and scope than standard fabrication
packages, requiring more labor, materials, and overhead resources. Our fabrication and sales business requires diligent planning of those
resources and project and backlog management in order to meet the customer's desired delivery dates and performance criteria, and achieve
fabrication efficiencies. As of December 31, 2014, our fabrication and sales backlog was approximately $120.0 million, all of which is expected
to be recognized through the year ended December 31, 2014, based on title passing to the customer, the customer assuming the risks of
ownership, reasonable assurance of collectability, and delivery occurring as directed by our customer. Our fabrication and sales backlog
consists of firm customer orders for which a purchase or work order has been received, satisfactory credit or financing arrangements exists,
and delivery has been scheduled. Our fabrication and sales backlog is a measure of marketing effectiveness that allows us to plan future labor
and raw material needs and measure our success in winning bids from our customers.

Employees
 
As of December 31, 2014, our general partner and certain of our subsidiaries had an aggregate of approximately 950 full-time

employees who provide services to conduct our operations. Our general partner’s U.S. employees and our employees in Canada are not
subject to a collective bargaining agreement. Under an Omnibus Agreement with TETRA, certain employees of TETRA and its affiliates also
provide services to our general partner, us, and our subsidiaries, and we reimburse TETRA for these services. Our employees in Argentina are
subject to a collective bargaining agreement. The employees of TETRA who provide services to us in Mexico are subject to numerous
collective labor agreements. We believe that TETRA, our general partner, and our applicable subsidiaries have good relations with these
employees and we have not experienced work stoppages in the past.

 
Proprietary Technology and Trademarks
 
It is our practice to enter into confidentiality agreements with employees, consultants, and third parties to whom we disclose our

confidential and proprietary information. There can be no assurance, however, that these measures will prevent the unauthorized disclosure or
use of our trade secrets and expertise or that others may not independently develop similar trade secrets or expertise. Our management
believes, however, that it would require a substantial period of time and substantial resources to independently develop similar know-how or
technology.

 
We sell various services and products under a variety of trademarks and service marks, some of which are registered in the United

States.
 
Health, Safety, and Environmental Affairs Regulations

We believe that our service and sales operations and fabricating plants are in substantial compliance with all applicable U.S. and
foreign health, safety, and environmental laws and regulations. We are committed to conducting all of our operations under the highest
standards of safety and respect for the environment. However, risks of substantial costs and liabilities are inherent in certain of our operations
and in the development and handling of certain products and equipment produced or used at our plants, well locations, and worksites. Because
of these risks, there can be no assurance that significant costs and liabilities will not be incurred in the future. Changes in environmental and
health and safety regulations could subject us to more rigorous standards. We cannot predict the extent to which our operations may be
affected by future regulatory and enforcement policies.

We are subject to numerous federal, state, and local laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the environment or
otherwise relating to protection of human health and the environment. The primary environmental laws that impact our operations in the United
States include:

• the Clean Air Act and comparable state laws, and regulations thereunder, which regulate air emissions;
• the Clean Water Act and comparable state laws, and regulations thereunder, which regulate the discharge of pollutants into regulated

waters, including industrial wastewater discharges and storm water runoff;
• the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, or (“RCRA”), and comparable state laws, and regulations, thereunder, which regulate

the management and disposal of solid and hazardous waste; and
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• the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, or (“CERCLA”), and comparable state laws,
and regulations thereunder, known more commonly as “Superfund,” which impose liability for the cleanup of releases of hazardous
substances in the environment.

 
Our operations in the United States are also subject to regulation under the Occupational Safety and Health Act ("OSHA") and

comparable state laws, and regulations thereunder, which regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers.
 

The Clean Air Act and implementing regulations and comparable state laws and regulations regulate emissions of air pollutants from
various industrial sources and also impose various monitoring and reporting requirements, including requirements related to emissions from
certain stationary engines. These laws and regulations impose limits on the levels of various substances that may be emitted into the
atmosphere from our compressor packages and require us to meet more stringent air emission standards and install new emission control
equipment on all of our engines built after July 1, 2008. In addition, the Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") issued regulations in April
2012 that require the reduction of emissions of volatile organic compounds, air toxins, and methane, a greenhouse gas, at certain oil and gas
operations. We are not currently aware of material impacts to our operations associated with these rules.

The EPA has determined that greenhouse gases present an endangerment to public health and the environment because, according to
the EPA, they contribute to global warming and climate change. As a result, the EPA has begun to regulate certain sources of greenhouse
gases, including air emissions associated with oil and gas production particularly as they relate to the hydraulic fracturing of natural gas wells.
In addition, the EPA has issued regulations requiring the reporting of greenhouse gas emissions from certain sources including onshore and
offshore oil and natural gas production facilities and onshore oil and gas processing, transmission, storage, and distribution facilities. Reporting
of greenhouse gas emissions from such facilities is required on an annual basis. The EPA’s rules relating to emissions of greenhouse gases
from large stationary sources of emissions are currently subject to a number of legal challenges, but the federal courts have thus far declined to
issue any injunctions to prevent the EPA or state environmental agencies from implementing the rules. Further, Congress has considered, and
almost one-half of the states have adopted, legislation that seeks to control or reduce emissions of greenhouse gases from a wide range of
sources.

 
The Clean Water Act and implementing regulations and comparable state laws and regulations prohibit the discharge of pollutants into

regulated waters without a permit and establish limits on the levels of pollutants contained in these discharges. In addition, the Clean Water Act
and other comparable laws and regulations regulate storm water discharges associated with industrial activities depending on a facility’s
primary standard industrial classification. Our facilities are in compliance with these requirements, as necessary.

 
RCRA and implementing regulations and state laws and regulations address the management and disposal of solid and hazardous

waste. These laws and regulations govern the generation, storage, treatment, transfer, and disposal of wastes including, but not limited to,
used oil, antifreeze, filters, sludges, and paint, solvents and sandblast materials. The EPA and various state agencies have limited the
approved methods of disposal for these types of wastes. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all applicable requirements.

 
CERCLA and comparable state laws and regulations impose strict, joint, and several liabilities without regard to fault or the legality of

the original conduct on certain classes of persons that contributed to the release of a hazardous substance into the environment. These
persons include the owner or operator of a disposal site where a hazardous substance release occurred and any company that transported,
disposed of, or arranged for the transport or disposal of such hazardous substances released at a site. Under CERCLA, such persons may be
liable for the costs of remediating the hazardous substances that have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources,
and for the costs of certain health studies.

 
We believe that we have properly disposed of all historical waste streams and we have no outstanding liability regarding any past

waste handling or spill activities; however, there is always the possibility that future spills and releases of petroleum hydrocarbons, wastes, or
other regulated substances into the environment could cause us to become subject to remediation costs and liabilities under CERCLA, RCRA,
or other environmental laws. The costs and liabilities associated with the future imposition of remedial obligations could have the potential for a
material adverse effect on our operations or financial position.
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We are subject to the requirements of OSHA and comparable state statutes. These laws and regulations strictly govern the protection
of the health and safety of employees. The OSHA hazard communication standard, the EPA community right-to-know regulations under Title III
of CERCLA, and similar state statutes require that we maintain and/or disclose information about hazardous materials used or produced in our
operations. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with these requirements and other applicable similar laws.

Our compressor packages may be subject to additional regulatory requirements under the Clean Air Act. For example, regulations
under the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAPS”) provisions of the Clean Air Act require control of hazardous
air pollutants from new and existing stationary reciprocal internal combustion engines. Our equipment is also subject to additional prescribed
maintenance practices and catalyst installation may also be required. More recently, the EPA finalized rules that establish new air emission
controls under the New Source Performance Standards and NESHAPS for natural gas and natural gas liquids production, processing and
transportation activities. These rules establish specific requirements associated with emissions from compressors and controllers at natural gas
gathering and boosting stations.

We design and fabricate our compressor packages to meet applicable customer and government regulatory health, safety, and
environmental requirements. Our operations outside the United States are subject to foreign governmental laws and regulations relating to the
environment, health and safety, and other regulated activities. We believe that our operations are in substantial compliance with existing foreign
governmental laws and regulations.

 
Related Party Agreements
 

Under our Omnibus Agreement with TETRA, our general partner provides all personnel and services reasonably necessary to manage
our operations and conduct our business other than in Mexico and Argentina and certain of TETRA’s Latin American subsidiaries provide
personnel and services necessary for the conduct of certain of our Latin American business. In addition, under the Omnibus Agreement,
TETRA provides corporate and general and administrative services requested by our general partner including certain legal, accounting and
financial reporting, treasury, insurance administration, claims processing and risk management, health, safety and environmental, information
technology, human resources, credit, payroll, internal audit and tax services. Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we reimburse our general
partner and TETRA and its subsidiaries for services they provide to us. We may sometimes refer herein to the personnel of our general partner,
TETRA, and its subsidiaries who provide services for the conduct of our business as “our personnel” or other similar references.

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA may, but neither of us is under any obligation to, perform for the other such production
enhancement or other oilfield services on a subcontract basis as are needed or desired by the other, for such periods of time and in such
amounts as may be mutually agreed upon by TETRA and our general partner. Any such services are required to be performed on terms that
are (i) approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, (ii) no less favorable to us than those generally being
provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our general partner, or (iii) fair and reasonable to us, taking into
account the totality of the relationships between TETRA and us (including other transactions that may be particularly favorable or
advantageous to us), as determined by our general partner.

 
Under the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA may, but neither of us is under any obligation to, sell, lease, or like-kind exchange to the

other such production enhancement or other oilfield services equipment as is needed or desired, in such amounts, upon such conditions, and
for such periods of time, as may be mutually agreed upon by TETRA and our general partner. Any such sales, leases, or like-kind exchanges
are required to be on terms that are (i) approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, (ii) no less favorable to
us than those generally being provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our general partner, or (iii) fair and
reasonable to us, taking into account the totality of the relationships between TETRA and us (including other transactions that may be
particularly favorable or advantageous to us), as determined by our general partner. In addition, TETRA may purchase newly fabricated
equipment from us at a negotiated price provided that such price may not be less than the sum of the total costs (other than any allocations of
general and administrative expenses) incurred by us in fabricating such equipment plus a fixed margin percentage thereof, and TETRA may
purchase from us previously fabricated equipment for a price that is not less than the sum of the net book value of such equipment plus a fixed
margin percentage thereof, unless otherwise approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, .
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The Omnibus Agreement, as amended in June 2014 to extend its term (as amended, the Omnibus Agreement) will terminate (other
than the indemnification obligations contained therein) upon the earlier to occur of a change of control of the general partner or TETRA or upon
any party providing at least 180 days' prior written notice of termination.

 
In addition to the Omnibus Agreement, we have entered into other operational agreements with TETRA. For a more comprehensive

discussion of the Omnibus Agreement and other agreements we have entered into with TETRA, please see “Item 13 – Certain Relationships
and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.”

   
Item 1A. Risk Factors.

 
Certain Business Risks
 

Although it is not possible to identify all of the risks we encounter, we have identified the following significant risk factors that could
affect our actual results and cause actual results to differ materially from any such results that might be projected, forecasted, or estimated by
us in this report.
 

We depend on domestic and international demand for and production of natural gas and oil, and a reduction in this demand or
production could adversely affect the demand or the prices we charge for our services, which could cause our revenue and cash available for
distribution to our unitholders to decrease.

 
Our operations are significantly dependent upon the demand for, and production of, natural gas and oil in the various domestic and

international locations in which we operate. Natural gas and oil production may be affected by, among other factors, prices for such
commodities, weather, and availability of alternative energy sources. U.S. natural gas prices were volatile in 2014, with Henry Hub prices
ranging from a high of $6.49 per million British thermal units (“MMBtu”) in February 2014 to a low of $2.88 per MMBtu in December 2014, with
an average price during the fourth quarter of 2014 of $3.85 per MMBtu. The Henry Hub price for natural gas as of March 13, 2015 was $2.72
per MMBtu. During 2014, WTI oil prices ranged from a high of $107.50 per barrel in June 2014 to a low of $52.44 per barrel in December 2014.
The reduction in natural gas and oil prices that began in 2014 is expected to result in a decline in demand for certain of our products and
services, which may reduce our cash available for distribution. Natural gas and oil production from newly developed shale plays in the U.S.,
which has contributed to the growth of our compression services operations during the past two years, may decrease in the future due to
decreased drilling activity in response to current reduced natural gas and oil pricing. While foreign prices of natural gas and oil have historically
been higher than domestic prices, foreign prices are also subject to volatility.

 A sustained decrease in the price of natural gas and oil may cause customers to slow or cease production of natural gas or oil. If
customers shut in wells due to a decline in commodity prices, or any other reason, or reduce drilling activity, demand for our compression
services may decline.

The CSI Acquisition has substantially changed the scope and size of our operations and business.

The CSI Acquisition has substantially expanded the scope and size of our operations and business. Prior to the CSI Acquisition, we
fabricated and provided services utilizing small horsepower wellhead compression packages, with total fleet horsepower of approximately
187,000 horsepower as of June 30, 2014. CSI has more and a broader range of contract compression equipment and the acquisition has
resulted in our aggregate fleet horsepower as of December 31, 2014 increasing to approximately 1,089,151 horsepower. Additionally, CSI has
much larger equipment fabrication operations and provides aftermarket services that we have not historically provided. We may not be able to
quickly and efficiently integrate CSI’s operations into our operations or to realize the expected economic benefits of the CSI Acquisition.

We may not have accurately estimated the benefits to be realized from the CSI Acquisition.

We may not realize the expected benefits from the CSI Acquisition if our estimates of the potential net cash flows associated with the
assets are materially inaccurate or if we failed to identify operating problems or liabilities prior to closing. In addition, the expected benefits may
not be realized if we are unable to successfully integrate the business and operations of CSI. We performed an inspection of the assets to be
acquired, which we believe to be generally consistent with industry practices. However, the accuracy of our assessments of the assets and our
estimates are inherently uncertain. There could also be environmental or other problems that are not necessarily
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observable even when the inspection is undertaken. If problems are identified after closing of the CSI Acquisition, the stock purchase
agreement provides for limited recourse against the seller. In addition, our estimate of the required working capital for the CSI business and
targeted working capital set forth in the stock purchase agreement may not be sufficient for actual working capital needs of the CSI business. If
our estimate and the targeted working capital were lower than the actual needs of the acquired business, we may be required to fund such
additional working capital needs out of other operating cash flows or borrowings under our new revolving credit facility (the "New Credit
Agreement").

Restrictions in our 7.25% Senior Notes and our New Credit Agreement could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations, ability to make distributions to unitholders, and value of our units.

 
We have a New Credit Agreement with a borrowing capacity of up to $400 million, subject to borrowing base requirements. As of

December 31, 2014, our outstanding borrowings under the New Credit Agreement were approximately $195 million. In addition, we have $350
million in aggregate principal amount of our 7.25% Senior Notes outstanding. We depend on the earnings and cash flow generated by our
operations to meet our debt service obligations. Payment of our debt service obligations reduces cash available for distribution to our common
unitholders. The operating and financial restrictions and covenants applicable to the New Credit Agreement and the 7.25% Senior Notes
restrict our ability to take certain actions. Violations of these restrictions and covenants may result in a breach of, or our inability to borrow
under, the New Credit Agreement, including to fund distributions (if we elected to do so). For example, the New Credit Agreement and the
7.25% Senior Notes restrict our ability to, among others things:

• make distributions;
• incur certain additional debt or issue certain guarantees;
• incur or permit certain liens to exist on our assets;
• conduct businesses that are not substantially similar or related to our current business;• make certain loans, investments, acquisitions,

or other restricted payments;
• cancel, terminate, or modify certain material agreements;
• dispose of assets outside the ordinary course of business;
• enter into sale-leaseback transactions;
• enter into certain hedging contracts and certain other prohibited contracts;
• engage in certain types of transactions with affiliates;
• make certain amendments to organizational documents;
• discount, assign or sell receivables;
• make certain capital expenditures;
• change accounting practices; and
• merge, consolidate, transfer all or substantially all of our assets, liquidate, or dissolve.

The New Credit Agreement restricts our ability to pay distributions upon the occurrence of any of the following events, among others:
• our failure to pay principal, interest, or any other amount due under the revolving credit facility when due;
• our breach of the representations or warranties in the revolving credit facility;
• our failure to comply with the covenants in the revolving credit facility;
• our cross-default on other indebtedness;
• our bankruptcy, insolvency or failure generally to pay our debts as they become due;
• certain events under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974;
• a material court judgment being entered against us; and
• a change of control of us.

Furthermore, the New Credit Agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain (i) a consolidated interest coverage ratio (ratio of
consolidated EBITDA to consolidated interest charges) of not less than 3.0 to 1.0; (ii) a consolidated total leverage ratio (ratio of consolidated
total indebtedness to consolidated EBTIDA) of not more than 5.5 to 1.0 (with step downs to 5.0 to 1.0); and (iii) a consolidated secured
leverage ratio (consolidated secured indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA) of not more than 4.0 to 1.0, in each case calculated on a quarterly
basis for
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the trailing four quarters. Our New Credit Agreement provides that we may make distributions to holders of our common units, but only if there
is no default under the agreement. Our ability to comply with the covenants and restrictions contained in the New Credit Agreement may be
affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing economic, financial, and industry conditions. If market or other economic conditions
deteriorate, our ability to comply with these covenants may be impaired. A failure to comply with the provisions of the New Credit Agreement
could result in an event of default. Upon an event of default, unless waived, the lenders under the New Credit Agreement would have all
remedies available to secured lenders and could elect to terminate their commitments, cease making further loans, require cash
collateralization of letters of credit, cause their loans to become due and payable in full, institute foreclosure proceedings against our or our
subsidiaries’ assets, and force us and our subsidiaries into bankruptcy or liquidation. If the payment of our debt is accelerated, our assets may
be insufficient to repay such debt in full, and the holders of our common units could experience a partial or total loss of their investment.

Our debt levels may limit our flexibility in obtaining additional financing and in pursuing other business opportunities.
 
As of December 31, 2014, we had approximately $195 million outstanding under the New Credit Agreement and $350 million

aggregate principal amount outstanding under our 7.25% Senior Notes. As of March 16, 2015, the amount outstanding under the New Credit
Agreement had increased to approximately $208.0 million out of a maximum borrowing capacity of $400 million under the New Credit
Agreement.

 
Increases in our indebtedness would increase our total interest expense, which would in turn reduce our cash available for distribution.

Our ability to service our indebtedness will depend upon, among other things, our future financial and operating performance, which will be
affected by prevailing economic conditions and financial, business, regulatory and other factors, some of which are beyond our control. If our
operating results are not sufficient to service our current or future indebtedness, we may be forced to consider taking actions such as reducing
distributions, reducing or delaying our business activities, acquisitions, investments and/or capital expenditures, selling assets, restructuring or
refinancing our indebtedness, or seeking additional equity capital or bankruptcy protection. We may not be able to effect any of these courses
of action.

We have five customers that collectively accounted for approximately 38.4% of our 2014 revenues. Our services and products are
provided to these customers pursuant to equipment sales or short-term contract compression agreements, many of which are cancellable with
30-days' notice. The loss of any of these significant customers would result in a decline in our revenue and cash available to pay distributions to
our common unitholders.

 
Our five most significant customers collectively accounted for approximately 38.4% of our 2014 revenues. Our two largest customers

for the year ended December 31, 2014, were PEMEX and DCP Midstream, which accounted for approximately 11.1% and 10.2% of our
consolidated revenues, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2014. The loss of all or even a portion of the services we provide to
these customers, as a result of competition or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and our ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.

 
The credit and risk profile of TETRA could adversely affect our business and our ability to make distributions to our common

unitholders.
 
The credit and business risk profile of TETRA could adversely affect our ability to incur indebtedness in the future or obtain a credit

rating, as credit rating agencies may consider the leverage and credit profile of TETRA and its affiliates in assigning a rating because of their
control of us, their performance of administrative functions for us, our close operational links, and our contractual relationships. Furthermore,
the trading price of our common units may be adversely affected by financial or operational difficulties or excessive debt levels at TETRA. In
addition, if TETRA’s ownership of our general partner is pledged to TETRA’s lenders, control over our general partner could be transferred to
TETRA’s lenders in the event of a default by TETRA.
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We may be unable to negotiate extensions or replacements of our contracts with our customers, which are generally cancellable on 30-
days' notice, which could adversely affect our results of operations and cash available for distribution to our common unitholders.

 
We generally provide compression services to our customers under “evergreen” contracts that are cancellable on thirty days’ notice.

We may be unable to negotiate extensions or replacements of these contracts on favorable terms, if at all, which could adversely affect our
results of operations and cash available for distribution to our common unitholders.

We are exposed to interest rate risk with regard to our indebtedness.

Our New Credit Agreement provides for floating rate borrowings that bear interest at an agreed upon percentage rate spread above
LIBOR or a base rate. As of March 16, 2015, we had approximately $208.0 million of borrowings outstanding, including $7.1 million of letters of
credit and performance bonds. Accordingly, our cash flows and results of operations are subject to interest rate risk exposure associated with
the level of variable rate borrowings outstanding. We currently are not a party to an interest rate swap contract or other derivative instrument
designed to hedge our exposure to interest rate fluctuation risk. If interest rates increase, our debt service obligations on variable rate
indebtedness would increase (even if the amount borrowed remained the same). A 1.0% increase in interest rates on the borrowings
outstanding under our New Credit Agreement would cost us approximately $2.1 million in additional annual interest expense.

    
We face competition that may cause us to lose market share and harm our financial performance.

Our business is highly competitive. We face competition from a variety of large and small companies, including national and
multinational companies with greater financial resources than we have. Our ability to renew or replace existing contracts with our customers at
rates sufficient to maintain current revenues and cash flows could be adversely affected by the activities of our competitors. Our competitors
could substantially increase the resources they devote to the development and marketing of competitive equipment or services, develop more
efficient equipment, or decrease the price at which they offer their equipment services or sell their equipment. Any of these competitive
pressures could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and ability to make cash distributions
to our common unitholders.

We may not have sufficient cash from operations following the establishment of cash reserves and payment of any debt service and
other contractual obligations, fees and expenses, including cost reimbursements to our general partner, to enable us to make cash distributions
to our common unitholders at the current quarterly distribution rate.
 

Under the terms of our partnership agreement, the amount of cash otherwise available for distribution is reduced by our operating
expenses and the amount of cash reserves that our general partner establishes to provide for future operations, future capital expenditures,
future debt service requirements, and future cash distributions to our common unitholders. We may not have sufficient available cash each
quarter to enable us to make cash distributions at the current quarterly distribution rate under our cash distribution policy, or any distribution at
all. The amount of cash we can distribute to our common unitholders principally depends upon the amount of cash we generate from our
operations, which fluctuates from quarter-to-quarter based on, among other things, the risks described in this section.
 

During 2014, costs of fuel, field labor, maintenance, repair, and refurbishment increased. Many of those costs have been volatile and
may continue to be volatile or increase in the future. To the extent our efforts to contain these costs are not successful, our generation of
operating cash flows to fund our quarterly distributions will be negatively affected.

We depend on particular suppliers and are vulnerable to engine and compressor component shortages and
price increases, which could have a negative impact on our results of operations and cash available for
distribution to our common unitholders.

We fabricate most of our compressor packages and pump systems. We obtain some of the components used in our compressor
packages and pump systems from a single source or a limited group of suppliers. Significant suppliers of material components include
Caterpillar, Inc. and Ariel Corporation for engines and
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compressor components, respectively. Our reliance on these and other suppliers involves several risks, including our potential inability to obtain
an adequate supply of required components in a timely manner. We do not have long-term contracts with these sources and the partial or
complete loss of certain of these sources could have a negative impact on our results of operations and could damage our customer
relationships. Further, since any increase in component prices for compressor packages and pump systems fabricated by us could decrease
our margins, a significant increase in the price of one or more of these components could have a negative impact on our results of operations
and cash available for distribution to our common unitholders.

Operating cash flow levels from the sale of compressor packages and pump systems are inconsistent.

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from the sales of compressor packages and pump systems. During 2014, we reported
revenues of approximately $74.9 million from the sale of compressor packages and parts, the significant majority of which was earned after the
August 4, 2014 closing of the CSI Acquisition, and we expect an increased amount of our revenues will be derived from sales of compressor
packages and pump systems in the future. As of December 31, 2014, we had a compressor package and pump system sales order backlog of
approximately $120.0 million. Demand to purchase our compressor packages and pump systems is also affected by numerous factors,
including the prices of natural gas and oil and the level of capital spending by our customers. A change in our business strategy or any of these
factors could cause cash flows from the sale of compressor packages and pump systems to decrease.

Our future growth and success will depend upon a number of factors, some of which we cannot control.

Our growth strategy includes both internal growth and growth through acquisitions. Our future internal growth and success will depend
upon a number of factors that are outside of our control. These factors include our ability to:

• attract new customers;
• maintain our existing customers and maintain or expand the level of services we provide to them; and
• recruit, train, and retain qualified field services and other personnel.

Failure in any of these areas could adversely affect our ability to execute our internal growth strategy.

We may be unable to grow successfully through future acquisitions and we may not be able to achieve the expected benefits of and
integrate the businesses we do acquire effectively, which may impact our operations and limit our ability to increase distributions to our
common unitholders.

From time to time, we may choose to make business acquisitions to pursue market opportunities, increase our existing capabilities,
and expand into new areas of operations. We may not be able to identify attractive acquisition opportunities or successfully acquire identified
targets. We may not achieve the expected benefits of or be successful in integrating the CSI Acquisition or any future acquisitions into our
existing operations, which may result in unforeseen operational difficulties or diminished financial performance or require a disproportionate
amount of attention from our general partner’s personnel. Even if we are successful in integrating the CSI Acquisition or any future acquisitions
into our existing operations, we may not derive the benefits, such as operational or administrative synergies, that we expect from such
acquisitions, which may result in the commitment of our capital resources without the expected returns on such capital. Furthermore,
competition for acquisition opportunities may escalate, increasing our cost of making acquisitions or causing us to refrain from making
acquisitions. Our inability to make acquisitions or to achieve the expected results of and integrate successfully future acquisitions into our
existing operations may impact our operations and limit our ability to increase distributions to our common unitholders.

Our sales to and operations in foreign countries exposes us to additional risks and uncertainties, including with respect to U.S. trade
and economic sanctions, export control laws, and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(“FCPA”), and similar anti-bribery laws. If we are not in compliance with applicable legal requirements, we may be subject to civil or criminal
penalties and other remedial measures that could have a material impact on our business.

We have operations in Mexico, Canada, and Argentina as well as a number of other foreign countries. A portion of our expected future
growth includes expansion in these and other foreign countries. Foreign operations
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carry special risks. Our operations in the countries in which we currently operate and those countries in which we may operate in the future,
could be adversely affected by:

• government controls and actions, such as expropriation of assets and changes in legal and regulatory environments;
• import and export license requirements;
• political, social, or economic instability;
• trade restrictions;
• changes in tariffs and taxes;
• restrictions on repatriating foreign profits back to the United States; and
• the impact of anti-corruption laws.

 
Sanctions imposed by the U.S. Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) prohibit our operations in or sales to customers in certain

foreign countries. We are also subject to the FCPA, which prohibits U.S. companies and their intermediaries from bribing foreign officials for the
purpose of obtaining or keeping business or otherwise obtaining favorable treatment, and other similar laws governing our foreign operations.
The FCPA’s foreign counterparts, including the UK Bribery Act, contain similar prohibitions, although varying in both scope and jurisdiction. We
operate in parts of the world that have experienced governmental corruption in the past.

We have policies and procedures to maintain our compliance with the FCPA, OFAC sanctions, export controls, and similar laws and
regulations. While we do not believe that CSI was in violation of any of the aforementioned laws or regulations, including with respect to its
historical sales to customers in Mexico and the Republic of the Union of Myanmar (also referred to as Myanmar or Burma), it is possible that
we could discover such violations in the process of our integration. The implementation of such policies and procedures may be time
consuming and expensive, and could result in the discovery of issues or violations with respect to the foregoing by us or our employees,
independent contractors, subcontractors, or agents of which we were previously unaware. If we violate, or discover that CSI has violated, any
of these regulations, significant administrative, civil, and criminal penalties could be assessed on us. In addition, foreign governments and
agencies often establish permit and regulatory standards different from those in the U.S. If we cannot obtain foreign regulatory approvals or
cannot obtain them in a timely manner, our growth and profitability from international operations could be adversely affected.

The majority of our business in Mexico is performed for PEMEX under contracts with limited terms, and any cutbacks in PEMEX’s
annual spending budget or our failure to renegotiate expiring PEMEX contracts could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations, and cash flows.

The majority of our business in Mexico is performed for PEMEX. Our contracts with PEMEX generally have initial terms of two years,
and, when they expire, we may be required to participate in an open auction to renew them. Any failure by us to renew our existing contracts
with PEMEX or renew them on favorable terms could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, PEMEX accounted for approximately 11.1% of our revenues. No work or services are required
to be ordered by PEMEX under our contracts with them. PEMEX is a decentralized public entity of the Mexican Government, and, therefore,
the Mexican Government controls PEMEX, as well as its annual budget. The Mexican Government may cut spending in the future. These cuts
could adversely affect PEMEX’s annual budget and, thus, its ability to engage us or compensate us for our services. As a result, our business,
financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows could be negatively affected.

Escalating security disruptions in regions of Mexico served by us could adversely affect our Mexican operations, and, as a result, the
levels of revenue and operating cash flow from our Mexican operations could be reduced.

In recent years, incidents of security disruptions throughout many regions of Mexico have increased. Drug-related gang activity has
grown in Mexico. Certain incidents of violence have occurred in regions in which we operate and have resulted in the interruption of our
operations, and these interruptions could increase in the future. To the extent that such security disruptions increase, the levels of revenue and
operating cash flow from our Mexican operations could be reduced.

14



Our growing operations in Argentina expose us to the changing economic and political environment in that country, including changing
regulations governing the repatriation of cash generated from our operations in Argentina.

The current economic and political environment in Argentina and recent devaluations of the Argentinian peso have created increased
economic instability for foreign investment in Argentina. Additional devaluation may be necessary to help boost the current Argentina economy,
and they may be accompanied by fiscal and monetary tightening, including additional restrictions on the transfer of U.S. dollars out of
Argentina.

As a result of our expanding operations in Argentina, consolidated revenues from Argentina have increased over the past three years.
As of December 31, 2014, approximately $1.9 million of our consolidated cash balance is in bank accounts in Argentina, and the process of
repatriating this cash to the U.S. is growing increasingly complex and uncertain. There can be no assurances that our growing Argentinian
operations will not expose us to the loss of liquidity, foreign exchange losses, and other potential financial impacts.

 
Our ability to grow in the future may be dependent on our ability to access external expansion capital.

We distribute to our common unitholders all of our available cash after paying expenses and establishing desired reserves. As of
December 31, 2014, our total cash balance was $34.1 million. If our cash balances are insufficient to fund future growth opportunities, we plan
to rely primarily upon external financing sources, including borrowings under our revolving credit facility and the issuance of debt and equity
securities, to fund such growth. To the extent we are unable to efficiently finance growth externally, our cash distribution policy will significantly
impair our ability to grow. To the extent we issue additional partnership units in connection with our growth, the payment of distributions on
those additional partnership units may increase the risk that we will be unable to maintain or increase our per-unit distribution. There are no
limitations in our partnership agreement or our revolving credit agreement on our ability to issue additional partnership units, including
partnership units ranking senior to the common units.

Our ability to manage and grow our business effectively and provide quality services to our customers may be adversely affected if our
general partner loses its management or is unable to retain trained personnel.

 
We rely primarily on the executive officers and other senior management of our general partner, which now includes many of the former

executive officers and other senior management of CSI, to manage our operations and make decisions on our behalf. Our ability to provide
quality production enhancement services depends upon our general partner’s ability to hire, train, and retain an adequate number of trained
personnel. The departure of any of our general partner’s executive officers or other senior management could have a significant negative effect
on our business, operating results, financial condition, and our ability to compete effectively in the marketplace. We operate in an industry
characterized by highly competitive labor markets, and, similar to many of our competitors, we have experienced high employee turnover in
certain regions. It is possible that our labor expenses could increase if there is a shortage in the supply of skilled regional service supervisors
and other service professionals. Our general partner may be unable to maintain an adequate skilled labor force necessary for us to operate
efficiently and to support our growth strategy. Failure to do so could impair our ability to operate efficiently and to retain current customers and
attract prospective customers, which could cause our business to suffer materially. Additionally, increases in labor expenses may have an
adverse impact on our operating results and may reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our common unitholders.

The employees conducting our operations in Mexico and Argentina are party to collective labor agreements, and a prolonged work
stoppage of our operations in Mexico or Argentina could adversely impact our revenues, cash flows and net income.

 
The personnel conducting our operations in Mexico are currently subject to collective labor agreements. These collective labor

agreements consist of “evergreen” contracts that have no expiration date and whose terms remain in full force and effect from year-to-year,
unless the parties agree to negotiate new terms. The employees subject to these “evergreen” agreements may, however, request a
renegotiation of their employee compensation terms on an annual basis or a renegotiation of the entire agreement on a biannual basis,
although we are not required to honor any such request. The personnel conducting operations in Argentina are also subject to collective labor
agreements. We have not experienced work stoppages in Mexico or Argentina in the past, but cannot guarantee that we will not experience
work stoppages in the future. A prolonged work stoppage could adversely impact our revenues, cash flows, and net income.
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TETRA and its affiliates are not limited in their ability to compete with us, which could cause conflicts of interest and limit our ability to
acquire additional assets or businesses, which in turn could adversely affect our results of operations and cash available for distribution to our
common unitholders.

Neither our partnership agreement nor the Omnibus Agreement between TETRA and us prohibits TETRA and its affiliates from owning
assets or engaging in businesses that compete directly or indirectly with us. TETRA currently provides some services for PEMEX in Mexico in
competition with us and could choose to further compete with us for additional services for PEMEX in Mexico. In addition, TETRA and its
affiliates may acquire compression-based services businesses or assets in the future, without any obligation to offer us the opportunity to
purchase any of that business or those assets. As a result, competition from TETRA could adversely affect our results of operations and cash
available for distribution.

 
Our exposure to currency exchange rate fluctuations may result in fluctuations in our cash flows and could have an adverse effect on

our results of operations.
 
Because we have operations in Mexico, Canada, and Argentina and in certain other foreign countries, a portion of our business is

conducted in foreign currencies. As a result, we are exposed to currency exchange rate fluctuations that could have an adverse effect on our
results of operations. If a foreign currency weakened significantly, we would be required to convert more of that foreign currency to U.S. dollars
to satisfy our obligations, which would cause us to have less cash available for distribution. A significant strengthening of the U.S. dollar could
result in an increase in our financing expenses and could materially affect our financial results under U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (U.S. GAAP). Because we report our operating results in U.S. dollars, changes in the value of the U.S. dollar also result in
fluctuations in our reported revenues and earnings. Most of our billings under the contracts with PEMEX and other clients in Mexico are in U.S.
dollars; however, a large portion of our expenses and costs under those contracts are incurred in Mexican pesos. In addition, future contract
awards with PEMEX may require us to bill a larger portion of our revenues in Mexican pesos, which would expose us to additional foreign
currency exchange rate risks.

 
As a result of the above, we are exposed to fluctuations in the values of the Mexican and Argentinian peso against the U.S. dollar. A

material increase in the values of these foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar would adversely affect our cash flows and net income. In
addition, for our operations in Canada, where the Canadian dollar is the functional currency under U.S. GAAP, all U.S. dollar-denominated
monetary assets and liabilities, such as cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, restricted cash, accounts payable, long-term debt and
capital lease obligations, are revalued and reported based on the prevailing exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. This revaluation
may cause us to report significant foreign currency exchange gains and losses in certain periods.

An impairment of goodwill could reduce our earnings.
 
As of December 31, 2014, we have approximately $233.6 million of goodwill. Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price of a

business exceeds the fair market value of the tangible and separately measurable intangible net assets. GAAP requires us to test goodwill for
impairment on an annual basis or when events or circumstances occur indicating that goodwill might be impaired. Any event that causes a
reduction in demand for our services could result in a reduction of our estimates of future cash flows and growth rates in our business. These
events could cause us to record impairments of goodwill. If we determine that any of our goodwill is impaired, we will be required to take an
immediate charge to earnings with a corresponding reduction of partners’ capital and increase in balance sheet leverage as measured by debt
to total capitalization.

During the last half of 2014, global oil and natural gas commodity prices, particularly crude oil, decreased significantly. This decrease in
commodity prices has had, and is expected to continue to have, a negative impact on oil and gas drilling and capital expenditure activity, which
affects the demand for a portion of our products and services. The accompanying decrease in the price of our common units during the last half
of 2014 caused an overall reduction in our market capitalization. As part of our annual internal business outlook that we performed during the
fourth quarter of 2014, we considered changes in the global economic environment that affected our common unit price and market
capitalization. As part of the first step of goodwill impairment testing, we updated our assessment of our future cash flows, applying expected
long-term growth rates, discount rates, and terminal values that we consider reasonable. We calculated a present value of the cash flows to
arrive at an estimate of fair value under the income approach, and then used the market approach to corroborate this value. Because our
estimated

16



fair value exceeded our carrying value by approximately 4%, there is a reasonable possibility that the $233.6 million of goodwill may be
impaired in a future period, and the amount of such impairment may be material. Specific uncertainties affecting our estimated fair value
include the impact of competition, prices for oil and natural gas, future overall activity levels in the regions in which we operate, the activity
levels of our significant customers, and other factors affecting the rate of our future growth. These factors will continue to be reviewed and
assessed going forward. Negative developments with regard to these factors could have a further negative effect on our fair value.

We are subject to environmental regulations, and changes in these regulations could increase our costs or liabilities.
 
We are subject to federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulatory standards, including laws and regulations regarding the

discharge of materials into the environment, emission controls, and other environmental protection and occupational health and safety
concerns. Environmental laws and regulations may, in certain circumstances, impose strict and joint and several liability for environmental
contamination, rendering us liable for remediation costs, natural resource damages, and other damages resulting from our ownership of
property or conduct that was lawful at the time it occurred or the conduct of, or conditions caused by, prior owners or operators or other third
parties. In addition, where contamination may be present, it is not uncommon for neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims
for personal injury, property damage, and recovery of response costs. Remediation costs and other damages arising as a result of
environmental laws and regulations, and costs associated with new information, changes in existing environmental laws and regulations or the
adoption of new environmental laws and regulations could be substantial and could adversely affect our financial condition or results of
operations. Moreover, failure to comply with these environmental laws and regulations, may result in the imposition of administrative, civil and
criminal penalties, and the issuance of injunctions delaying or prohibiting operations.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) is performing a study of the environmental impact of hydraulic fracturing, a
process used by the oil and natural gas industry in the development of certain oil and natural gas reservoirs. Specifically, the EPA is reviewing
the impact of hydraulic fracturing on drinking water resources and has published proposed guidance for the permitting of hydraulic fracturing
using diesel fuels. Certain environmental and other groups have suggested that additional federal, state and local laws and regulations may be
needed to more closely regulate the hydraulic fracturing process. We cannot predict whether any federal, state, or local laws or regulations will
be enacted regarding hydraulic fracturing, and, if so, what actions any such laws or regulations would require or prohibit. If additional levels of
regulation or permitting requirements were imposed on oil and natural gas operators through the adoption of new laws and regulations, the
domestic demand for our services in areas in shale reservoir markets could be decreased.

We routinely deal with natural gas, oil, and other petroleum products. Hydrocarbons or other hazardous wastes may have been
released during our operations or by third parties on wellhead sites where we provide services or store our equipment or on or under other
locations where wastes have been taken for disposal. These properties may be subject to investigatory, remediation, and monitoring
requirements under foreign, federal, state, and local environmental laws and regulations.

The EPA has adopted regulations under the Clean Air Act to control emissions of hazardous air pollutants from reciprocal internal
combustion engines and more recently the EPA adopted regulations that establish air emission controls for natural gas and natural gas liquids
production, processing and transportation activities, including New Source Performance Standards as well as emission standards to address
hazardous air pollutants. Certain CSI compressors are subject to these new requirements and additional control equipment and maintenance
operations are required. While we do not believe that compliance with current regulatory requirements will have a material adverse effect on
the business, additional regulations could impose new air permitting or pollution control requirements on our equipment that could require us to
incur material costs.

The modification or interpretation of existing environmental laws or regulations, the more vigorous enforcement of existing
environmental laws or regulations, or the adoption of new environmental laws or regulations may also adversely affect oil and natural gas
exploration and production, which in turn could have an adverse effect on us.
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Climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of “greenhouse gases” could result in increased operating costs and
reduced demand for the oil and natural gas our customers produce, while the physical effects of climate change could disrupt production and
cause us to incur costs in preparing for or responding to those effects.

 
The EPA has determined that "greenhouse gases" (“GHGs”) present an endangerment to public health and the environment because,

according to the EPA, they contribute to global warming and climate change. As a result, the EPA has begun to regulate certain sources of
greenhouse gases, including air emissions associated with oil and natural gas production particularly as they relate to the hydraulic fracturing of
natural gas wells. In addition, the EPA has issued regulations requiring the reporting of greenhouse gas emissions from certain sources,
including petroleum refineries and certain oil and natural gas production facilities, on an annual basis.

In March 2014, the Obama Administration announced a strategy to address methane emissions, including through reduction of
methane emissions from the oil and gas industry. Pursuant to the strategy, in April 2014, the EPA released white papers evaluating potentially
significant sources of methane, including compressors, as well as possible control technologies. Based on these white papers and public
comments, the EPA may develop additional regulations that could be implemented by the end of 2016. At this time we cannot predict the
impact of any laws or regulations relating to methane emissions on our equipment, our operations or our customers’ operations, but such laws
or regulations could require us to incur material costs, or result in reduced demand for our services.

The adoption and implementation of any regulations imposing reporting obligations on, or limiting emissions of greenhouse gases from,
our equipment and operations could require us to incur costs to reduce emissions of GHGs associated with our operations. Further, the U.S.
Congress has considered and almost one-half of the states have adopted legislation that seeks to control or reduce emissions of GHGs from a
wide range of sources. Any such legislation could adversely affect demand for the oil and natural gas our customers produce and, in turn,
demand for our services.

We do not insure against all potential losses and could be seriously harmed by unexpected liabilities.
 
Our assets and operations are subject to inherent risks such as vehicle accidents, equipment defects, malfunctions and failures, as

well as other incidents that result in releases or uncontrolled flows of gas or well fluids, fires, or explosions. These risks could expose us to
substantial liability for personal injury, death, property damage, pollution, and other environmental damages. We do not insure all of our assets
and the insurance we do obtain may be inadequate to cover our liabilities. Further, insurance covering the risks we face or in the amounts we
desire may not be available in the future, or, if available, the premiums may not be commercially justifiable. If we were to incur substantial
liability and such damages were not covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if we were to incur liability at a time when we did
not maintain liability insurance, our business, results of operations, and financial condition could be adversely affected. In addition, we do not
maintain business interruption insurance. Please read “Health, Safety, and Environmental Affairs Regulations” for a description of how we are
subject to federal, state, and local laws and regulations governing the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to
protection of human health and environment.
 
Risks Inherent in an Investment in Us
 

 
Our partnership agreement requires us to distribute all of the available cash that we generate each quarter after paying expenses and

establishing prudent operating reserves, which could limit our ability to grow.
 
Our partnership agreement requires us to distribute all of the available cash we generate each quarter. Under the terms of our

partnership agreement, the amount of cash otherwise available for distribution will be reduced by our operating expenses and the amount of
cash reserves that our general partner establishes to provide for future operations, future capital expenditures, future debt service requirements
and future cash distributions to our common unitholders. As a result, our general partner relies primarily upon external financing sources,
including commercial bank borrowings and the issuance of debt and equity securities, as well as cash flows from operations to a certain extent,
to fund our expansion capital expenditures. To the extent that we are unable to finance growth externally, this requirement significantly impairs
our ability to grow. In addition, also as a result of this requirement, our growth may not be as fast as that of businesses that reinvest their
available cash to expand ongoing operations.
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To the extent that we issue additional units in connection with any expansion capital expenditures, the payment of distributions on those
additional units will decrease the amount we distribute on each outstanding unit.
 

TETRA controls our general partner, which has sole responsibility for conducting our business and managing our operations, and
thereby controls us. TETRA has conflicts of interest, which may permit it to favor its own interests to our unitholders’ detriment. 

 
TETRA controls our general partner, and through the general partner controls us. Some of our general partner’s directors are directors

of TETRA or its affiliates that own our general partner. Therefore, conflicts of interest may arise between TETRA and its affiliates, including our
general partner, on the one hand, and us and our unitholders, on the other hand. In resolving these conflicts of interest, our general partner
may favor its own interests and the interests of TETRA and its affiliates over the interests of our common unitholders. These conflicts include,
among others, the following situations:

• neither our partnership agreement nor any other agreement requires TETRA to pursue a business strategy that favors us. The
directors and officers of TETRA and its affiliates have a fiduciary duty to make these decisions in the best interests of TETRA, which
may be contrary to our interests;

• our general partner controls the interpretation and enforcement of contractual obligations between us and our affiliates, on the one
hand, and TETRA, on the other hand, including provisions governing administrative services, acquisitions, and non-competition
provisions;

• our general partner is allowed to take into account the interests of parties other than us, including TETRA and its affiliates, in resolving
conflicts of interest;

• our general partner has limited its liability and reduced its fiduciary duties to our common unitholders and us, and has also restricted
the remedies available to our common unitholders for actions that, without the limitations, might constitute breaches of fiduciary duty;

• our general partner will determine the amount and timing of asset purchases and sales, capital expenditures, borrowings, repayment of
indebtedness, and issuances of additional partnership interests, each of which can affect the amount of cash that is available for
distribution to our common unitholders;

• our general partner determines the amount and timing of any capital expenditures and whether a capital expenditure is a maintenance
capital expenditure, which reduces operating surplus, or an expansion capital expenditure, which does not reduce operating surplus,
and this determination can affect the amount of cash that is distributed to our common unitholders, which, in turn, may affect the ability
of the subordinated units to convert;

• our general partner may cause us to borrow funds in order to permit the payment of cash distributions, even if the purpose or effect of
the borrowing is to make a distribution on the subordinated units, to make incentive distributions, or to accelerate the expiration of the
subordination period;

• our partnership agreement permits us to distribute up to $15 million as operating surplus, even if it is generated from asset sales, non-
working capital borrowings, or other sources that would otherwise constitute capital surplus. This cash may be used to fund
distributions on our subordinated units or the incentive distribution rights;

• our general partner determines which costs incurred by it and its affiliates are reimbursable by us  and TETRA will determine the
allocation of shared overhead expenses;

• our partnership agreement does not restrict our general partner from causing us to pay it or its affiliates for any services rendered to us
or entering into additional contractual arrangements with any of these entities on our behalf;

• our general partner intends to limit its liability regarding our contractual and other obligations and, in some circumstances, is entitled to
be indemnified by us;

• our general partner decides whether to retain separate counsel, accountants, or others to perform services for us; and
• our general partner may elect to cause us to issue common units to it in connection with a resetting of the target distribution levels

related to our general partner’s incentive distribution rights without the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of
our general partner or the common unitholders. This election may result in lower distributions to the common unitholders in certain
situations.

Our cash distribution policy, as expressed in our partnership agreement, may not be modified or repealed in a manner materially
adverse to our common unitholders without a vote of the holders of a majority of our common units. TETRA’s indirect control of our general
partner and over a majority of our common unitholders would also
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allow TETRA to modify or repeal our cash distribution policy in a manner materially adverse to our common unitholders.
 

 
Our reliance on TETRA for certain general and administrative support services and our limited ability to control certain costs could have

a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.
Cost reimbursements due to our general partner and its affiliates for services provided, which will be determined by our general partner, will be
substantial and will reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

 
Pursuant to an Omnibus Agreement entered into between TETRA, our general partner and us, TETRA provides to us certain general

and administrative services, including, without limitation, legal, accounting, treasury, insurance administration and claims processing and risk
management, health, safety and environmental, information technology, human resources, credit, payroll, internal audit and tax services. Our
ability to execute our growth strategy depends significantly upon TETRA’s performance of these services. Our reliance on TETRA could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and ability to make cash distributions to our unitholders.
Additionally, TETRA will receive reimbursement for the provision of various general and administrative services for our benefit. Our general
partner is also entitled to significant reimbursement for expenses it incurs on our behalf, including reimbursement for the cost of its employees
who perform services for us. Payments for these services are substantial and reduce the amount of cash available for distribution to our
common unitholders. In addition, under Delaware partnership law, our general partner has unlimited liability for our obligations, such as our
debts and environmental liabilities, except for our contractual obligations that are expressly made without recourse to our general partner. To
the extent our general partner incurs obligations on our behalf, we are obligated to reimburse or indemnify it. If we are unable or unwilling to
reimburse or indemnify our general partner, our general partner may take actions to cause us to make payments of these obligations and
liabilities. Any such payments could reduce the amount of cash otherwise available for distribution to our unitholders.

 
Our partnership agreement limits our general partner’s fiduciary duties to our common unitholders and restricts the remedies available

to our common unitholders for actions taken by our general partner that might otherwise constitute breaches of fiduciary duty.
 
Our partnership agreement contains provisions that reduce the fiduciary standards to which our general partner would otherwise be

held by state fiduciary duty laws. For example, our partnership agreement:
• permits our general partner to make a number of decisions in its individual capacity, as opposed to in its capacity as our general

partner. This entitles our general partner to consider only the interests and factors that it desires, and it has no duty or obligation to
consider any interest of, or factors affecting, us, our affiliates or any limited partner. Examples include the exercise of its limited call
right, the exercise of its rights to transfer or vote the partnership units it owns, the exercise of its registration rights and its determination
whether or not to consent to any merger or consolidation of the partnership or amendment to the partnership agreement;

• provides that our general partner will not have any liability to us or our common unitholders for decisions made in its capacity as a
general partner so long as it acted in good faith, meaning it believed the decision was in the best interests of our partnership;

• generally provides that affiliated transactions and resolutions of conflicts of interest not approved by the conflicts committee of the
board of directors of our general partner acting in good faith and not involving a vote of our common unitholders must be on terms no
less favorable to us than those generally being provided to or available from unrelated third parties or must be “fair and reasonable” to
us, as determined by our general partner in good faith and that, in determining whether a transaction or resolution is “fair and
reasonable,” our general partner may consider the totality of the relationships between the parties involved, including other transactions
that may be particularly advantageous or beneficial to us;

• provides that our general partner and its executive officers and directors will not be liable for monetary damages to us, our limited
partners or assignees for any acts or omissions unless there has been a final and non-appealable judgment entered by a court of
competent jurisdiction determining that our general partner or those other persons acted in bad faith or engaged in fraud or willful
misconduct or, in the case of a criminal matter, acted with knowledge that the conduct was criminal; and

• provides that in resolving conflicts of interest, it will be presumed that in making its decision our general partner acted in good faith, and
in any proceeding brought by or on behalf of any limited partner or us, the person bringing or prosecuting such proceeding will have the
burden of overcoming such presumption.
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Our general partner may elect to cause us to issue common units to it in connection with a resetting of the target distribution levels
related to its incentive distribution rights, without the approval of the conflicts committee of its board of directors or our common unitholders.
This could result in lower distributions to our common unitholders.

 
Our general partner has the right, at any time when it has received incentive distributions at the highest level to which it is entitled

(48.0%) for each of the prior four consecutive fiscal quarters, to reset the initial target distribution levels at higher levels based on our
distributions at the time of the exercise of the reset election. Following a reset election by our general partner, the minimum quarterly
distribution will be adjusted to equal the reset minimum quarterly distribution, and the target distribution levels will be reset to correspondingly
higher levels based on percentage increases above the reset minimum quarterly distribution. If our general partner elects to reset the target
distribution levels, it will be entitled to receive a number of common units and will retain its then-current general partner interest. The number of
common units to be issued to our general partner will equal the number of common units that would have entitled the holder to an average
aggregate quarterly cash distribution in the prior two quarters equal to the average of the distributions to our general partner on the incentive
distribution rights in the prior two quarters. We anticipate that our general partner would exercise this reset right in order to facilitate acquisitions
or internal growth projects that would not be sufficiently accretive to cash distributions per common unit without such reset. It is possible,
however, that our general partner could exercise this reset election at a time when it is experiencing, or expects to experience, declines in the
cash distributions it receives related to its incentive distribution rights and may, therefore, desire to be issued common units rather than retain
the right to receive incentive distributions based on the initial target distribution levels. As a result, a reset election may cause our common
unitholders to experience a reduction in the amount of cash distributions that our common unitholders would have otherwise received had we
not issued new common units to our general partner in connection with resetting the target distribution levels.
 

Our common unitholders have limited voting rights and are not entitled to elect our general partner or its directors.
 
Unlike the holders of common stock in a corporation, our unitholders have only limited voting rights on matters affecting our business

and, therefore, limited ability to influence management’s decisions regarding our business. Unitholders will have no right to elect our general
partner or its board of directors. The board of directors of our general partner will be chosen indirectly by TETRA through its subsidiary that is
the sole shareholder of our general partner. Furthermore, if our unitholders are dissatisfied with the performance of our general partner, they
will have little ability to remove our general partner. Due to these limitations, the price at which the common units will trade could be diminished
because of the absence or reduction of a takeover premium in the trading price.

 
Even if our common unitholders are dissatisfied, they cannot remove our general partner without its consent.
 
Our common unitholders are currently unable to remove our general partner without its consent because our general partner and its

affiliates own sufficient units to prevent its removal. The vote of the holders of at least 662/3% of all outstanding common units is required to
remove our general partner. As of March 19, 2015, TETRA, which indirectly owns our general partner, owns 42.5% of our aggregate
outstanding common units.

We can issue an unlimited number of partnership units in the future, including units that are senior in right of distributions, liquidation
and voting to the common units, without the approval of our common unitholders, and our general partner may elect to cause us to issue
common units to it in connection with a resetting of the target distribution levels related to its incentive distribution rights, without the approval of
the conflicts committee of its board of directors or our common unitholders, each of which would dilute our common unitholders’ existing
ownership interests.

 
Our partnership agreement does not limit the number of additional partnership units that we may issue at any time without the approval

of our common unitholders. In addition, we may issue an unlimited number of partnership units that are senior to the common units in right of
distribution, liquidation, or voting. Our general partner also has the right, at any time when it has received incentive distributions at the highest
level to which it is entitled (48.0%) for each of the prior four consecutive fiscal quarters, to reset the initial target distribution levels at higher
levels based on our distributions at the time of the exercise of the reset election. If our general partner elects to reset the target distribution
levels, it will be entitled to receive a number of common units and will retain its then-current general partner interest.
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The issuance by us of additional common units or other equity securities of equal or senior rank will have the following effects:
• our previously existing common unitholders’ proportionate ownership interests in us will decrease;
• the amount of cash available for distribution on each common unit may decrease;
• the ratio of taxable income to distributions may increase;
• the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding common unitholders may be diminished; and
• the market price of the common units may decline.

 
Control of our general partner may be transferred to a third party without common unitholder consent.

Our general partner may transfer its general partner interest to a third party in a merger or in a sale of all or substantially all of its
assets without the consent of our unitholders. Furthermore, our partnership agreement does not restrict the ability of TETRA or its subsidiaries
from transferring all or a portion of its indirect ownership interest in our general partner to a third party. The new owners of our general partner
would then be in a position to replace the board of directors and executive officers of our general partner with its own choices and thereby
influence the decisions taken by the board of directors and executive officers.

 
 

Our partnership agreement restricts the voting rights of unitholders owning 20% or more of our common units, other than our general
partner and its affiliates, including TETRA. Accordingly, such unitholders’ voting rights may be limited.

 
Unitholders’ voting rights are further restricted by the partnership agreement provision providing that any partnership units held by a

person that owns 20% or more of any class of partnership units then outstanding, other than our general partner, its affiliates, including TETRA,
its transferees and persons who acquired such partnership units with the prior approval of the board of directors of our general partner, cannot
vote on any matter. Our partnership agreement also contains provisions limiting the ability of our common unitholders to call meetings or to
acquire information about our operations, as well as other provisions.

 
Our general partner has a limited call right that may require our unitholders to sell common units at an undesirable time or price.
 
If at any time our general partner and its affiliates own more than 90% of the common units, our general partner will have the right, but

not the obligation, which it may assign to any of its affiliates or to us, to acquire all, but not less than all, of the common units held by unaffiliated
persons at a price not less than the then-current market price. As a result, our unitholders may be required to sell common units at an
undesirable time or price and may not receive any return on their investment. Our unitholders may also incur a tax liability upon a sale of
common units. As of March 19, 2015, our general partner and its affiliates own an aggregate of 42.5% of our common units.

 

Our common unitholders’ liability may not be limited if a court finds that common unitholder action constitutes control of our business.
 
A general partner of a partnership generally has unlimited liability for the obligations of the partnership, except for those contractual

obligations of the partnership that are expressly made without recourse to our general partner. Our partnership is organized under Delaware
law, and we conduct business in a number of other states. The limitations on the liability of holders of limited partner interests for the obligations
of a limited partnership have not been clearly established in some of the other states in which we do business. Our common unitholders could
be liable for any and all of our obligations as if they were a general partner if:

• a court or government agency determined that we were conducting business in a state but had not complied with that particular state’s
partnership statute; or

• our common unitholders’ right to act with other unitholders to remove or replace our general partner, to approve some amendments to
our partnership agreement, or to take other actions under our partnership agreement constitutes “control” of our business.

 

 
Our common unitholders may have liability to repay distributions that were wrongfully distributed to them.
 
Under certain circumstances, our common unitholders may have to repay amounts wrongfully returned or distributed to them. Under

Section 17-607 of the Delaware Revised Uniform Limited Partnership Act, we may not
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make a distribution to our common unitholders if the distribution would cause our liabilities to exceed the fair value of our assets. Delaware law
provides that for a period of three years from the date of the impermissible distribution, limited partners who received the distribution and who
knew at the time of the distribution that it violated Delaware law will be liable to the limited partnership for the distribution amount. Substituted
limited partners are liable for the obligations of the assignor to make contributions to the partnership that are known to the substituted limited
partner at the time it became a limited partner and for unknown obligations if the liabilities could be determined from the partnership agreement.
Liabilities to partners because of their partnership interest and liabilities that are non-recourse to the partnership are not counted for purposes
of determining whether a distribution is permitted.
 

While our partnership agreement requires us to distribute all of our available cash, our partnership agreement, including provisions
requiring us to make cash distributions contained therein, may be amended.

 
While our partnership agreement requires us to distribute all of our available cash, our partnership agreement, including provisions

requiring us to make cash distributions contained therein, may be amended. Our partnership agreement can be amended with the consent of
our general partner and the approval of a majority of the outstanding common units (including common units held by affiliates of TETRA). As of
March 19, 2015, TETRA and its affiliates own 42.5% of our common units.

 
 

We are exempt from certain corporate governance requirements that provide additional protection to stockholders of other public
companies.

 
Companies listed on the NASDAQ are required to meet the high standards of corporate governance, as set forth in the NASDAQ

Listing Rules. These requirements generally do not apply to limited partnerships or to a “controlled company,” within the meaning of the
NASDAQ rules. We are a limited partnership and a “controlled company,” within the meaning of the NASDAQ rules, and, as a result, we rely on
exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements that provide protection to stockholders of other public companies.

Tax Risks to Common Unitholders
 

Our tax treatment depends on our status as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If the IRS were to treat us as a
corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, then our cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be substantially reduced.

 
The anticipated after-tax economic benefit of an investment in the common units depends largely on our being treated as a partnership

for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We have not requested, and do not plan to request, a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS,
on this or any other tax matter affecting us.

 
Despite the fact that we are a limited partnership under Delaware law, it is possible in certain circumstances for a partnership such as

ours to be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Although we do not believe based upon our current operations that
we should be treated as a corporation, a change in our business or a change in current law could cause us to be treated as a corporation for
U.S. federal income tax purposes or otherwise subject us to taxation as an entity.
 

 
If we were treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we would pay U.S. federal income tax on all of our taxable

income at the corporate tax rate, which is currently a maximum of 35%, and would likely pay additional state and local income tax at varying
rates. Distributions to our unitholders would generally be taxed again as corporate distributions, and no income, gains, losses, deductions or
credits would flow through to our unitholders. Because a tax would be imposed upon us as a corporation, our cash available for distribution to
our unitholders would be substantially reduced. Therefore, treatment of us as a corporation would result in a material reduction in the
anticipated cash flow and after-tax return to our unitholders, likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of our common units.

 
We have subsidiaries that are treated as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes and are subject to corporate-level income

taxes.
 
We conduct a portion of our operations through subsidiaries that are organized as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes,

including our CSI subsidiary. We may elect to conduct additional operations through these corporate subsidiaries in the future. These corporate
subsidiaries are subject to U.S. corporate-level tax, which reduces the cash available for distribution to us and, in turn, to our unitholders. If the
IRS were to
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successfully assert that these corporations have more tax liability than we anticipate or legislation were enacted that increased the corporate
tax rate, our cash available for distribution to our unitholders would be further reduced. Distributions from any such corporate subsidiary will
generally be treated as dividend income to the extent of the current and accumulated earnings and profits of such corporate subsidiary. An
individual unitholder's share of dividend income from any corporate subsidiary would constitute portfolio income that could not be offset by the
unitholder's share of our other losses or deductions.
 

The tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships or an investment in our common units could be subject to potential legislative, judicial,
or administrative changes and differing interpretations, possibly on a retroactive basis.

 
The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of publicly traded partnerships, including us, or an investment in our common units may

be modified by administrative, legislative or judicial interpretation at any time. For example, from time to time the Obama Administration and
members of the U.S. Congress propose and consider substantive changes to the existing federal income tax laws that would affect publicly
traded partnerships. One such Obama Administration budget proposal for fiscal year 2016 would, if enacted, tax publicly traded partnerships
with “fossil fuels” activities as corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes beginning in 2021. Any modification to the U.S. federal income
tax laws and interpretations thereof may or may not be applied retroactively and could make it more difficult or impossible for us to meet the
exception to be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. We are unable to predict whether any of these changes, or other
proposals, will ultimately be enacted. Any such changes could negatively impact the value of an investment in our common units and the
amount of cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

 
If we were subjected to a material amount of additional entity-level taxation by individual states, it would reduce our cash available for

distribution to our unitholders.
 
Changes in current state law may subject us to additional entity-level taxation by individual states. Because of widespread state budget

deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways to subject partnerships to entity-level taxation through the imposition of state
income, franchise, and other forms of taxation. For example, we are subject to an entity-level Texas franchise tax. Imposition of any such taxes
may substantially reduce the cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

Our partnership agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that subjects us to
additional amounts of entity-level taxation, for U.S. federal, state, or local tax purposes, the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the
target distribution amounts may be adjusted to reflect the impact of that law on us.

 
Although we are not subject to U.S. federal income tax other than with respect to our operating U.S. subsidiaries that are treated as

corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes, certain of our foreign operations are subject to certain non-U.S. taxes. If a taxing authority
were to successfully assert that we have more tax liability than we anticipate or legislation were enacted that increased the taxes to which we
are subject, our cash available for distribution to our unitholders could be further reduced.

 
Approximately 19.3% of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014, was generated in non-U.S. jurisdictions,

primarily Mexico, Canada, and Argentina. Our non-U.S. operations and subsidiaries are generally subject to income, withholding, and other
taxes in the non-U.S. jurisdictions in which they are organized or from which they receive income, reducing the amount of cash available for
distribution. In computing our tax obligation in these non-U.S. jurisdictions, we are required to take various tax accounting and reporting
positions on matters that are not entirely free from doubt and for which we have not received rulings from the governing tax authorities, such as
whether withholding taxes will be reduced by the application of certain tax treaties. Upon review of these positions the applicable authorities
may not agree with our positions. A successful challenge by a tax authority could result in additional taxes being imposed on us, reducing the
cash available for distribution to our unitholders. In addition, changes in our operations or ownership could result in higher than anticipated
taxes being imposed in jurisdictions in which we are organized or from which we receive income and further reducing the cash available for
distribution. Although these taxes may be properly characterized as foreign income taxes, our unitholders may not be able to credit them
against the liability for U.S. federal income taxes on the unitholders’ share of our earnings. In addition, our operations in countries in which we
operate now or in the future may involve risks associated with the legal structure used and the taxation on assets transferred into a particular
country. Tax laws of non-U.S. jurisdictions are subject to potential legislative, judicial, or administrative changes and differing
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interpretations, possibly on a retroactive basis. Any such changes may result in additional taxes above the amounts we currently anticipate and
further reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

 
If the IRS contests the U.S. federal income tax positions we take, the market for our common units may be adversely impacted, and the

cost of any IRS contest will reduce our cash available for distribution to our unitholders.
 
We have not requested a ruling from the IRS with respect to our treatment as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes or any

other matter affecting us. The IRS may adopt positions that differ from the positions we take, and the IRS’s positions may ultimately be
sustained. It may be necessary to resort to administrative or court proceedings to sustain some or all of the positions we take. A court may not
agree with some or all of the positions we take. Any contest with the IRS may materially and adversely impact the market for our common units
and the price at which they trade. In addition, our costs of any contest with the IRS will be borne indirectly by our unitholders and our general
partner, because the costs will reduce our cash available for distribution.

 
Unitholders’ share of our income will be taxable for U.S. federal income tax purposes, even if they do not receive any cash distributions

from us.
 
Because our unitholders will be treated as partners to whom we will allocate taxable income that could be different in amount than the

cash we distribute, a unitholder’s allocable share of our taxable income will be taxable to the unitholder, which may require the payment of
U.S. federal income taxes, and, in some cases, state and local income taxes on the unitholder’s share of our taxable income, even if the
unitholder receives no cash distributions from us. Unitholders may not receive cash distributions from us equal to their share of our taxable
income or even equal to the actual tax liability that results from that income.

 
Tax gain or loss on the disposition of our common units could be more or less than expected.
 
If our unitholders sell common units, they will recognize a gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes equal to the difference

between the amount realized and their tax basis in those common units. Because distributions in excess of their allocable share of our net
taxable income decrease their tax basis in that common unit, the amount, if any, of such prior excess distributions with respect to the units our
unitholders sell will, in effect, become taxable income to our unitholders if they sell such units at a price greater than their tax basis in those
units, even if the price they receive is less than their original cost. Furthermore, a substantial portion of the amount realized, whether or not
representing gain, may be taxed as ordinary income due to potential recapture items, including depreciation recapture. In addition, because the
amount realized includes a unitholder’s share of our nonrecourse liabilities, if our unitholders sell their units, they may incur a tax liability in
excess of the amount of cash the unitholders receive from the sale.

 
Tax-exempt entities and non-U.S. persons face unique tax issues from owning our common units that may result in adverse tax

consequences to them.
 
Investment in common units by tax-exempt entities, such as employee benefit plans and individual retirement accounts (known as

IRAs), and non-U.S. persons raises issues unique to them. For example, virtually all of our income allocated to organizations that are exempt
from U.S. federal income tax, including IRAs and other retirement plans, will be unrelated business taxable income and will be taxable to them.
Distributions to non-U.S. persons will be reduced by withholding taxes at the highest applicable effective tax rate, and non-U.S. persons will be
required to file U.S. federal income tax returns and pay tax on their share of our taxable income. If a unitholder is a tax-exempt entity or a non-
U.S. person, the unitholder should consult a tax advisor before investing in our common units.

 
We will treat each purchaser of our common units as having the same tax benefits without regard to the actual common units

purchased. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could adversely affect the value of the common units.
 
Due to a number of factors, including our inability to match transferors and transferees of common units, we have adopted depreciation

and amortization positions that may not conform to all aspects of existing Treasury Regulations. A successful IRS challenge to those positions
could adversely affect the amount of tax benefits available to our unitholders. It also could affect the timing of these tax benefits or the amount
of gain from the sale
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of common units and could have a negative impact on the value of our common units or result in audit adjustments to our unitholders’ tax
returns.

 

 
We prorate our items of income, gain, loss, and deduction for U.S. federal income tax purposes between transferors and transferees of

our units each month based upon the ownership of our units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date that a particular
unit is transferred. The IRS may challenge this treatment, which could change the allocation of items of income, gain, loss, and deduction
among our unitholders.

 
We prorate our items of income, gain, loss, and deduction for U.S. federal income tax purposes between transferors and transferees of

our units each month based upon the ownership of our units on the first day of each month, instead of on the basis of the date a particular unit
is transferred. The use of this proration method may not be permitted under existing Treasury Regulations, and although the U.S. Treasury
Department issued proposed Treasury Regulations allowing a similar monthly simplifying convention, such regulations are not final and do not
specifically authorize the use of the proration method we have adopted. If the IRS were to challenge our proration method or new Treasury
Regulations were issued, we may be required to change our allocation of items of income, gain, loss, and deduction among our unitholders.
 

A unitholder whose units are loaned to a “short seller” to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having disposed of those
units. If so, the unitholder would no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to those units during the period of the loan and
may recognize gain or loss from the disposition.

 
Because a unitholder whose units are loaned to a “short seller” to cover a short sale of units may be considered as having disposed of

the loaned units, the unitholder may no longer be treated for tax purposes as a partner with respect to those units during the period of the loan
to the short seller, and the unitholder may recognize gain or loss from such disposition. Moreover, during the period of the loan to the short
seller, any of our income, gain, loss, or deduction with respect to those units may not be reportable by the unitholder, and any cash distributions
received by the unitholder as to those units could be fully taxable as ordinary income. Unitholders desiring to assure their status as partners
and avoid the risk of gain recognition from a loan to a short seller are urged to consult a tax advisor to discuss whether it is advisable to modify
any applicable brokerage account agreements to prohibit their brokers from borrowing their units.

 
We have adopted certain valuation methodologies in determining a unitholder’s allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction. The

IRS may challenge these methodologies or the resulting allocations, and such a challenge could adversely affect the value of our common
units.

In determining the items of income, gain, loss and deduction allocable to our unitholders, we must routinely determine the fair market
value of our assets. Although we may from time to time consult with professional appraisers regarding valuation matters, we make many fair
market value estimates ourselves using a methodology based on the market value of our common units as a means to determine the fair
market value of our assets. The IRS may challenge these valuation methods and the resulting allocations of income, gain, loss and deduction
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

A successful IRS challenge to these methods or allocations could adversely affect the timing or amount of taxable income or loss being
allocated to our unitholders. It also could affect the amount of gain from our unitholders’ sale of common units and could have a negative
impact on the value of the common units or result in audit adjustments to our unitholders’ tax returns without the benefit of additional
deductions.

 
The sale or exchange of 50% or more of our capital and profits interests during any twelve-month period will result in the termination of

our partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
 
We will be considered to have technically terminated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes if there is a sale or

exchange of 50% or more of the total interests in our capital and profits within a twelve-month period. For purposes of determining whether the
50% threshold has been met, multiple sales of the same unit will be counted only once. While we would continue our existence as a Delaware
limited partnership, our technical termination would, among other things, result in the closing of our taxable year for all unitholders, which would
result in us filing two tax returns for one fiscal year, and could result in a significant deferral of depreciation deductions allowable in computing
our taxable income. In the case of a unitholder reporting on a taxable year other than a fiscal year ending December 31, the closing of our
taxable year may also result in more than twelve months
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of our taxable income or loss being includable in the unitholder's taxable income for the year of termination. A technical termination would not
affect our classification as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, but, instead, we would be treated as a new partnership for tax
purposes. If treated as a new partnership, we must make new tax elections and could be subject to penalties if we are unable to determine that
a technical termination occurred.

  
Unitholders will likely be subject to non-U.S., state and local taxes, and return filing requirements in jurisdictions where they do not live

as a result of investing in our common units.
 
In addition to U.S. federal income taxes, unitholders will likely be subject to other taxes, including non-U.S., state and local taxes,

unincorporated business taxes and estate, inheritance, or intangible taxes that are imposed by the various jurisdictions in which we do
business or control property now or in the future, even if they do not live in any of those jurisdictions. Unitholders will likely be required to file
non-U.S., state, and local income tax returns and pay non-U.S., state and local income taxes in some or all of these various jurisdictions.
Further, unitholders may be subject to penalties for failure to comply with those requirements. In the United States, we own assets and conduct
business in many states, most of which currently impose a personal income tax on individuals and an income tax on corporations and other
entities. As we make acquisitions or expand our business, we may own or control assets or conduct business in additional jurisdictions that
impose a personal income tax.

 

 
Unitholders may be subject to tax in one or more non-U.S. jurisdictions, including Mexico, Canada, Australia, and Argentina, as a result

of owning our common units if, under the laws of any such country, we are considered to be carrying on business there. If unitholders are
subject to tax in any such country, they may be required to file a tax return with, and pay taxes to, that country based on their allocable share of
our income. We may be required to reduce distributions to unitholders on account of any withholding obligations imposed upon us by that
country in respect of such allocation to the unitholders. In addition, the United States may not allow a tax credit for any foreign income taxes
that unitholders directly or indirectly incur.

It is the responsibility of each unitholder to file all U.S. federal, state, and local tax returns and non-U.S. tax returns.
 

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
 

None.
 
Item 2. Properties.
 

As of December 31, 2014, we owned a headquarters and fabrication facility in Midland, Texas, a fabrication facility in Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma and additional service facilities in North Dakota, Oklahoma, Texas, and Utah. We lease a fabrication facility and an administrative
facility in Oklahoma, and lease 32 additional service facilities in Alabama, California, Colorado, Louisiana, New Mexico, Ohio, Oklahoma,
Texas, Wyoming, and foreign locations in Argentina, Australia, Canada, and Mexico. We lease a number of storage facilities located across the
geographic markets we serve. We utilize one of TETRA’s facilities in Texas as a sales office. Our primary assets include our fleet of
compression and other equipment. See Item 1 Business - Compression Services, for a discussion and description of our compressor fleet. All
obligations under our bank revolving credit facility are secured by a first-lien security interest in substantially all of our assets, including our
equipment fleet and our fabrication facilities in Midland, Texas and Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, but excluding other real property assets.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
 
From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business.

While the outcome of lawsuits against us cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not consider it reasonably possible that a loss
resulting from such lawsuits in excess of any amounts accrued has been incurred that is expected to have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
 

Not applicable.

27



PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities.
 
Price Range of Common Units and Cash Distributions
 

Our common units are traded on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol “CCLP.” As of March 13, 2015, there were 46 holders of
record of the common units. The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices of the common units and cash distributions to common
unitholders for each calendar quarter during the two years ended December 31, 2014, as reported by the NASDAQ.

  High  Low  
Cash Distribution

per Common Unit(1)

2013       

First Quarter  $ 20.44  $ 16.76  $ 0.4250

Second Quarter  25.72  18.37  0.4250

Third Quarter  22.13  18.07  0.4300

Fourth Quarter  23.08  18.82  0.4375

2014       

First Quarter  $ 25.95 $ 19.15 $ 0.4450

Second Quarter  31.00 22.56 0.4525

Third Quarter  28.00 20.19 0.4600

Fourth Quarter  24.51 12.93 0.4850

(1) Represents cash distributions attributable to the quarter and paid in the following calendar quarter.

Cash Distribution Policy
 

Our partnership agreement requires us to distribute, no later than 45 days after the end of each quarter, all of our available cash, as
defined below, at the end of each quarter. Our ability to pay our minimum quarterly distribution is subject to various restrictions and other
factors, and there is no guarantee that we will pay any specific distribution in any quarter.

 
Definition of Available Cash. We define Available Cash in the partnership agreement, and it generally means, for each fiscal quarter,

the sum of all cash and cash equivalents on hand at the end of the quarter:
• less the amount of cash reserves established by our general partner to:

◦ provide for the proper conduct of our business after the end of the quarter;
◦ comply with applicable law, any of our future debt instruments or other agreements; or
◦ provide funds for distributions to our unitholders and to our general partner for any one or more of the next four quarters

(provided that our general partner may not establish cash reserves for future distributions, unless it determines that the
establishment of reserves will not prevent us from distributing the minimum quarterly distribution on all common units and any
cumulative arrearages for such quarter);

• plus, if our general partner so determines, all or any portion of any additional cash and cash equivalents on hand on the date of
determination of Available Cash for the quarter resulting from working capital borrowings made after the end of the quarter.

 
 

Working capital borrowings are borrowings that are made under a credit agreement, commercial paper facility, or similar financing
arrangement, and in all cases are used solely for working capital purposes or to pay distributions to partners and with the intent of the borrower
to repay such borrowings within twelve months from sources other than additional working capital borrowings.

 
Quarterly Distribution. We pay quarterly distributions to the holders of common units to the extent we have sufficient cash from our

operations after establishment of cash reserves and payment of debt service and other contractual obligations, fees and expenses, including
payments to our general partner and its affiliates. For the fourth quarter of 2014 we paid a distribution of $0.4850 per unit, or $1.94 on an
annualized basis. There is no
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guarantee that we will continue to pay the current quarterly distribution on the common units. Even if our cash distribution policy is not modified
or revoked, the amount of distributions paid under our policy and the decision to make any distribution is determined by our general partner,
taking into consideration the terms of our partnership agreement. Distributions attributable to the year ended 2014 totaled $1.8425 per common
unit. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Revolving Credit Facility” for a discussion of provisions included in our revolving credit facility that restrict our ability to make
distributions.

 
General Partner Interest and Incentive Distribution Rights. Initially, our general partner is entitled to approximately 2.0% of all

distributions that we make prior to our liquidation. Our general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to contribute a proportionate amount
of capital to us to maintain its initial 2.0% general partner interest. Our general partner’s initial 2.0% interest in our distributions has been and
may be further reduced if we issue additional limited partner units in the future and our general partner does not contribute a proportionate
amount of capital to us to maintain its approximately 2.0% general partner interest.

 
Our general partner also currently holds incentive distribution rights ("Incentive Distribution Rights") that entitle it to receive increasing

percentages, up to a maximum of 50.0%, of the cash we distribute from operating surplus in excess of $0.445625 per unit per quarter. The
maximum distribution of 50.0% includes distributions paid to our general partner on its 2.0% general partner interest and assumes that our
general partner maintains its general partner interest at 2.0%. The maximum distribution of 50.0% does not include any distributions that our
general partner may receive on any limited partner units that it owns.
 

 
Subordination Period
 

General. Our partnership agreement provides that, during the subordination period our common units will have the right to receive
distributions of Available Cash from operating surplus each quarter in an amount equal to $0.3875 per common unit, which amount is defined in
our partnership agreement as the minimum quarterly distribution, plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on
the common units from prior quarters, before any distributions of Available Cash from operating surplus may be made on the subordinated
units. These units are deemed “subordinated”, because for a period of time, referred to as the subordination period, the subordinated units will
not be entitled to receive any distributions from operating surplus until the common units have received the minimum quarterly distribution plus
any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters. Furthermore, no arrearages will be paid on the
subordinated units. The practical effect of the subordinated units is to increase the likelihood that during the subordination period there will be
sufficient Available Cash from operating surplus to pay the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units.
 

On July 11, 2014, the Board confirmed that the conditions set forth in the definition of the Subordination Period contained in our
Partnership Agreement would be met upon the payment of the August 15, 2014 cash distribution. As a result, effective August 18, 2014, the
6,273,970 subordinated units held by TETRA and its affiliates converted on a one-for-one basis into common units. As a result of the
conversion of these subordinated units which were issued in connection with our June 2011 Initial Public Offering, no subordinated units are
outstanding and our common units will no longer be entitled to arrearages in cash distributions. The conversion of our subordinated units does
not impact the amount of cash distributions we pay or the total number of our outstanding units.
 

 
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers 

Period  

Total Number
of Units

Purchased  

Average
Price

Paid per
Unit  

Total Number of Units
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs  

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar Value) of

Units that May Yet be
Purchased Under the Publicly
Announced Plans or Programs

Oct 1 – Oct 31, 2014  —    N/A  N/A

Nov 1 – Nov 30, 2014  –  –  N/A  N/A

Dec 1 – Dec 31, 2014  –  –  N/A  N/A

Total  —    N/A  N/A
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.
 

The following tables set forth our selected consolidated financial data for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 and
selected consolidated financial data for our Predecessor for the years ended December 31, 2011, and 2010. The selected consolidated
financial data does not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified by, the more detailed information,
including the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes and Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operation” appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report. Please read “Item 1A. Risk Factors” for a discussion of the material
uncertainties that might cause the selected consolidated financial data not to be indicative of our future financial condition or results of
operations. On August 4, 2014, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated July 20, 2014, one of our subsidiaries acquired all of the
outstanding capital stock of CSI for $825.0 million cash. For the periods on and after June 20, 2011, the following audited consolidated financial
statements represent CSI Compressco LP. Financial information for periods prior to June 20, 2011 represents the operations of our
Predecessor. 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012  2011  2010
  (In Thousands, Except Per Unit Amounts)

Income Statement Data           

Revenues  $ 282,647  $ 121,301  $ 108,582  $ 95,179  $ 81,413

Cost of revenues  174,667  68,116  57,500  53,195  39,238

Selling, general, and administrative expenses  32,100  17,467  17,270  14,269  13,068

Depreciation and amortization expense  41,158  14,642  13,227  12,521  13,112

Interest expense, net  12,964  469  25  5,052  13,096

Other expense, net  11,672  782  876  980  113

Income before income tax provision  10,086  19,825  19,684  9,162  2,786

Net income  $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331  $ 7,257  $ 1,617

Net income per common unit, basic  $ 0.47  $ 1.11  $ 1.04  $ 0.45   

Weighted average common units outstanding, basic  18,928,640  9,230,876  9,163,798  9,044,293   

Net income per common unit, diluted  $ 0.47  $ 1.10  $ 1.03  $ 0.44   

Weighted average common units outstanding, diluted  18,928,640  9,305,066  9,193,407  9,063,339   
 

  December 31,
  2014  2013  2012  2011  2010
  (In Thousands)

Balance Sheet Data           

Working capital  $ 90,916  $ 32,074  $ 30,624  $ 34,043  $ 28,943

Total assets  1,232,664  225,109  217,786  206,344  196,566

Long-term debt  539,961  29,959  10,050  —  145,085

Partners' capital/net parent equity  550,281  173,716  182,250  188,644  25,953

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
 

The following discussion is intended to analyze major elements of our consolidated financial statements and provide insight into
important areas of management’s focus. This section should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and
accompanying Notes included in this Annual Report. This discussion includes forward-looking statements that involve certain risks and
uncertainties.

 
Statements in the following discussion may include forward-looking statements. These forward- looking statements involve risks and

uncertainties. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors,” for additional discussion of these factors and risks.
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Business Overview
 
On August 4, 2014, we completed the acquisition of Compressor Systems, Inc. ("CSI"). CSI has three primary business lines:

compression and related services, aftermarket services, and equipment and parts sales. Through these business lines, CSI provides products
and services that cover a wide range of compression needs throughout the natural gas production and transportation cycle to a broad customer
base. CSI owns one of the largest compression services fleets of natural gas compressor packages in the United States. With the acquisition of
CSI (the "CSI Acquisition"), we have effected a significant change in the composition of our operations and our capital structure. The CSI
Acquisition increased our total horsepower (HP) offering from approximately 187,000 HP to over 1,045,000 HP, and allows us to utilize an
expanded range of compressor packages (from 20 HP to 2,370 HP) to provide compression services to customers. The CSI Acquisition
dramatically expands our service and equipment sales offerings in the over-100 HP compression services market, complementing our existing
strong presence in the below-100 HP compression services market. Strategically, the acquisition is expected to afford us the opportunity to
capture significant synergies associated with our service and product offerings and our fabrication operations, to further penetrate into new and
existing markets, and to achieve administrative efficiencies and other strategic benefits.

As a result of the CSI Acquisition, we have significantly expanded our operations and now design and fabricate natural gas
reciprocating and rotary screw compressor packages up to 8,000 HP for sale to our broadened customer base. Through CSI, we provide
compression services and equipment for natural gas and oil production, processing, gathering, transportation, and storage. The CSI
compression service fleet includes over 2,000 compressor packages that provide in excess of 800,000 in total aggregate HP, utilizing medium-
and high-HP engines. The CSI service lines generated approximately 56.5% of the revenues that were added as a result of the acquisition.
Additionally, CSI fabricates and sells equipment that includes oilfield fluid pump systems, standard compressor packages, and custom-
designed compressor packages that are sold to natural gas and oil exploration and production, mid-stream, and transmission companies.
Equipment sold by CSI supports customer needs for various applications including for gas gathering systems, gas lift, carbon dioxide injection,
wellhead compression, gas storage systems, refrigeration plant compression, gas processing, pressure maintenance, pipelines, vapor
recovery, pipeline station optimization, gas transmission, fuel gas boosters, and coal bed methane. Utilizing our below-100 HP compressor
packages that were a majority of our business before the CSI Acquisition, we provide wellhead compression-based production enhancement
services that are utilized to increase production by deliquifying wells, lowering wellhead pressure, and increasing gas velocity. Our below-100
HP applications include production enhancement for dry gas wells and liquid-loaded gas wells using our GasJack(R) and VJackTM branded
compressor packages. Additionally, over the past several years, the below-100 HP compression-based services applications are being utilized
to a greater extent in liquids-rich resource plays providing vapor recovery, gas lift, and casing gas system applications.
 

The CSI Acquisition significantly impacted our revenues, results of operations, and operating cash flow during the year ended
December 31, 2014. Consolidated revenues generated by CSI during the portion of the year after the August 4, 2014 closing date totaled
approximately $152.5 million, increasing consolidated revenues for 2014 to $282.6 million, compared to $121.3 million during 2013. CSI
revenues after the August 4, 2014 closing date included approximately $85.6million of compression and aftermarket services revenues,
primarily in the U.S., and approximately $66.5 million of revenues from sales of equipment and parts. Primarily due to the continuing increased
demand for our below-100 HP production enhancement compression services applications, particularly in liquids-rich resource plays and vapor
recovery, our pre-CSI Acquisition compression service revenues increased approximately $8.9 million during the year ended December 31,
2014 compared to the corresponding prior year period. In addition to the increased demand for below-100 HP compression services, until late
2014, U.S. and Canadian natural gas prices were higher compared to the prior year period, which had a positive impact on overall demand and
pricing for these compression services in these markets. However, along with declines in oil prices that began in the second half of 2014, prices
for natural gas in late 2014 and early 2015 are below prior year levels. We expect oil and gas exploration activity levels will decrease in 2015
compared to 2014, while most ongoing customer projects supporting gas gathering, midstream, and processing will proceed to completion.
Much of our current equipment sales backlog is associated with such projects. We feel the diversity of our compressor fleet and the existing
levels of natural gas production combine to support the continuing demand for our compressor packages and compressor services, despite
current prices for oil and natural gas.

The CSI Acquisition purchase price was funded from (i) the issuance of 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 in the aggregate principal
amount of $350.0 million by us and our subsidiary, CSI Compressco Finance Inc., (the "7.25% Senior Notes") resulting in net proceeds of
$337.8 million (after deducting a $5.2 million discount and
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certain transaction related fees), (ii) the issuance by us of 15,280,000 common units (the "New Units"), at a public offering price of $23.50 per
common unit (the "Offering Price"), in an underwritten public offering resulting in net proceeds of $346.0 million, and (iii) a portion of the $210.0
million borrowed under our new $400 million bank revolving credit facility (the "New Credit Agreement"). A subsidiary of our General Partner
purchased 1,390,290 of the New Units for approximately $32.7 million. On August 11, 2014, the underwriters exercised their option to purchase
2,292,000 additional common units at the Offering Price resulting in additional net proceeds of $51.7 ($53.9 million less $2.2 underwriting
discount and fees). We used the proceeds generated from the exercise of this option to reduce indebtedness outstanding under the New Credit
Agreement. Our General Partner contributed approximately $8.4 million in order to maintain its approximately 2% general partner interest in us
following the offering of the New Units and the additional common units issued upon the exercise of the underwriters' option.

 
Overall, our total revenues and cost of revenues increased during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to December 31,

2013. These increases reflect:

• The impact of the August 4, 2014 CSI Acquisition;

• improved overall utilization of the pre-CSI Acquisition fleet, particularly in the U.S.; and

•        increased international compression services activity in Mexico and Argentina.

The growth of our operations is particularly dependent upon our continued capital expenditure program. We anticipate that our total
capital expenditures during 2015 will be approximately $100 million, including approximately $14 million of maintenance capital expenditures.
We plan to fund this continuing investment through the available capacity under our New Credit Agreement, undistributed operating cash flows,
and potentially from other sources.

We are not a restricted subsidiary of TETRA for purposes of TETRA’s credit facility, which we refer to as the “TETRA Credit Facility,” or
under several series of notes that TETRA has issued pursuant to certain note purchase agreements in April 2006, April 2008, October 2010,
and April 2013, which we collectively refer to as the “TETRA Senior Notes.” Although our ability to take certain actions, including incurring
indebtedness and making acquisitions and capital expenditures, is limited under our New Credit Agreement and Senior Notes, it is not
restricted by the TETRA Credit Facility or the TETRA Senior Notes.

How We Evaluate Our Operations
 

Operating Expenses. We use operating expenses as a performance measure for our business. We track our operating expenses using
month-to-month, year-to-date, and year-to-year comparisons, and as compared to budget. This analysis is useful in identifying adverse cost
trends and allows us to investigate the cause of these trends and implement remedial measures if possible. The most significant portions of our
operating expenses are for our field labor, repair and maintenance of our equipment, and the fuel and other supplies consumed while providing
our services. Other materials consumed while performing our services, ad valorem taxes, other labor costs, truck maintenance, rent on storage
facilities, and insurance expenses comprise the significant remainder of our operating expenses. Our operating expenses generally fluctuate
with our level of activity.

Our labor costs consist primarily of wages and benefits for our field and fabrication personnel, as well as expenses related to their
training and safety. Additional information regarding our operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014, is provided within the
results of operations sections below.

 
EBITDA. We view EBITDA as one of our primary management tools, and we track it on a monthly basis, both in dollars and as a

percentage of revenues (compared to the prior month, prior year period, and to budget). We define EBITDA as earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, and amortization. EBITDA is used as a supplemental financial measure by our management and by external users of our financial
statements, including investors, to:

• assess our ability to generate available cash sufficient to make distributions to our unitholders and General Partner;
• evaluate the financial performance of our assets without regard to financing methods, capital structure, or historical cost basis;
• measure operating performance and return on capital as compared to our competitors; and
• determine our ability to incur and service debt and fund capital expenditures.
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EBITDA should not be considered an alternative to net income, operating income, cash flows from operating activities, or any other
measure of financial performance presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). Our EBITDA may not
be comparable to EBITDA or similarly titled financial metrics of other entities, as other entities may not calculate EBITDA in the same manner
as we do. Management compensates for the limitations of EBITDA as an analytical tool by reviewing the comparable GAAP measures,
understanding the differences between the measures, and incorporating this knowledge into management’s decision-making processes.
EBITDA should not be viewed as indicative of the actual amount we have available for distributions or that we plan to distribute for a given
period, nor should it be equated with “available cash” as defined in our partnership agreement.

 
The following table reconciles net income to EBITDA for the periods indicated:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Net income  $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331

Provision (benefit) for income taxes  (1,172)  2,258  3,353

Depreciation and amortization  41,158  14,642  13,227

Interest expense, net  12,964  469  25

EBITDA  $ 64,208  $ 34,936  $ 32,936

Net income and EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2014, include the impact of $6.5 million of pretax transaction costs
associated with the CSI Acquisition. In addition, the year ended December 31, 2014, includes the impact of $6.7 million of pretax interim
financing expenses in connection with the CSI Acquisition.

The following table reconciles cash flow from operating activities to EBITDA for the periods indicated:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Cash flow from operating activities  $ 44,819  $ 29,135  $ 31,109

Changes in current assets and current liabilities  13,971  5,423  2,864

Deferred income taxes  3,514  (266)  (1,930)

Other non-cash charges  (3,138)  (2,083)  (2,485)

Financing expense  (6,750)  —  —

Interest expense, net  12,964  469  25

Provision (benefit) for income taxes  (1,172)  2,258  3,353

EBITDA  $ 64,208  $ 34,936  $ 32,936

The CSI Acquisition is expected to continue to have a significant impact on EBITDA going forward.

Average Horsepower Utilization Rate of our Compressor Packages. We measure the average horsepower utilization rate of our fleet of
compressor packages as the average amount of horsepower of compressor packages used to provide service during a particular period,
divided by the average amount of horsepower of compressor packages in our fleet during such period. Management primarily uses this metric
to determine our future need for additional compressor packages and to measure marketing effectiveness.

 
The following table sets forth our total horsepower in our fleet and our total horsepower in service as of the dates shown.
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  December 31,
  2014  2013  2012

Horsepower       
Total horsepower in fleet  1,089,151  180,315  169,692

Total horsepower in service  955,095  154,813  145,428

Net Increase in Compression Fleet Horsepower. We measure the net increase in our compression fleet horsepower during a given
period of time by taking the difference between the aggregate horsepower of compressor packages placed into service during the period, less
the aggregate horsepower of compressor packages removed from service during the period. Management uses this metric to evaluate our
operating performance and our relative size in the market. Additional information regarding changes in the size of our compression fleet for the
year ended December 31, 2014, is provided within the results of operations sections below.

Manufacturing and Backlog. Our equipment and parts sales business includes the fabrication and sale of standard compressor
packages, custom-designed compressor packages, and pump systems designed and fabricated primarily at our facilities in Midland, Texas and
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. The equipment is fabricated to customer and standard specifications as applicable. Our custom fabrication projects
are typically greater in size and scope than standard fabrication projects, requiring more labor, materials, and overhead resources. Our
fabrication business requires diligent planning of those resources and project and backlog management in order to meet the customer delivery
dates and performance criteria. As of December 31, 2014, our fabrication backlog was approximately $120.0 million, all of which is expected to
be recognized through the year ended December 31, 2015, based on title passing to the customer, the customer assuming the risks of
ownership, reasonable assurance of collectability, and delivery occurring as directed by our customer. Our fabrication backlog consists of firm
customer orders for which a purchase or work order has been received, satisfactory credit or financing arrangements exists, and delivery has
been scheduled. Our fabrication backlog is a measure of marketing effectiveness that allows us to plan future labor needs and measure our
success in winning bids from our customers.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
This discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated financial statements.

We prepared these financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles. In preparing our
consolidated financial statements, we make assumptions, estimates, and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented. We base these
estimates on historical experience, available information, and various other assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the
circumstances. We periodically evaluate these estimates and judgments, which may change as new events occur, as new information is
acquired, and with changes in our operating environment. Actual results are likely to differ from current estimates, and those differences may
be material. The following critical accounting policies reflect the most significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
financial statements.

Acquisition Purchase Price Allocations

We account for acquisitions of businesses using the purchase method, which requires the allocation of the purchase price based on the
fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired. We estimate the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired using accepted valuation
methods, and, in many cases, such estimates are based on our judgments as to the future operating cash flows expected to be generated from
the acquired assets throughout their estimated useful lives. We have accounted for the various assets (including intangible assets) and
liabilities acquired with the CSI Acquisition based on our estimate of fair values. Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition purchase price
over the estimated fair values of the net assets acquired. Our estimates and judgments of the fair value of acquired businesses are imprecise,
and the use of inaccurate fair value estimates could result in the improper allocation of the acquisition purchase price to acquired assets and
liabilities, which could result in asset impairments, the recording of previously unrecorded liabilities, and other financial statement adjustments.
The difficulty in estimating the fair values of acquired assets and liabilities is increased during periods of economic uncertainty.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
 

We conduct a determination of impairment of long-lived assets periodically whenever indicators of impairment are present. If such
indicators are present, the determination of the amount of impairment is based on our judgments as to the future operating cash flows to be
generated from these assets throughout their estimated useful lives. If an impairment of a long-lived asset is warranted, we estimate the fair
value of the asset based on a present value of these cash flows or the value that could be realized from disposing of the asset in a transaction
between market participants. The estimation of future operating cash flows is inherently imprecise, and, if our estimates are materially incorrect,
it could result in an overstatement or understatement of our financial position and results of operations. In particular, the oil and gas industry is
cyclical, and estimates of the period over which future cash flows will be generated, as well as the predictability of these cash flows, can have
an additional significant impact on the carrying value of these assets and, particularly in periods of prolonged down cycles, may result in
impairment charges. Historically, our business has not experienced significant impairments of its long-lived compressor assets, as utilized
compressor packages generate cash flows sufficient to support their carrying values. Unutilized assets are maintained and evaluated on a
regular basis. Serviceable compressor packages that are currently unutilized are anticipated to be placed in service in future years as demand
increases or as fully depreciated packages in service are replaced. Sales of compressor packages have historically been at selling prices in
excess of asset cost. While we have not experienced significant impairments in the past, impairments of our long-lived assets could occur in
the future, particularly in the event of a significant and sustained deterioration of natural gas production or pricing.

 
Impairment of Goodwill

 
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired in purchase transactions. We

perform a goodwill impairment test on an annual basis or whenever indicators of impairment are present. We perform the annual test of
goodwill impairment following the fourth quarter of each year. Our annual assessment for goodwill impairment begins with a qualitative
assessment of whether it is “more likely than not” that the fair value of our business is less than its carrying value. This qualitative assessment
requires the evaluation, based on the weight of evidence, of the significance of all identified events and circumstances. Based on this
qualitative assessment, we determined that due to the decrease in the market price of our common units that resulted in our market
capitalization being less than the book value of our consolidated partners' capital as of December 31, 2014, it was “more likely than not” that
the fair value of our business was less than its carrying value as of December 31, 2014.

When the qualitative analysis indicates that it is “more likely than not” that our business’ fair value is less than its carrying value, the
resulting goodwill impairment test consists of a two-step accounting test being performed. The first step of the impairment test is to compare
the estimated fair value with the recorded net book value (including goodwill) of our business. If the estimated fair value is higher than the
recorded net book value, no impairment is deemed to exist and no further testing is required. If, however, the estimated fair value is below the
recorded net book value, then a second step must be performed to determine the goodwill impairment required, if any. In this second step, the
estimated fair value from the first step is used as the purchase price in a hypothetical acquisition. Purchase business combination accounting
rules are followed to determine a hypothetical purchase price allocation to assets and liabilities. The residual amount of goodwill that results
from this hypothetical purchase price allocation is compared to the recorded amount of goodwill, and the recorded amount is written down to
the hypothetical amount, if lower. Our estimates of our fair value, if required, are based on a combination of an income and market approach.
These estimates are imprecise and are subject to our estimates of the future cash flows of our business and our judgment as to how these
estimated cash flows translate into our business’ estimated fair value. These estimates and judgments are affected by numerous factors,
including the general economic environment at the time of our assessment, which affects our overall market capitalization. If we overestimate
the fair value of our business, the balance of our goodwill asset may be overstated. Alternatively, if our estimated fair values are understated,
an impairment might be recognized unnecessarily or in excess of the appropriate amount.

During the last half of 2014, global oil and natural gas commodity prices, particularly crude oil, decreased significantly. This decrease in
commodity prices has had, and is expected to continue to have, a negative impact on industry drilling and capital expenditure activity, which
affects the demand for a portion of our products and services. The accompanying decrease in the price of our common units during the last half
of 2014 caused an overall reduction in our market capitalization. As part of our annual internal business outlook that we performed during the
fourth quarter, we considered changes in the global economic environment that affected our common unit price and
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market capitalization. As part of the first step of goodwill impairment testing, we updated our assessment of our future cash flows, applying
expected long-term growth rates, discount rates, and terminal values that we consider reasonable. We have calculated a present value of the
cash flows to arrive at an estimate of fair value under the income approach, and then used the market approach to corroborate this value. As a
result of these estimates, we determined that there was no impairment of goodwill as of December 31, 2014. However, because our estimated
fair value exceeded our carrying value by approximately 4%, there is a reasonable possibility that the $233.6 million of goodwill may be
impaired in a future period, and the amount of such impairment may be material. Specific uncertainties affecting our estimated fair value
include the impact of competition, the prices of oil and natural gas, future overall activity levels in the regions in which we operate, the activity
levels of our significant customers, and other factors affecting the rate of our future growth. These factors will continue to be reviewed and
assessed going forward. Negative developments with regard to these factors could have a further negative effect on our fair value.

Equity-Based Compensation
 

Our general partner adopted the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan, which provides for the
grant of restricted units and other equity-based awards. The compensation cost for all equity-based grants under the 2011 Long Term Incentive
Plan is based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification 718 —“Compensation — Stock
Compensation.” We estimate expected pre-vesting forfeitures based on actual historical pre-vesting forfeitures over the most recent periods for
the expected term. These estimates are inherently imprecise and may result in compensation cost being recorded that is materially different
from the actual fair value of the awards granted. While the assumptions for volatility and pre-vesting forfeiture rate are updated with each year’s
option-valuing process, there have not been significant revisions made in these estimates to date.

Results of Operations
 
The following data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the associated Notes contained

elsewhere in this document.

 Year Ended December 31, Period-to-Period Change
Combined Results of Operations 2014 2013 2012 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
 (In Thousands)

Revenues:      

Compression and related services $ 192,151  $ 112,937  $ 102,260  $ 79,214  $ 10,677

Aftermarket services  15,624  —  —  15,624  $ —

Equipment and part sales 74,872  8,364  6,322  66,508  2,042

 Total revenues 282,647  121,301  108,582  161,346  12,719

Cost of revenues:         
Cost of compression and related services 98,874  63,425  53,818  35,449  9,607

Cost of aftermarket services  13,579  —  —  13,579  —

Cost of equipment and part sales 62,214  4,691  3,682  57,523  1,009

 Total cost of revenues 174,667  68,116  57,500  106,551  10,616

Selling, general, and administrative expense 32,100  17,467  17,270  14,633  197

Depreciation and amortization 41,158  14,642  13,227  26,516  1,415

Interest expense, net 12,964  469  25  12,495  444

Other expense, net 11,672  782  876  10,890  (94)

Income before income taxes 10,086  19,825  19,684  (9,739)  141

Provision (benefit) for income taxes (1,172)  2,258  3,353  (3,430)  (1,095)

Net income $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331  $ (6,309)  $ 1,236
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  Percentage of Total Revenues   
  Year Ended December 31,  Period-to-Period Change

Combined Results of Operations  2014  2013  2012  2014 vs. 2013  2013 vs. 2012
Revenues:           

Compression and related services  68.0%  93.1%  94.2%  70.1 %  10.4 %

Aftermarket services  5.5%  —%  —%  100.0 %  — %

Equipment and part sales  26.5%  6.9%  5.8%  795.2 %  32.3 %

Total revenues  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  133.0 %  11.7 %

Cost of revenues:      
Cost of compression and related services  35.0%  52.3%  49.6%  55.9 %  17.9 %

Cost of aftermarket services  4.8%  —%  —%  100.0 %  — %

Cost of equipment and part sales  22.0%  3.9%  3.4%  1,226.2 %  27.4 %

Total cost of revenues  61.8%  56.2%  53.0%  156.4 %  18.5 %

Selling, general, and administrative expense  11.4%  14.4%  15.9%  83.8 %  1.1 %

Depreciation and amortization  14.6%  12.1%  12.2%  181.1 %  10.7 %

Interest expense, net  4.6%  0.4%  —%  2,664.2 %  1,776.0 %

Other expense, net  4.1%  0.6%  0.8%  1,392.6 %  (10.7)%

Income before income taxes  3.6%  16.3%  18.1%  (49.1)%  0.7 %

Net income  4.0%  14.5%  15.0%  (35.9)%  7.6 %

2014 Compared to 2013
 
Revenues
 

Revenues during the year ended December 31, 2014 increased significantly compared to the prior year, primarily due to the CSI
Acquisition, which generated aggregate revenues of approximately $152.5 million after the August 4, 2014, closing date. Approximately $70.3
million of the $79.2 million increase in compression and related services revenues were generated by CSI, with the remainder of the increase
primarily a result of increased below-100 HP compression services applications activity, primarily in liquids-rich resource play reservoirs in the
U.S. Aftermarket service revenues of $15.6 million were also added as a result of the CSI Acquisition. Increased natural gas prices in the U.S.
and Canada during the first half of 2014 had a positive impact on overall demand and pricing for compression services in these markets during
much of the year. However, natural gas prices decreased during late 2014 and early 2015, and decreased levels of capital expenditure activity
by many of our exploration and production customers is expected in 2015. Activity levels by our midstream transmission, gathering, and
processing customers are expected to be less affected by near term natural gas prices. We have continued to increase our compressor fleet,
both in the U.S. and certain foreign markets, to serve the current demand for services.

In addition to the increase in compression and related services and the aftermarket services revenues which became available as a
result of the CSI Acquisition, there was also a significant increase in revenues from the sale of compressor packages, equipment, and parts
during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the prior year. This increase is entirely due to the acquisition of CSI which generated
revenues of $66.5 million during the portion of the period subsequent to the closing date of the acquisition. The level of revenues from such
sales is inconsistent and typically difficult to forecast, as these revenues are tied to specific projects that vary in scope, design, complexity, and
customer needs. Our revenues from compression and related services and aftermarket services are typically more consistent and predictable.

Cost of revenues
 

The increase in cost of compression services revenues during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the prior year was
also due to the CSI Acquisition, which generated approximately $32.5 million of cost during the period subsequent to the August 4, 2014,
closing date of the acquisition. Consolidated cost of compression and related services as a percentage of consolidated compression and
related services revenues increased to 61.8% during 2014 from 56.2% during the prior year. This was due the increase in activity in the U.S.
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and Mexico regions and increases in below-100 HP compression services applications activity in liquids-rich resource play reservoirs, which
have higher operating cost levels. Cost of CSI aftermarket services as a percentage of associated revenues was 87.0% during 2014. During
the third quarter of 2014, we began the process of capturing the synergies anticipated as part of the integration of CSI's operations. These
efforts will continue going forward, and are expected to result in increased cost efficiencies in future periods.

Cost of compressors and parts sales increased compared to the prior year due to approximately $57.9 million of increased costs
associated with the CSI sales as discussed above.

Selling, general, and administrative expense
 
Selling, general and administrative expense increased during the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the prior year, primarily

due to the impact of the CSI Acquisition, and included increased professional services expenses of approximately $5.6 million associated with
the CSI Acquisition. Additionally, we completed an enterprise business system software project during the third quarter of 2014, including
consulting, training, and non-capitalized implementation costs approximating $1.2 million. Also, administrative costs allocated from TETRA
increased by approximately $1.6 million, as a result of increased activity following the CSI Acquisition, and these increased allocated costs are
expected to continue going forward. The ongoing efforts to integrate the administrative functions of CSI are expected to result in efficiencies
going forward.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense primarily consists of the depreciation of compressor packages. In addition, it includes the
depreciation of other operating equipment and facilities. Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily due to the acquisition of
CSI, and includes the impact of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the estimated fair values of CSI's property, plant, and
equipment and identifiable intangible assets.

 
Interest expense, net
 

Interest expense increased significantly as a result of the issuance of $350 million aggregate principal amount of our 7.25% Senior
Notes and the increased borrowings under our New Credit Agreement in connection with the CSI Acquisition. Increased interest expense levels
compared to 2014 are expected to continue to be increased going forward. As of December 31, 2014, our total outstanding borrowing under
our New Credit Agreement was $195.0 million.

Other expense, net
 

Other expense, net, was $11.7 million for 2014 compared to $0.8 million during the prior year, primarily due to the impact of $6.7 million
of non-recurring interim financing costs associated with the CSI Acquisition during the current year period. Also included during 2014 is
approximately $1.5 million of amortization of deferred financing costs. In addition, approximately $1.2 million of foreign currency exchange
losses were recorded, primarily associated with our Canadian and Latin American operations.

Income before taxes, provision (benefit) for income taxes, and net income
 

Our U.S. operations are not subject to U.S. federal income tax other than with respect to the operations that are conducted through our
taxable U.S. corporate subsidiaries. We also incur state and local income taxes in certain states, and we incur income taxes related to our
foreign operations in the foreign countries in which we operate. Our effective tax rate reflects the pre-tax loss recorded by our taxable U.S.
corporate subsidiaries during 2014, primarily due to costs associated with the CSI Acquisition.

2013 Compared to 2012
 
Revenues
 

The increase in revenues from compression and other services during 2013 was primarily due to a $9.4 million increase in U.S. and
Canada, and reflected an overall increased compressor utilization, as we utilized an average of 3,312 compressor packages to provide
services during 2013, compared to an average of 3,070
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compressor packages during 2012. Increases in U.S. and Canadian natural gas prices from the prior year positively affected demand for our
conventional compression services in those regions during 2013. Average revenues per U.S. and Canadian compressor packages have
increased, primarily due to the growth of our higher priced compression services applications in U.S. shale resource plays. Latin America
service revenues for 2013 increased $1.1 million as compared to the prior year due to increased demand for compression services in
Argentina, and despite decreased activity in Mexico. As a result of budget re-evaluations by PEMEX, in March 2013 we began to experience a
decline in the level of activity and revenues in Mexico. Compression and other services revenues from foreign markets other than Canada and
Latin America increased $0.1 million during 2013 compared to the prior year.

In addition to the increase in consolidated compression and other service revenues, there was an increase of approximately $2.0
million in revenues from sales of compressor packages and parts during the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to the prior year.
Although sales of compressor packages are a part of our operations, the level of revenues from sales of compressors is inconsistent and more
difficult to forecast than are our revenues from compression and other services.

Cost of revenues
 

The increase in consolidated cost of compression and other services during the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the prior
year was primarily due to the increased service activity, particularly in the U.S. and Latin America. Consolidated cost of compression and other
services as a percentage of consolidated compression and other services revenues increased to 56.2% during the current year from 52.6%
during the prior year. This increase was due to increased equipment maintenance, labor, and fuel costs in the U.S. and due to the decrease in
the higher margin Mexico business during 2013 compared to the prior year. Costs in the U.S. have also increased due to the increased
operating costs in certain of the shale resource play markets where we provide compression services. We also incurred increased operating
expenses during 2013 associated with engine quality improvement initiatives associated with the compressor packages we fabricate.
Subsequent to the first quarter of 2013, we took appropriate cost reduction steps overall, particularly in response to the decline in demand for
our services in Mexico where we have taken aggressive reductions in headcount and relocated certain compressor equipment assets into the
U.S.

Cost of compressors and parts sales increased compared to the prior year due to the increased sales discussed above.

Selling, general, and administrative expense
 
Selling, general, and administrative expense increased to $17.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, from $17.3 million for

2012. As a percentage of consolidated revenues, our selling, general, and administrative expense decreased during the year ended December
31, 2013, to 14.4% compared to 15.9% for the prior year. The slight increase in selling, general, and administrative expense levels reflects
approximately $0.4 million of increased professional services expenses, primarily legal and consulting costs related to potential acquisition
activities. Approximately $1.0 million of increased administrative costs associated with Latin America, primarily due to increased salary
expenses and allocated costs, was offset by decreased administrative costs in the U.S. primarily due to efforts to reduce salary related costs.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense primarily consists of the depreciation of compressor packages. In addition, it includes the
depreciation of other operating equipment and facilities. Depreciation and amortization expense increased primarily as a result of additional
compressor packages placed into service as compared to the prior year.

 
Interest expense, net
 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we increased the borrowings under our revolving credit facilities from $10.0 million that
was borrowed in late 2012 to approximately $30.0 million as of December 31, 2013. We incurred approximately $0.5 million of interest expense
in the current year associated with our borrowings under our revolving credit agreements.
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Other expense, net
 

Other expense, net, decreased by $0.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to the prior year period, primarily
due to decreased foreign currency exchange losses.

Income before taxes, provision for income taxes, and net income
 

Income before taxes for the year ended December 31, 2013, was $19.8 million, compared to $19.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012, an increase of approximately $0.1 million. As a percentage of consolidated total revenues, income before taxes decreased
to 16.3% for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to 18.1% for the prior year. Our U.S. operations are not subject to U.S. federal
income tax, other than with respect to the operations that are conducted through our taxable U.S. corporate subsidiaries. We also incur state
and local income taxes in certain states, and we incur income taxes related to our foreign operations. Our effective tax rate during 2013
decreased compared to 2012 due to decreased earnings by our taxable subsidiaries.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Our primary cash requirements are for distributions, working capital requirements, normal operating expenses, and capital

expenditures. Our sources of funds are our existing cash balances, cash generated from our operations, long-term and short-term borrowings,
operating leases, and future issuances of equity and debt, which we believe will be sufficient to meet our working capital requirements.
Increasingly competitive market environments, along with the late 2014 decline in oil and natural gas prices, have resulted in additional
challenges in many of our domestic and international business regions. We reported significantly increased revenues and gross profit as a
result of the August 4, 2014 acquisition of CSI. Despite the growth in revenues and gross profit, we have experienced decreased activity from
project delays by customers as a result of the oil and natural gas price declines in late 2014.

Our cash flows from operating activities increased during 2014, when compared to the prior year, by $15.7 million primarily as a result
of the increased operations following the CSI Acquisition. Cash flows used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2014,
increased $849.4 million when compared to the same period in 2013, reflecting the impact of the CSI Acquisition purchase price and the
increased capital expenditures stemming from expanded operations subsequent to the CSI Acquisition. Cash flows from financing activities
increased significantly during 2014 by $846.3 million, when compared to 2013, primarily as a result of the proceeds from increased equity and
indebtedness resulting from the CSI Acquisition. Our sources and uses of cash during the three year period ended December 31, 2014, is as
follows:

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014  2013  2012
Operating activities $ 44,819  $ 29,135  $ 31,109

Investing activities (873,942)  (24,574)  (20,986)

Financing activities 854,300  (7,976)  (14,682)

On August 4, 2014, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated July 20, 2014, one of our subsidiaries acquired all of the
outstanding capital stock of CSI for $825.0 million cash. The CSI Acquisition purchase price was funded from (i) the issuance of the 7.25%
Senior Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $350.0 million resulting in net proceeds of $337.8 million (after deducting a $5.2 million
discount and certain transaction related fees), (ii) the issuance by us of 15,280,000 New Units at the Offering Price resulting in net proceeds of
$346.0 million ($359.1 million gross proceeds less commissions), and (iii) a portion of $210.0 million borrowed under the New Credit
Agreement. A subsidiary of our General Partner purchased 1,390,290 of the New Units. On August 11, 2014, the underwriters exercised their
option to purchase 2,292,000 additional common units at the Offering Price less an underwriting discount resulting in additional net proceeds of
$51.7 million ($53.9 million less $2.2 million underwriting discount and fees). Following the receipt of proceeds from this option exercise, we
utilized approximately $55.0 million of these proceeds to pay a portion of the outstanding balance under the New Credit Agreement. Our
General Partner contributed approximately $8.4 million (following the issuance of the New Units and the underwriter's option exercise) to us in
order to maintain its approximately 2% general partner interest in us. Although a portion of the increased operating cash flows will be used to
fund the debt service requirements of the 7.25% Senior Notes and our New Credit Agreement, our distributable cash flows following our
acquisition of CSI are expected to increase.
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As a result of the transactions undertaken to finance the CSI Acquisition, our capital structure has significantly changed. As a result of
the CSI Acquisition purchase price and the associated issuance of new long-term debt and common units to fund the acquisition, cash flows
from both investing and financing activities were materially larger than in prior years. Results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2014, reflect the impact of the CSI Acquisition. The operations of CSI contributed revenues of approximately $152.5 million and pretax earnings
of approximately $15.8 million. As a result of increased borrowings to fund the purchase price of the CSI Acquisition, net interest expense for
the year ended December 31, 2014, increased by $10.9 million compared to prior year. In connection with the CSI Acquisition, interim financing
commitment fees totaling approximately $6.7 million, as well as other transaction costs totaling approximately $5.5 million, were incurred and
charged to earnings in 2014.

Due to the significant impact the CSI Acquisition is expected to have on our future EBITDA and operating cash flows, we believe that
we have sufficient liquid assets, cash flow from operations, and other capital resources to meet our financial commitments, debt service
obligations, and anticipated capital expenditures. We expect to fund any future acquisitions and capital expenditures with cash flow generated
from our expanded operations, funds borrowed under our New Credit Agreement, and funds received from the issuance of additional debt and
equity. However, we are subject to business and operational risks that could materially adversely affect our cash flow. In late 2014, significant
decreases in oil and natural gas commodity prices led to downward revisions in the capital expenditure and operating plans of many of our
customers, creating additional uncertainty regarding the expected demand for our products and services, and the resulting cash flows from
operating activities for the foreseeable future. In addition, the availability of new borrowings in the current capital markets is becoming more
limited and costly. Please read Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors" included in this Annual Report.

Continued growth in our operations, both internationally and in the U.S, will require ongoing significant capital expenditure investment.
We anticipate that our total capital expenditures during 2015 will be approximately $100 million, including approximately $14 million of
maintenance capital expenditures. Continued growth or expansion of our operations or increased working capital requirements could result in
the need for additional borrowings or equity offerings.

 
Our capital expenditure program consists of both expansion capital expenditures and maintenance capital expenditures. Expansion

capital expenditures consist of expenditures for acquisitions or capital improvements that increase our capacity, either by fabricating new
compressor packages to expand our compressor fleet, purchasing support equipment or other assets, or through the upgrading of existing
compressor packages to increase their capability. Expansion capital expenditures generally result in the ability for us to generate increased
revenues. Maintenance capital expenditures consist of expenditures to maintain our compressor fleet or support equipment without increasing
its capacity. Maintenance capital expenditures are intended to maintain or sustain the current level of operating capacity, and include the
maintenance of existing assets and the replacement of obsolete assets. Expansion capital expenditures and maintenance capital expenditures
also include capitalized interest on debt incurred to finance such expenditures.     

 
On January 20, 2015, the board of directors of our General Partner declared a cash distribution attributable to the quarter ended

December 31, 2014, of $0.4850 per unit, which represents a $0.025 per unit increase over the previous quarterly distribution. This distribution
equates to a distribution of $1.94 per outstanding unit, or approximately $64.3 million, on an annualized basis. This cash distribution was paid
on February 13, 2015, to all unitholders of record as of the close of business on January 31, 2015.

Cash Flows

Operating Activities
 
Net cash from operating activities increased by $15.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2014 to $44.8 million compared to

$29.1 million in 2013. Cash provided from operating activities increased primarily as a result of increased operations following the CSI
Acquisition.

Cash provided from our foreign operations is subject to various uncertainties, including the volatility associated with interruptions
caused by customer budgetary decisions, uncertainties regarding the renewal of our
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existing customer contracts, and other changes in contract arrangements, security concerns, the timing of collection of our receivables, and the
repatriation of cash generated by our operations.

Investing Activities
 
On August 4, 2014, we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of CSI for $825.0 million cash. Capital expenditures for other

purchases of property, plant, and equipment during the year ended December 31, 2014, increased compared to 2013 reflecting the impact of
our expanded operations subsequent to the CSI Acquisition. The capital expenditure requirements of CSI are significantly increased compared
to our pre-existing operations due to the size and scope of the operations of CSI and the significantly higher HP of CSI compressor packages.
Total capital expenditures during the current year of $48.1 million include $5.0 million of maintenance capital expenditures. Our expansion
capital programs for 2015 are focused on increasing our fleet to meet customer needs, and we currently plan to spend up to approximately
$100 million on capital expenditures during 2015, including approximately $14.0 million of estimated maintenance capital expenditures.

Financing Activities
 
Our partnership agreement requires that, within 45 days after the end of each quarter, we distribute all of our Available Cash, as

defined in our Partnership Agreement, to our unitholders of record on the applicable record date and to our General Partner. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, we distributed approximately $36.4 million to our unitholders and General Partner. On January 20, 2015, the board of
directors of our General Partner declared a cash distribution attributable to the quarter ended December 31, 2014, of $0.485 per unit, which
represents an increase of $0.025 per unit compared to the previous quarterly distribution. This distribution equates to a distribution of $1.94 per
outstanding unit, or approximately $64.3 million, on an annualized basis. This cash distribution was paid on February 13, 2015, to all
unitholders of record as of the close of business on January 31, 2015.

 
Our sources of funds for liquidity needs are existing cash balances, cash generated from our operations, long-term and short-term

borrowings, and future issuances of equity.

7.25% Senior Notes

On July 29, 2014, we and one of our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, Compressco Finance Inc., a Delaware corporation (we,
together with Compressco Finance Inc., the "Issuers"), and the guarantors named therein (the "Guarantors" and, together with the Issuers, the
"Obligors"), entered into the Note Purchase Agreement (the "Note Purchase Agreement") with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated on behalf of the initial purchasers named therein (collectively, the "Initial Purchasers") related to the issuance and sale by the
Issuers to the Initial Purchasers of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Issuers’ 7.25% Senior Notes in a private offering (the
"Offering") exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"). The Note Purchase
Agreement contains customary representations and warranties of the parties thereto and indemnification and contribution provisions under
which the Obligors, on one hand, and the Initial Purchasers, on the other, have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities,
including liabilities under the Securities Act.

The Issuers closed the Offering on August 4, 2014. We used the net proceeds of the Offering of approximately $337.8 million
(consisting of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount net of a $5.2 million discount and certain fees and offering expenses) to fund a portion
of the $825.0 million cash purchase price for the CSI Acquisition, to pay certain acquisition expenses and to repay a portion of outstanding
borrowings under the previous Credit Agreement dated October 15, 2013. The Issuers' obligations under the 7.25% Senior Notes are jointly
and severally, and fully and unconditionally, guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis initially by each of our domestic restricted subsidiaries
(other than CSI Compressco Finance) that guarantee our other indebtedness. The 7.25% Senior Notes and the subsidiary guarantees thereof
(together, the "Securities") were issued pursuant to an indenture described below. Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, CSI and any
domestic subsidiaries of CSI required to guarantee the 7.25% Senior Notes pursuant to the indenture governing the 7.25% Senior Notes were
joined as parties to the Note Purchase Agreement pursuant to a purchase agreement joinder, dated August 4, 2014.

The Obligors issued the Securities pursuant to the Indenture dated as of August 4, 2014 (the "Indenture") by and among the Obligors
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). The 7.25% Senior Notes accrue interest at a rate of 7.25% per annum. Interest
on the 7.25% Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in
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arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning February 15, 2015. The 7.25% Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on
August 15, 2022.

On and after August 15, 2017, we may on one or more occasions redeem the 7.25% Senior Notes, in whole or in part, upon not less
than 30-days’ nor more than 60-days’ prior notice, at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of principal amount), plus
accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages thereon, if any, to the applicable redemption date, subject to the right of holders of record
on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment date, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on
August 15 of the years indicated below:

Date  Price
2017  105.438%

2018  103.625%

2019  101.813%

2020 and after  100.000%

In addition, any time or from time to time before August 15, 2017, we may redeem all or a part of the 7.25% Senior Notes at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes redeemed, plus an applicable "make whole" prepayment
premium and interest up to the redemption date.

Prior to August 15, 2017, we may, on one or more occasions, redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes
with an amount of cash not greater than the amount of the net cash proceeds from one or more equity offerings at a redemption price equal to
107.250% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any,
to the date of redemption, subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest
payment date, as long as (a) at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes originally issued on the issue date
(excluding notes held by us and our subsidiaries) remains outstanding after such redemption; and (b) the redemption occurs within 180 days
after the date of the closing of the equity offering.

The Indenture contains customary covenants restricting our ability and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to: (i) pay dividends and
make certain distributions, investments and other restricted payments; (ii) incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares; (iii)
create certain liens; (iv) sell assets; (v) merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our or their assets; (vi) enter
into transactions with affiliates; and (vii) designate our or their subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries under the Indenture. There are no
significant restrictions upon the ability of the Issuers or the Guarantors to obtain funds from their respective subsidiaries by dividend or loan.
None of the assets of the Guarantors represent restricted net assets pursuant to Rule 4-08(e)(3) of Regulation S-X under the Securities Act.
These covenants are subject to a number of important limitations and exceptions, including certain provisions permitting us, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions, to transfer assets to certain of our unrestricted subsidiaries. Moreover, if the 7.25% Senior Notes receive an
investment grade rating from at least two rating agencies and no default has occurred and is continuing under the Indenture, many of the
restrictive covenants in the Indenture will be terminated. The Indenture also contains customary events of default and acceleration provisions
relating to such events of default, which provide that upon an event of default under the Indenture, the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% in
aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes then outstanding may declare all amounts owing under the 7.25% Senior Notes to be
due and payable. We are in compliance with all covenants and conditions of the Indenture as of December 31, 2014.

 
The offer and sale of the Securities were not registered under the Securities Act or applicable state securities laws, and the Securities

may not be offered or sold in the U.S. absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
and applicable state laws. In connection with the Offering of the 7.25% Senior Notes, the Obligors entered into the Registration Rights
Agreement dated as of August 4, 2014 (the "Registration Rights Agreement") with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as
representative of the Initial Purchasers, obligating the Obligors to use commercially reasonable efforts to file a registration statement with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") registering an exchange offer by the Obligors that would allow holders of the Securities to
exchange their restricted Securities for registered freely tradable notes and guarantees having substantially the same terms as the Securities
and evidencing the same indebtedness as the restricted Securities. Under certain circumstances, in lieu of a registered exchange offer, the
Obligors must use commercially reasonable efforts to file a shelf registration statement for the resale of the
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Securities. If, among other things, such exchange offer registration statement is not declared effective by the SEC on or prior to 365 days after
the closing of the Offering, or the exchange offer has not been consummated within 30 business days following the expiration of the 365-day
period following the closing of the Offering to have an exchange offer registration statement declared effective by the SEC, the Obligors will be
required to pay to the holders of the 7.25% Senior Notes liquidated damages in an amount equal to 0.25% per annum on the principal amount
of the 7.25% Senior Notes held by such holder during the 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of such registration default, and
if such registration default is not cured, such amount of liquidated damages shall increase by 0.25% per annum at the end of such 90-day
period, such that the maximum amount of liquidated damages for all registration defaults would be one-half of one percent (0.5%) per annum.

 
Bank Credit Facilities

On October 15, 2013, we entered into an asset-based revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders including JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as administrative agent (the "Credit Agreement") which replaced the previous credit agreement. Under the Credit Agreement, we,
along with certain of our subsidiaries, were named as borrowers, and all obligations under the Credit Agreement were guaranteed by all of our
existing and future, direct and indirect, domestic subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement included a maximum credit commitment of $100.0 million
that was available for letters of credit (with a sublimit of $20.0 million) and included an uncommitted $30.0 million expansion feature.

On August 4, 2014, in connection with the CSI Acquisition, we entered into the New Credit Agreement, and with the initial $210.0
million of borrowings received, repaid the $38.1 million balance outstanding under our previous Credit Agreement dated October 15, 2013,
which was then terminated. Approximately $0.8 million of deferred financing costs associated with that terminated Credit Agreement were
expensed and charged to income during the third quarter of 2014.

On August 11, 2014, the underwriters exercised their option and purchased all 2,292,000 additional common units at the Offering Price
resulting in additional net proceeds of $51.7 million ($53.9 million gross proceeds less underwriting discount). Following the receipt of proceeds
from this option exercise, approximately $55 million was paid to reduce the balance of the New Credit Agreement.

Under the New Credit Agreement, we and our CSI Compressco Sub, Inc. subsidiary were named as the borrowers, and all obligations
under the New Credit Agreement are guaranteed by all of our existing and future, direct and indirect, domestic restricted subsidiaries (other
than domestic subsidiaries that are wholly owned by foreign subsidiaries). The New Credit Agreement includes a maximum credit commitment
of $400.0 million, and included within such amount is availability for letters of credit (with a sublimit of $20.0 million) and swingline loans (with a
sublimit of $60.0 million). As of March 16, 2015, and following additional borrowings of $13.0 million to fund capital expenditures, we have a
balance outstanding under the New Credit Agreement of $208.0 million and had availability under the New Credit Agreement of $184.9 million,
and $7.1 million letters of credit and performance bonds outstanding.

The New Credit Agreement was used to fund, in part, the $825.0 million CSI Acquisition purchase price and fees and expenses related
to the CSI Acquisition, our 7.25% Senior Notes offering, and the New Credit Agreement, and to repay in full all borrowings outstanding under
the previous Credit Agreement. The New Credit Agreement is available to provide our working capital needs, letters of credit, and for general
partnership purposes, including capital expenditures and potential future expansions or acquisitions. So long as we are not in default, the New
Credit Agreement can also be used to fund our quarterly distributions at the option of the board of directors of our General Partner (provided,
that after giving effect to such distributions, the borrowers will be in compliance with the financial covenants). Borrowings under the New Credit
Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, including the absence of a default. The maturity date of the New Credit
Agreement is August 4, 2019.

Borrowings under the New Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate per annum equal to, at our option, either (a) LIBOR (adjusted to
reflect any required bank reserves) for an interest period equal to one, two, three, or six months (as selected by us), plus a leverage based
margin or (b) a base rate plus a leverage-based margin; such base rate shall be determined by reference to the highest of (1) the prime rate of
interest per annum announced from time to time by Bank of America, N.A. (2) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% per annum and (3) LIBOR
(adjusted to reflect any required bank reserves) for a one-month interest period on such day plus 1.00% per annum. Initially, from the closing
date until the delivery of the financial statements for the first full fiscal quarter after closing, LIBOR based loans will have an applicable margin
of 2.75% per annum and base rate loans will have an applicable
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margin of 1.75% per annum; thereafter, the applicable margin will range between 1.75% and 2.50% per annum for LIBOR based loans and
0.75% and 1.50% per annum for base rate loans based on our consolidated total leverage ratio when financial statements are delivered. In
addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the New Credit Agreement, we are required to pay a commitment fee in respect of the
unutilized commitments thereunder initially at the rate of 0.50% per annum until the delivery of the financial statements for the first full quarter
after the closing date and thereafter at the applicable rate ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% per annum, paid quarterly in arrears based on our
consolidated total leverage ratio. We are required to pay a customary letter of credit fee equal to the applicable margin on revolving credit
LIBOR loans, fronting fees and other fees agreed to with the administrative agent and lenders.

The New Credit Agreement requires us to maintain (i) a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio (ratio of consolidated earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") to consolidated interest charges) of 3.0 to 1.0, (ii) a maximum consolidated
total leverage ratio (ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA ) of 5.5 to 1.0 (with step downs to 5.0 to 1.0), and (iii) a
maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio (consolidated secured indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA ) of 4.0 to 1.0, in each case, as of
the last day of each fiscal quarter, calculated on a trailing four quarters basis. In addition, the New Credit Agreement includes customary
negative covenants that, among other things, limit our ability to incur additional debt, incur, or permit certain liens to exist, or make certain
loans, investments, acquisitions, or other restricted payments. The New Credit Agreement provides that we can make distributions to holders of
our common units, but only if there is no default or event of default under the facility. We are in compliance with all covenants and conditions of
the New Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2014.

All obligations under the New Credit Agreement and the guarantees of those obligations are secured, subject to certain exceptions, by
a first lien security interest in substantially all of our assets and the assets of our existing and future domestic subsidiaries, and all of the capital
stock of our existing and future subsidiaries (limited in the case of foreign subsidiaries, to 65% of the voting stock of first tier foreign
subsidiaries).

During 2014, we borrowed $165.0 million, net, under our revolving credit facilities primarily to fund a portion of the CSI Acquisition
purchase price and to fund the expansion and upgrade of our compressor package fleet.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
As of December 31, 2014, we had no “off balance sheet arrangements” that may have a current or future material effect on our

consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

Commitments and Contingencies
 
From time to time, we are involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business. While

the outcome of these lawsuits or other proceedings against us cannot be predicted with certainty, management does not consider it reasonably
possible that a loss resulting from such lawsuits or proceedings in excess of any amounts accrued has been incurred that is expected to have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Contractual Obligations
 
Our contractual obligations and commitments principally include obligations associated with our outstanding indebtedness and

obligations under operating leases.

The table below summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2014:

  Payments Due
  Total  2015  2016  2017  2018  2019  Thereafter
  (In Thousands)

Long-term debt  $ 545,000  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 195,000  $ 350,000

Interest on debt  226,423  30,754  30,754  30,754  30,754  28,378  75,029

Operating leases  3,123  1,862  828  307  126  —  —

Total contractual cash obligations  $ 774,546  $ 32,616  $ 31,582  $ 31,061  $ 30,880  $ 223,378  $ 425,029
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

 
In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") published ASU No. 2013-11, "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax

Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists" (ASU 2013-11). The amendments in
this ASU provide guidance on presentation of unrecognized tax benefits and are expected to reduce diversity in practice and better reflect the
manner in which an entity would settle at the reporting date any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax
position when net operating loss carryforwards, similar tax losses, or tax credit carryforwards exist. The amendments in this ASU are effective
prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption and retrospective application permitted.
The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and
Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity," which modifies the
criteria for disposals to quality as discontinued operations and expands related disclosures. The guidance is effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2014. Adoption of this amendment will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606). ASU 2014-09 supersedes the
revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance. The core principle of the
guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance is effective for our first
quarter in fiscal 2017 under either full or modified retrospective adoption. Early application is not permitted. We are currently assessing the
potential effects of these changes to our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern” (Topic 250). The ASU
provides guidance on management's responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity's ability to continue as a going
concern and in certain circumstances to provide related footnote disclosures. The ASU is effective for the annual period ending after December
15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.
 
Commodity Price Risk
 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. We do not take title to any natural gas or oil in
connection with our services and, accordingly, have no direct exposure to fluctuating commodity prices. While we have a significant number of
customers who have retained our services through high and low commodity prices, we generally experience less growth and more customer
attrition during periods of significantly high or low commodity prices. For a discussion of our indirect exposure to fluctuating commodity prices,
please read “Risk Factors — Certain Business Risks.” We depend on domestic and international demand for and production of natural gas and
oil and a reduction in this demand or production could adversely affect the demand or the prices we charge for our services, which could cause
our revenue and cash available for distribution to our unitholders to decrease in the future. We do not intend to hedge our indirect exposure to
fluctuating commodity prices.

Interest Rate Risk
 
We have exposure to changes in interest rates on our indebtedness associated with the New Credit Agreement. On December 31,

2014, we had a total of $195 million outstanding under our New Credit Agreement. As interest charged on our New Credit Agreement is based
on a variable rate, we are exposed under the New Credit Agreement to floating interest rate risk on outstanding borrowings. Our exposure to
floating interest rate risk has increased significantly as a result of the borrowings under the New Credit Agreement in connection with the CSI
Acquisition. Any increase or decrease in the prevailing interest rate will impact our interest expense during periods of indebtedness under our
credit facility.
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The following table sets forth as of December 31, 2014, our principal cash flows for our long-term debt obligations (which bear a

variable rate of interest) and weighted average effective interest rate by their expected maturity dates. We are not a party to an interest rate
swap contract or other derivative instrument designed to hedge our exposure to interest rate fluctuation risk.

  Expected Maturity Date    
Fair Market

Value  2015  2016  2017  2018  2019  Thereafter  Total  

As of December 31, 2014                 

Long-term debt:                 

U.S. dollar variable rate  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 195,000  $ —  $ 195,000  $ 195,000

Weighted average interest rate  —  —  —    3.109%  —  3.109%   

U.S. dollar fixed rate  —  —  —  —  —  350,000  350,000  354,900

Interest rate (fixed)  —  —  —  —  —  7.25%  7.25%  —
 

Exchange Rate Risk
 

We have exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates associated with our operations in Latin America and Canada. Most of our
billings under our contracts with PEMEX and other clients in Mexico are denominated in U.S. dollars; however, a large portion of our expenses
and costs under those contracts are incurred in Mexican pesos, and we retain cash balances denominated in Mexican pesos. As such, we are
exposed to fluctuations in the value of the Mexican peso against the U.S. dollar. As Mexican peso denominated assets are largely offset by
Mexican peso denominated liabilities, a hypothetical increase or decrease in the U.S. dollar-Mexican peso foreign exchange rate by 2.0%
would have changed our net income by approximately $43,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014.

In October 2013, we began entering into 30-day foreign currency forward derivative contracts as part of a program designed to mitigate
the currency exchange rate risk exposure on selected transactions of certain foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2014, we had the
following foreign currency derivative contract outstanding relating to a portion of our foreign operations:

Derivative Contracts
 US Dollar Notional Amount  Traded Exchange Rate  

Settlement
Date

 (In Thousands)   
Forward purchase Canadian dollar  $ 1,150  1.16  1/16/2015

Under this program, we may enter into similar derivative contracts from time to time. Although contracts pursuant to this program will
serve as an economic hedge of the cash flow of our currency exchange risk exposure, they will not be formally designated as hedge contracts
or qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Accordingly, any change in the fair value of this derivative instrument during a period will be included
in the determination of earnings for that period.

The fair value of foreign currency derivative instruments are based on quoted market values as reported to us by our counterparty. The
fair value of our foreign currency derivative instruments as of December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Foreign currency derivative instruments
 Balance Sheet Location  

Fair Value at
December 31, 2014

  (In Thousands)

Forward purchase contracts  Current assets  $ —

  Current liabilities  —

Total   $ —

Based on the derivative contracts that were in place as of December 31, 2014, a 5% devaluation of the Canadian dollar compared to
the U.S. dollar would result in an increase in the market value of our forward sale contract of $0.05 million.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
 

Our financial statements and supplementary data for us and our subsidiaries required to be included in this Item 8 are set forth in Item
15 of this Report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
 

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
 
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial
Officer of our general partner, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-
15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, the Principal
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer of our general partner concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as
of December 31, 2014, the end of the period covered by this Annual Report.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 

Management of our general partner is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of management of our general partner,
including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer of our general partner, an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting was conducted based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (COSO). Based on that evaluation under the framework in Internal
Control – Integrated Framework issued by the COSO, our general partner’s management concluded that our internal control over financial
reporting was effective as of December 31, 2014.

Our general partner's management's evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting excludes CSI, which
was acquired on August 4, 2014. Total assets and net assets of CSI represented approximately 77.9% and 70.3%, respectively, of our
consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2014, and CSI's revenues following the August 4, 2014 acquisition date represented
approximately 54.0% of our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014. In accordance with guidance issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, companies are allowed to exclude acquisitions from their assessment of internal control over financial
reporting during the first year subsequent to acquisition while integrating the acquired operations.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 

On August 4, 2014 we completed the acquisition of CSI. We are currently integrating CSI into our internal control over financial
reporting processes. In executing this integration, we are analyzing, evaluating, and, where necessary, making changes in controls and
procedures related to the CSI business, which we expect to be completed in fiscal year 2015.

Other than the changes described above related to the CSI Acquisition, there were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2014, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.
 

None.
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PART III
 
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance.
 
Corporate Governance and Director Independence
 

Our general partner, CSI Compressco GP Inc., is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of TETRA Technologies, Inc. (“TETRA”) and has
sole responsibility for conducting our business and managing our operations. The members of our general partner’s board of directors (our
“Board”) oversee our operations. Unitholders are not entitled to elect the members of our Board or directly or indirectly participate in our
management or operation. All of the members of our Board are appointed by Compressco Field Services, L.L.C. (formerly known as
Compressco Field Services, Inc.), a wholly owned subsidiary of TETRA, and we do not hold annual unitholder meetings for the election of our
Board. References in this Part III to the “Board,” “directors,” "executive officers," or “officers” refer to the Board, directors, executive officers,
and officers of our general partner, unless otherwise indicated.

 
Our Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines that outline important policies and practices regarding our governance and

provide a framework for the functioning of the Board and its committees. The Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of the Audit
Committee and Conflicts Committee are available in the Corporate Governance section of the Investor Relations area of our website at
www.compressco.com. In addition, our Board and our general partner have adopted a Code of Conduct and a Financial Code of Ethics, copies
of which are also available in the Corporate Governance section of the Investor Relations area of our website at www.compressco.com. We will
post on our website all waivers to or amendments of our Code of Conduct and Financial Code of Ethics that are required to be disclosed by
applicable law or the listing requirements of the NASDAQ. We will provide to our unitholders, without charge, printed copies of the foregoing
materials upon written request to Investor Relations, CSI Compressco LP, 3809 S. FM 1788, Midland, Texas 79706.

 
The NASDAQ does not require a listed limited partnership like us to have a majority of independent directors on the Board or to

establish a compensation committee or a nominating committee. Our Board currently consists of seven directors, four of whom, Paul D.
Coombs, D. Frank Harrison, James R. Larson, and William D. Sullivan, are independent as defined under the listing standards of the NASDAQ.
 
Directors and Executive Officers

 
Our Board’s directors hold office until the earlier of their death, resignation, removal or disqualification or until their successors have

been appointed. Our executive officers serve at the discretion of our Board. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or
executive officers. The following table shows information regarding our current directors and executive officers. Directors are appointed for one-
year terms.

Name  Age  Position with CSI Compressco GP
Stuart M. Brightman  58  Chairman of the Board of Directors
D. Frank Harrison  67  Independent Director
Timothy A. Knox  46  President and Director
James R. Larson  65  Independent Director
William D. Sullivan  58  Independent Director
Paul D. Coombs  59  Independent Director
Ronald J. Foster  58  Sr. Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer and Director
James P. Rounsavall  50  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
C. Brad Benge  55  Vice President of Operations
Kevin W. Book  40  Vice President - International Sales and Operations
Anthony D. Speer  46  Vice President of Manufacturing

 
Biographical summaries of the directors and executive officers, including the experiences, qualifications, attributes, and skills of each

director that have been considered by the Board in determining that these individuals should serve as directors, are set forth below. See
“Beneficial Ownership of Certain Unitholders and Management” included under Item 12 of this Annual Report for information regarding the
number of common units owned by each individual.
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Stuart M. Brightman has served as a director of our general partner's Board since October 31, 2008, and as Chairman of its Board
since May 2014. Mr. Brightman has served as TETRA’s president and chief executive officer since May 2009, at which time Mr. Brightman was
also elected as a member of TETRA’s board of directors. He served as TETRA’s executive vice president and chief operating officer from April
2005 through May 2009. From April 2004 to April 2005, Mr. Brightman was self-employed. Mr. Brightman served as president of the Dresser
Flow Control division of Dresser, Inc. from April 2002 until April 2004. Dresser Flow Control, which manufactures and sells valves, actuators,
and other equipment and provides related technology and services for the oil and gas industry, had revenues in excess of $400 million in 2004.
From November 1998 to April 2002, Mr. Brightman was president of the Americas Operation of the Dresser Valve Division of Dresser, Inc. He
served in other capacities during the earlier portion of his career with Dresser, from 1993 to 1998. From 1982 to 1993, Mr. Brightman served in
several financial and operational positions with Cameron Iron Works and its successor, Cooper Oil Tools. Mr. Brightman received his B.S.
degree from the University of Pennsylvania and his Master of Business Administration degree from the Wharton School of Business.

 
Mr. Brightman has more than thirty years of experience in manufacturing and services businesses related to the oil and gas industry. He

has experience in corporate finance and in the management of capital intensive operations. Mr. Brightman’s service as TETRA’s president and
chief executive officer also provides our Board with an in-depth source of knowledge regarding our operations, our executive management
team, and the effectiveness of our compensation programs.

 
Paul D. Coombs has served as an independent director of our general partner's Board since May 6, 2014. Mr. Coombs has served as

a member of TETRA’s board of directors since June 1994 and as a member of its nominating and corporate governance committee since July
2012. From April 2005 until his retirement in June 2007, Mr. Coombs served as TETRA’s executive vice president of strategic initiatives, and
from May 2001 to April 2005, as TETRA’s executive vice president and chief operating officer. From January 1994 to May 2001, Mr. Coombs
served as TETRA’s executive vice president - oil & gas, from 1987 to 1994 he served as senior vice president - oil & gas, and from 1985 to
1987, as general manager - oil & gas. Mr. Coombs has served in numerous other positions with TETRA since 1982. Mr. Coombs is presently a
director and serves on the audit and corporate governance committees of the board of directors of Balchem Corporation, a public company that
is subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act.

Mr. Coombs has more than thirty years of experience with TETRA, which, together with his entrepreneurial approach to management,
provides our general partner’s Board of Directors with insight into our capabilities and personnel. Mr. Coombs has substantial experience with
the services we provide and with oil and gas exploration and production operations in general.

D. Frank Harrison has served as an independent director of our general partner's Board and as Chairman of its Conflicts Committee and
a member of its Audit Committee since April 2012. Since June 2011, Mr. Harrison is an owner and the managing partner of Eufaula Energy,
LLC, a privately held company that invests in oil and gas interests. Mr. Harrison served as chairman of the board of directors (since 2007) and
as chief executive officer and a director (since 2005) of Bronco Drilling Company, Inc. ("Bronco") until the acquisition of Bronco by Chesapeake
Energy Corporation in June 2011. Bronco was a publicly traded company that provided contract drilling and well services. From 2002 to 2005,
Mr. Harrison served as an agent for the purchase of oil and gas properties for entities controlled by Wexford Capital LLC. From 1999 to 2002,
Mr. Harrison served as president of Harding and Shelton, Inc., a privately held oil and natural gas exploration, drilling and development firm. 
Mr. Harrison currently serves on the board of directors of the Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association. He received his B.S. degree in
Sociology from Oklahoma State University.

 
Mr. Harrison has significant management experience in the exploration and production of oil and gas in the U.S. Mr. Harrison also has

substantial experience in serving on the board of a publicly held corporation operating in the oil and gas industry, which provides cross board
experience and perspective.

Timothy A. Knox has served as President and a director of our general partner's Board since August 2014. Mr. Knox served as
president and chief operating officer of Compressor Systems, Inc. ("CSI") from September 2010 until it was acquired by CSI Compressco in
August 2014. Mr. Knox served as senior vice president of CSI from August 2009 to September 2010 and as vice president - engineering and
manufacturing of CSI from December 2004 to August 2009. Mr. Knox joined CSI as a regional account manager and a mid-continent business
unit manager in 1996 and served in those roles until 2004. From 1991 to 1996, Mr. Knox served in multiple roles for
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Dresser-Rand Compression Services including; applications, project engineering, project management and sales. Mr. Knox has 24 years of
industry experience, including 18 years with CSI. He received his B.S. degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Oklahoma in
1990 and an M.B.A. from Oklahoma State University in 1999.

Mr. Knox has significant experience in the natural gas compression industry and provides our general partner's Board with an in-depth
knowledge regarding our customers, operations, business strategies, and the markets and geographies in which we operate. Mr. Knox's
management experience and leadership skills are highly valuable in assessing our business strategies and accompanying risks.

 
James R. Larson has served as an independent director of our general partner's Board and as Chairman of its Audit Committee since

July 2011 and as a member of its Conflicts Committee since April 2012. Since January 1, 2006, Mr. Larson has been retired. From September
2005 until January 1, 2006, Mr. Larson served as senior vice president of Anadarko Petroleum Corporation ("Anadarko"). From December 2003
to September 2005, Mr. Larson served as senior vice president, finance and chief financial officer of Anadarko. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Larson
served as senior vice president, finance of Anadarko where he oversaw treasury, investor relations, internal audits and acquisitions and
divestitures. From 1995 to 2002, Mr. Larson served as vice president and controller of Anadarko where he was responsible for accounting,
financial reporting, budgeting, forecasting, and tax. Prior to that, he held various tax and financial positions within Anadarko after joining the
company in 1981. Mr. Larson is a current member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Financial Executives International,
and the Tax Executives Institute. Mr. Larson also serves on the Board of Directors of EV Management, LLC, the general partner of EV Energy
GP, L.P., which is the general partner of EV Energy Partners, L.P., a Houston-based publicly traded limited partnership engaged in acquiring,
producing, and developing oil and gas properties. He received his B.B.A. degree in business from the University of Iowa.

 
Mr. Larson has significant management experience in the exploration and production of oil and gas on an international as well as

domestic level. Mr. Larson also has substantial experience in corporate finance and financial reporting matters and in serving on the board of a
publicly traded limited partnership operating in the oil and gas industry.

 
William D. Sullivan is an independent director of our general partner's Board and has served as a member of its Audit Committee since

July 2011. Mr. Sullivan has served as a member of TETRA’s board of directors since August 2007. Mr. Sullivan currently serves as the
chairman of TETRA’s nominating and corporate governance committee and as a member of the compensation committee. Mr. Sullivan is the
non-executive chairman of the board of directors of SM Energy Company, a publicly traded exploration and production company. Mr. Sullivan is
also a director and serves on the audit, nominating and corporate governance and conflicts, and compensation committees of Legacy
Reserves GP, LLC, the general partner of Legacy Reserves, LP, a publicly traded limited partnership holding oil and gas producing assets. Mr.
Sullivan is a director and serves on the conflicts and audit committees of Targa Resources Partners GP, LLC, the general partner of Targa
Resources Partners LP, a publicly traded limited partnership focused on mid-stream gas gathering, processing, liquids fractionation, and
transportation. From 1981 through August 2003, Mr. Sullivan was employed in various capacities by Anadarko Petroleum Corporation, most
recently as executive vice president, exploration and production. Mr. Sullivan has been retired since August 2004. Mr. Sullivan received his B.S.
degree in Mechanical Engineering from Texas A&M University.

 
Mr. Sullivan has significant management experience in mid-stream oil and gas operations and in the exploration and production of oil and

gas on an international and domestic level. Mr. Sullivan also has substantial experience in executive compensation matters and in serving on
the boards of publicly held corporations and publicly traded limited partnerships operating in the oil and gas industry, which provides cross
board experience and perspective.

 
Ronald J. Foster has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer of our general partner since the closing of the CSI

Acquisition in August 2014, and as a director since October 2008. Prior to the CSI Acquisition, Mr. Foster served as President of CSI
Compressco GP Inc. from October 2008 until July 2014, and as President and a director of our Compressco, Inc. subsidiary from October 2008
until October 2012. From August 2002 to September 2008, Mr. Foster served as Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing with
Compressco, Inc. Mr. Foster has over 30 years of energy-related work experience that also includes positions with Wood Group, Halliburton
and Dresser. He is an active member of several regional industry trade organizations, including the
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American Petroleum Institute (API), the Society of Petroleum Engineers (SPE) and the Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association (OIPA).
Mr. Foster received his B.S. degree in Economics from Oklahoma State University.

Mr. Foster’s day-to-day leadership as our Chief Marketing Officer and his role in forming the Partnership provide our general partner's
Board with an intimate knowledge of our compression operations as well as a unique understanding of market factors, our customers, and
sales and marketing strategies and opportunities.

 
James P. Rounsavall has served as Chief Financial Officer of our general partner since April 2012. Mr. Rounsavall served as Chief

Financial Officer of Compressco, Inc. from April 2012 until October 1, 2012. From July 2011 through April 2012, Mr. Rounsavall served as
Controller of our general partner and Controller of Compressco, Inc. From June 2008 until July 2011, Mr. Rounsavall served as the controller
and in various other roles for Mustang Engineering, a global provider of engineering and construction services supporting the oilfield, chemical,
process, and industrial industries. From March 2008 until June 2008, Mr. Rounsavall provided consulting services. From March 2006 until
March 2008, Mr. Rounsavall served as regional controller, and later as regional vice president of finance of Worley Parsons Corporation, a
global provider of engineering and professional services. From 1998 until 2006, Mr. Rounsavall served in various roles with Halliburton
Company, ultimately serving as controller, U.S. Western area. Prior to that, Mr. Rounsavall was with Weatherford Enterra and Ernst & Young.
Mr. Rounsavall received a Bachelor of Accountancy from the University of Houston and a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration from
the University of Arkansas. Mr. Rounsavall is a Certified Public Accountant.

 
C. Brad Benge has served as Vice President of Operations of our general partner since August 2014. Mr. Benge served as vice

president of compression services of CSI from September 2010 through July 2014. From September 2009 to September 2010, Mr. Benge
served as vice president of Eastern region compression services of CSI. Mr. Benge joined CSI in February 2008 and served as project
manager until September 2009. From 1984 to 2007, Mr. Benge served in multiple roles at Exterran including; vice president of operations,
multiple mergers and acquisitions positions and various supervisory positions. Mr. Benge began his career in 1979 as a natural gas
compressor and engine mechanic for Halliburton in Central Texas. Mr. Benge has more than 35 years of industry experience, and he attended
Tarleton State University.

Kevin W. Book has served as Vice President - International Sales and Operations of our general partner since October 31, 2008 and
also served as Vice President – International Operations of Compressco, Inc. from May 2008 until October 1, 2012. Mr. Book joined
Compressco, Inc. in 2001 and served a significant role in establishing and growing Compressco Canada, Inc., from its inception to its current
level of activity. In May 2008 Mr. Book was promoted to Vice President – International Operations of Compressco, Inc. from Vice President –
Canada. Mr. Book has over fourteen years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Book holds a B.S. degree in Petroleum Engineering
with Special Distinction from the University of Oklahoma, and a B.S. degree in Mathematics with Distinction from the University of Alberta.

 
Anthony D. Speer has served as Vice President of Manufacturing of our general partner since August 2014. Mr. Speer served as vice

president of manufacturing and supply chain of CSI from January 2014 through July 2014. After joining CSI in April 2006, Mr. Speer progressed
through various roles including; director-manufacturing, director-engineering and manufacturing and vice president of engineering and
manufacturing. From 1991 to 2006, Mr. Speer worked for Halliburton. He served for three years as a manufacturing engineer for Halliburton
and was nominated to participate in the Halliburton Management Program. After graduating from this program in 1996, he served in various
leadership roles within Halliburton’s manufacturing organization. He began as a shop supervisor and eventually served as a plant manager. Mr.
Speer holds a B.S. degree in Industrial Engineering from Texas A&M University and currently serves as a member of the Advisory Board for the
Gas Compressor Association.

Board Meetings and Committees
 

During 2014, the Board held twelve meetings. The standing committees of the Board during 2014 consisted of an Audit Committee and
a Conflicts Committee. During 2014, the Audit Committee held four meetings, and the Conflicts Committee held seven meetings. 

 
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is currently composed of Mr. Larson, as Chairman, and Messrs. Harrison and Sullivan. The

purposes of the Audit Committee are to (i) oversee the financial and reporting processes of the Partnership and the general partner, and the
audit of the Partnership’s financial statements, (ii) assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regard to the integrity of the
Partnership’s financial statements, the Partnership’s and the general partners’ compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
qualifications,
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independence and performance of the Partnership’s independent registered public accounting firm, and the effectiveness and performance of
the Partnership’s and the general partner’s internal audit function, and (iii) perform such other functions as the Board may assign from time to
time. The Audit Committee has sole authority to retain and terminate our independent registered public accounting firm, approve all auditing
services and related fees and terms, and approve any non-audit service to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm.
To promote the independence of its audit, the Audit Committee consults separately and jointly with the independent registered public
accounting firm, our internal auditor, and management.

 
As required by NASDAQ and SEC rules regarding audit committees, the Board has reviewed the qualifications of the Audit Committee

and has determined that no current committee member has a relationship with us that might interfere with the exercise of his independence
from us or our affiliates. Included within such determination, the Board has determined that Messrs. Larson, Harrison, and Sullivan are
independent as defined in Section 10A of the Exchange Act and the listing standards of the NASDAQ. In addition, the Board has determined
that Mr. Larson, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, is an audit committee financial expert within the definition established by the SEC.

 
Conflicts Committee. The Conflicts Committee, which was formed in April 2012, is currently composed of Mr. Harrison, as Chairman,

and Mr. Larson. The purposes of the Conflicts Committee are to (i) as requested by the Board, review and evaluate any potential conflicts of
interest between us and our general partner or its affiliates or us and TETRA or its subsidiaries or affiliates, and (ii) carry out any other duties
assigned by the Board that relate to potential conflicts of interest between us and our general partner or its affiliates or us and TETRA or its
subsidiaries or affiliates. The Conflicts Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate any consultants, attorneys, independent
accountants or other service providers to assist it in the evaluation of conflicts matters, including the sole authority to approve their fees and
other terms of retention. 

As required by the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of CSI Compressco LP (as amended, the
Partnership Agreement), the Board has reviewed the independence of Messrs. Harrison and Larson and has determined that each of them
meets the independence standards established thereunder as required for service on the Conflicts Committee. Included within such
determination, the Board has also determined that each of Messrs. Harrison and Larson is independent as defined in Section 10A of the
Exchange Act and the listing standards of the NASDAQ.
 
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
 

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our directors, executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of our common
units to file initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common units (Forms 3, 4 and 5) with the SEC and the
NASDAQ. Executive officers, directors, and greater than 10% holders are required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all such
forms they file.

 
To our knowledge, and based solely on our review of the copies of such reports and written representations provided to us by certain

reporting persons that no reports on Form 5 were required, we believe that during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, all Section 16(a)
filing requirements applicable to our executive officers, directors, and 10% holders were complied with in a timely manner.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.
 
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
 

Our general partner is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of TETRA and has sole responsibility for conducting our business and
managing our operations. All of our executive officers and other personnel necessary for the operation of our business are employed or
compensated by our general partner, our subsidiaries, or TETRA and its subsidiaries. We may refer to such individuals as “our employees” in
this Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

 
This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A”) is designed to provide an understanding of our compensation philosophy and

objectives and insight into the process by which our specific compensation practices are established. The Compensation Committee of
TETRA’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”), is responsible for the oversight of compensation programs that apply to a broad-
base of our employees, and for specific compensation decisions that relate to the President and other officers of our general partner named in
the
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Summary Compensation Table (collectively, the “Named Executive Officers” or “NEOs”) and other officers of our general partner designated as
our senior managers (together with our NEOs, “Senior Management”). We have not formed, and do not intend to form, a compensation
committee, and for the immediate future the Board intends to continue to delegate oversight of certain aspects of our compensation programs
to the Compensation Committee. Our general partner’s executive officers serve at the discretion of the Board.

 
Our relationship with our general partner and TETRA relating to the personnel who operate our business is governed by the Omnibus

Agreement dated June 20, 2011 and amended on June 20, 2014, among us, our general partner and TETRA (as amended, the “Omnibus
Agreement”). Under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, we reimburse our general partner and TETRA for all expenses incurred on our
behalf, including the compensation of employees of our general partner and TETRA who perform services on our behalf. The compensation
expense allocated to us in 2014 with respect to each of our NEOs was 100% of their total compensation, since each of our NEOs devote
virtually all of their business time to our operations. Accordingly, the compensation disclosed herein for our NEOs reflects all of the
compensation expense that is payable by us under the Omnibus Agreement with regard to such individuals. Please read the section titled “Item
13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence” below for additional information regarding our reimbursement
of expenses.

 
Executive Summary
 
We are a provider of compression services and equipment for natural gas and oil production, gathering, transportation, processing, and

storage. We fabricate and sell standard and custom designed compressor packages and oilfield fluid pump systems, and provide aftermarket
services and compressor package parts and components manufactured by third-party suppliers. We provide these compression services and
equipment to a broad base of natural gas and oil exploration and production, midstream, and transmission companies operating throughout
many of the onshore producing regions of the United States as well as in a number of foreign countries, including Mexico, Canada, and
Argentina.

As a result of our relationship with TETRA, the compensation of our NEOs is structured in a manner similar to TETRA’s compensation
of its executive officers. In addition, the compensation policies and practices of our general partner are similar to those of TETRA. Our 2014
financial performance and operations were significantly impacted by our acquisition of CSI on August 4, 2014. Consolidated revenues
generated by CSI during the year subsequent to the August 4, 2014 closing date totaled approximately $152.5 million, contributing to our
133.0% increase in consolidated revenues for 2014 compared to 2013. Primarily due to the continuing increased demand for our below-100 HP
compression services applications, particularly in liquids-rich resource plays and for vapor recovery, our pre-CSI acquisition compression
service revenues also increased during the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the corresponding prior year period. However, along
with declines in oil prices that have occurred since the summer of 2014, prices for natural gas in late 2014 and early 2015 are below prior year
levels. We anticipate that oil and gas exploration activity levels will decrease in 2015 compared to 2014, while most ongoing customer projects
supporting midstream, gas gathering, and processing will proceed to completion. Much of our current equipment sales backlog is associated
with such projects. The Compensation Committee gave significant weight to our 2014 results and expected activity levels in 2015 in its
consideration of our executive compensation.

 
The following are some of the key factors to consider in evaluating our executive compensation program:

• Compensation Linked to Long-Term Performance. We seek to structure a balance between achieving positive short-term annual results
and ensuring long-term viability and success by providing both annual and long-term incentive opportunities.

◦ Grants of Long-Term Phantom Unit Awards to Senior Management. We continue to believe that tying a significant portion of
our Senior Management's compensation to our unitholders' returns and our financial and operating results is an important
aspect of our total compensation plan. For the fiscal year 2014, an average 52.0% of the total target compensation awarded to
our NEOs consisted of phantom unit awards, and for the executive officers who received annual awards in May of 2014, 63.0%
of such phantom unit awards were performance-based.

• Competitiveness. In order to maintain our ability to attract and retain highly-skilled executives and managers, the Compensation
Committee believes that the total compensation of our NEOs and other members of Senior Management should be competitive with
the market in which we compete for talent. In order to assess the competitiveness of our compensation programs within the oilfield
services industry, the
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Compensation Committee reviews compensation offered by peer group companies and broader oilfield services compensation data.
The Compensation Committee generally seeks to target NEO compensation at the market median level. However, target levels of NEO
pay are not based on strict adherence to the market median, and may vary from median levels based on a number of factors, including
individual performance, internal equity, and general industry conditions.

Some of the challenges that we face in recruiting and retaining highly-skilled executives and senior management include:
◦ Increased activity levels in the North American oil and gas industry have significantly intensified competition for talented

executives with relevant knowledge and expertise. This competition for executive talent is not limited to our direct peers and
competitors, but spans the entire energy industry, which includes companies both smaller, and significantly larger than us.

◦ The decline in the market price for our common units has decreased the retention value of equity awards granted to our
executives in recent years. Although many companies in the oilfield services industry have experienced similar market price
declines, particularly during the second half of 2014, the reduced value of our executives' outstanding equity awards creates an
opportunity for peer group companies seeking to fill open positions.

In evaluating the competitiveness of our compensation programs, the Compensation Committee gives significant consideration to
these challenges and from time-to-time may make adjustments to individual NEO and Senior Management compensation levels in
order to protect our investment in their talent.

2014 Target Compensation. In connection with our acquisition of CSI on August 4, 2014, Mr. Knox was appointed as our President. Mr.
Foster, who had served as our President from October 2008 through August 4, 2014, was appointed Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing
Officer, and Messrs. Benge and Speer were appointed as Vice Presidents. Due to these significant changes in our leadership during 2014 that,
in some cases, were accompanied by compensation adjustments that are described in detail below, we have not provided pie charts showing
target allocations of 2014 compensation for our NEOs.

2014 Actual Compensation. For the portion of fiscal year 2014 subsequent to our acquisition of CSI and Mr. Knox's appointment as our
President, actual cash compensation paid by us to Mr. Knox, was $393,876, consisting of $161,540 in base salary, $159,076 in cash incentives
initially put in place by CSI and paid by us following the acquisition, and $73,260 as the earned portion of his fourth quarter 2014 performance-
based cash incentive award. Mr. Knox was also granted a long-term award of phantom units during 2014 with a grant date fair value of
$700,015 in connection with his employment by us following the CSI acquisition. In addition, Mr. Knox received $8,805 of other compensation
during 2014.

For the purpose of the following pie charts, the annual base salaries of Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer, each of whom was employed
by us on August 4, 2014, have been annualized to provide a more accurate image of intended compensation. For our other NEOs, the amounts
included are consistent with actual 2014 compensation as set forth in the Summary Compensation Table:
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* All Other Compensation includes the employer paid portion of life, health, and disability insurance benefits, matching contributions under our 401(k) Retirement Plan, the value of
dividend equivalent rights settled in connection with the vesting of equity awards that relate to our common units, and for Messrs. Knox, Foster, Book, and Speer, a car allowance
or the use of a car provided by the company.

Continuing Improvements in Compensation Practices. We have implemented and continue to maintain existing compensation practices that we
believe contribute to good governance:

• TETRA has amended the Cash Incentive Compensation Plan under which performance-based annual cash bonuses may be
awarded to our NEOs and other Senior Management to include a clawback provision that provides us with a mechanism to recover
amounts awarded under the plan in certain circumstances.

• The compensation consultant retained directly by the Compensation Committee does not provide any services to our management,
or to TETRA's management.

• Every member of the Compensation Committee is independent, as such term is defined in the listing standards of the New York
Stock Exchange (the applicable listing standards for TETRA).

• Our insider trading policy prohibits transactions involving short sales, the buying or selling of puts, calls, or other derivative
instruments, and transactions involving certain forms of hedging or monetization.

• Our Board and the Compensation Committee have adopted the Procedures for Grants of Awards under the CSI Compressco LP
Incentive Compensation Plans (the "Grant Procedures") to assist in the administration of our equity compensation plans. The Grant
Procedures provide guidelines under which our Board, the Compensation Committee, and, in certain circumstances, the Chief
Executive Officer ("CEO") of TETRA may make annual and other awards to our eligible employees, non-employee directors, and
consultants.

In summary, our compensation philosophies and programs are subject to a thorough process that includes input and recommendations from
management, the Compensation Committee, the Board, and/or TETRA's Chief Operating Officer ("COO") and CEO, as well as review and
approval by the Compensation Committee, the Board, and/or TETRA’s COO and CEO, as appropriate, the advice of an independent, third-
party consultant engaged by the Compensation Committee from time to time, and guidelines concerning the granting of our equity awards.

Oversight of Executive Compensation Program
 

The Board has appointed the Compensation Committee to discharge many of its responsibilities relating to the compensation of our
executive officers. The Compensation Committee is composed entirely of independent, non-management members of TETRA’s Board of
Directors, and each member is compensated by fees and equity compensation from TETRA. With the exception of Mr. Sullivan, who is also a
director of our general partner and receives compensation for his services to us in the form of cash director fees and equity compensation
granted under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan, no Compensation
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Committee member participates in any of our employee compensation programs. In its annual review process, TETRA’s Board of Directors has
determined that none of the Compensation Committee members have any material business relationships with us.

Similar to its responsibilities with regard to TETRA’s employees, the responsibilities of the Compensation Committee with regard to our
employees include the following:

• establishing a compensation philosophy to support our overall business strategy and objectives and a compensation strategy to attract
and retain executive talent, motivate executive officers to improve their performance and our financial performance, and otherwise
implement the compensation philosophy;

• annually reviewing and establishing annual and long-term performance goals and objectives for our Senior Management that are
intended to implement our compensation philosophy and strategy;

• annually evaluating the performance of our NEOs against established performance goals and objectives;

• annually reviewing the compensation of our NEOs, including annual salary, performance-based cash incentive awards, and other cash
incentive opportunities including long-term incentive opportunities against each NEOs' individual performance evaluation, and any
other matter relating to the compensation of the NEOs which the Compensation Committee considers appropriate;

• reviewing at least annually all equity-based compensation plans and arrangements, including the amount of equity remaining available
for issuance under those plans, and making recommendations to the Board regarding the need to amend existing plans or to adopt
new plans for the purposes of implementing the Compensation Committee’s goals regarding equity-based compensation;

• reviewing at least annually all non-equity-based components of compensation paid to or available to the NEOs, which may include
salary, cash incentives (both performance-based and otherwise), long-term incentive compensation, perquisites, and other personal
benefits, to determine the appropriateness of each component in light of our compensation philosophy and strategy;

• reviewing all employment, severance, change of control, or other compensation agreements or arrangements to be entered into or
otherwise established with our NEOs;

• reviewing and discussing with management our annual CD&A for inclusion in our annual proxy statement or Form 10-K;

• reviewing matters relating to management succession, including compensation related issues; and

• evaluating whether any compensation consultant retained by the Compensation Committee has any conflict of interest in accordance
with applicable regulatory requirements.
 
Overview of Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

 
In order to recruit and retain highly qualified and competent individuals as Senior Management, we strive to maintain a compensation

program that is competitive in the labor markets in which we operate. Our guiding philosophy is to maintain an executive compensation
program that will attract, retain, motivate, and reward highly qualified and talented individuals to enable us to perform better than our
competitors. The following are our key objectives in setting the compensation programs for our Senior Management:

• design competitive total compensation programs that enhance our ability to attract and retain knowledgeable and experienced Senior
Management;

• motivate our Senior Management to deliver outstanding financial performance and meet or exceed general and specific business,
operational, and individual performance objectives;

• establish salary and annual cash incentive compensation levels that reflect competitive market practices in relevant markets and are
generally within the median range for the relevant peer group;

• provide long-term incentive compensation opportunities that are consistent with our overall compensation philosophy; 

• provide a significant percentage of total compensation that is “at risk,” or “variable,” based on predetermined performance measures
and objectives; and

• ensure that a significant portion of the total compensation package is determined by equity value, thus assuring an alignment of Senior
Management with our unitholders.
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Implementation and Management of Compensation Programs
 

Role of the Compensation Committee. Our Board has appointed the Compensation Committee to discharge many of its
responsibilities relating to the compensation of our executive officers. With regard to certain actions that must be taken directly by our Board,
the Compensation Committee provides recommendations to the Board that are consistent with our compensation philosophy, programs, and
objectives, which are largely a reflection of TETRA’s compensation philosophy, programs, and objectives.
 

The Compensation Committee has the authority to retain compensation consultants, outside counsel, or other advisers to assist the
committee in the discharge of its duties. In any given year, the Compensation Committee bases its decision on whether to retain a
compensation consultant on factors including prevailing market conditions, regulatory changes governing executive compensation, and the
quality of any other relevant data that may be available. If a compensation consultant is engaged with respect to our compensation programs,
the Chairman of the Compensation Committee maintains a direct line of communication with the consultant and arranges meetings with the
consultant that may include other members of the committee and/or our President, TETRA’s CEO and certain members of TETRA’s senior
management, including TETRA's COO. Through this communication with the Chairman of the Compensation Committee, the consultant reports
to, and acts at the discretion of, the Compensation Committee.
 

Role of Compensation Consultant. The Compensation Committee first retained the services of Frost HR Consulting (formerly Stone
Partners, Inc.), in September 2009. After that time, the Compensation Committee utilized Frost HR Consulting at various times through
September of 2012 to provide analysis of TETRA's compensation programs and assist the Compensation Committee in its consideration of
prospective changes to those programs, including programs that apply to our NEOs and other Senior Management. Frost HR Consulting did
not provide other services to us, to our general partner, or to TETRA; had procedures in place to prevent conflicts of interest; and, did not have
a business or personal relationship with any of the executive officers of our general partner, any of TETRA’s executive officers, or any member
of the Compensation Committee. The individual consultants involved in the engagement did not own our limited partner units, nor did they own
TETRA’s common stock. The Compensation Committee discussed these considerations and concluded that there were no conflicts of interest
with respect to the consulting services provided by Frost HR Consulting. The Compensation Committee did not utilize the services of Frost HR
Consulting or any other compensation consulting firm during 2013 related to its review of TETRA's 2014 compensation programs or our 2014
compensation programs.

Role of our President. Our President makes recommendations to the Compensation Committee with regard to salary adjustments and
the annual and long-term incentives to be provided to our Senior Management, excluding himself. TETRA's COO and CEO make
recommendations to the Compensation Committee with regard to salary adjustments and the annual and long-term incentives to be provided to
our President. Based upon his judgment and experience and in consultation with TETRA’s COO and CEO, taking into consideration available
industry-based compensation surveys and other compensation data and analysis, including data provided by the Compensation Committee’s
consultant, if one is retained for that year, our President annually reviews with the Compensation Committee specific compensation
recommendations for Senior Management. In preparation for these evaluations, the Compensation Committee reviews an annual
compensation report that presents current and historical annual base salaries, annual incentive targets, annual incentives earned and the
values of outstanding equity-based and other long-term compensation in a tally sheet format, to provide the Compensation Committee with a
detailed picture of how the various components of total compensation paid or to be paid to each member of Senior Management, including our
President, aggregate in the current year and over a multi-year period.

 
In its review of the annual compensation report and its consideration of whether changes in compensation recommended by the

President and TETRA's COO and CEO are in line with our overall compensation philosophy, current competitive market conditions, and current
economic conditions, the Compensation Committee considers performance evaluations of and compensation recommendations for each
member of Senior Management as well as its own performance evaluations of Senior Management, and, if a compensation consultant is
retained for that year, the analysis and report of the compensation consultant. The Compensation Committee reviews the annual compensation
report among themselves and with our President and TETRA’s CEO and approves any prospective changes in compensation for Senior
Management other than our President. The Compensation Committee, in an executive session that includes TETRA’s CEO, establishes the
compensation for our President.
 

Timing of Compensation Decisions. The annual compensation report is typically distributed to the Compensation Committee and
TETRA’s CEO prior to TETRA’s December board and committee meetings. The
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Compensation Committee reviews the annual compensation report, information and recommendations provided by its compensation
consultant, if any for that year, and such other information as it considers relevant, and typically approves prospective changes in
compensation for employees over which it has decision-making authority. Also at its December meeting, the Compensation Committee typically
reviews a preliminary estimate of the aggregate amount of annual cash incentive compensation that may be awarded based on performance
during the current year. Based upon audited full-year financial results, the actual aggregate amount of the annual cash incentive compensation
to be paid is finalized and approved and the specific amounts to be paid to our Senior Management, including our President, are reviewed and
approved by the Compensation Committee typically at a meeting in February of the following year.
 

Compensation Elements
 

We strongly believe that Senior Management should be compensated with a package that includes the following three elements:
salary, performance-based cash incentive compensation, and equity incentive compensation. A significant portion of the total prospective
compensation paid to each member of Senior Management should be tied to measurable financial and operational objectives. These objectives
may include absolute performance and performance relative to a peer group. During periods when performance meets or exceeds established
objectives, Senior Management should be paid at or above the levels targeted for such objectives. When objectives are not met, incentive
award payments, if any, should be less than levels targeted for such objectives. The Compensation Committee seeks to structure a balance
between achieving strong short-term annual results and ensuring long-term viability and success. To reinforce the importance of this balance,
we provide each member of Senior Management with both short-term and long-term incentives. Historically, short-term incentive opportunities
for Senior Management have been in the form of annual cash incentives based on both objective performance criteria and subjective criteria. In
2012, our Senior Management’s short-term incentive opportunities were expanded to include equity awards, the value of which is determined
by our attainment of an established financial performance objective at the end of the applicable performance period. While the mix of salary,
annual cash incentives, and long-term incentives earned by Senior Management can vary from year to year depending on individual
performance and on our overall performance, the Compensation Committee believes that long-term incentives, the potential future value of
which is heavily contingent on our long-term success, should constitute a significant portion of total compensation each year.
 

Salary. We believe that a competitive salary program is an important factor in our ability to attract and retain talented Senior
Management employees. The Compensation Committee typically reviews relevant compensation data and analysis provided by its
compensation consultant, if one is retained for that year, or by management if no compensation consultant is engaged, to ensure that our
salary program is competitive. In this respect, the Compensation Committee uses the survey data and compensation offered by peer
companies as a market check on the salaries and other elements of compensation it establishes. The Compensation Committee reviews the
salaries of all members of our Senior Management at least annually. Base salaries may be adjusted for performance, which may be individual
or company-wide performance, expansion of duties, and changes in market salary levels. In considering salary adjustments each year, the
Compensation Committee gives weight to the foregoing factors, with particular emphasis on corporate performance goals, our President’s
analysis and TETRA's COO's and CEO's analysis of each individual’s performance, and their specific compensation recommendations.
However, the Compensation Committee does not rely on formulas and considers all factors when considering salary adjustments.
 

In its December 2013 review of our Senior Management's compensation, the Compensation Committee considered our strong
operational and financial performance during 2013, our former President’s and TETRA's COO's and CEO's evaluation of each individual’s
contribution to this performance, and with regard to our former President, the committee considered the evaluation of his performance provided
by TETRA’s COO and CEO. In considering prospective changes to base salary levels for 2014, the Compensation Committee weighed each of
these factors and approved increases in base salary of 4% for each of our then current NEOs. The following table sets forth the 2014 base
salaries that were effective as of April 5, 2014, for certain of our NEOs:

Name  Title  Base Salary
Ronald J. Foster  Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer(1)  $ 297,440

James P. Rounsavall  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary  206,856

Kevin W. Book  Vice President, International Sales and Operations  234,784

(1) Mr. Foster served as our President as of the date the above disclosed base salaries became effective.
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Effective as of August 4, 2014, in connection with our acquisition of CSI, Messrs. Knox, Benge, Foster and Speer entered into

Employment Agreements with us that, among other items, established their annual base salaries. Also effective as of August 4, 2014, in
recognition of his responsibilities related to our increased size and operational complexity, Mr. Rounsavall's annual base salary was increased.
The following table sets forth base salaries for certain of our NEOs that were effective as of August 4, 2014:

Name  Title  Base Salary
Timothy A. Knox  President  $ 400,000

Ronald J. Foster  Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer  325,000

James P. Rounsavall  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary  240,000

Charles B. Benge  Vice President of Operations  240,000

Anthony D. Speer  Vice President of Manufacturing  190,000

Performance-Based Cash Incentives. Our NEOs and other key employees are eligible to receive annual performance-based cash
incentive awards pursuant to TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan. The Cash Incentive Compensation Plan was adopted by TETRA’s
Board of Directors to provide greater focus on TETRA’s strategic business objectives, further its compensation philosophy, emphasize pay-for-
performance, and provide competitive compensation opportunities.
 

Annual Performance-Based Cash Incentives. While the amount of each award paid to members of our Senior Management under
TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan is subject to the discretion of the Compensation Committee, the plan provides for cash award
opportunities, calculated as a percentage of base salary, that are based on financial and non-financial performance measures. For each annual
incentive award opportunity, a threshold, target, and stretch performance objective is established for each applicable performance measure and
the amount of the award payment that may be received is based on the level of achievement of such performance objectives, subject to the
discretion of the Compensation Committee. In addition, recipients of annual incentive awards have the opportunity to participate in an additional
cash award pool that may be established under the Cash Incentive Compensation Plan for achievement in excess of designated stretch
performance objectives.
 

As part of its December 2013 review of the compensation of our NEOs, the Compensation Committee reviewed a preliminary estimate
of the aggregate amount of annual cash incentive compensation to be awarded under TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan based on
2013 performance, and discussed the overall effectiveness of the plan in furthering our compensation philosophy. In its consideration of
changes for the 2014 plan year, the Compensation Committee did not specifically benchmark Cash Incentive Compensation Plan award
opportunities relative to any survey or other compensation data. At that time, the Compensation Committee elected not to increase the
percentages of base salary that determined the threshold, target, and stretch amounts of annual cash incentive opportunities for our NEOs for
the 2014 plan year from the percentages of base salary initially established in 2010.

The following table sets forth the 2014 annual incentive award opportunities that were established by the Compensation Committee at
its December 2013 meeting, shown as a percentage of base salary for certain of our NEOs under the Cash Incentive Compensation Plan:

  Threshold  Target  Stretch
Ronald J. Foster  9%  45%  72%

James P. Rounsavall  5%  25%  40%

Kevin W. Book  5%  25%  40%
 
Subsequent to the Compensation Committee's December 2013 meeting, effective as of August 4, 2014, in recognition of his

responsibilities related to our increased size and operational complexity, Mr. Rounsavall's target annual incentive award opportunity for the
2014 performance period was increased by the Compensation Committee from 25% to 35% of his base salary.
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Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer, who served as executive officers of CSI until its acquisition by us in August of 2014, received cash
incentives for the performance period of October 1, 2013 through September 31, 2014 (which corresponded to CSI's fiscal year prior to the
acquisition) based on incentive plans previously put in place by CSI. Under the terms of the agreement under which we acquired CSI, we paid
amounts due to Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer pursuant to such CSI incentive plans in December of 2014 and February of 2015.
For the period of October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, performance-based cash incentive opportunities for Messrs. Knox, Benge, and
Speer were based on a "bridge" plan, approved by the Compensation Committee, which is further described below in the section titled
"Bonuses Awarded to Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer."

Under the Cash Incentive Compensation Plan, financial and non-financial performance measures may be based on the performance
criteria described in the plan or on such other measures as may be determined by the Compensation Committee. To support our continued
focus on cost reduction efforts implemented in 2012 that contributed to our improved profitability in 2013, the Compensation Committee elected
to designate general and administrative cost reduction as an additional individual performance goal applicable to all participants in the Cash
Incentive Compensation Plan for the 2014 fiscal year. In addition, the Compensation Committee elected to decrease the weighting of the
health, safety, and environmental performance measure from 20% in 2013 to 15% in 2014, and increase the weighting of the personal
objectives performance measure to 15% in 2014 from 10% in 2013, in order to bring the portion of our annual incentive that is based on safety
metrics into closer alignment with annual bonuses provided by other companies within the oil and gas services industry. Performance measures
for 2014 annual incentive awards included: (i) distributable cash flow; (ii) profit before taxes; (iii) the net number of compressor units placed into
service during 2014; (iv) health, safety, and environmental metrics; and (v) personal objectives. The Compensation Committee assigned
relative weightings to each of our NEO's 2014 performance measures of 35% on distributable cash flow, 15% on profit before taxes, 20% on
the net number of compressor units placed into service during 2014, 15% on health, safety, and environmental metrics, and 15% on personal
objectives. For our NEOs and other members of Senior Management, the general and administrative cost reduction individual performance
goal was included in each participant's personal objectives.

For the 2014 plan year, the specific target performance objectives and the relative weight of each performance measure established by
the Compensation Committee for annual cash incentive awards were: (i) distributable cash flow of $37.0 million, weighted 35%; (ii) profit before
taxes of $26.2 million, weighted 15%; (iii) a net number of compressor packages placed into service of 333 units, weighted 20%; (iv) health,
safety, and environmental metrics that represented, in most cases, a minimum 10% improvement versus prior year results, weighted 15%; (v)
and, personal objectives, weighted 15.0%, which included the general and administrative cost reduction goal. Achievement of these 2014
performance objectives was determined based on the operations of our "legacy" compression business, excluding the impact of our August
2014 acquisition of CSI.

Primarily due to the continuing increased demand for our below-100 HP compression services, particularly in liquids-rich resource
plays and vapor recovery, our overall pre-CSI acquisition compression service revenues increased approximately $8.9 million during the year
ended December 31, 2014 compared to the corresponding prior year period. However, the slower than anticipated recovery of activity levels in
Mexico along with declines in U.S. oil prices that occurred in the second half of 2014 impacted both our profitability and the net number of
compressor packages placed into service. For our "legacy" operations, excluding the impact of the CSI acquisition, distributable cash flow for
the 2014 fiscal year was $35.3 million, and profit before taxes was $19.0 million, which equates to 95.5% and 72.6%, respectively, of the target
performance objectives established by the Compensation Committee for such performance measures. The net number of units placed into
service during 2014 did not reach the threshold performance objective established by the Compensation Committee.
 

Reduction of general and administrative expenses for our "legacy" operations in 2014 versus budgeted levels slightly exceeded the 2%
performance objective. In its consideration of the level of achievement of the remaining personal objectives component of our NEOs’ 2014
performance measures, the Compensation Committee weighed each individual’s contribution to our annual performance and our longer-term
strategic goals, and other subjective factors, and approved payment of 70% of our NEOs' target personal objective award opportunities.

 
The following table sets forth the amounts earned by our participating NEOs for each performance measure established by the

Compensation Committee for the 2014 plan year:
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 Achievement of 2014 Plan Year Performance Objectives   

 
Profit Before

Taxes  
Distributable
Cash Flow  Net Sets  

Health, Safety, &
Environmental  

G&A Cost
Reduction  

Personal
Objectives  

Total Earned
Award

Ronald J. Foster              

% of objective attained 72.6%  95.5%  *  45.0%  85.5%  70.0%   

amount earned $ 5,927  $ 45,037  $ —  $ 9,872  $ 3,357  $ 3,295  $ 67,488

James P. Rounsavall              

% of objective attained 72.6%  95.5%  *  45.0%  85.5%  70.0%   

amount earned $ 3,404  $ 25,867  $ —  $ 5,670  $ 1,928  $ 1,893  $ 38,762

Kevin W. Book              

% of objective attained 72.6%  95.5%  *  45.0%  85.5%  70.0%   

amount earned $ 2,855  $ 21,690  $ —  $ 4,754  $ 1,617  $ 1,587  $ 32,503

* Results were below the threshold level of performance and no amounts were earned.
 
Bonuses Awarded to Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer. Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer, who served as executive officers of CSI until

its acquisition by us in August of 2014, and currently serve as our executive officers, received cash incentives for the performance period of
October 1, 2013 through September 31, 2014 (which corresponded to CSI's fiscal year prior to the acquisition) based on incentive plans
previously put in place by CSI. Under the terms of the agreement under which we acquired CSI, we paid amounts due to Messrs. Knox, Benge,
and Speer pursuant to such CSI incentive plans in December of 2014 and February of 2015.

For the period of October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, performance-based cash incentive opportunities for Messrs. Knox,
Benge, and Speer were based on a "bridge" plan, approved by our Compensation Committee, under which target award opportunities were
equal to 60%, 35%, and 35%, respectively, of each individual's annual base salary, prorated for the 3-month performance period. The
performance measures by which such "bridge" plan awards were determined were: EBITDA, weighted 40%; revenues, weighted 20%; fleet HP
utilization, weighted 20%; total reportable incident rate ("TRIR"), weighted 10%; and vehicle incident rate, weighted 10%. The achievement of
each such performance measure was determined based on results of CSI's operations (excluding our "legacy" Compressco operations) for the
fourth quarter of 2014.

The following table sets forth the amounts earned by Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer for each performance measure established by
the Compensation Committee for the performance period of October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014:

 Achievement of Fourth Quarter 2014 Performance Objectives   

 EBITDA  Revenues  Fleet HP Utilization  TRIR  
Vehicle Incident

Rate  
Total Earned

Award

Timothy A. Knox            

% of objective attained 101.2%  99.7%  102.1%  126.4%  *   

amount earned $ 25,440  $ 11,820  $ 24,000  $ 12,000  $ —  $ 73,260

Charles B. Benge            

% of objective attained 101.2%  99.7%  102.1%  126.4%  *   

amount earned $ 7,049  $ 3,275  $ 6,650  $ 3,325  $ —  $ 20,299

Anthony D. Speer            

% of objective attained 101.2%  99.7%  102.1%  126.4%  *   

amount earned $ 8,904  $ 4,137  $ 8,400  $ 4,200  $ —  $ 25,641

* Results were below the threshold level of performance and no amounts were earned.

Equity Incentive Awards. Equity incentives, historically awards of TETRA stock options and restricted stock, and since our formation
as a limited partnership, primarily awards of CSI Compressco phantom units and performance phantom units, comprise a significant portion of
our NEOs’ total compensation package. The Compensation Committee seeks to strike a balance between achieving short-term annual results
and ensuring
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strong long-term success through its use of equity awards, which are geared toward longer-term performance as they generally, though not
always, vest ratably over a three-year period, and their values are materially affected by market price appreciation of the underlying security.
 

Our Board has adopted the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”). The
purpose of the 2011 Plan is to promote our interests by enabling us to grant incentive compensation awards based on our units to employees,
officers, consultants, and directors who provide services to us. The 2011 Plan is also intended to enhance our ability to attract and retain the
services of individuals who are essential to our growth and profitability, and to encourage those individuals to devote their best efforts to
advancing our business. The 2011 Plan seeks to achieve these purposes by providing for grants of restricted units, phantom units, unit awards,
and other unit-based awards.

Our Board has appointed the Compensation Committee to administer the 2011 Plan and grant awards under the plan as it relates to
individuals who, with respect to the Partnership, are not subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder. Our Board has retained the authority to grant awards to individuals who, with respect to the Partnership, are subject to Section 16
of the Exchange Act (“Section 16 Reporting Persons”), and to administer the 2011 Plan and awards thereunder as they relate to such
individuals. Subject to the provisions of the 2011 Plan, the Compensation Committee or our Board, as applicable, may (i) designate participants
to whom awards may be granted; (ii) determine the type or types of awards to be made; (iii) determine the number of units covered by an
award and the terms or conditions of an award, consistent with the terms of the 2011 Plan; (iv) determine whether, to what extent, and under
what circumstances awards may be vested, settled, exercised, cancelled, or forfeited; (v) interpret and administer the 2011 Plan, and any
instrument or agreement relating to an award made under the 2011 Plan; (vi) establish, amend, suspend, or waive any rules and regulations
and appoint such agents as it deems appropriate for the proper administration of the 2011 Plan; (vii) make any other determination and take
any other action that it deems necessary or advisable for the administration of the 2011 Plan; and (viii) correct any defect, supply any omission,
or reconcile any inconsistency in the 2011 Plan or in any award under the plan.

 
Our Board and the Compensation Committee have each adopted the Procedures for Grants of Awards Under the CSI Compressco

Equity Incentive Compensation Plans (the “Grant Procedures”) to assist in the administration of our equity compensation plans. In February of
2015, our Board and the Compensation Committee amended the Grant Procedures to provide, among other things, that grants of annual
awards would be made to eligible CSI Compressco employees and non-employee directors each year on the date of the Compensation
Committee's meeting held in early May in conjunction with TETRA's Annual Meeting of Stockholders. With respect to such annual awards,
based on the Compensation Committee's determination of the aggregate number of awards that may be granted under the 2011 Plan in a
given year, the Compensation Committee or our Board, as applicable, will review and consider individual grants proposed by Mr. Knox and
TETRA's CEO and make any adjustments they consider appropriate. The Compensation Committee will approve all final individual awards,
except those awards proposed to be granted to Section 16 Reporting Persons, at the Compensation Committee's May meeting. The
Compensation Committee will recommend to our Board the approval of the proposed awards to Section 16 Reporting Persons, including our
NEOs. Our Board will review and consider the individual grants to Section 16 Reporting Persons recommended by the Compensation
Committee, make any adjustments it considers appropriate, and approve all final individual awards to Section 16 Reporting Persons, including
our NEOs, at a meeting of our Board or by a unanimous consent in lieu of a meeting. The awards to Section 16 Reporting Persons will have
the same grant date as the awards approved by the Compensation Committee.

With respect to the contemplated annual awards to be made to non-employee directors, it is anticipated that such awards will consist of
phantom units. Each award to a non-employee director will have an aggregate market value as of the date of grant in an amount determined by
our Board. The value of such annual equity award is currently set at $60,000. Such annual awards will be approved at a meeting of the Board
or by a unanimous consent in lieu of a meeting, and it is presently contemplated that such annual awards will have the same grant date of as
the awards approved by the Compensation Committee at its meeting held in early May in conjunction with TETRA's Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. Unless otherwise determined by the Board, one-third portions of such awards will become vested on the date of grant, and
additional one-third portions of such awards will vest on January 4th and May 27th of the subsequent year.
 

In February of 2015, the Compensation Committee delegated to the TETRA CEO its authority to grant special inducement, merit, and
retention awards under the 2011 Plan, and any future equity plans to individuals
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who are not and are not expected to become Section 16 Reporting Persons from a pool of such awards authorized by the Compensation
Committee each year. The Compensation Committee, our Board, and TETRA's CEO will consider refraining from making awards other than our
annual grants if the committee, our Board, TETRA's CEO, or our executive management are aware of any material, non-public information
regarding us or our affiliates.

On May 27, 2014, the Compensation Committee and our Board approved awards of time-vested phantom units to our Senior
Management and a broad-base of our employees. Each phantom unit award was granted in tandem with distribution equivalent rights (“DERs”)
that entitle the award holder to receive an additional number of units equal in value to any distributions we pay during the period the award is
outstanding times the number of units subject to the award. The phantom units and tandem DERs will vest ratably over the three-year period
following the date of grant. In addition, consistent with our philosophy of basing a significant portion of our Senior Management's compensation
on performance, also on May 27, 2014, our Board granted two separate awards of performance-based phantom units with tandem DERs to
members of our Senior Management as of that date. The first of the two performance-based awards (the "1-year performance phantom units")
covered the performance period of January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, and under such award, up to 200% of the "Target" number of
phantom units granted under the award could be earned based on our actual distributable cash flow (“DCF”) per outstanding unit for the
performance period relative to the following performance objectives established by our Board:

DCF per Outstanding Unit for the Year Ending Dec. 31,
2014  

Percentage of
Phantom Units Earned

Less than $2.06  0%

$2.06  10%

$2.22  50%

$2.38 (Target)  100%

$2.54  150%

>$2.70 (Maximum)  200%
 
For DCF per outstanding unit amounts that fall between any of the performance objectives set forth above, straight line interpolation is used to
determine the specific percentage of phantom units earned.

In March of 2015, our Board determined that the percentage of 1-Year performance phantom units earned would be determined based
on the results of our "legacy" operations, excluding the impact of the CSI Acquisition. Our Board further determined that DCF per outstanding
unit for the 2014 performance period was $2.28 and approved issuance of 68.8% of the 1-year performance phantom units awarded to our
NEOs in May 2014.

The second of the two performance-based awards granted by our Board on May 27, 2014 (the "3-year performance phantom units"),
covers the performance period of January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016. Under such award, up to 200% of the "Target" number of
phantom units granted may be earned based on our three-year cumulative DCF per outstanding unit for the period ending December 31, 2016,
relative to performance objectives established by our Board.
 

The following table sets forth the number of time-vested phantom units, 1-year performance phantom units, and 3-year performance
phantom units awarded to our NEOs in May 2014 and the aggregate grant date fair value of such awards as determined in accordance with
FASB ASC Topic 718:

  

Number of
Time-Vested

Phantom Units  

Number of 1-year
Performance Phantom

Units  

Number of 3-year
Performance

Phantom Units  

Aggregate Grant
Date Fair Value
Of Unit Awards

Ronald J. Foster  6,584  2,324  6,584  $ 371,808

James P. Rounsavall  2,747  970  2,747  $ 155,136

Kevin W. Book  2,552  901  2,552  $ 144,120
 

On August 5, 2014, in connection with the acquisition of CSI, our Board approved awards of phantom units to Messrs. Knox, Benge,
Foster, Speer, and other CSI officers. The awards of phantom units to Messrs. Knox, Benge, Foster, and Speer will cliff-vest on the third
anniversary date of the award; provided, that 50% of each of
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these awards may vest on an accelerated basis, on the second anniversary date of the award, if our EBITDA for the year ending December 31,
2015 reaches a target performance objective established by our Board. The following table sets forth the number of phantom units awarded to
Messrs. Knox, Benge, Foster, and Speer on August 5, 2014, and the aggregate grant date fair value of such awards as determined in
accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718:

  
Number of

Phantom Units  

Aggregate Grant
Date Fair Value
Of Unit Awards

Timothy A. Knox  32,008  $ 700,015

Ronald J. Foster  22,863  500,014

Charles B. Benge  13,718  300,013

Anthony D. Speer  13,718  300,013

While the Compensation Committee does consider the general compensation practices of other companies in the oil and gas services
industry in establishing equity incentive compensation opportunities, it does not specifically benchmark the value of equity awards relative to
any survey, peer group, or other compensation data. The Compensation Committee does, however, annually review the equity compensation
practices of other companies in our industry in order to gain a general impression of the proportionate share of equity award value in the total
compensation packages they offer.
 

Tax Deductibility of Compensation
 

With respect to the deduction limitations under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), we are
a limited partnership and do not meet the definition of a “corporation” under Section 162(m). Nonetheless, the taxable compensation paid to
each of the NEOs in 2014 was less than the Section 162(m) threshold of $1,000,000.
 

Retirement, Health and Welfare Benefits
 

Our employees, as employees of a TETRA affiliate, are eligible to participate in a variety of health and welfare and retirement
programs. TETRA is the sponsor of each of these benefit programs. Members of our Senior Management are generally eligible for the same
benefit programs on the same basis as the broad-base of our employees. Our health and welfare programs are intended to protect employees
against catastrophic loss and to encourage a healthy lifestyle. These health and welfare programs include medical, wellness, pharmacy, dental,
life insurance, short-term and long-term disability insurance, and insurance against accidental death and disability.
 

401(k) Plan. Due to our relationship with TETRA, our employees are eligible to participate in TETRA’s 401(k) Retirement Plan (the
“401(k) Plan”), which is intended to supplement a participant’s personal savings and social security. Under the 401(k) Plan, eligible employees
may contribute on a pretax basis up to 70% of their compensation, subject to an annual maximum established under the Code. Our general
partner makes a matching contribution under the 401(k) Plan equal to 50% of the first 6% of a participant’s annual compensation that is
contributed to the 401(k) Plan. All employees (other than nonresident aliens) who have reached the age of eighteen and have completed six
months of service with us are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan.
 

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. Certain of our Senior Management, directors, and certain other key employees have the
opportunity to participate in TETRA’s Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan, which is an unfunded, deferred compensation program. Under the
program, participants may defer a specified portion of their annual total cash compensation, including salary and performance-based cash
incentive, subject to certain established minimums. The amounts deferred increase or decrease depending on the deemed investment
elections selected by the participant from among various hypothetical investment election options. Deferral contributions and earnings credited
to such contributions are 100% vested and may be distributed in cash at a time selected by the participant and irrevocably designated on the
participant’s deferral form. In-service distributions may not be withdrawn until two years following the participant’s initial enrollment.
Notwithstanding the participant’s deferral election, the participant will receive distribution of his deferral account if the participant becomes
disabled or dies, or upon a change in control. None of our NEOs participated in the Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan during 2014.
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Perquisites

 
Perquisites (“perks”) are not a material component of our compensation. In general, NEOs do not receive reimbursements for the

private use of country clubs, meals, airline and travel costs other than those costs allowed for all employees, or for tickets to sporting events or
entertainment events, unless such tickets are used for business purposes. Messrs. Knox, Foster, Book, and Speer receive car allowances or
are entitled to the use of a company-owned vehicle, as is the case for all of our sales and field service personnel . Further, our NEOs do not
receive allowances or reimbursements for hunting and fishing camp costs or home security expenses. During 2014, except for the car
allowances (or the use of a company-owned car) for Messrs. Knox, Foster, Book, and Speer, no NEO received an allowance from us for any of
the above or a reimbursement for any expense incurred for non-business purposes.
 

Employment Agreements
 
We have previously entered into standard form employment agreements with Messrs. Book and Rounsavall that are substantially

identical to the form of agreement executed by all employees. Each of these employment agreements provide that the executives are
employed on an “at will” basis, and for an indefinite period of time. Both we and Messrs. Book and Rounsavall may terminate the agreement at
any time. The agreements prohibit Messrs. Book and Rounsavall from disclosing our or our affiliates’ confidential information during the
employment relationship period or at any time following the employment period. The agreements do not provide for severance or change of
control payments, nor do they establish the amounts of specific compensation elements such as salary or bonus.

Employment Agreements with Messrs. Knox, Benge, Foster, and Speer. In connection with the acquisition of CSI, on July 31, 2014, we
entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer (the “Employment Agreements”), which became effective upon the
closing of the CSI acquisition on August 4, 2014. The Employment Agreements set forth the following annual base salary and target annual
cash incentive bonus opportunity for each NEO: for Mr. Knox, annualized base salary of $400,000 and eligibility to receive a target annual cash
incentive bonus equal to 60% of his base salary; for Mr. Benge, annualized base salary of $240,000 and eligibility to receive a target annual
cash incentive bonus equal to 35% of his base salary; and, for Mr. Speer, annualized base salary of $190,000 and eligibility to receive a target
annual cash incentive bonus equal to 35% of his base salary.

Beginning in May 2015, Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer will be eligible to participate in annual grants of equity-based compensation
on a basis consistent with other of our executive officers. Messrs. Knox and Speer will also be provided the use of a vehicle provided by us or
an automobile allowance in lieu of such vehicle. In the event the employment of Mr. Knox, Benge, or Speer is terminated by us without “Cause”
or by such individual for “Good Reason” (as such terms are defined in the Employment Agreements) within the initial three-year employment
period, such individual shall be entitled to receive, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions including the execution and non-revocation of
a release agreement, severance benefits including the payment of his base salary and continuation of medical and dental insurance coverage
for the remaining term of the initial employment period, the payment of any unpaid Annual Bonus (as defined in the Employment Agreements)
for the preceding calendar year, a pro-rata payment of any Annual Bonus earned for the year in which such termination occurs, and full
acceleration of the phantom units granted on August 5, 2014, as described above. The Employment Agreements also contain certain
confidentiality, nonsolicitation, and noncompetition restrictions applicable to each NEO for the periods specified therein.

Effective as of August 4, 2014, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Foster (the “Foster Employment Agreement”).
Pursuant to the Foster Employment Agreement, Mr. Foster receives an annualized base salary of $325,000 and he is eligible to receive a
target annual cash incentive bonus equal to 45% of his base salary. Mr. Foster is eligible to participate in annual grants of equity-based
compensation on a basis consistent with our other officers. In the event Mr. Foster’s employment is terminated by us without “Cause” or by Mr.
Foster for “Good Reason” (as such terms are defined in the Foster Employment Agreement) within the initial three-year employment period, Mr.
Foster shall be entitled to receive, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions including the execution and non-revocation of a release
agreement, severance benefits including the payment of his base salary and continuation of medical and dental insurance coverage for the
remaining term of the initial employment period, the payment of any unpaid Annual Bonus (as defined in the Foster Employment Agreement)
for the
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preceding calendar year and a pro-rata payment of any Annual Bonus earned for the year in which such termination occurs. In addition, the
vesting of certain phantom units awarded to Mr. Foster will be fully accelerated. The Foster Employment Agreement also contains certain
confidentiality, nonsolicitation, and noncompetition restrictions applicable to Mr. Foster for the periods specified therein.

 
Double Trigger Change of Control Agreements

 
We have entered into change of control agreements (the “COC Agreements”) with Messrs. Knox and Foster. The COC Agreements

have an initial two-year term, with automatic one-year extensions on the second anniversary of the effective date and every anniversary date
thereafter, unless a cancellation notice is given at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the then applicable term. Under the COC Agreements,
we have an obligation to provide certain benefits to each applicable NEO upon a qualifying termination event that occurs in connection with or
within two years following a “change of control” of us or TETRA. A qualifying termination event under the COC Agreements includes the
termination of the NEO's employment with us other than for Cause (as that term is defined in the COC Agreement) or termination by the NEO
for Good Reason (as that term is defined in the COC Agreement). For an overview of the specific terms and conditions of the COC
Agreements, please read the section titled "Potential Payments upon a Change of Control or Termination" in this Item 11, below.

Indemnification Agreements
 

We and each of our current directors and our NEOs have executed an indemnification agreement that provides that we will indemnify
them to the fullest extent permitted by our First Amended and Restated Certificate of Limited Partnership, Bylaws, and applicable law. The
indemnification agreement also provides that our directors and officers will be entitled to the advancement of fees as permitted by applicable
law and sets out the procedures required for determining entitlement to and obtaining indemnification and expense advancement. In addition,
our charter documents provide that each of our directors and officers and any person serving at our request as a director or officer of another
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise shall be indemnified to the fullest extent permitted by law in connection with any
threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding (including civil, criminal, administrative, or investigative proceedings) arising out
of or in connection with his or her services to us or to another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, at our request.
We purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is a director or officer of the aforementioned corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust, or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out
of his or her status as an officer or director, subject to the terms and conditions of that insurance. In addition, Messrs. Brightman, Knox, Foster,
and Sullivan, in their capacities as directors and/or executive officers of TETRA, have executed indemnification agreements with TETRA that
are substantially similar to the indemnification agreements executed by each of them in connection with their services to us, and they benefit
from the protection of similar insurance.
 

Changes for Fiscal Year 2015
 

In December 2014, the Compensation Committee met to review and discuss our 2014 compensation programs and consider
prospective changes to 2015 compensation for our Senior Management. To assist them in this process, in October 2014, the Compensation
Committee retained the services of Pearl Meyer & Partners ("PMP"), an independent provider of compensation consulting services. Before
engaging PMP, the Compensation Committee confirmed that PMP does not provide other services to us or to TETRA, has procedures in place
to prevent conflicts of interest, and does not have a business or personal relationship with any of our executive officers, TETRA's executive
officers, or any member of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee discussed these considerations and concluded that
there were no conflicts of interest with us or TETRA with respect to the compensation consulting services provided by PMP.

At its December 2014 meeting, the Compensation Committee reviewed and discussed a report provided by PMP that contained the
results of a complete review of our compensation programs and related practices. PMP's report, which included members of our Senior
Management and TETRA's senior management, highlighted the following key observations:

• with some variation by individual, the total direct compensation of Senior Management is positioned at the 40th percentile overall of
peer group and market data; and
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• the mix of short-term and long-term compensation available to Senior Management compares very favorably to the market, with half of
our compensation, on average, delivered in the form of long-term incentives.

Also at its December 2014 meeting, the Compensation Committee reviewed and discussed the information provided in our annual
compensation report, as well as current market, and broader economic conditions. Although it has been the Compensation Committee's historic
practice to make certain determinations with regard to base salary adjustments and certain elements of short- and long-term incentive
compensation that may be available to Senior Management starting at its December meeting and continuing through the first quarter of the
subsequent year, given our expectation that oil and gas exploration activity levels will decrease in 2015 compared to 2014 due to the declines
in oil prices that have occurred since the summer of 2014, the Compensation Committee has elected to defer making any adjustments or
changes to current levels of Senior Management compensation until the near-term oil and gas services industry's market outlook becomes
more clear. In making this determination, the Compensation Committee acknowledged that the cyclical nature of the broader oil and gas
industry will from time-to-time necessitate an increased level of flexibility with regard to the application of our compensation programs, and the
timing of specific compensation decisions.

Performance-Based Cash Incentives for Fiscal Year 2015. Under the terms of TETRA's Cash Incentive Compensation Plan, the
Compensation Committee must approve performance measures and specific target performance objectives applicable to annual cash incentive
awards for our Senior Management prior to March 31 of a given performance year. At a meeting of the Compensation Committee in early
March of 2015, the Compensation Committee discussed the current uncertainty prevalent in the oil and gas services industry, and the
continuing need to provide incentives that are intended to drive superior performance even in challenging market conditions.

Recognizing that our continuing ability to generate distributable cash flow would be a key performance metric during 2015, the
Compensation Committee approved distributable cash flow as a 2015 performance measure for our NEOs. The Compensation Committee also
approved a specific target performance objective for distributable cash flow, as well as individual performance measures (including financial
and non-financial measures), and associated performance objectives, for each NEO. It is anticipated that the Compensation Committee will
monitor our performance as we move through 2015 and make any adjustments that may be necessary in order to strike an appropriate balance
between driving near-term performance and safe-guarding long-term unitholder value.

Equity Incentive Awards. In light of current market conditions, we have not yet made any determination as to equity awards that may be
granted during 2015.

Compensation Committee Report
 

Our general partner, CSI Compressco GP Inc., does not have a compensation committee. The Board of Directors of CSI Compressco
GP Inc., the general partner of CSI Compressco LP, has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with
management and, based upon such review and discussion, has approved the Compensation Discussion and Analysis for inclusion in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 

Submitted by the Board of Directors of CSI Compressco GP Inc.,

Stuart M. Brightman, Chairman
Paul D. Coombs
Ronald J. Foster
D. Frank Harrison
Timothy A. Knox
James R. Larson
William D. Sullivan

68



Compensation of Executive Officers
 

Summary Compensation
 
The following table sets forth the compensation earned by (i) our President (“Principal Executive Officer”), (ii) our Chief Financial Officer

(“Principal Financial Officer”), (iii) our Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer, who served as the Principal Executive Officer for a
portion of 2014, and (iv) each of our three other most highly compensated executive officers (each a “Named Executive Officer”) for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2014.

 Summary Compensation Table 

Name and Principal Position  Year  Salary  Bonus(1)  Unit Awards(2)  

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan

Comp.(3)  
All Other
Comp.(4)  Total

    ($)  ($)  ($)  ($)  ($)  ($)

Timothy A. Knox(5)  2014  $ 161,540  $ 159,076  $ 700,015  $ 73,260  $ 8,805  $ 1,102,696

  President               

Ronald J. Foster(6)  2014  $ 305,940  $ —  $ 871,822  $ 67,488  $ 66,497  $ 1,311,747

  SVP, Chief Marketing Officer  2013  286,000  3,513  350,033  71,605  30,451  741,602

  2012  275,000  —  175,293  146,273  18,208  614,774

James P. Rounsavall  2014  $ 218,099  $ —  $ 155,136  $ 38,762  $ 25,437  $ 437,434

  CFO  2013  198,600  1,464  145,854  26,756  15,695  388,369

  2012  190,962  —  81,804  57,623  14,141  344,530

Charles B. Benge(5)  2014  $ 96,923  $ 64,998  $ 300,013  $ 25,641  $ 8,101  $ 495,676

  VP of Operations               

Kevin W. Book  2014  $ 229,977  $ —  $ 144,120  $ 32,503  $ 36,422  $ 443,022

  VP Int'l Sales & Ops  2013  212,569  1,171  116,691  30,454  28,929  389,814

  2012  204,658  —  81,804  60,578  25,310  372,350

Anthony D. Speer(5)  2014  $ 76,731  $ 52,440  $ 300,013  $ 20,299  $ 11,225  $ 460,708

  VP of Manufacturing               
(1) Pursuant to the agreement under which we acquired CSI, the amounts shown were paid by us in December 2014 and February 2015 for the performance period of October 1,

2013 through September 30, 2014 under the terms of CSI's cash incentive compensation program.
(2) The amounts included in the “Unit Awards” column reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of awards granted during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and

2012, as applicable, in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The grant date fair value of performance phantom unit awards granted in 2013 and 2014 are reported based on
the probable outcome of the performance conditions on the grant date. The value of the 2014 performance phantom unit awards assuming achievement of the maximum
performance level would be: Mr. Foster, $427,584; Mr. Rounsavall, $178,416; and, Mr. Book, $165,744. Phantom unit awards and performance phantom unit awards granted
under the CSI Compressco equity plan on May 27, 2014, and August 5, 2014 relate to our common units and are valued at $24.00 and $21.87 per common unit, respectively,
in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.

(3) For Messrs. Rounsavall, Book, and Foster, the amounts shown in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” column for 2014, 2013, and 2012 reflect the actual amount of
the annual cash incentive earned for performance during that year and paid in March of the following year under TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan. For Messrs.
Knox, Benge, and Speer, such amounts reflect the actual amount earned for the performance period of October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 under the "bridge" plan
established by the Compensation Committee.

(4) The amounts reflected represent: (i) the employer paid portion of life, health, and disability insurance benefits, and matching contributions under our 401(k) Retirement Plan;
(ii) for Messrs. Foster and Book the value of distribution equivalent rights settled in connection with the vesting of unit awards that relate to Compressco's common units,
which was $50,900 for Mr. Foster and $17,977 for Mr. Book in 2014; (iii) and for Messrs. Knox, Foster, Book, and Speer, a car allowance or the use of a company-owned
vehicle.

(5) Messrs. Knox, Benge, and Speer were first employed by us on August 4, 2014. Accordingly, amounts shown above, with the exception of payments shown in the "Bonus"
column, reflect compensation earned during the period from August 4, 2014 through December 31, 2014. As a result of their employment in 2014, prior period information is
not applicable.

(6) Mr. Foster served as our President until August 4, 2014.
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Grants of Plan Based Awards
 

The following table discloses the actual number of phantom unit awards and performance phantom unit awards granted under the CSI
Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 to each Named
Executive Officer, including the grant date fair value of these awards, and the threshold, target, and maximum amounts of the annual non-
equity (cash) incentive granted under TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 to each
Named Executive Officer.

Grants of Plan Based Awards Table

    
Estimated Possible Payouts Under Non-

Equity Incentive Plan Awards(1)  
Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity

Incentive Plan Awards(2)  
All Other

Stock
Awards:

Number of
Units

 
Grant Date

Fair Value of
Stock and

Option
Awards(3)Name  Grant Date  Threshold  Target  Maximum  Threshold  Target  Maximum   

    ($)  ($)  ($)  (#)  (#)  (#)  (#)  ($)

Timothy A. Knox  8/5/2014 (4)             32,008  $ 700,015

  11/3/2014  $ 30,000  $ 60,000  $ 120,000           

Ronald J. Foster  2/20/2014  $ 29,250  $ 146,250  $ 292,500           
  5/27/2014 (4)             6,584  $ 158,016

  5/27/2014 (5)       232  2,324  4,648    $ 55,776

  5/27/2014 (6)       658  6,584  13,168    $ 158,016

  8/5/2014 (4)             22,863  $ 500,014

James P. Rounsavall  2/20/2014  $ 16,800  $ 84,000  $ 168,000           
  5/27/2014 (4)             2,747  $ 65,928

  5/27/2014 (5)       97  970  1,940    $ 23,280

  5/27/2014 (6)       275  2,747  5,494    $ 65,928

Charles B. Benge  8/5/2014 (4)             13,718  $ 300,013

  11/3/2014  $ 10,500  $ 21,000  $ 42,000           

Kevin W. Book  2/20/2014  $ 14,087  $ 70,435  $ 140,870           
  5/27/2014 (4)             2,552  $ 61,248

  5/27/2014 (5)       90  901  1,802    $ 21,624

  5/27/2014 (6)       255  2,552  5,104    $ 61,248

Anthony D. Speer  8/5/2014 (4)             13,718  $ 300,013

  11/3/2014  $ 8,313  $ 16,625  $ 33,250           
(1) The estimated possible payouts under non-equity incentive plan awards granted on February 20, 2014 are the threshold, target, and maximum amounts of the annual cash

incentive granted for 2014 performance under TETRA’s Cash Incentive Compensation Plan. The actual amount of annual cash incentive earned for 2014 performance and
paid in March 2015 for each NEO was: Foster $67,488; Rounsavall $38,762; and Book $32,503. The estimated possible payouts under non-equity incentive plan awards
granted on November 3, 2014 are the threshold, target, and maximum amounts of the cash incentive award granted for the performance period of October 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 under the "bridge" program approved by the Compensation Committee for certain former employees of CSI. The actual amount of cash incentive earned
for such performance period and paid in March 2015 for each NEO was: Knox, $73,260; Benge $25,641; and Speer, $20,299.

(2) The equity incentive plan awards granted on May 27, 2014 are the threshold, target, and maximum numbers of our common units that may be earned under performance
phantom unit awards granted under the CSI Compressco equity plan. "Threshold" is the lowest possible payout (10% of the award) and "maximum" is the highest possible
payout (200% of the award).

(3) The FASB ASC Topic 718 value of the phantom unit and performance phantom unit awards granted under the CSI Compressco equity plan on May 27, 2014 is $24.00 per
unit. Performance phantom units are shown at target value. The FASB Topic 718 value of the phantom unit awards granted on August 5, 2014 is $21.87 per unit.

(4) Phantom unit awards granted under the CSI Compressco equity plan on May 27, 2014 vest over a three-year period at a rate of one-third per year beginning on the first
anniversary date of the award based on continued employment over such three-year period. Phantom unit awards granted under the CSI Compressco equity plan on August
5, 2014 cliff-vest on the third anniversary date of the award, provided that 50% of each award may vest on the second anniversary date of the award if the established
performance objective for 2015 financial results is achieved. Each phantom unit award was granted in tandem with distribution equivalent rights (“DERs”) that entitle the award
holder to receive an additional number of units equal in value to any distributions we pay during the period the award is outstanding times the number of units subject to the
award.

(5) Performance phantom unit awards granted on May 27, 2014 may be earned under the CSI Compressco equity plan based on the level of achievement of the distributable
cash flow per outstanding unit performance objective for the one-year performance period of January 1,
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2014 through December 31, 2014 (the specific performance objective applicable to this award is described in “Compensation Discussion and Analysis – Equity Incentive

Awards”). A 68.8% portion of the award is expected to be settled in March 2015 based on the level of attainment of the performance objective for the one-year performance

period. Each performance phantom unit award was granted in tandem with DERs that entitle the award holder to receive an additional number of units equal in value to any

distributions we pay during the period the award is outstanding times the number of units subject to the award.

(6) Performance phantom unit awards granted on May 27, 2014 may be earned under the CSI Compressco equity plan based on the level of achievement of the three-year
cumulative distributable cash flow per outstanding unit performance objective for the performance period ending on December 31, 2016. Each performance phantom unit
award was granted in tandem with DERs that entitle the award holder to receive an additional number of units equal in value to any distributions we pay during the period the
award is outstanding times the number of units subject to the award.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End
 

The following table shows outstanding stock option awards previously awarded by TETRA and classified as exercisable as of
December 31, 2014 for each Named Executive Officer. The table also discloses the number and value of unvested phantom unit awards
granted under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2014.
 

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End Table

  Option Awards(1)  Unit Awards

  

Number of Securities
Underlying

Unexercised Options  

Option
Exercise Price

 
Option

Expiration
Date

 Number of
Units that
Have Not
Vested

 Market Value
of Units that

Have Not
Vested(2)

 

Equity
Incentive Plan

Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Units that
Have Not
Vested(3)

 

Equity
Incentive Plan

Awards:
Market Value or

Payout Value
of Unearned

Units that Have
Not Vested(3)Name  Options

Exercisable  Options
Unexercisable       

  (#)  (#)  ($/Share)    (#)  ($)  (#)  ($)

Timothy A. Knox          32,008 (4) $ 420,265     

Ronald J. Foster  4,000  —  $ 23.055  4/12/2016         

Ronald J. Foster  4,000  —  $ 28.075  5/12/2016         

Ronald J. Foster  8,000  —  $ 21.10  5/20/2018         

Ronald J. Foster  31,500  —  $ 4.17  4/9/2019         

Ronald J. Foster  14,500  —  $ 10.20  5/20/2020         

Ronald J. Foster          2,641 (5) $ 34,676     

Ronald J. Foster          4,932 (6) $ 64,757     

Ronald J. Foster          6,584 (7) $ 86,448     

Ronald J. Foster          22,863 (4) $ 300,191     

Ronald J. Foster              7,397 (8) $ 97,123

Ronald J. Foster              6,584 (9) $ 86,448

James P. Rounsavall          1,233 (5) $ 16,189     

James P. Rounsavall          2,055 (6) $ 26,982     

James P. Rounsavall          2,747 (7) $ 36,068     

James P. Rounsavall              3,082 (8) $ 40,467

James P. Rounsavall              2,747 (9) $ 36,068

Charles B. Benge          13,718 (4) $ 180,117     

Kevin W. Book  2,000  —  $ 23.055  4/12/2016        

Kevin W. Book  2,000  —  $ 28.075  5/12/016        

Kevin W. Book  5,000  —  $ 21.10  5/20/2018        

Kevin W. Book  6,000  —  $ 4.17  4/9/2019        

Kevin W. Book  3,250  —  $ 10.20  5/20/2020        

Kevin W. Book          1,233 (5) $ 16,189     
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  Option Awards(1)  Unit Awards

  

Number of Securities
Underlying

Unexercised Options  

Option
Exercise Price

 
Option

Expiration
Date

 Number of
Units that
Have Not
Vested

 Market Value
of Units that

Have Not
Vested(2)

 

Equity
Incentive Plan

Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Units that
Have Not
Vested(3)

 

Equity
Incentive Plan

Awards:
Market Value or

Payout Value
of Unearned

Units that Have
Not Vested(3)Name  Options

Exercisable  Options
Unexercisable       

Kevin W. Book          1,645
(6) $ 21,599     

Kevin W. Book          2,552 (7) $ 33,508     

Kevin W. Book              2,466 (8) $ 32,379

Kevin W. Book              2,552 (9) $ 33,508

Anthony D. Speer          13,718 (4) $ 180,117     
(1) All outstanding option awards relate to TETRA’s common stock. Under the terms of TETRA’s equity plans, the option exercise price must be greater than or equal to 100% of

the closing price of the common stock on the date of grant.
(2) All outstanding unit awards relate to our common units. Market value is determined by multiplying the number of units that have not vested by $13.13, the closing price of our

common units on December 31, 2014.
(3) The number of units earned under these performance phantom unit awards will be determined based on actual level of achievement of an established performance objective.

The amounts shown in these columns assume achievement of the target performance objective. Market value is determined by multiplying the target number of unearned units
that have not vested by $13.13, the closing price of our common units on December 31, 2014.

(4) The phantom unit award will cliff-vest on August 5, 2017, provided that 50% of the award may vest on August 5, 2016 if the established performance objective for 2015
financial results is achieved.

(5) The remaining unvested portion of the phantom unit award granted on May 27, 2012 will vest on May 27, 2015; one-third portions of the award previously vested on May 27,
2013 and May 27, 2014.

(6) One-third portions of the remaining unvested phantom unit award granted on May 27, 2013 will vest on May 27, 2015 and May 27, 2016; one-third of the award previously
vested on May 27, 2014.

(7) One-third portions of the unvested phantom unit award granted on May 27, 2014 will vest on May 27, 2015, May 27, 2016, and May 27, 2017.
(8) The performance phantom unit award for the performance period of January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2015 may be settled pursuant to the terms of the award in March of

2016 if applicable performance objectives are met. The number of units shown is the target number of units that may be issued under the award.
(9) The performance phantom unit award for the performance period of January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016 may be settled pursuant to the terms of the award in March of

2017 if applicable performance objectives are met. The number of units shown is the target number of units that may be issued under the award.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested
 

The following table sets forth certain information regarding restricted unit awards, phantom unit awards, and performance phantom unit
awards under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan that became vested or were earned, and stock
option awards under TETRA’s equity plans that were exercised, for each of our Named Executive Officers during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014.

 
Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table 

  Option Awards  Unit Awards(1)

Name  
Number of Shares

Acquired on Exercise  
Value

Realized on Exercise  
Number of Units

Acquired on Vesting  
Value

Realized on Vesting
  (#)  ($)  (#)  ($)

Timothy A. Knox  —  $ —  —  $ —

Ronald J. Foster  8,334  $ 23,252  15,930  $ 337,829

James P. Rounsavall  —  $ —  3,889  $ 87,379

Charles B. Benge  —  $ —  —  $ —

Kevin W. Book  —  $ —  5,647  $ 120,902

Anthony D. Speer  —  $ —  —  $ —
(1) Includes the number and value of units issued pursuant to DERs settled in tandem with phantom unit awards.
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Nonqualified Deferred Compensation
 

TETRA maintains the TETRA Technologies, Inc. Executive Nonqualified Excess Plan, an unfunded, nonqualified deferred
compensation plan that allows participants to defer a portion of their base salaries and performance-based compensation. As of December 31,
2014, none of the Named Executive Officers had elected to participate in this plan.

 
Potential Payments upon a Change of Control or Termination
 
We have previously entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Rounsavall and Book that are substantially identical to the form

of agreement executed by all of our employees. These agreements evidence the at-will nature of employment, and do not guarantee term of
employment, salary, severance, or change of control payments. Effective August 4, 2014, we entered into Employment Agreements with
Messrs. Knox, Foster, Benge, and Speer that provide certain severance benefits including the payment of each NEO's base salary and
continuation of medical and dental insurance coverage for the remaining term of the applicable initial employment period, the payment of any
unpaid Annual Bonus (as defined in the Employment Agreements) for the preceding calendar year, a pro-rata payment of any Annual Bonus
earned for the year in which such termination occurs, and full acceleration of the phantom units granted on August 5, 2014, as described
above. Separately, we have entered into Change of Control Agreements with Messrs. Knox and Foster that are further described below.

Under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan, our Board of Directors, in its sole discretion,
may accelerate the vesting of restricted units, phantom units, and performance phantom units held by our Named Executive Officers upon
termination of their employment. For purposes of the following disclosure, we have assumed that all outstanding unit awards would be
accelerated if the Named Executive Officer's employment was terminated in connection with a change of control, or upon the death, disability,
or retirement of such officer.

Change of Control Agreement with Mr. Knox. We have entered into a change of control agreement with Mr. Knox (the “Knox COC
Agreement”). The Knox COC Agreement has an initial two-year term, with an automatic one-year extension on the second anniversary of the
effective date (and any anniversary date thereafter) unless a cancellation notice is given at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the then
applicable term. Under the Knox COC Agreement, we have an obligation to provide certain benefits to Mr. Knox upon a qualifying termination
event that occurs in connection with or within two years following a “change of control” of CSI Compressco LP or TETRA. A qualifying
termination event under the Knox COC Agreement includes the termination of Mr. Knox’s employment by us other than for “Cause” (as that
term is defined in the Knox COC Agreement) or termination by Mr. Knox for “Good Reason” (as that term is defined in the Knox COC
Agreement).

Under the Knox COC Agreement, if a qualifying termination event occurs in connection with or within two years following a change of
control, we have an obligation to pay Mr. Knox the following cash severance amounts: (i) (A) an amount equal to Mr. Knox’s earned but unpaid
Annual Bonus (as that term is defined in the Knox COC Agreement) attributable to the immediately preceding calendar year and earned but
unpaid Long Term Bonus (as that term is defined in the Knox COC Agreement) attributable to the performance period ended as of the end of
the immediately preceding calendar year to the extent such amounts would have been paid to Mr. Knox had he remained employed by us, and
in each case only to the extent the performance goals for such bonus were achieved for the applicable performance period, plus (B) Mr. Knox’s
prorated target Annual Bonus for the current year, plus (C) an amount equal to Mr. Knox’s target Long-Term Bonus for each outstanding award;
plus (ii) the product of two times the sum of Mr. Knox’s Base Salary (as that term is defined in the Knox COC Agreement) and target Annual
Bonus amount for the year in which the qualifying termination event occurs; plus (iii) an amount equal to the aggregate premiums and any
administrative fees applicable to Mr. Knox due to an election of continuation of coverage that he would be required to pay if he elected to
continue medical and dental benefits under TETRA's group health plan for Mr. Knox and his eligible dependents without subsidy from us for a
period of two years following the date of his qualifying termination event. The Knox COC Agreement also provides for full acceleration of
vesting of any outstanding restricted unit awards, phantom unit awards, and other unit-based awards upon any qualifying termination event to
the extent permitted under the applicable plan. All payments and benefits due under the Knox COC Agreement are conditioned upon the
execution and non-revocation by Mr. Knox of a release for our benefit. All payments under the Knox COC Agreement are subject to reduction
as may be necessary to avoid exceeding the amount allowed under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In the
event a qualifying termination event occurs under the Knox COC Agreement, in order to avoid
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duplication, Mr. Knox will receive benefits under the Knox COC Agreement in lieu of under the Employment Agreement.

The Knox COC Agreement also contains certain confidentiality provisions and related restrictions applicable to Mr. Knox. In addition to
restrictions upon improper disclosure and use of Confidential Information (as defined in the Knox COC Agreement), Mr. Knox agrees that for a
period of two years following a termination of employment for any reason, he will not solicit our employees or otherwise engage in a competitive
business with us as more specifically set forth in the Knox COC Agreement. Such obligations are only binding on Mr. Knox if he receives the
severance benefits described above.

Change of Control Agreement with Mr. Foster. We have entered into a change of control agreement (the “Foster COC Agreement”)
with Mr. Foster. The Foster COC Agreement has an initial two-year term, with an automatic one-year extension on the second anniversary of
the effective date (and any anniversary date thereafter) unless a cancellation notice is given at least 90 days prior to the expiration of the then
applicable term. Under the Foster COC Agreement, we have an obligation to provide certain benefits to Mr. Foster upon a qualifying
termination event that occurs in connection with or within two years following a “change of control” of us or TETRA. A qualifying termination
event under the Foster COC Agreement includes the termination of Mr. Foster’s employment with us other than for Cause (as that term is
defined in the Foster COC Agreement) or termination by Mr. Foster for Good Reason (as that term is defined in the Foster COC Agreement).

Under the Foster COC Agreement, if a qualifying termination event occurs in connection with or within two years following a change of
control, we have an obligation to pay Mr. Foster the following cash severance amounts: (i)(A) an amount equal to Mr. Foster’s earned but
unpaid Annual Bonus (as that term is defined in the Foster COC Agreement) attributable to the immediately preceding calendar year and
earned but unpaid Long Term Bonus (as that term is defined in the Foster COC Agreement) attributable to the performance period ended as of
the end of the immediately preceding calendar year to the extent such amounts would have been paid to Mr. Foster had he remained employed
by us, and in each case only to the extent the performance goals for such bonus were achieved for the applicable performance period, plus (B)
Mr. Foster’s prorated target Annual Bonus for the current year, plus (C) an amount equal to Mr. Foster’s target Long-Term Bonus for each
outstanding award; plus (ii) the product of 2 times the sum of Mr. Foster’s Base Salary and target Annual Bonus amount for the year in which
the qualifying termination event occurs; plus (iii) an amount equal to the aggregate premiums and any administrative fees applicable to Mr.
Foster due to an election of continuation of coverage that he would be required to pay if he elected to continue medical and dental benefits
under the group health plan for Mr. Foster and his eligible dependents without subsidy from us for a period of two years following the date of
Mr. Foster’s qualifying termination event. The Foster COC Agreement also provides for full acceleration of vesting of any outstanding restricted
unit awards, phantom unit awards, and other unit-based awards upon Mr. Foster’s qualifying termination event to the extent permitted under the
applicable plan. All payments and benefits due under the Foster COC Agreement are conditioned upon the execution and nonrevocation by Mr.
Foster of a release for our benefit. All payments under the Foster COC Agreement are subject to reduction as may be necessary to avoid
exceeding the amount allowed under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In the event a qualifying termination
event occurs under the Foster COC Agreement, in order to avoid duplication, Mr. Foster will receive benefits under the Foster COC Agreement
in lieu of under the Employment Agreement.

The Foster COC Agreement also contains certain confidentiality provisions and other restrictions applicable to Mr. Foster. In addition to
restrictions upon improper disclosure and use of Confidential Information (as defined in the Foster COC Agreement), Mr. Foster agrees that for
a period of two years following a termination of employment for any reason, he will not solicit our employees or otherwise engage in a
competitive business with us as more specifically set forth in the Foster COC Agreement. Such obligations are only binding on Mr. Foster if he
receives the severance benefits described above.

The following table quantifies the potential payments to Named Executive Officers who were employed by us as of December 31, 2014,
under the contracts, agreements, or plans discussed above in various scenarios involving a change of control or termination of employment,
assuming a December 31, 2014 termination date. In addition to the amounts reflected in the table, the Named Executive Officers would receive
upon termination any salary earned through December 31, 2014, and any benefits they would otherwise be entitled to under TETRA's 401(k)
Plan.

74



Name  
Cash Severance

Payment  Bonus Payment  

 Accelerated
Vesting of Unit

Awards(1)  
Continuation of
Health Benefits  Total

Timothy A. Knox           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 420,265  $ —  $ 420,265

Retirement  —  —  420,265  —  420,265

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason(2)  1,032,000  73,260  420,265  32,229  1,557,754

Termination upon a change of control(3)  1,280,000  73,260  420,265  24,984  1,798,509

Ronald J. Foster           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 691,583  $ —  $ 691,583

Retirement  —  —  691,583  —  691,583

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason(2)  838,500  67,488  300,191  32,229  1,238,408

Termination upon a change of control(3)  942,500  67,488  691,583  24,984  1,726,555

James P. Rounsavall           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 164,939  $ —  $ 164,939

Retirement  —  —  164,939  —  164,939

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason  —  —  —  —  —

Termination upon a change of control  —  —  164,939  —  164,939

Charles B. Benge           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 180,117  $ —  $ 180,117

Retirement  —  —  180,117  —  180,117

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason(2)  619,200  25,641  180,117  32,229  857,187

Termination upon a change of control  —  —  180,117  —  180,117

Kevin Book           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 145,690  $ —  $ 145,690

Retirement  —  —  145,690  —  145,690

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason  —  —  —  —  —

Termination upon a change of control  —  —  145,690  —  145,690

Anthony D. Speer           
Death/disability  $ —  $ —  $ 180,117  $ —  $ 180,117

Retirement  —  —  180,117  —  180,117

Termination for cause  —  —  —  —  —

Termination for no cause or good reason(2)  490,200  20,299  180,117  32,229  722,845

Termination upon a change of control  —  —  180,117  —  180,117
(1) Our Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan allows acceleration upon termination following a change of control and upon death, disability, or retirement at the

discretion of our Board of Directors (with regard to Named Executive Officers). Under the terms of Employment Agreements with Messrs. Knox, Foster, Benge, and Speer,
acceleration of the unit awards granted on August 5, 2014 would occur upon a termination by us without cause or a termination by the officer for "good reason." Under the
terms of COC Agreements with Messrs. Knox and Foster, acceleration would automatically occur upon a qualifying termination of employment following a change of control.
The value of accelerated unit awards is calculated by multiplying the number of accelerated units by $20.14, the closing price of our common units on December 31, 2013.
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(2) Pursuant to the terms of Employment Agreements with Messrs. Knox, Foster, Benge, and Speer, amounts shown include payment of base salary and provision of health
benefits through August 4, 2017 (the remaining initial terms of the agreements), payment of the earned portion of annual bonuses for the 2014 performance period, and
acceleration of the unit awards granted on August 5, 2014.

(3) Pursuant to the terms of Change of Control Agreements with Messrs. Knox and Foster, amounts shown represent a multiple of base salary plus target annual cash bonus,
payment of the earned portion of annual bonuses for the 2014 performance period, acceleration of outstanding unit awards, and provision of health benefits through
December 31, 2016.

Director Compensation
 
As of January 1, 2014, each director who is not an employee of our general partner, TETRA, or any of its subsidiaries, receives non-

cash compensation of $60,000 per year for attending regularly scheduled board meetings. In order to remain competitive in director
compensation, effective May 27, 2013, the Board approved the addition of cash director fees in the amount of $15,000 per year, paid in
quarterly installments. The non-cash compensation is paid for the upcoming service year in the form of phantom unit awards that have an
intended value of $60,000, prorated for any newly-elected director to such director's date of election and that vest over the service year as set
forth below. Directors who are appointed as the chairmen of our Conflicts Committee and Audit Committee receive additional compensation of
$5,000 and $10,000 per year, respectively, prorated from their respective dates of appointment in their initial year of service, which is also paid
in the form of phantom unit awards. All such awards of phantom units are granted under our Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive
Plan. Directors are reimbursed for out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their service as directors.

 
Directors who are also our officers or employees, or officers or employees of TETRA, do not receive any compensation for duties

performed as our directors. Consequently, none of Mr. Knox, our President, Mr. Foster, our Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer,
and Mr. Brightman, the President and Chief Executive Officer of TETRA, was compensated for his service to us as a director during 2014.

 
On May 27, 2014, the Board approved awards of 2,500 phantom units with an aggregate grant date fair market value of $60,000 to

Messrs. Coombs, Harrison, Larson, and Sullivan for their service as directors during the May 2014 through May 2015 service year. Also on
May 27, 2014, with regard to the May 2014 through May 2015 service year, Mr. Harrison received an additional award of 209 phantom units
with a grant date fair market value of $5,016 for his service as chairman of the Conflicts Committee, and Mr. Larson received an additional
award of 417 phantom units with a grant date fair market value of $10,008 for his service as chairman of the Audit Committee. One-third of all
of the phantom units so awarded were immediately vested on May 27, 2014, and additional one-third portions of each award vest on January 4,
2015 and May 27, 2015. A phantom unit is a notional unit that entitles the director to receive a common unit of the Partnership upon vesting of
the phantom unit. Each award of phantom units to Messrs. Coombs, Harrison, Larson, and Sullivan was granted in tandem with distribution
equivalent rights (“DERs”) that entitle the award holder to receive an additional number of common units equal in value to any distributions we
pay during the period the award is outstanding times the number of unvested phantom units subject to the award. DERs are subject to the
same vesting restrictions and risk of forfeiture applicable to the corresponding phantom units. It is anticipated that directors will be appointed to
the Board in May of each calendar year.

The following table discloses the cash, equity awards, and other compensation earned, paid, or awarded, as the case may be, to each
of our current non-employee directors, and to Geoffrey M. Hertel, who retired from our Board on May 27, 2014, during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014.
 

Director Compensation Table

Name  
Fees Earned or Paid

in Cash(1)  Unit Awards(2)  
All Other

Compensation(3)  Total
  ($)  ($)  ($)  ($)

Paul D. Coombs  $ 7,500  $ 60,000  $ —  $ 67,500

D. Frank Harrison  15,000  65,016  19  80,035

Geoffrey M. Hertel  7,500  —  28  7,528

James R. Larson  15,000  70,008  9  85,017

William D. Sullivan  15,000  60,000  28  75,028
(1) The amounts in this column reflect payments earned for service as a non-employee director during 2014.
(2) Phantom units granted on May 27, 2014 are valued at $24.00 per common unit in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.
(3) Includes payment of cash amounts representing the fractional portions of common units due upon settlement of dividend equivalent rights granted in tandem with phantom

unit awards.
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Compensation Policies and Risk Management
 
To the extent that risks may arise from our compensation policies and practices for our employees that are reasonably likely to have a

material adverse effect on us, we are required to discuss our policies and practices for compensating our employees (including our employees
that are not Named Executive Officers) as they relate to our risk management practices and risk-taking incentives. We have determined that
our compensation policies and practices for our employees are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on us, thus no such
disclosure exists at this time. We seek to structure a balance between achieving strong short-term annual results and ensuring long-term
viability and success by providing both annual and long-term incentive opportunities. We believe that providing both short- and long-term
awards also helps to minimize any risk to us or our unitholders that could arise from excessive focus on short-term performance. Our general
partner’s board of directors is aware of the need to routinely assess our compensation policies and practices and will make a determination as
to the necessity of this particular disclosure on an annual basis.
 
Management and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
 

As previously discussed, our general partner’s Board is not required to maintain, and does not maintain, a compensation committee.
During 2014, Messrs. Brightman, Knox, and Foster, who were directors of our general partner, were also executive officers of TETRA. All
compensation decisions with respect to Mr. Brightman are made by TETRA and he does not receive any compensation directly from us or from
our general partner. All compensation decisions with respect to Messrs. Knox and Foster are made by TETRA and our general partner as
described above, with the exception of equity awards under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan
which, if awarded, are granted by our general partner’s Board. Please read Item 13, “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions,
and Director Independence” below, for information about relationships among us, our general partner, and TETRA.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
 
Beneficial Ownership of Certain Unitholders and Management

 
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our units as of December 31, 2014 with

respect to each person that beneficially owns five percent (5%) or more of our outstanding units, and as of March 13, 2015, with respect to (i)
our directors; (ii) our Named Executive Officers; and (iii) our directors and executive officers as a group.

Name and Business Address of Beneficial Owner  Common Units Beneficially Owned    
Percentage
of Class(1)

TETRA Technologies, Inc.
24955 Interstate 45 North
The Woodlands, Texas 77380  

14,091,517

 

(2)

 

42.5%

OppenheimerFunds, Inc.
Two World Financial Center
New York, New York 10281  

2,700,618

 

(3)

 

8.2%

Goldman Sachs Asset Management
200 West Street
New York, New York 10282  

2,600,000

 

(4)

 

7.2%

Stuart M. Brightman  24,700    *
Paul D. Coombs  11,833    *
Ronald J. Foster  31,463    *
D. Frank Harrison  9,787    *
Timothy A. Knox  7,500    *
James R. Larson  14,138    *
William D. Sullivan  26,603    *
Charles B. Benge  —    *
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Name and Business Address of Beneficial Owner  Common Units Beneficially Owned    
Percentage
of Class(1)

Kevin Book  15,233    *
James P. Rounsavall  9,205    *
Anthony D. Speer  —    *
Director and executive officers as a group (11 persons)  150,462    0.5%

* Less than 1%.
(1) Reflects common units beneficially owned as a percentage of 33,145,876 common units outstanding.
(2) The common units beneficially owned by TETRA Technologies, Inc. are directly held of record by our general partner, CSI Compressco Investment, LLC, and TETRA

International Incorporated, each a wholly owned subsidiary of TETRA Technologies, Inc. Each of our general partner and TETRA International Incorporated has sole voting
and investment power over the common units held by them. As a result, TETRA Technologies, Inc. has indirect, sole voting and investment power over the common units held
by our general partner and TETRA International Incorporated.

(3) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G/A dated February 4, 2015, OppenheimerFunds, Inc. has shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to 2,700,618 of our
common units.

(4) Pursuant to a Schedule 13G dated February 9, 2015, Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P. has shared voting power and shared dispositive power with respect to
2,600,000 of our common units.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of the common stock of TETRA as of March
13, 2015 with respect to (i) our directors; (ii) our Named Executive Officers; and (iii) our directors and executive officers as a group.

Name of Beneficial Owner  
Amount and Nature of Beneficial

Ownership    Percentage of Class
Stuart M. Brightman  789,538  (1)  1.0%

Paul D. Coombs  688,858    1.0%

Ronald J. Foster  68,601  (2)  *

D. Frank Harrison  —    *

Timothy A. Knox  —    *

James R. Larson  —    *

William D. Sullivan  104,930    *

Charles B. Benge  —    *

Kevin Book  30,667  (3)  *

James P. Rounsavall  —    *

Anthony D. Speer  —    *

Director and executive officers as a group (11 persons)  1,682,594  (4)  2.1%

* Less than 1%.
(1) Includes 474,497 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 13, 2015.
(2) Includes 62,000 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 13, 2015.
(3) Includes 18,250 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 13, 2015.
(4) Includes 554,747 shares subject to options exercisable within 60 days of March 13, 2015.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information
 
The following table provides information as of December 31, 2014, regarding compensation plans (including individual compensation

arrangements) under which our common units are authorized for issuance.

Plan Category  

Number of Securities
to be Issued upon

Exercise of
Outstanding Options,

Warrants or Rights    

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options,
Warrants, or Rights  

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for Future
Issuance under Equity Comp.
Plans (Excluding Securities
Shown in the First Column)

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders  —    $ —  —
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders(1)  223,392  (2)  $ —  1,102,795

Total:  223,392    $ —  1,102,795

(1) Consists of the Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan, which was approved by the Board of our general partner in connection with the Initial Public Offering.
Please read "Item 11. Executive Compensation" of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding the Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term
Incentive Plan.

(2) Represents phantom unit awards and performance phantom unit awards outstanding under the Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan. These phantom unit
awards and performance phantom unit awards do not have an exercise price.

Please see “Compensation Discussion and Analysis – Compensation Elements – Equity Incentive Awards” under Item 11 of this
Annual Report for information about the material features of the Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan, which information is
incorporated by reference in this Item 12.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
 
Certain Transactions
 

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons. The related person transactions in which we engaged in
2014 were typically of a recurring, ordinary course nature, were previously made known to the Board of our general partner, and generally were
of the sort contemplated by the Omnibus Agreement dated June 20, 2011, as amended on June 20, 2014 as described below, among us, our
general partner and TETRA Technologies, Inc. (the “Omnibus Agreement”) and other related party agreements entered into in connection with
our Initial Public Offering. We do not have formal, specified policies for the review, approval or ratification of transactions required to be
reported under paragraph (a) of Regulation S-K Item 404. However, because related person transactions may result in potential conflicts of
interest among management and board-level decision makers, our Partnership Agreement does set forth procedures that the general partner
may utilize in connection with resolutions of potential conflicts of interest, including the referral of such matters to an independent conflicts
committee for its review and approval or disapproval of such matters.

 
The Conflicts Committee, which was formed in April 2012, is currently composed of two directors of the Board of our general partner,

each of whom has been deemed by the Board to meet the independence standards established under the Partnership Agreement. The
purposes of the Conflicts Committee are to carry out certain duties set forth in our Partnership Agreement and the Omnibus Agreement, and to
carry out any other duties delegated by the Board that involve or relate to conflicts of interest between us and TETRA, including its operating
subsidiaries. The Conflicts Committee has sole authority to retain and terminate any consultants, attorneys, independent accountants or other
service providers to assist it in the evaluation of conflicts matters. 

The Conflicts Committee is charged with acting on an informed basis, in good faith and with an honest belief that any action taken by
the committee is in our best interests. In taking any such action, including the resolution of a conflict of interest, the conflicts committee will be
authorized to consider any factors it determines in its sole discretion to be relevant, reasonable or appropriate under the circumstances.

 
Transactions with Related Persons. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2014, we made payments to Curtis1000, a

provider of marketing, human resources and safety services, of approximately $70,000. The sales representative of Curtis1000 responsible for
our business is the wife of Ronald J. Foster, the Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer of our general partner. We believe the costs
of the services provided by Curtis1000 are comparable to the costs that would be charged by an unaffiliated third party.
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Transactions with our General Partner and its Affiliates.
 
As of March 19, 2015, TETRA and certain of its subsidiaries, including our general partner, owned 14,091,517 common units, which

constitutes a 42.5% limited partner interest in us, and an approximate 2% general partner interest in us. Prior to August 18, 2014, TETRA also
held 6,273,970 subordinated units. Effective August 18, 2014, all of these subordinated units were automatically converted on a one-for-one
basis into common units. TETRA is, therefore, a “related person” to us as such term is defined by the SEC.
 

Distributions and Payments to the General Partner and its Affiliates. We will generally make cash distributions 98% to unitholders
on a pro rata basis, including our general partner and certain subsidiaries of TETRA, as the holders of 14,091,517 common units and
approximately 2% to our general partner. In addition, because distributions have exceeded certain higher target distribution levels (beginning
with the distribution for the three month period ended June 30, 2014) as provided for in our Partnership Agreement, TETRA and our general
partner are entitled to Incentive Distribution Rights of the distributions up to 48% of the distributions above the highest target distribution level.

 
For the year ended December 31, 2014, we paid aggregate distributions of approximately $15.1 million on our common units, $8.4

million on our subordinated units and $0.7 million on our general partner interest to TETRA and our general partner. On February 13, 2015, we
paid a quarterly distribution with respect to the period from October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 of approximately $6.8 million on our
common units and $0.5 million on our general partner interest to TETRA and our general partner. Distributions to the general partner interest
made during August and November 2014, and in February 2015, included the impact of Incentive Distribution Rights that resulted in higher
distribution levels for amounts distributed in excess of target distribution levels.

 
Contribution Agreement. In connection with the closing of the Initial Public Offering, we entered into a contribution, conveyance and

assumption agreement with TETRA, our general partner, Compressco, and TETRA International Incorporated, each of which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of TETRA (the “Contribution Agreement”). The Contribution Agreement provided for a series of conveyances, contributions, and
distributions by the various parties to the Contribution Agreement of substantially all of the business, operations, and related assets and
liabilities of our Predecessor including, among others, the following transactions:

• Our general partner contributed to us, as a capital contribution, (a) all of the equity securities of Compressco Field Services, Inc.’s
(“CFSI”) operating subsidiaries, which were contributed to the general partner pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, and (b) the
business conducted by CFSI and its operating subsidiaries, together with related assets and liabilities, in exchange for (i) a 2.0%
general partner interest , (ii) all of our Incentive Distribution Rights, (iii) 5,303,546 common units, (iv) 5,521,094 subordinated units, and
(v) the right to receive up to 400,500 additional common units if such common units were not purchased by the underwriters of the
Initial Public Offering within 30 days of the Initial Public Offering.

• TETRA International contributed to us (a) all of TETRA International’s equity interests in two of its operating subsidiaries, and (b)
certain equipment of TETRA International, in exchange for (i) 723, 211 common units and (ii) 752,876 subordinated units.

• We assumed and repaid $32.2 million of intercompany indebtedness using a portion of the proceeds generated by the Initial Public
Offering.

• We used approximately $8.1 million of the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering to reimburse TETRA for certain expenses incurred
in connection with the Initial Public Offering.
 
Omnibus Agreement. Our ongoing relationship with TETRA and our general partner is governed by the Omnibus Agreement. On

June 20, 2014, the Board of our general partner, upon the recommendation of the Conflicts Committee, approved an amendment to the
Omnibus Agreement to extend the term of the agreement (which was set to expire on that date). Pursuant to the terms of the Omnibus
Agreement, TETRA and our general partner are reimbursed for direct costs incurred in operating and maintaining our business and allocated
expenses for personnel who perform corporate, general and administrative services on our behalf. TETRA and our general partner do not
receive any separate management fee or other compensation for management of us. The Omnibus Agreement (other than the indemnification
obligations described under “Indemnification for Environmental and Related Liabilities,” below) will terminate upon the earlier to occur of (i) a
change in control of TETRA or our general partner, or (ii) any party providing at least 180 days prior written notice of termination to each of the
other parties.
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Subcontract Services
 

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA and our general partner may, but neither is under any obligation to, perform for the other
such production enhancement or other oilfield services on a subcontract basis as are needed or desired by the entity retaining such services,
for such periods of time and in such amounts as may be mutually agreed upon by us and TETRA and our general partner. Any such services
are required to be performed on terms that are either (i) approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, (ii) no
less favorable to us than those generally being provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our general partner,
or (iii) fair and reasonable to us, taking into account the totality of the relationships between us and TETRA, as determined by our general
partner. For the year ended, December 31, 2014, in connection with our operations in Argentina, a subsidiary of TETRA provided services to a
subsidiary of ours on a subcontract basis for approximately $0.6 million.
 

Sales, Leases, or Like-Kind Exchanges of Equipment
 

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA and our general partner may, but neither is under any obligation to, sell, lease, or like-
kind exchange to the other such production enhancement or other oilfield services equipment as is needed or desired by the acquiring entity to
meet its production enhancement or other oilfield services obligations, in such amounts, in such conditions, and for such periods of time as may
be mutually agreed upon by us and our general partner. Any such sales, leases, or like-kind exchanges are required to be on terms that are
either (i) approved by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, (ii) no less favorable to us than those generally being
provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our general partner, or (iii) fair and reasonable to us, taking into
account the totality of the relationships between us and TETRA, as determined by our general partner. In addition, unless otherwise approved
by the conflicts committee of our general partner’s board of directors, TETRA may purchase newly fabricated equipment from us, but only for a
price not less than the sum of the total costs (other than any allocations of general and administrative expenses) incurred by us in
manufacturing such equipment plus a fixed margin percentage thereof, and TETRA may purchase from us previously fabricated equipment for
a price that is not less than the sum of the net book value of such equipment plus a fixed margin percentage thereof. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, the approximate dollar value of the amounts involved in transactions between us and TETRA that were related to the sale,
lease or like-kind exchange of equipment was as follows: 

• Pursuant to an equipment sharing agreement between two of our subsidiaries and a subsidiary of TETRA in connection with operations
in Mexico, TETRA’s subsidiary charged our subsidiaries equipment rental amounts of approximately $2.4 million during 2014. In
addition, another TETRA subsidiary charged our subsidiaries $0.9 million during 2014 for parts and insurance coverage purchased for
use by our subsidiaries in Mexico and for reimbursement to a TETRA subsidiary for certain capital expenditures.

• In addition to the foregoing, we also provide early production services to a customer in Argentina. Two subsidiaries of TETRA charged
a subsidiary of ours in Argentina approximately $1.0 million during 2014 for equipment that is leased, and other equipment that is
subleased, from TETRA's subsidiary to our subsidiary in Argentina related to those operations.  In connection with our operations in
Argentina, our subsidiary invoiced another subsidiary of TETRA for reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of TETRA's
subsidiary of approximately $0.7 million during 2014.

 
Income Sharing

Under our agreement with TETRA to provide early production services ("EPS") to a customer in Argentina, we retain a portion of the
income generated under the EPS contract. During 2014, a subsidiary of TETRA invoiced a subsidiary of ours approximately $0.2 million
pursuant to our income sharing agreement with TETRA.

Provision of Personnel and Services
 

Our business operations are conducted by our general partner’s employees, our Canadian employees, and certain employees of
TETRA’s Mexico-based subsidiaries. In addition, TETRA and our general partner provide certain corporate general and administrative services
to us that are reasonably necessary for the conduct of our business. Such corporate general and administrative services include legal,
accounting and financial reporting, treasury, insurance administration, claims processing and risk management, health, safety and
environmental, information technology, human resources, credit, payroll, internal audit, and tax services. Under the Omnibus Agreement, the
services TETRA and our general partner provide to us must be substantially similar in nature and
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quantity to the services TETRA and our general partner previously provided to our successor entity and they can be no lower in quantity than is
reasonably necessary to assist us in the management and operation of our business. For the year ending December 31, 2014, TETRA and our
general partner charged us approximately $46.6 million in reimbursement for such services. The amount to be charged by TETRA and our
general partner increased beginning in the fourth quarter of 2014 as a result of the CSI Acquisition.
 

Indemnification for Environmental and Related Liabilities
 

Under the Omnibus Agreement, subject to certain limitations, TETRA and our general partner have indemnified us against certain
potential environmental claims, losses, and expenses associated with TETRA’s operation of our Predecessor entity prior to the completion of
the Initial Public Offering, and we have indemnified TETRA and our general partner for environmental claims arising following the completion of
the Initial Public Offering regarding the businesses contributed by TETRA and our general partner to us. TETRA and our general partner have
also indemnified us for liabilities related to certain defects in title to our assets and certain consents and permits necessary to own and operate
such assets, and tax liabilities attributable to TETRA’s operation of our assets prior to the completion of the Initial Public Offering.
 
Director Independence
 

Please see Part III, Item 10 of this annual report (“Corporate Governance and Director Independence”) for a discussion of director
independence matters, which discussion is incorporated by reference into this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.
 
Fees Paid to Principal Accounting Firm
 

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees for professional services rendered to us by our principal accounting firm, Ernst &
Young LLP, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, and 2013, respectively:

  2014  2013
Audit fees  $ 2,022,600  $ 375,000

Audit related fees  16,570  —

Tax fees(1)  85,000  80,000

Total fees  $ 2,124,170  $ 455,000

(1) Consists of fees for tax compliance review in 2014 and 2013.

Before approving these fees, our Audit Committee considered whether the provision of services by Ernst & Young LLP that are not
related to the audit of our financial statements was compatible with maintaining the independence of Ernst & Young LLP, and concluded that it
was.
 
Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services
 

 The Audit Committee of our general partner has adopted a Pre-Approval Policy with respect to services which may be performed by
our independent registered public accounting firm (the “Audit Firm”). This policy provides that all audit and non-audit services to be performed
by the Audit Firm must be specifically pre-approved on a case-by-case basis by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee may delegate pre-
approval authority to one or more of its members. The member to whom such authority is delegated must report, for informational purposes
only, any pre-approval decisions to the entire Audit Committee at or before its next scheduled meeting. As of the date hereof, the Audit
Committee has delegated this authority to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Neither the Audit Committee, nor the person to whom pre-
approval authority is delegated, may delegate their responsibilities to pre-approve services performed by the Audit Firm to our management.

PART IV
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
 
(a) List of documents filed as part of this Report
 

1. Financial Statements of the Partnership  
  Page
 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-1
 Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 F-2
 Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 F-3
 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 F-4
 Consolidated Statements of Partners’ Capital for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 F-5
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, 2012 F-6
 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7
2. Financial statement schedules have been omitted as they are not required, are not applicable, or the required information is included in

the financial statements or notes thereto.
3. List of Exhibits

 
 

3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Partnership’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on November 10, 2008 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

3.2 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P., dated June 20, 2011  (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June, 24, 2011 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

3.3 Certificate of Incorporation of Compressco Partners GP Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Partnership’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on November 10, 2008 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

3.4 First Amended and Restated Bylaws of Compressco Partners GP Inc., dated June 20, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Partnership’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June, 24, 2011 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

3.5 Certificate of Correction of the Certificate of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to
Amendment No.1 to the Partnership’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A filed on December 19, 2008 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

3.6 Amendment to the Certificate of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

3.7 Amendment No. 1 to the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

3.8 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation of Compressco Partners GP Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

3.9 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Compressco Partners GP Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 1, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

4.1 Specimen Unit Certificate representing Common Units (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 3 to the Partnership’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on April 12, 2011 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

10.1 Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement, dated June 20, 2011, by and among Compressco, Inc., Compressco Field Services,
Inc., Compressco Canada, Inc., Compressco de Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V., Compressco Partners GP Inc., Compressco Partners, L.P., 
Compressco Partners Operating, LLC, Compressco Netherlands B.V., Compressco Holdings, LLC, Compressco Netherlands Coöperatief
U.A., Compressco Partners Sub, Inc., TETRA International Incorporated, Production Enhancement Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V. and TETRA
Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 24, 2011 (SEC File No. 001-
35195)).

10.2 Omnibus Agreement, dated June 20, 2011, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., TETRA Technologies, Inc. and Compressco Partners
GP Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 24, 2011 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.3*** Compressco Partners, L.P. 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit  4.4 to the Partnership’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 17, 2011 (SEC File No. 333-175007)).
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10.4*** Form of Employee Restricted Unit Agreement under the Compressco Partners, L.P. 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Partnership’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 17, 2011 (SEC File No. 333-175007)).

10.5*** Form of Director Restricted Unit Agreement under the Compressco Partners, L.P. 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to the Partnership’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on June 17, 2011 (SEC File No. 333-175007)).

10.6 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 4 to the Partnership’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1/A filed on May 27, 2011 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

10.7 Credit Agreement, dated June 24, 2011, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Partners Operating, LLC and Compressco
Partners Sub, Inc., as the borrowers, the Partnership’s existing and future domestic subsidiaries, as loan guarantors, and JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as the lender (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 30, 2011 (SEC File No.
001-35195)).

10.8+*** Summary Description of the Compensation of Non-Employee Directors of Compressco Partners GP Inc.
10.9+*** Summary Description of Named Executive Officer Compensation.
10.10*** Separation and Release Agreement dated April 24, 2012 by and between Compressco Partners GP Inc. and Gary McBride (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 25, 2012 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).
10.11*** Forms of Phantom Unit Agreement, Non-Employee Director Phantom Unit Agreement and Performance Phantom Unit Agreement under the

2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibits 99.1, 99.2 and 99.3, respectively, to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on June 1, 2012 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.12 First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of December 4, 2012, among Compressco Partners, L.P. as borrowers, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2012
(SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.13 Second Amendment to Credit Agreement and First Amendment to Pledge and Security Agreement, dated May 14, 2013, by and among
Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Partners Operating, LLC and Compressco Partners Sub, Inc., as the borrowers, the Partnership’s
existing and future domestic subsidiaries, as loan guarantors, and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2013 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.14 Change of Control Agreement with Ronald J. Foster (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 4, 2013 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.15 Credit Agreement, dated October 15, 2013, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Partners Operating, LLC, Compressco
Partners Sub, Inc., Compressco Holdings, LLC, Compressco Leasing, LLC, Compressco Field Services International, LLC, and Compressco
International, LLC, as the borrowers, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of
America, N.A., and PNC Bank, National Association, as lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on October 18, 2013 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.16 First Amendment to Omnibus Agreement, dated June 20, 2014, by and among TETRA Technologies, Inc., Compressco Partners, L.P., and
Compressco Partners GP Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 26, 2014 (SEC File
No. 001-35195)).

10.17 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2014, by and between Warren Equipment Company and Compressco Partners Sub, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.18 Underwriting Agreement, dated July 24, 2014, by and among the Partnership and the Underwriters named therein, relating to the Common
Units (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 29, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.19 Indenture, dated as of August 4, 2014, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Finance Inc., the Guarantors party thereto
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August
4, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.20 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2014, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Finance Inc., the
Guarantors party thereto and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as representative of the Initial Purchasers named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.21 Guaranty, dated July 20, 2014, by Compressco Partners, L.P. in favor of Warren Equipment Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.22 Contribution and Unit Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2014, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compresso Partners GP,
Inc. and TETRA Technologies, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2014 (SEC
File No. 001-35195)).

10.23 Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2014, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Finance Inc., the Guarantors party
thereto and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as representative of the Initial Purchasers named therein (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).
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10.24 Purchase Agreement Joinder, dated as of August 4, 2014, by and among the Guarantors party thereto and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &
Smith Incorporated as Representative of the Initial Purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.25 Credit Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2014, by and among Compressco Partners, L.P., Compressco Partners Sub, Inc., the lenders from
time to time party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as administrative agent for the lenders and collateral agent, and the other
parties thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 4, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-
35195)).

10.26*** Employment Agreement dated August 4, 2014 by and between Compressco Partners GP Inc. and Timothy A. Knox (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.27*** Change in Control Agreement dated August 4, 2014 by and between Compressco Partners GP Inc. and Timothy A. Knox (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2014 (SEC File No. 001-35195)).

10.30*** Employment Agreement executed November 6, 2014, but effective as of August 4, 2014, by and between Compressco Partners GP, Inc. and
Ronald J. Foster (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 11, 2014 (SEC File No.
001-35195)).

10.31+ Employment Agreement dated July 20, 2014, but effective as of August 4, 2014, by and between Compressco Partners GP Inc. and Charles
B. Benge.

10.32+ Employment Agreement dated July 20, 2014, but effective as of August 4, 2014, by and between Compressco Partners GP Inc. and Anthony
D. Speer.

21+ Subsidiaries of the Partnership
23.1+ Consent of Ernst & Young LLP
31.1+ Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act, As Adopted Pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2+ Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act, As Adopted Pursuant to Section

302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1** Certification of Principal Executive Officer Furnished Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2** Certification of Principal Financial Officer Furnished Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS++ XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

+ Filed with this report.
** Furnished with this report.
*** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
++ Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Consolidated Statements of Operations

for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013; (iii) Consolidated Statements of
Partners’ Capital/Net Parent Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; and (vi) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, CSI Compressco LP has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
 CSI COMPRESSCO LP

 
  By: CSI Compressco GP Inc.,
      its general partner
Date: March 19, 2015 By: /s/Timothy A. Knox
   Timothy A. Knox, President
   (Principal Executive Officer)
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities with CSI Compressco GP Inc, its general partner, and on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/Stuart M. Brightman Chairman of March 19, 2015

Stuart M. Brightman the Board of Directors  

   
/s/Timothy A. Knox President and Director March 19, 2015

Timothy A. Knox (Principal Executive Officer)  

   
/s/James P. Rounsavall Chief Financial Officer March 19, 2015

James P. Rounsavall (Principal Financial Officer)  

 (Principal Accounting Officer)  
   
/s/Paul D. Coombs Director March 19, 2015

Paul D. Coombs   

   
/s/ Ronald J. Foster Director March 19, 2015

Ronald J. Foster   
   

/s/D. Frank Harrison Director March 19, 2015

D. Frank Harrison   

   
/s/James R. Larson Director March 19, 2015

James R. Larson   

   
/s/William D. Sullivan Director March 19, 2015

William D. Sullivan   
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 

3.1 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Partnership’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed on November 10, 2008 (SEC File No. 333-155260)).

3.2 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Compressco Partners, L.P., dated June 20, 2011  (incorporated by
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

 
Board of Directors of CSI Compressco GP Inc. and the
Unitholders of CSI Compressco LP
 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of CSI Compressco LP (formerly known as Compressco Partners,
L.P.) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, partners’ capital, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
CSI Compressco LP at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
 
 

/s/ERNST & YOUNG LLP
 
 
Houston, Texas
March 19, 2015
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CSI Compressco LP
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In Thousands, Except Unit Amounts)

  
December 31, 

2014  
December 31, 

2013
ASSETS     

Current assets:     

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 34,066  $ 9,477
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $1,496 in 2014 and $600

in 2013  78,828  23,819

Inventories  113,130  14,029

Deferred tax asset  124  57

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  5,339  1,597

Total current assets  231,487  48,979

Property, plant, and equipment:     

Land and building  34,312  2,178

Compressors and equipment  756,544  176,592

Vehicles  15,915  12,892

Construction in progress  298  —

Total property, plant, and equipment  807,069  191,662

Less accumulated depreciation  (120,642)  (89,648)

Net property, plant, and equipment  686,427  102,014

Other assets:     

Goodwill  233,623  72,161

Deferred tax asset  1,464  937

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $3,826 in 2014  62,974  —

Deferred financing costs and other assets  16,689  1,018

Total other assets  314,750  74,116

Total assets  $ 1,232,664  $ 225,109

LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL     

Current liabilities:     

Accounts payable  $ 37,815  $ 4,854

Unearned income  65,778  361

Accrued liabilities and other  29,381  5,346

Amounts payable to affiliates  6,480  4,210

Deferred tax liabilities  1,117  2,134

Total current liabilities  140,571  16,905

Other liabilities:     

Long-term debt, net  539,961  29,959

Deferred tax liabilities  1,788  4,477

Other long-term liabilities  63  52

Total other liabilities  541,812  34,488

Commitments and contingencies     

Partners' capital:     

General partner interest  11,341  3,158
Common units (33,142,114 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 9,240,490

units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013)  542,276  104,887

Subordinated units (6,273,970 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2013)  —  65,258

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)  (3,336)  413

Total partners' capital  550,281  173,716

Total liabilities and partners' capital  $ 1,232,664  $ 225,109

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CSI Compressco LP
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In Thousands, Except Unit and Per Unit Amounts)
 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
Revenues:       

Compression and related services  $ 192,151  $ 112,937  $ 102,260

Aftermarket services  15,624  —  —

Equipment and part sales  74,872  8,364  6,322

Total revenues  282,647  121,301  108,582

Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and amortization expense):       

Cost of compression and related services  98,874  63,425  53,818

Cost of aftermarket services  13,579  —  —

Cost of equipment and part sales  62,214  4,691  3,682

Total cost of revenues  174,667  68,116  57,500

Selling, general, and administrative expense  32,100  17,467  17,270

Depreciation and amortization  41,158  14,642  13,227

Interest expense, net  12,964  469  25

Other expense, net  11,672  782  876

Income before income tax provision (benefit)  10,086  19,825  19,684

Provision (benefit) for income taxes  (1,172)  2,258  3,353

Net income  $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331

       
General partner interest in net income  $ 510  $ 351  $ 326

Common units interest in net income  $ 7,319  $ 10,251  $ 9,500

Subordinated units interest in net income  $ 3,429  $ 6,965  $ 6,505

Net income per common unit:       

Basic  $ 0.47  $ 1.11  $ 1.04

Diluted  $ 0.47  $ 1.10  $ 1.03

Weighted average common units outstanding:       

Basic  18,928,640  9,230,876  9,163,798

Diluted  18,928,640  9,305,066  9,193,407

Net income per subordinated unit:       

Basic and Diluted  $ 0.47  $ 1.11  $ 1.04

Weighted average subordinated units outstanding:       

Basic and Diluted  3,953,461  6,273,970  6,273,970
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CSI Compressco LP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(In Thousands)
 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012

Net income  $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of $0 in 2014, $0 in 2013, and $0 in

2012  (3,749)  (591)  102

Comprehensive income  $ 7,509  $ 16,976  $ 16,433
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CSI Compressco LP
Consolidated Statement of Partners’ Capital

(In Thousands)

  Partners' Capital  

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Income

 

Total Partners'
Capital

    Limited Partners   

  
General
Partner  

Common
Unitholders  

Subordinated
Unitholder   

Balance as of December 31, 2011  $ 3,515  $ 111,989  $ 72,238  $ 902  $ 188,644

Net income for 2012  326  9,500  6,505  —  16,331

Distributions ($1.56 per unit)  (495)  (14,451)  (9,786)  —  (24,732)

Equity compensation  —  1,905  —  —  1,905

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  —  102  102

Balance as of December 31, 2012  $ 3,346  $ 108,943  $ 68,957  $ 1,004  $ 182,250

Net income for 2013  351  10,251  6,965  —  17,567

Distributions ($1.71 per unit)  (539)  (15,766)  (10,664)  —  (26,969)

Equity compensation  —  1,459  —  —  1,459

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  —  (591)  (591)

Balance as of December 31, 2013  $ 3,158  $ 104,887  $ 65,258  $ 413  $ 173,716

Net income for 2014  510  7,319  3,429  —  11,258

Distributions ($1.80 per unit)  (732)  (27,579)  (8,376)  —  (36,687)

Conversion of subordinated units to common units  —  60,311  (60,311)  —  —

Proceeds from issuance of common units, net of issuance costs  —  395,794  —  —  395,794

Contribution of capital  8,405  —  —  —  8,405

Equity compensation  —  1,544  —  —  1,544

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  —  (3,749)  (3,749)

Balance as of December 31, 2014  $ 11,341  $ 542,276  $ —  $ (3,336)  $ 550,281

 
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CSI Compressco LP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In Thousands)
 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
Operating activities:       

Net income  $ 11,258  $ 17,567  $ 16,331

Reconciliation of net income to cash provided by operating activities:       

Depreciation and amortization  40,879  14,349  13,227

Impairments of long-lived assets  279  293  —

Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes  (3,514)  (266)  1,930

Equity compensation expense  1,544  1,459  1,905

Provision for doubtful accounts  185  279  94

Loss on sale of property, plant, and equipment  484  20  205

Financing expense  6,750  —  —

Other non-cash charges and (credits)  925  325  281

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisition:       

Accounts receivable  (23,943)  (5,534)  (7,477)

Inventories  (30,972)  2,097  1,111

Prepaid expenses and other current assets  (8,031)  1,888  (1,887)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  49,152  (3,342)  5,390

Other  (177)  —  (1)

Net cash provided by operating activities  44,819  29,135  31,109

Investing activities:       

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment, net  (48,137)  (24,574)  (20,947)

Acquisition of CSI  (825,000)  —  —

Advances and other investing activities  (805)  —  (39)

Net cash used in investing activities  (873,942)  (24,574)  (20,986)

Financing activities:       

Proceeds from long-term debt, net  602,858  19,909  10,050

Payments of long-term debt  (93,584)  —  —

Proceeds from issuance of partnership common units, net of underwriters' discount  395,794  —  —

Distributions  (36,687)  (26,969)  (24,732)

Contribution from general partner  8,405   
Deferred financing cost and other financing activities  (22,486)  (916)  —

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities  854,300  (7,976)  (14,682)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  (588)  (74)  49

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  24,589  (3,489)  (4,510)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  9,477  12,966  17,476

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 34,066  $ 9,477  $ 12,966

Supplemental cash flow information:       

Taxes paid  $ 2,247  $ 2,204  $ 1,059
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CSI COMPRESSCO LP
 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

December 31, 2014

NOTE A — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
 

CSI Compressco LP (formerly known as Compressco Partners, L.P.), a Delaware limited partnership, is a provider of compression
services and equipment for natural gas and oil production, gathering, transportation, processing, and storage. We also sell standard and
custom designed compressor packages and oilfield fluid pump systems, and provide aftermarket services and compressor package parts and
components manufactured by third-party suppliers. We provide these compression services and equipment to a broad base of natural gas and
oil exploration and production, midstream, and transmission companies operating throughout many of the onshore producing regions of the
United States as well as in a number of foreign countries, including Mexico, Canada, and Argentina. We design and fabricate a majority of our
compressor packages and use these compressor packages in conjunction with other equipment and personnel from affiliated companies to
provide services to our customers. Unless the context requires otherwise, when we refer to “the Partnership,” “we,” “us,” and “our,” we are
describing CSI Compressco LP and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

NOTE B — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Presentation
 

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated.

Results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014, reflect the impact of the acquisition of Compressor Systems, Inc. ("CSI"),
a Delaware corporation, for the portion of the period beginning with the August 4, 2014, closing date of the acquisition. For further discussion of
the acquisition, see Note D - Acquisition.

Use of Estimates
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclose contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. For further discussion of fair value measurements
in connection with the allocation of the purchase price of the CSI Acquisition, see Note D - Acquisition. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Beginning with the three month period ended September 30, 2013, certain ad valorem tax expenses for operating equipment have
been reclassified as cost of revenues instead of being included in general and administrative expense as reported in prior periods. Prior period
amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year period's presentation. The amount of such reclassification is $1.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2012.    

Certain other previously reported financial information has been reclassified to conform to the current year's presentation. The impact
of such reclassifications was not significant to the prior year's overall presentation.
 
Cash Equivalents
 

We consider all highly liquid cash investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
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Financial Instruments
 

The fair values of our financial instruments, which may include cash, accounts receivable, amounts outstanding under our variable rate
bank credit facility, and accounts payable, approximate their carrying amounts. Financial instruments that subject us to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of trade accounts receivable, which are primarily due from companies of varying size engaged in oil and gas activities in
the United States, Canada, Mexico, and Argentina. Our policy is to review the financial condition of customers before extending credit and
periodically update customer credit information. Payment terms are on a short-term basis. During 2014, PEMEX and DCP Midstream
accounted for 11.1% and 10.1%, respectively, of our revenues. During 2013, PEMEX and BP accounted for 21.7% and 10.0%, respectively, of
our revenues. During 2012, PEMEX and BP accounted for 26.0% and 10.2%, respectively, of our revenues.

 
Foreign Currencies
 

We have designated the Canadian dollar as the functional currency for our operations in Canada. Effective January 1, 2014, we
changed the functional currency in Argentina from the U.S. dollar to the Argentina peso. We are exposed to fluctuations between the U.S.
dollar and certain foreign currencies, including the Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso, and the Argentine peso, as a result of our international
operations. Foreign currency exchange gains and (losses) are included in Other Expense and totaled $(1.2) million, $(0.5) million, and $(0.5)
million during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.
 
Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
 

Allowances for doubtful accounts are determined on a specific identification basis when we believe that the collection of specific
amounts owed to us is not probable.

Inventories
 

Inventories consist primarily of compressor package parts and supplies and work in process that are stated at the lower of cost or
market value. For raw materials and parts, cost is determined using the weighted average cost method. The cost of work in process is
determined using the specific identification method. Significant components of inventories as of December 31, 2014, and December 31, 2013,
are as follows: 

 December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013
 (In Thousands)

Parts and supplies $ 43,202  $ 13,859

Work in progress 69,928  170

Total inventories $ 113,130  $ 14,029

Work in process inventories as of December 31, 2014 consist primarily of new compressor units located at our fabrication facility in
Midland, Texas. Increased parts and supplies inventories reflect the higher levels required to support the compressor service fleet.

Compression and Related Services Revenues and Costs

Our compression and related services revenues include revenues from our U.S. corporate subsidiaries' operating lease agreements
with customers. For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the following operating lease revenues and associated costs were included
in compression and related service revenues and cost of compression and related services, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

December 31, 2014  December 31, 2013
(In Thousands)

Rental revenue $ 95,979  $ 12,674

Rental expenses 52,819  7,589
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Property, Plant, and Equipment
 

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures that increase the useful lives of assets are capitalized. The cost of
repairs and maintenance is charged to cost of revenues as incurred. Compressors include compressor packages currently placed in service
and available for service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the following estimated useful lives:

Compressors 12 – 20 years
Other equipment 3 – 8 years
Vehicles 3 years
Information systems 3 years

 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, costs expended for capitalized computer software were approximately $4.9 million, and

such costs are depreciated over a useful life of seven years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of
the associated building lease or their useful lives. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 was $37.1
million, $14.3 million, and $13.2 million, respectively.
 
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill
 

During 2014, as part of the CSI acquisition consummated during the year, we acquired trademarks/trade names, customer
relationships, and other intangible assets having a total estimated fair value of approximately $66.8 million. These acquired intangible assets
with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 15 years, and having a weighted
average useful life of 10.3 years. Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $3.8 million, $0 and $28,000 for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively, and is included in depreciation and amortization. The estimated future annual
amortization expense of trademarks/trade names, customer relationships, and other intangible assets is $9.4 million for 2015, $8.7 million for
2016, $6.4 million for 2017, $4.7 million for 2018, and $4.7 million for 2019.
 
Goodwill
 

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired in purchase transactions. We
perform a goodwill impairment test on an annual basis or whenever indicators of impairment are present. We perform the annual test of
goodwill impairment following the fourth quarter of each year. The annual assessment for goodwill impairment begins with a qualitative
assessment of whether it is “more likely than not” that the fair value of our business is less than its carrying value. This qualitative assessment
requires the evaluation, based on the weight of evidence, of the significance of all identified events and circumstances. Based on this
qualitative assessment, we determined that, due to the decline in the price of our common units that resulted in our market capitalization being
less than the book value of our consolidated partners' capital balance as of December 31, 2014, it was “more likely than not” that the fair value
of our business was less than its carrying value as of December 31, 2014.

When the qualitative analysis indicates that it is “more likely than not” that our business’ fair value is less than its carrying value, the
resulting goodwill impairment test consists of a two-step accounting test being performed. The first step of the impairment test is to compare
the estimated fair value with the recorded net book value (including goodwill) of our business. If the estimated fair value is higher than the
recorded net book value, no impairment is deemed to exist and no further testing is required. If, however, the estimated fair value is below the
recorded net book value, then a second step must be performed to determine the goodwill impairment required, if any. In this second step, the
estimated fair value from the first step is used as the purchase price in a hypothetical acquisition. Business combination accounting rules are
followed to determine a hypothetical purchase price allocation to assets and liabilities. The residual amount of goodwill that results from this
hypothetical purchase price allocation is compared to the recorded amount of goodwill and the recorded amount is written down to the
hypothetical amount, if lower.

 
Our management must apply judgment in determining the estimated fair value for purposes of performing the goodwill impairment test.

Management uses all available information to make these fair value determinations, including the present value of expected future cash flows
using discount rates commensurate with the risks involved in the assets. The resultant fair values calculated are then compared to observable
metrics for other companies in
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our industry or on mergers and acquisitions in our industry, to determine whether those valuations, in our judgment, appear reasonable.

During the last half of 2014, global oil and natural gas commodity prices, particularly crude oil, decreased significantly. This decrease in
commodity prices has had, and is expected to continue to have, a negative impact on industry drilling and capital expenditure activity, which
affects the demand for a portion of our products and services. The accompanying decrease in the price of our common units during the last half
of 2014 has also resulted in an overall reduction in our market capitalization. As part of our annual internal business outlook that we performed
during the fourth quarter, we considered changes in the global economic environment which affected our common unit price and market
capitalization. As part of the first step of goodwill impairment testing, we updated our assessment of our future cash flows, applying expected
long-term growth rates, discount rates, and terminal values that we consider reasonable. We have calculated a present value of the cash flows
to arrive at an estimate of fair value under the income approach, and then used the market approach to corroborate this value. As a result of
these estimates, we determined that there was no impairment of goodwill as of December 31, 2014. However, because our estimated fair value
exceeded our carrying value by approximately 4%, there is a reasonable possibility that the $233.6 million of goodwill may be impaired in a
future period, and the amount of such impairment may be material. Specific uncertainties affecting our estimated fair value include the impact
of competition, the price of oil and natural gas, future overall activity levels in the regions in which we operate, the activity levels of our
significant customers, and other factors affecting the rate of our future growth. These factors will continue to be reviewed and assessed going
forward. Negative developments with regard to these factors could have a further negative effect on our fair value. We have determined that
there is no impairment of the goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2014 or 2013. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, goodwill totaled $233.6
million and $72.2 million, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
 

We determine impairments of long-lived assets periodically, when indicators of impairment are present. If such indicators are present,
the determination of the amount of impairment is based on our judgments as to the future undiscounted operating cash flows to be generated
from these assets throughout their remaining estimated useful lives. If these undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
related asset, an impairment is recognized for the excess of the carrying value over its fair value.
 
Environmental Liabilities
 

The costs to remediate and monitor environmental matters are accrued when such liabilities are considered probable and a reasonable
estimate of such costs is determinable.

 
Revenue Recognition
 

We recognize revenue using the following criteria: (a) persuasive evidence of an exchange arrangement exists; (b) delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered; (c) the buyer’s price is fixed or determinable; and (d) collectability is reasonably assured. Our
compressor packages and services are provided pursuant to contract terms ranging from two weeks to one month. Monthly agreements are
generally cancellable with 30 days written notice by the customer. Collections associated with progressive billings to customers for the
construction of compression equipment is included in unearned income in the consolidated balance sheets.
 
Operating Costs
 

Operating costs incurred during customer trial periods are expensed as incurred.
 
Income Taxes

 
Our operations are not subject to U.S. federal income tax other than the operations that are conducted through taxable subsidiaries.

We incur state and local income taxes in certain of the United States in which we conduct business. We incur income taxes and are subject to
withholding requirements related to certain of our operations in Latin America, Canada, and other foreign countries in which we operate.
Furthermore, we will also incur Texas Margin Tax, which, in accordance with FASB ASC 740, is classified as an income tax for reporting
purposes.
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Net Income (Loss) per Common and Subordinated Unit
 

The computations of net income (loss) per common and subordinated unit are based on the weighted average number of common and
subordinated units, respectively, outstanding during the applicable period. Our subordinated units meet the definition of a participating security
and therefore we are required to use the two-class method in the computation of earnings per unit. Effective August 18, 2014, all of the
6,273,970 subordinated units were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into common units. See further discussion in Note C -
Related Party Transactions. Basic net income (loss) per common and subordinated unit is determined by dividing net income (loss) allocated to
the common units and subordinated units, respectively, after deducting the amount allocated to CSI Compressco GP Inc. (our "General
Partner") (including any distributions to our General Partner on its incentive distribution rights) by the weighted average number of outstanding
common and subordinated units, respectively, during the period. A reconciliation of the common shares used in the computations of earnings
per common and subordinated unit is presented in Note K – “Earnings per Common and Subordinated Unit.”
 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
 

Certain of our international operations maintain their accounting records in the local currencies that are their functional currencies. For
these operations, the functional currency financial statements are converted to United States dollar equivalents, with the effect of the foreign
currency translation adjustment reflected as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) is included in partners' capital in the accompanying audited consolidated balance sheets and consists of the
cumulative currency translation adjustments associated with such international operations. Activity within accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) during the periods ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 is as follows:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Balance, beginning of year  $ 413  $ 1,004  $ 902
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of taxes of $0 in 2014, $0 in

2013, and $0 in 2012  (3,749)  (591)  102

Balance, end of year  $ (3,336)  $ 413  $ 1,004

Allocation of Net Income
 

Our net income is allocated to partners’ capital accounts in accordance with the provisions of the Partnership Agreement.

Fair Value Measurements
 
Fair value is defined as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date” within an entity’s principal market, if any. The principal market is the market in which the reporting
entity would sell the asset or transfer the liability with the greatest volume and level of activity, regardless of whether it is the market in which
the entity will ultimately transact for a particular asset or liability or if a different market is potentially more advantageous. Accordingly, this exit
price concept may result in a fair value that may differ from the transaction price or market price of the asset or liability.

 
Under generally accepted accounting principles, the fair value hierarchy prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair

value. Fair value measurements should maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs, where possible.
Observable inputs are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs may
be needed to measure fair value in situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date and are
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances, which could include the reporting entity’s own judgments about the
assumptions market participants would utilize in pricing the asset or liability.

We utilize fair value measurements to account for certain items and account balances within our consolidated financial statements. Fair
value measurements are utilized in the allocation of purchase consideration for acquisition transactions to the assets and liabilities acquired,
including intangible assets and goodwill (a Level 3
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fair value measurement). Fair value measurements may also be utilized on a nonrecurring basis, such as for the impairment of long-lived
assets, including goodwill (a Level 3 fair value measurement). The fair value of our financial instruments, which may include cash, temporary
investments, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, and variable-rate long-term debt pursuant to our bank credit agreement, approximate
their carrying amounts. The fair value of our long-term 7.25% Senior Notes at December 31, 2014, was approximately $354.9 million compared
to an aggregate principal amount of $350.0 million as current rates on that date were lower than the stated interest rates on the 7.25% Senior
Notes. We calculate the fair value of our 7.25% Senior Notes internally, using current market conditions and average cost of debt (a level 2 fair
value measurement).

We also utilize fair value measurements on a recurring basis in the accounting for our foreign currency forward sale derivative
contracts. For these fair value measurements, we utilize the quoted value as determined by our counterparty financial institution (a Level 2
measurement). A summary of these fair value measurements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

   Fair Value Measurements Using

Description
Total as of 

Dec 31, 2014  

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets

or Liabilities
(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

(In Thousands)    
Asset for foreign currency derivative contracts $ —  $ —  $ —  $ —

Liability for foreign currency derivative contracts —  —  —  —
$ —    

   Fair Value Measurements Using

Description
Total as of 

Dec 31, 2013  

Quoted Prices
in Active

Markets for
Identical
Assets

or Liabilities
(Level 1)  

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs

(Level 2)  

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

 (In Thousands)       
Asset for foreign currency derivative contracts $ 32  $ —  $ 32  $ —

Liability for foreign currency derivative contracts —  —  —  —
 $ 32       

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") published ASU No. 2013-11, "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax

Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists" (ASU 2013-11). The amendments in
this ASU provide guidance on presentation of unrecognized tax benefits and are expected to reduce diversity in practice and better reflect the
manner in which an entity would settle at the reporting date any additional income taxes that would result from the disallowance of a tax
position when net operating loss carryforwards, similar tax losses, or tax credit carryforwards exist. The amendments in this ASU are effective
prospectively for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption and retrospective application permitted.
The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, "Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plant, and
Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entity," which modifies the
criteria for disposals to quality as discontinued operations and expands related disclosures. The guidance is effective for annual and interim
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2014. Adoption of this amendment will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606). ASU 2014-09 supersedes the
revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance. The core principle of the
guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This guidance is effective for our first
quarter in fiscal 2017 under either full or modified retrospective adoption. Early application is not permitted. We are currently assessing the
potential effects of these changes to our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, “Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern” (Topic 250). The ASU
provides guidance on management's responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an entity's ability to continue as a going
concern and in certain circumstances to provide related footnote disclosures. The ASU is effective for the annual period ending after December
15, 2016, and for annual and interim periods thereafter. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the adoption of this standard to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 
Set forth below are descriptions of certain agreements we entered into with related parties. The descriptions are not complete and are

qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of the agreements, which are filed as exhibits to our filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC").

 
Omnibus Agreement
 
On June 20, 2014, the Partnership, CSI Compressco GP Inc. (the "General Partner"), and TETRA Technologies, Inc. ("TETRA")

entered into a First Amendment to Omnibus Agreement (the "First Amendment"). The First Amendment amended the Omnibus Agreement
previously entered into on June 20, 2011 (as amended, the "Omnibus Agreement") to extend the term thereof. As amended, the Omnibus
Agreement will terminate on the earlier of (i) a change of control of the General Partner or TETRA, or (ii) upon any party providing at least 180
days' prior written notice of termination.

Under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, our General Partner provides all personnel and services reasonably necessary to manage
our operations and conduct our business (other than in Mexico, Canada, and Argentina), and certain of TETRA’s Latin American-based
subsidiaries provide personnel and services necessary for the conduct of certain of our Latin American-based businesses. In addition, under
the Omnibus Agreement, TETRA provides certain corporate and general and administrative services as requested by our General Partner,
including, without limitation, legal, accounting and financial reporting, treasury, insurance administration, claims processing and risk
management, health, safety and environmental, information technology, human resources, credit, payroll, internal audit, and tax services.
Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, we reimburse our General Partner and TETRA for services they provide to us. For the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, we were charged by TETRA $55.3 million, $39.1 million, and $37.9 million, respectively, for expenses
incurred on our behalf as described below. Amounts charged under the Omnibus Agreement and outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and
2013 are included in Amounts Payable to Affiliates in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA may, but neither are under any obligation to, perform for the other such
production enhancement or other oilfield services on a subcontract basis as are needed or desired by the other, for such periods of time and in
such amounts as may be mutually agreed upon by TETRA and our General Partner. Any such services are required to be performed on terms
that are (i) approved by the conflicts committee of our General Partner’s board of directors, (ii) no less favorable to us than those generally
being provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our General Partner, or (iii) fair and reasonable to us, taking
into account the totality of the relationships between TETRA and us (including other transactions that may be particularly favorable or
advantageous to us), as determined by our General Partner.

 
Under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, we or TETRA may, but are under no obligation to, sell, lease or exchange on a like-kind

basis to the other such production enhancement or other oilfield services equipment as is needed or desired to meet either of our production
enhancement or other oilfield services obligations, in such amounts, upon such conditions and for such periods of time, if applicable, as may be
mutually agreed upon by TETRA and our General Partner. Any such sales, leases, or like-kind exchanges are required to be on terms that are
(i) approved by the conflicts committee of our General Partner’s board of directors, (ii) no less favorable to us
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than those generally being provided to or available from non-affiliated third parties, as determined by our General Partner, or (iii) fair and
reasonable to us, taking into account the totality of the relationships between TETRA and us (including other transactions that may be
particularly favorable or advantageous to us), as determined by our General Partner. In addition, unless otherwise approved by the conflicts
committee of our General Partner’s board of directors, TETRA may purchase newly fabricated equipment from us at a negotiated price,
provided that such price may not be less than the sum of the total costs (other than any allocations of general and administrative expenses)
incurred by us in fabricating such equipment plus a fixed margin percentage thereof, and TETRA may purchase from us previously fabricated
equipment for a price that is not less than the sum of the net book value of such equipment plus a fixed margin percentage thereof.

 
In addition to the Omnibus Agreement, we have entered into other operational agreements with TETRA.

TETRA and General Partner Ownership

As discussed in Note D - Acquisition, to finance a portion of the $825.0 million CSI Acquisition purchase price, we completed a
common unit offering (the "Common Unit Issuance") in which we sold 15,280,000 additional common units for net proceeds of $346.0 million.
TETRA, through a subsidiary of our General Partner, purchased 1,390,290 of the common units issued in the Common Unit Issuance of
15,280,000 common units for approximately $32.7 million. In addition, in connection with our Common Unit Issuance, our General Partner
made a $7.3 million capital contribution in order to maintain its approximate 2% general partnership interest in us. Following the August 11,
2014, exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase 2,292,000 additional common units, our General Partner made an additional $1.1
million capital contribution in order to maintain its approximate 2% general partnership interest in us.

Prior to the Common Unit Issuance and other transactions described above, TETRA's ownership in us was approximately 82% through
its aggregate ownership of common units, subordinated units and indirect general partner interest plus incentive distribution rights. Common
units held by the public represented an approximately 18% ownership in us prior to the above transactions. However, following the CSI
Acquisition, the completion of our Common Unit Issuance, and the underwriters' exercise of their option to purchase additional common units,
TETRA's ownership interest in us is approximately 44% and the common units held by the public represent an approximate 56% interest in us.
TETRA's ownership is through its wholly owned subsidiaries and consists of approximately 42% of the limited partner interests plus the
approximately 2% general partner interest, through which it holds incentive distribution rights.

On July 11, 2014, the Board confirmed that the conditions set forth in the definition of the Subordination Period contained in our
Partnership Agreement would be met upon the payment of the August 15, 2014 cash distribution. As a result, effective August 18, 2014, the
6,273,970 subordinated units held by TETRA and its affiliates converted on a one-for-one basis into common units. As a result of the
conversion of these subordinated units which were issued in connection with our June 2011 Initial Public Offering, no subordinated units are
outstanding and our common units will no longer be entitled to arrearages in cash distributions. The conversion of our subordinated units does
not impact the amount of cash distributions we pay or the total number of our outstanding units.

Indemnification Agreement
 
Each of our directors and officers entered into an indemnification agreement with regard to their services as a director or officer, in

order to enhance the indemnification rights provided under Delaware law and our Partnership Agreement. The individual indemnification
agreements provide each such director or officer with the right to receive his or her costs of defense if he or she is made a party or witness to
any proceeding other than a proceeding brought by or in the right of us, provided that such director or officer has not acted in bad faith or
engaged in fraud with respect to the action that gave rise to his or her participation in the proceeding.
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NOTE D— ACQUISTION

Acquisition of Compressor Systems, Inc.

On August 4, 2014, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement dated July 20, 2014, one of our subsidiaries acquired all of the
outstanding capital stock of CSI for $825.0 million cash (the "CSI Acquisition"). CSI owns one of the largest fleets of natural gas compressor
packages in the United States. Headquartered in Midland, Texas, CSI fabricates, sells, and maintains natural gas compressors and provides a
full range of compression products and services that covers compression needs throughout the entire natural gas production and transportation
cycle to natural gas and oil producing clients. CSI derives revenues through three primary business lines: service operations, equipment sales,
and aftermarket services. Strategically, the acquisition is expected to afford us the opportunity to capture significant synergies associated with
our product and service offerings and our fabrication operations, further penetrate new and existing markets, and to achieve administrative
efficiencies and other strategic benefits.

The CSI Acquisition purchase price was funded from (i) the issuance of 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 in the aggregate principal
amount of $350.0 million by us and one of our subsidiaries, CSI Compressco Finance Inc. (the "7.25% Senior Notes"), resulting in net proceeds
of $337.8 million ($350.0 million aggregate principal amount), (ii) the Common Unit Issuance of 15,280,000 common units (the "New Units"), at
the public offering price of $23.50 per common unit (the "Offering Price"), in an underwritten public offering resulting in the net proceeds of
$346.0 million ($359.1 million gross proceeds less commissions), and (iii) a portion of $210.0 million borrowed under our new $400.0 million
bank revolving credit facility (the "New Credit Agreement").

In connection with the Common Unit Issuance, we granted an option to the underwriters (subject to certain terms and conditions as set
forth in the Underwriting Agreement) to purchase up to 2,292,000 common units at the Offering Price, less the underwriting discount. On
August 11, 2014, the underwriters exercised their option and purchased all 2,292,000 additional common units resulting in additional net
proceeds of $51.7 million ($53.9 million gross proceeds less underwriting discount). We used these additional net proceeds to repay a portion
of the amount outstanding under the New Credit Agreement.
    

Following the underwriters' purchase of the 2,292,000 additional units, the total amount of New Units issued is 17,572,000. A subsidiary
of our General Partner purchased 1,390,290 of the New Units. Additionally, our General Partner contributed approximately $7.3 million
following the issuance of the New Units and subsequently contributed approximately $1.1 million following the issuance of the additional
common units upon the exercise of the underwriters' option in order to maintain its approximately 2% general partner interest in the
Partnership.

Our preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the estimated fair value of the CSI net assets is as follows (in thousands):

Current assets $ 101,108
Property, plant, and equipment 571,264
Intangible assets 66,800
Goodwill 161,462

Total assets acquired $ 900,634

Current liabilities $ 75,634

Total liabilities assumed 75,634

Net assets acquired $ 825,000

The allocation of purchase price to CSI's net assets and liabilities as of August 4, 2014 is preliminary and subject to the potential
identification of additional assets and contingencies or revisions to the fair value calculations. The final purchase price allocation could differ
materially from the preliminary allocation above. Actual purchase price allocation amounts will be disclosed in subsequent filings. The
preliminary allocation of purchase price includes approximately $161.5 million allocated to deductible goodwill recorded, and is supported by
the strategic benefits discussed above that are expected to be generated from the acquisition. The acquired property, plant, and equipment is
stated at fair value, and depreciation on the acquired property, plant, and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of each asset. Buildings are depreciated
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using useful lives of 15 to 30 years. Machinery and equipment is depreciated using useful lives of 2 to 16 years. Automobiles and trucks are
depreciated using useful lives of 3 to 4 years. The acquired intangible assets represent approximately $32.4 million for the trademarks/trade
names, approximately $22.1 million for customer relationships, and approximately $12.3 million of other intangible assets that are stated at
estimated fair value and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 15 years. These intangible
assets are recorded net of approximately $3.8 million of accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our revenues, depreciation and amortization, and pretax earnings, excluding interest
allocation, included $152.5 million, $25.2 million, and $15.8 million, respectively, associated with the acquisition of CSI after the closing on
August 4, 2014. In addition, CSI Acquisition-related costs of approximately $5.5 million were incurred during the year ended December 31,
2014 related to external legal fees, transaction consulting fees, and due diligence costs. These costs have been recognized in selling, general,
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations. Approximately $16.6 million of deferred financing costs were incurred
and included in Other Assets as of December 31, 2014, and will be amortized over the term of the related debt. An additional $6.8 million of
interim financing costs were incurred and reflected in other expense during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Pro Forma Financial Information (Unaudited)

The pro forma information presented below has been prepared to give effect to the CSI Acquisition as if the transaction had occurred at
the beginning of the periods presented. The pro forma information includes the impact of the preliminary allocation of the purchase price for the
CSI Acquisition on revenues, depreciation and amortization, and net income. The pro forma information also excludes the impact of the CSI
transaction and financing costs charged to earnings during the 2014 periods. The pro forma information is presented for illustrative purposes
only and is based on estimates and assumptions we deemed appropriate. The following pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of
the historical results that would have been achieved if the acquisition had occurred in the past, and our operating results may have been
different from those reflected in the pro forma information below. Therefore, the pro forma information should not be relied upon as an
indication of the operating results that we would have achieved if the transaction had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented or the
future results that we will achieve after the transactions.

 Year Ended December 31,
 2014  2013
 (In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Revenues $ 490,545  $ 452,800

Depreciation and amortization 84,849  72,363

Net income 13,624  19,568

    
Per share information:    
Net income per common unit:    

Basic $ 0.54  $ 0.58

Diluted $ 0.53  $ 0.58

    
Net income per subordinated unit:    

Basic and diluted $ 0.54  $ 0.58
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NOTE E — LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER BORROWINGS
 

Long-term debt consists of the following:

    December 31,
    2014  2013
  Scheduled Maturity  (In Thousands)

Previous Credit Agreement  October 15, 2017  $ —  $ 29,959

New Credit Agreement  August 4, 2019  195,000  —
7.25% Senior Notes (presented net of the
unamortized discount of $5.0 million as of December
31, 2014)  August 15, 2022  344,961  —

Total debt   539,961  29,959

Less current portion    —  —

Total long-term debt    $ 539,961  $ 29,959

7.25% Senior Notes
    
On July 29, 2014, we and one of our indirect wholly owned subsidiaries, CSI Compressco Finance Inc., a Delaware corporation (we,

together with CSI Compressco Finance, the "Issuers"), and the guarantors named therein (the "Guarantors" and, together with the Issuers, the
"Obligors"), entered into the Note Purchase Agreement (the "Note Purchase Agreement") with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated on behalf of the initial purchasers named therein (collectively, the "Initial Purchasers") related to the issuance and sale by the
Issuers to the Initial Purchasers of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Issuers’ 7.25% Senior Notes due 2022 (the "7.25% Senior
Notes") in a private offering (the "Offering") exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"). The Note Purchase Agreement contains customary representations and warranties of the parties thereto and indemnification
and contribution provisions under which the Obligors and the Initial Purchasers have agreed to indemnify each other against certain liabilities,
including liabilities under the Securities Act.

The Issuers closed the Offering on August 4, 2014. We used the net proceeds of the Offering of approximately $337.8 million
(consisting of $350.0 million aggregate principal amount net of a $5.2 million discount and certain fees and offering expenses) to fund a portion
of the $825.0 million cash purchase price for the CSI Acquisition, to pay certain acquisition expenses and to repay a portion of outstanding
borrowings under our previous Credit Agreement dated October 15, 2013. The Issuers' obligations under the 7.25% Senior Notes are jointly
and severally, and fully and unconditionally, guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis initially by each of our domestic restricted subsidiaries
(other than CSI Compressco Finance) that guarantee our other indebtedness. The 7.25% Senior Notes and the subsidiary guarantees thereof
(together, the "Securities") were issued pursuant to an indenture described below. During the year ended December 31, 2014, we incurred
financing costs of approximately $9.6 million related to the 7.25% Senior Notes. These costs are included in Other Assets and are being
amortized to Other Expense over the term of the 7.25% Senior Notes. The $5.2 million discount is being amortized using the effective interest
method at an interest rate of 7.50% over the term of the 7.25% Senior Notes. Approximately $0.2 million of discount amortization expense was
recognized in Other Expense during the year ended December 31, 2014.

Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, CSI and any domestic subsidiaries of CSI required to guarantee the 7.25% Senior Notes
pursuant to the indenture governing the 7.25% Senior Notes were joined as parties to the Note Purchase Agreement pursuant to a purchase
agreement joinder, dated August 4, 2014.

The Obligors issued the Securities pursuant to the Indenture dated as of August 4, 2014 (the "Indenture") by and among the Obligors
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the "Trustee"). The 7.25% Senior Notes accrue interest at a rate of 7.25% per annum. Interest
on the 7.25% Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, beginning February 15, 2015. The
7.25% Senior Notes are scheduled to mature on August 15, 2022.

On and after August 15, 2017, we may on one or more occasions redeem the 7.25% Senior Notes, in whole or in part, upon not less
than 30-days’ nor more than 60-days’ prior notice, at the following redemption prices
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(expressed as a percentage of principal amount), plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages thereon, if any, to the applicable
redemption date, subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest payment
date, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on August 15 of the years indicated below:

Date  Price
2017  105.438%

2018  103.625%

2019  101.813%

2020 and after  100.000%

In addition, at any time or from time to time before August 15, 2017, we may redeem all or a part of the 7.25% Senior Notes at a
redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes redeemed, plus an applicable "make whole" prepayment
premium and interest up to the redemption date.

Prior to August 15, 2017, we may, on one or more occasions, redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes
with an amount of cash not greater than the amount of the net cash proceeds from one or more equity offerings at a redemption price equal to
107.250% of the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any,
to the date of redemption, subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the relevant interest
payment date, as long as (a) at least 65% of the aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes originally issued on the issue date
(excluding notes held by us and our subsidiaries) remains outstanding after such redemption; and (b) the redemption occurs within 180 days
after the date of the closing of the equity offering.

The Indenture contains customary covenants restricting our ability and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to: (i) pay dividends and
make certain distributions, investments and other restricted payments; (ii) incur additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred shares; (iii)
create certain liens; (iv) sell assets; (v) merge, consolidate, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our or their assets; (vi) enter
into transactions with affiliates; and (vii) designate our or their subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries under the Indenture. There are no
significant restrictions upon the ability of the Issuers or the Guarantors to obtain funds from their respective subsidiaries by dividend or loan.
None of the assets of the Guarantors represent restricted net assets pursuant to Rule 4-08(e)(3) of Regulation S-X under the Securities Act.
These covenants are subject to a number of important limitations and exceptions, including certain provisions permitting us, subject to the
satisfaction of certain conditions, to transfer assets to certain of our unrestricted subsidiaries. Moreover, if the 7.25% Senior Notes receive an
investment grade rating from at least two rating agencies and no default has occurred and is continuing under the Indenture, many of the
restrictive covenants in the Indenture will be terminated. The Indenture also contains customary events of default and acceleration provisions
relating to such events of default, which provide that upon an event of default under the Indenture, the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% in
aggregate principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes then outstanding may declare all amounts owing under the 7.25% Senior Notes to be
due and payable. We are in compliance with all covenants and conditions of the Indenture as of December 31, 2014.

 
The offer and sale of the Securities were not registered under the Securities Act or applicable state securities laws, and the Securities

may not be offered or sold in the U.S. absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
and applicable state laws. In connection with the Offering of the 7.25% Senior Notes, the Obligors entered into the Registration Rights
Agreement dated as of August 4, 2014 (the "Registration Rights Agreement") with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, as
representative of the Initial Purchasers, obligating the Obligors to use commercially reasonable efforts to file a registration statement with the
SEC registering an exchange offer by the Obligors that would allow holders of the Securities to exchange their restricted Securities for
registered freely tradable notes and guarantees having substantially the same terms as the Securities and evidencing the same indebtedness
as the restricted Securities. Under certain circumstances, in lieu of a registered exchange offer, the Obligors must use commercially reasonable
efforts to file a shelf registration statement for the resale of the Securities. If, among other things, such exchange offer registration statement is
not declared effective by the SEC on or prior to 365 days after the closing of the Offering, or the exchange offer has not been consummated
within 30 business days following the expiration of the 365-day period following the closing of the Offering to have an exchange offer
registration statement declared effective by the SEC, the Obligors will be required to pay to the holders of the 7.25% Senior Notes liquidated
damages in an amount equal to 0.25% per annum on the principal amount of the 7.25% Senior Notes held by such
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holder during the 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of such registration default, and if such registration default is not cured,
such amount of liquidated damages shall increase by 0.25% per annum at the end of such 90-day period, such that the maximum amount of
liquidated damages for all registration defaults would be one-half of one percent (0.5%) per annum.

Bank Credit Facilities

On October 15, 2013, we entered into an asset-based revolving credit facility with a syndicate of lenders including JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A. as administrative agent (the "Credit Agreement"). Under this Credit Agreement, we, along with certain of our subsidiaries, were
named as borrowers, and all obligations under the Credit Agreement were guaranteed by all of our existing and future, direct and indirect,
domestic subsidiaries. The Credit Agreement included a maximum credit commitment of $100.0 million that was available for letters of credit
(with a sublimit of $20.0 million) and included an uncommitted $30.0 million expansion feature.

On August 4, 2014, in connection with the CSI Acquisition, we entered into the New Credit Agreement, and borrowed $210.0 million,
which was used to fund, in part, the $825.0 million purchase price of the CSI Acquisition. In addition, the New Credit Agreement borrowings
were also used to pay fees and expenses related to the CSI Acquisition, the 7.25% Senior Notes offering, and the New Credit Agreement and
to repay the $38.1 million balance outstanding under our previous Credit Agreement dated October 15, 2013, which was then terminated. As a
result, approximately $0.8 million of unamortized deferred financing costs associated with that terminated Credit Agreement was charged to
earnings and reflected in interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2014. Under the New Credit Agreement, we and our
subsidiary, CSI Compressco Sub Inc., were named as the borrowers, and all obligations under the New Credit Agreement are guaranteed by
all of our existing and future, direct and indirect, domestic restricted subsidiaries, other than domestic subsidiaries that are wholly owned by
foreign subsidiaries. The New Credit Agreement includes a maximum credit commitment of $400.0 million, and included within such amount is
availability for letters of credit (with a sublimit of $20.0 million) and swingline loans (with a sublimit of $60.0 million). During the year ended
December 31, 2014, we incurred financing costs of approximately $7.0 million related to the New Credit Agreement. These costs are included
in Other Assets and are being amortized to Other Expense over the term of the New Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2014, we had a
balance outstanding of $195.0 million, have approximately $7.1 million letters of credit and performance bonds, and have availability under the
New Credit Agreement of approximately $197.9 million.

On August 11, 2014, the underwriters exercised their option and purchased 2,292,000 additional common units at the Offering Price
resulting in additional net proceeds of $51.7 million ($53.9 million gross proceeds less underwriting discount). Following the receipt of proceeds
from this option exercise, approximately $55.0 million of the outstanding balance under the New Credit Agreement was repaid.

The New Credit Agreement is available to provide our working capital needs, letters of credit, and for general partnership purposes,
including capital expenditures and potential future expansions or acquisitions. So long as we are not in default thereunder, the New Credit
Agreement can also be used to fund our quarterly distributions at the option of the board of directors of our General Partner (provided that after
giving effect to such distributions, the borrowers will be in compliance with the financial covenants). Borrowings under the New Credit
Agreement are subject to the satisfaction of customary conditions, including the absence of a default. The maturity date of the New Credit
Agreement is August 4, 2019.

Borrowings under the New Credit Agreement bear interest at a rate per annum equal to, at our option, either (a) LIBOR (adjusted to
reflect any required bank reserves) for an interest period equal to one, two, three, or six months (as selected by us), plus a leverage-based
margin or (b) a base rate plus a leverage-based margin; such base rate shall be determined by reference to the highest of (1) the prime rate of
interest per annum announced from time to time by Bank of America, N.A. (2) the Federal Funds rate plus 0.50% per annum and (3) LIBOR
(adjusted to reflect any required bank reserves) for a one month interest period on such day plus 1.00% per annum. Initially, from the closing
date until the delivery of the financial statements for the first full fiscal quarter after closing, LIBOR based loans will have an applicable margin
of 2.75% per annum, and base rate loans will have an applicable margin of 1.75% per annum; thereafter, the applicable margin will range
between 1.75% and 2.50% per annum for LIBOR based loans and 0.75% and 1.50% per annum for base rate loans based on our consolidated
total leverage ratio when financial statements are delivered. The weighted average interest rate on borrowings outstanding as of December 31,
2014 was 3.109% per annum. In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the New Credit Agreement, we are required to pay a
commitment fee in respect of the unutilized commitments thereunder initially at the rate of 0.50% per annum until the delivery of the financial
statements for the

F-19



first full quarter after the closing date and thereafter at the applicable rate ranging from 0.375% to 0.50% per annum, paid quarterly in arrears
based on our consolidated total leverage ratio. We are required to pay a customary letter of credit fee equal to the applicable margin on
revolving credit LIBOR loans, fronting fees and other fees agreed to with the administrative agent and lenders.

The New Credit Agreement requires us to maintain (i) a minimum consolidated interest coverage ratio (ratio of consolidated earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization ("EBITDA") to consolidated interest charges) of 3.0 to 1.0, (ii) a maximum consolidated
total leverage ratio (ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA) of 5.5 to 1.0 (with step downs to 5.0 to 1.0), and (iii) a
maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio (consolidated secured indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA) of 4.0 to 1.0, in each case, as of
the last day of each fiscal quarter, calculated on a trailing four quarters basis. In addition, the New Credit Agreement includes customary
negative covenants that, among other things, limit our ability to incur additional debt, incur, or permit certain liens to exist, or make certain
loans, investments, acquisitions, or other restricted payments. The New Credit Agreement provides that we can make distributions to holders of
our common and subordinated units, but only if there is no default or event of default under the facility. We are in compliance with all covenants
and conditions of the New Credit Agreement as of December 31, 2014.

All obligations under the New Credit Agreement and the guarantees of those obligations are secured, subject to certain exceptions, by
a first lien security interest in substantially all of our assets and the assets of our existing and future domestic subsidiaries, and all of the capital
stock of our existing and future subsidiaries (limited in the case of foreign subsidiaries, to 65% of the voting stock of first tier foreign
subsidiaries).

NOTE F — LEASES
 

We lease some of our office space, warehouse space, operating locations, and machinery and equipment. The office, warehouse, and
operating location leases, which vary from one to five year terms that expire at various dates through 2020 and are renewable for three and five
year periods on similar terms, are classified as operating leases and generally require us to pay all maintenance and insurance costs. We have
no leases which qualify as capital leases.
 

Future minimum lease payments by year and in the aggregate, under operating leases with terms of one year or more, consist of the
following at December 31, 2014: 

 Operating Leases
 (In Thousands)

2015 $ 1,862
2016 828
2017 307
2018 126
2019 —
After 2018 —

Total minimum lease payments $ 3,123

Rental expense for all operating leases was $5.1 million, $2.6 million, and $2.3 million in 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

NOTE G — INCOME TAXES
 

As a partnership, we are generally not subject to income taxes at the entity level because our income is included in the tax returns of
our partners. Our operations are treated as a partnership for federal tax purposes with each partner being separately taxed on its share of
taxable income. However, a portion of our business is conducted through taxable U.S. corporate subsidiaries. Accordingly, a U.S. federal and
state income tax provision has been reflected in the accompanying statements of operations. We have a tax sharing agreement with TETRA
with respect to the Texas franchise tax liability. The resulting state tax expense is included in the provision for income taxes. Certain of our
operations are located outside of the U.S., and the Partnership is responsible for income taxes in these countries.
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The income tax provision attributable to our operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 consists of the
following:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Current       

Federal  $ (50)  $ 846  $ 420

State  172  150  157

Foreign  2,220  1,528  846

  2,342  2,524  1,423

Deferred       

Federal  (2,764)  (438)  471

State  (122)  (49)  28

Foreign  (628)  221  1,431

  (3,514)  (266)  1,930

Total tax provision (benefit)  $ (1,172)  $ 2,258  $ 3,353

 
A reconciliation of the provision for income taxes attributable to continuing operations, computed by applying the federal statutory rate

for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 to income before income taxes and the reported income taxes, is as follows: 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Income tax provision computed at statutory federal income tax rates  $ 3,429  $ 6,939  $ 6,889

Partnership earnings  (3,429)  (6,939)  (6,889)

Corporate subsidiary earnings (loss) subject to federal tax  (2,917)  405  924

Income tax expense attributable to foreign earnings  1,592  1,749  2,277

State income taxes (net of federal benefit)  97  89  132

Nondeductible expenses  56  15  20

Total tax provision (benefit)  $ (1,172)  $ 2,258  $ 3,353

Income before income tax provision includes the following components: 

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Domestic  $ 2,578  $ 9,883  $ 8,333

International  7,507  9,942  11,351

Total  $ 10,085  $ 19,825  $ 19,684

 
We file U.S. federal, state, and foreign income tax returns on behalf of all of our consolidated subsidiaries. With few exceptions, we are

not subject to U.S. federal, state, local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to 2007. We file tax returns in the
U.S. and in various state, local and non-U.S. jurisdictions. The following table summarizes the earliest tax years that remain subject to
examination by taxing authorities in any major jurisdiction in which we operate:

Jurisdiction Earliest Open Tax Period
United States – Federal 2011
United States – State and Local 2011
Non-U.S. jurisdictions 2008
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We use the liability method for reporting income taxes, under which current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in

accordance with enacted tax laws and rates. Under this method, at the end of each period, the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are determined using the tax rate expected to be in effect when the taxes are actually paid or recovered. We will establish a valuation
allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. While we consider future taxable income and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance, there
can be no guarantee that we will be able to realize all of our deferred tax assets. Significant components of our deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

 
Deferred Tax Assets

  December 31,
  2014  2013
  (In Thousands)

Accruals  $ 1,132  $ 4

Net operating losses  8,903  1,229

Bad debt reserve  374  64

Total deferred tax assets  10,409  1,297

Valuation allowance  (2,217)  —

Net deferred tax assets  $ 8,192  $ 1,297

 
Deferred Tax Liabilities

  December 31,
  2014  2013
  (In Thousands)

Accruals  $ 1,117  $ 2,332

Excess book over tax basis in property, plant, and equipment  7,416  4,553

All other  976  29

Total deferred tax liability  9,509  6,914

Net deferred tax liability  $ 1,317  $ 5,617

At December 31, 2014, we have approximately $8.9 million of federal, foreign, and state net operating loss carryforwards/carrybacks.
In those foreign jurisdictions and states in which net operating losses are subject to an expiration period, our loss carryforwards, if not utilized,
will expire from 2019 to 2034.
 

 
The increase in the valuation allowance during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $2.2 million, $0 million, and

$0 million, respectively. We believe it is more likely than not we will not realize all the tax benefits of our deferred tax assets. Therefore, an
appropriate valuation allowance has been provided. The change in the valuation allowance during 2014 primarily relates to the net deferred tax
assets of the foreign subsidiaries acquired as part of the CSI Acquisition. These net deferred tax assets and associated valuation allowances
were accounted for in connection with the purchase price allocation.

ASC 740 provides guidance on measurement and recognition in accounting for income tax uncertainties and provides related guidance
on derecognition, classification, disclosure, interest, and penalties. As of December 31, 2014, the Partnership had no material unrecognized tax
benefits (as defined in ASC 740-10). We do not expect to incur interest charges or penalties related to our tax positions, but if such charges or
penalties are incurred, our policy is to account for interest charges as interest expense and penalties as tax expense in the consolidated
statements of operations.

NOTE H — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

From time to time, we are involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business. While
the outcome of these lawsuits or other proceedings against us cannot be predicted with
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certainty, management does not consider it reasonably possible that a loss resulting from such lawsuits or proceedings in excess of any
amounts accrued has been incurred that is expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash
flows.

NOTE I — EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION
 
2011 Long Term Incentive Plan
 

During 2014, we granted restricted unit, phantom unit and performance phantom unit awards to certain employees, officers, and
directors of our general partner pursuant to the CSI Compressco LP Amended and Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan. Awards of
restricted units and phantom units generally vest over a three year period. Awards of performance phantom units cliff vest at the end of a
performance period and are settled based on achievement of related performance measures over the performance period. Each of the
phantom unit and performance phantom unit awards includes distribution equivalent rights that enable the recipient to receive additional units
equal in value to the accumulated cash distributions made on the units subject to the award from the date of grant. Accumulated distributions
associated with each underlying unit are payable upon settlement of the related phantom unit award (and are forfeited if the related award is
forfeited). Restricted units are common units subject to time-based vesting restrictions. Phantom units are notional units that entitle the grantee
to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the award.
 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, we granted to certain officers and employees an aggregate of 208,671 phantom unit and
performance phantom unit awards, having an average market value (equal to the closing price of the common units on the dates of grant) of
$22.89 per unit, or an aggregate market value of $4.8 million. During the year ended December 31, 2013, we granted to certain officers and
employees 97,713 restricted unit awards, having an average market value (equal to the closing price of the common units on the dates of
grant) of $20.29 per unit, or an aggregate market value of $2.0 million. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we granted to certain
officers and employees 94,728 restricted common unit awards, having an average market value (equal to the closing price of the common units
on the dates of grant) of $13.68 per unit, or an aggregate market value of $1.3 million. The fair value of awards vesting during 2014, 2013, and
2012 was approximately $1.3 million, $1.3 million, and $1.2 million, respectively. The fair value of awards is amortized straight-line over the
vesting period.

 
The following is a summary of restricted and phantom unit activity for the year ended December 31, 2014:

  Units  

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair
Value Per Unit

  (In Thousands)   
Nonvested units outstanding at December 31, 2013  155  $ 17.52

Units granted(1)  209  22.89

Units cancelled  (21)  18.97

Units vested  (74)  18.27

Adjustment for performance results achieved  (6)  24.00

Nonvested units outstanding at December 31, 2014  263  $ 21.90

 (1) The number of units granted shown above includes 93,630 performance-based phantom units, which represents the maximum number of common units that would be issued
if the maximum level of performance under the awards is achieved. The number of units actually issued under the awards may range from zero to 93,630.

Total estimated unrecognized equity-based compensation expense from unvested common units as of December 31, 2014, was
approximately $2.9 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.7 years. The amount
recognized in 2014, 2013, and 2012 was approximately $1.5 million, $1.5 million, and $1.9 million, respectively.
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NOTE J – MARKET RISKS AND DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

We are exposed to financial and market risks that affect our businesses. We have currency exchange rate risk exposure related to
transactions denominated in foreign currencies as well as to investments in certain of our international operations. As a result of our variable
rate bank credit facility, we face market risk exposure related to changes in applicable interest rates. We have concentrations of credit risk as a
result of trade receivables owed to us by companies in the energy industry. Our financial risk management activities may at times involve,
among other measures, the use of derivative financial instruments, such as swap and collar agreements, to hedge the impact of market price
risk exposures. We formally document our risk management objectives and our strategies for undertaking various derivative transactions.

 
Foreign Currency Derivative Contracts

 
In October 2013, we began entering into 30-day foreign currency forward derivative contracts as part of a program designed to mitigate

the currency exchange rate risk exposure on selected transactions of certain foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we had
the following foreign currency derivative contract outstanding relating to a portion of our foreign operations:

  December 31, 2014
Derivative Contracts

 
US Dollar Notional

Amount  Traded Exchange Rate  
Settlement

Date
 (In Thousands)   

Forward purchase Canadian dollar  $ 1,150  1.16  1/16/2015

  December 31, 2013
Derivative Contracts

 
US Dollar Notional

Amount  Traded Exchange Rate  
Settlement

Date
  (In Thousands)     
Forward sale Mexican pesos  $ 10,332  13.01  1/17/2014

Under this program, we may enter into similar derivative contracts from time to time. Although contracts pursuant to this program will
serve as an economic hedge of the cash flow of our currency exchange risk exposure, they will not be formally designated as hedge contracts
or qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Accordingly, any change in the fair value of these derivative instruments during a period will be
included in the determination of earnings for that period.

The fair value of foreign currency derivative instruments are based on quoted market values as reported to us by our counterparty (a
Level 2 measurement). The fair value of our foreign currency derivative instruments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, is as follows:

Foreign currency derivative instruments

 Balance Sheet Location  
Fair Value at

December 31, 2014  

Fair Value at
December 31, 2013

  (In Thousands)

Forward purchase contracts  Current assets  $ —  32

 Current liabilities  —  —

Total   $ —  32

None of the foreign currency derivative contracts contain credit risk related contingent features that would require us to post assets or
collateral for contracts that are classified as liabilities. During the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, we recognized approximately
$3,000 and $92,000, respectively, of net gains associated with our foreign currency derivative program, and such amount is included in Other
Expense, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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NOTE K — EARNINGS PER COMMON AND SUBORDINATED UNIT
 

The computations of earnings per common and subordinated unit are based on the weighted average number of common and
subordinated units, respectively, outstanding during the applicable full-year period. Our subordinated units meet the definition of a participating
security and therefore we are required to use the two-class method in the computation of earnings per unit. Effective August 18, 2014, all of the
6,273,970 subordinated units were automatically converted on a one-for-one basis into common units. Basic earnings per common and
subordinated unit are determined by dividing net income allocated to the common units and subordinated units, respectively, after deducting
the amount allocated to our General Partner (including distributions to our General Partner on its incentive distribution rights), by the weighted
average number of outstanding common and subordinated units, respectively, during the period.
 

When computing earnings per common and subordinated unit under the two-class method in periods when distributions are greater
than earnings, the amount of the distributions is deducted from net income and allocated to our general partner (including incentive distribution
rights, if any) for the period to which the calculation relates. The excess of distributions over earnings is allocated between the General Partner,
common and subordinated units based on how our partnership agreement allocates net losses.
 

When earnings are greater than distributions, we determine cash distributions based on available cash and determine the actual
incentive distributions allocable to our General Partner based on actual distributions. When computing earnings per common and subordinated
unit, the amount of the assumed incentive distribution rights, if any, is deducted from net income and allocated to our General Partner for the
period to which the calculation relates. The remaining amount of net income, after deducting the assumed incentive distribution rights, is
allocated between the general partner, common and subordinated units based on how our Partnership Agreement allocates net earnings.
 

The following is a reconciliation of the weighted average number of common and subordinated units outstanding to the number of
common and subordinated units used in the computations of net income per common and subordinated unit.

  Year Ended December 31,

  2014  2013  2012

  
Common

Units  
Subordinated

Units  
Common

Units
Subordinated

Units  
Common

Units  
Subordinated

Units
Number of weighted average units

outstanding  18,928,640  3,953,461  9,230,876  6,273,970  9,163,798  6,273,970

Unit awards outstanding  —  —  74,190  —  29,609  —

Average diluted units outstanding  18,928,640  3,953,461  9,305,066  6,273,970  9,193,407  6,273,970

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the average diluted units outstanding excludes the impact of 114,026 of unit awards
outstanding, as the inclusion of these units would have been antidilutive.

NOTE L – SEGMENTS

ASC 280-10-50, “Operating Segments”, defines the characteristics of an operating segment as (i) being engaged in business activity
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, (ii) being reviewed by the company's chief operating decision maker ("CODM") to make
decisions about resources to be allocated and to assess its performance, and (iii) having discrete financial information. Although management
of our General Partner reviews our products and services to analyze the nature of our revenue, other financial information, such as certain
costs and expenses, net income, and EBITDA are not captured or analyzed by these items. Therefore discrete financial information is not
available by product line and our CODM does not make resource allocation decisions or assess the performance of the business based on
these items, but rather in the aggregate. Based on this, our General Partner believes that we operate in one business segment. 
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NOTE M — GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
 
 

We are domiciled in the United States of America, with operations in Latin America, Canada, and to a lesser extent, in other countries
located in Europe and the Asia-Pacific region. We attribute revenue to the countries based on the location of customers. Long-lived assets
consist primarily of compressor packages and are attributed to the countries based on the physical location of the compressor packages at a
given year-end. Information by geographic area is as follows:

  Year Ended December 31,
  2014  2013  2012
  (In Thousands)

Revenues from external customers:       

U.S.  $ 228,044  $ 73,388  $ 65,010

Latin America  40,372  34,556  33,430

Canada  6,860  5,549  3,950

Other  7,371  7,808  6,192

Total  $ 282,647  $ 121,301  $ 108,582

Identifiable assets:       

U.S.  $ 1,171,540  $ 176,638  $ 170,584

Latin America  51,036  38,426  37,611

Canada  5,915  6,650  5,942

Other  4,173  3,395  3,649

Total identifiable assets  $ 1,232,664  $ 225,109  $ 217,786

NOTE N — SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In connection with the Offering of 7.25% Senior Notes described in Note E - Long-Term Debt and Other Borrowings, each of the
following current domestic restricted subsidiaries (each a 100% owned subsidiary; together, the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”), have agreed to fully
and unconditionally on a joint and several senior unsecured basis guarantee obligations relating to the 7.25% Senior Notes:

Compressor Systems, Inc.
CSI Compressco Field Services International LLC
CSI Compressco Holdings LLC
CSI Compressco International LLC
CSI Compressco Leasing LLC
CSI Compressco Operating LLC
CSI Compressco Sub, Inc.
CSI Compression Holdings, LLC
Pump Systems International, Inc.
Rotary Compressor Systems, Inc.

In connection with the Offering, we agreed to file a registration statement with the SEC that would allow the holders of the Securities to
exchange their restricted Securities for registered and freely tradable notes and guarantees having substantially the same terms as the
Securities and evidencing the same indebtedness as the restricted Securities. In anticipation of filings such registration statement, we are
presenting the following condensed consolidating financial information pursuant to Rule 3-10 of Regulation S-X. These schedules are
presented using the equity method of accounting for all periods presented. Under this method, investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost
and adjusted for our share in the subsidiaries’ cumulative results of operations, capital contributions and distributions and other changes in
equity. Elimination entries relate primarily to the elimination of investments in subsidiaries and associated intercompany balances and
transactions. The Other Subsidiaries column includes financial information for those subsidiaries that do not guarantee the 7.25% Senior
Notes. Financial information of the Issuers includes CSI Compressco Finance Inc., which had no assets or operations for any of the periods
presented.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2014

(In Thousands)

 Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
ASSETS      
Current assets  $ 28  $ 197,182  $ 34,277  $ —  $ 231,487

Property, plant, and equipment, net  —  669,576  16,851  —  686,427

Investments in subsidiaries  562,290  17,303  —  (579,593)  —

Intangible and other assets, net  9,650  303,327  1,773  —  314,750

Intercompany receivables  335,151  —  —  (335,151)  —

Total non-current assets  907,091  990,206  18,624  (914,744)  1,001,177

Total assets  $ 907,119  $ 1,187,388  $ 52,901  $ (914,744)  $ 1,232,664

     
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL      
Current liabilities  $ 11,634  $ 116,780  $ 5,677  $ —  $ 134,091

Amounts payable to affiliate  44  987  5,449  —  6,480

Long-term debt  344,961  195,000  —  —  539,961

Intercompany payables  —  311,389  23,762  (335,151)  —

Other long-term liabilities  199  942  710  —  1,851

Total liabilities  356,838  625,098  35,598  (335,151)  682,383

Total partners' capital  550,281  562,290  17,303  (579,593)  550,281

Total liabilities and partners' capital  $ 907,119  $ 1,187,388  $ 52,901  $ (914,744)  $ 1,232,664
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 31, 2013

(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
ASSETS      
Current assets  $ 28  $ 26,629  $ 22,322  $ —  $ 48,979

Property, plant, and equipment, net  —  90,761  11,253  —  102,014

Investments in subsidiaries  173,716  16,587  —  (190,303)  —

Intangible and other assets, net  —  73,170  946  —  74,116

Intercompany receivables  213  9,593  —  (9,806)  —

Total non-current assets  173,929  190,111  12,199  (200,109)  176,130

Total assets  $ 173,957  $ 216,740  $ 34,521  $ (200,109)  $ 225,109

     
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS' CAPITAL      
Current liabilities  $ 91  $ 7,585  $ 5,019  $ —  $ 12,695

Amounts payable to affiliate  44  1,572  2,594  —  4,210

Long-term debt  —  29,959  —  —  29,959

Intercompany payables  —  —  9,806  (9,806)  —

Other long-term liabilities  106  3,908  515  —  4,529

Total liabilities  241  43,024  17,934  (9,806)  51,393

Total partners' capital  173,716  173,716  16,587  (190,303)  173,716

Total liabilities and partners' capital  $ 173,957  $ 216,740  $ 34,521  $ (200,109)  $ 225,109
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2014
(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Revenues  $ —  $ 249,284  $ 49,172  $ (15,809)  $ 282,647
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and
amortization expense)  —  152,940  37,536  (15,809)  174,667

Selling, general and administrative expense  1,544  27,306  3,250  —  32,100

Depreciation and amortization  —  39,828  1,330  —  41,158

Interest expense, net  11,507  1,354  103  —  12,964

Other expense, net  502  7,477  3,693  —  11,672

Equity in net income of subsidiaries  (24,811)  (1,832)  —  26,643  —

Income before income tax provision  11,258  22,211  3,260  (26,643)  10,086

Provision for income taxes  —  (2,600)  1,428  —  (1,172)

Net income  11,258  24,811  1,832  (26,643)  11,258

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  (3,749)  —  (3,749)

Comprehensive income  $ 11,258  $ 24,811  $ (1,917)  $ (26,643)  $ 7,509

F-29



Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2013
(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Revenues  $ —  $ 89,936  $ 42,223  $ (10,858)  $ 121,301
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and
amortization expense)  —  46,028  32,946  (10,858)  68,116

Selling, general and administrative expense  1,459  12,514  3,494  —  17,467

Depreciation and amortization  —  13,229  1,413  —  14,642

Interest expense, net  —  212  257  —  469

Other expense, net  —  193  589  —  782
Equity in net income of subsidiaries

 (19,026)  (1,993)  —  21,019  —

Income before income tax provision  17,567  19,753  3,524  (21,019)  19,825

Provision for income taxes  —  727  1,531  —  2,258

Net income  17,567  19,026  1,993  (21,019)  17,567

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  (591)  —  (591)

Comprehensive income  $ 17,567  $ 19,026  $ 1,402  $ (21,019)  $ 16,976
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2012
(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Revenues  $ —  $ 78,903  $ 40,383  $ (10,704)  $ 108,582
Cost of revenues (excluding depreciation and
amortization expense)  —  38,365  29,839  (10,704)  57,500

Selling, general and administrative expense  1,905  12,759  2,606  —  17,270

Depreciation and amortization  —  12,284  943  —  13,227

Interest expense, net  —  (307)  332  —  25

Other expense, net  —  277  599  —  876
Equity in net income of subsidiaries

 (18,236)  (4,038)  —  22,274  —

Income before income tax provision  16,331  19,563  6,064  (22,274)  19,684

Provision for income taxes  —  1,327  2,026  —  3,353

Net income  16,331  18,236  4,038  (22,274)  16,331

Other comprehensive income (loss)  —  —  102   102

Comprehensive income  $ 16,331  $ 18,236  $ 4,140  $ (22,274)  $ 16,433
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2014

(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities  $ 14,688  $ 22,767  $ 7,364  $ —  $ 44,819

Investing activities:           
Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment, net  —  (44,313)  (3,824)  —  (48,137)

Acquisition of CSI  —  (825,000)  —  —  (825,000)

Intercompany investment activity  (367,512)  (2,633)    370,145  —

Advances and other investing activities    (805)  —    (805)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities  (367,512)  (872,751)  (3,824)  370,145  (873,942)

Financing activities:           
Proceeds from long-term debt  344,961  257,897  —  —  602,858

Payments of long-term debt  —  (93,584)  —  —  (93,584)
Proceeds from issuance of partnership
common units, net of underwriters'
discount  395,794  —  —  —  395,794

Distributions  (36,687)  —  —  —  (36,687)

Payment of financing costs  (9,649)  (12,837)  —  —  (22,486)

Intercompany contribution (distribution)  —  367,512  2,633  (370,145)  —

Intercompany loan activity  (350,000)  350,000  —  —  —

Contribution from general partner  8,405  —  —  —  8,405
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities  352,824  868,988  2,633  (370,145)  854,300

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  —  —  (588)  —  (588)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents  —  19,004  5,585  —  24,589
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period  —  4,339  5,138  —  9,477

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ —  $ 23,343  $ 10,723  $ —  $ 34,066
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2013

(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities  $ —  $ 21,733  $ 7,402  $ —  $ 29,135

Investing activities:           
Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment, net  —  (19,263)  (5,311)  —  (24,574)

Intercompany investment activity  26,969  —  —  (26,969)  —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities  26,969  (19,263)  (5,311)  (26,969)  (24,574)

Financing activities:           
Proceeds from long-term debt  —  19,909  —  —  19,909

Distributions  (26,969)  —  —  —  (26,969)

Payment of financing costs  —  (916)    —  (916)

Intercompany contribution (distribution)  —  (26,969)  —  26,969  —

Intercompany loan activity  —  291  (291)  —  —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities  (26,969)  (7,685)  (291)  26,969  (7,976)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  —  —  (74)  —  (74)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents  —  (5,215)  1,726  —  (3,489)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period  —  9,554  3,412  —  12,966

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ —  $ 4,339  $ 5,138  $ —  $ 9,477
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2012

(In Thousands)

  Issuers  
Guarantor

Subsidiaries  
Other

Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidation
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities  $ —  $ 32,677  $ (1,568)  $ —  $ 31,109

Investing activities:           
Purchases of property, plant, and
equipment, net  —  (18,658)  (2,289)  —  (20,947)

Intercompany investment activity  24,732  —  —  (24,732)  —

Advances and other investing activities  —  (39)  —  —  (39)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities  24,732  (18,697)  (2,289)  (24,732)  (20,986)

Financing activities:           
Proceeds from long-term debt  —  10,050  —  —  10,050

Distributions  (24,732)  —  —  —  (24,732)

Intercompany contribution (distribution)  —  (24,732)  —  24,732  —

Intercompany loan activity  —  2,746  (2,746)  —  —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities  (24,732)  (11,936)  (2,746)  24,732  (14,682)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash  —  —  49  —  49
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents  —  2,044  (6,554)  —  (4,510)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period  —  7,510  9,966  —  17,476

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ —  $ 9,554  $ 3,412  $ —  $ 12,966

NOTE O — QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)
 

Summarized quarterly financial data for 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

  Three Months Ended 2014
  March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31
  (In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Total revenues  $ 29,810  $ 32,108  $ 95,892  $ 124,837

Net income (loss)  4,619  4,879  (2,601)  4,361

Net income (loss) per common unit  $ 0.29  $ 0.31  $ (0.10)  $ 0.12

Net income (loss) per diluted common unit  $ 0.29  $ 0.30  $ (0.10)  $ 0.12
 

  Three Months Ended 2013
  March 31  June 30  September 30  December 31
  (In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Total revenues  $ 30,767  $ 28,124  $ 29,964  $ 32,446

Net income  4,539  2,478  4,203  6,347

Net income per common unit  $ 0.29  $ 0.16  $ 0.27  $ 0.40

Net income per diluted common unit  $ 0.29  $ 0.15  $ 0.26  $ 0.40
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Results beginning with the three months ended September 30, 2014, reflect the impact of the August 4, 2014 acquisition of CSI. For
further discussion, see Note D - Acquisition.

NOTE P — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 

On January 20, 2015, we declared a cash distribution attributable to the quarter ended December 31, 2014 of $0.4850 per unit. This
distribution equates to a distribution of $1.94 per outstanding unit on an annualized basis. This cash distribution was paid on February 13,
2015, to all unitholders of record as of the close of business January 31, 2015.
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EXHIBIT 10.8

Summary Description of the Compensation of
Non-Employee Directors of CSI Compressco GP Inc.

As of January 1, 2015, each director who is not an employee of CSI Compressco GP Inc., TETRA Technologies, Inc., or any of its
subsidiaries (Non-Employee Directors), receives non-cash compensation of $60,000 per year and cash director fees in the amount of $15,000
per year, paid quarterly, for attending regularly scheduled board meetings. The non-cash compensation is paid for the upcoming service year in
the form of phantom unit awards that have an intended value of $60,000, prorated for any newly elected Non-Employee Director to such
director's date of election. Non-Employee Directors who are appointed as the chairmen of our Conflicts Committee and Audit Committee
receive additional compensation of $5,000 and $10,000 per year, respectively, prorated from their respective dates of appointment, which is
also paid in the form of phantom unit awards. All such awards of phantom units are granted under the CSI Compressco LP Amended and
Restated 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan.

 
Directors who are also our officers or employees, or officers or employees of TETRA, do not receive any compensation for duties

performed as our directors.

All Non-Employee Directors are reimbursed for out-of-pocket travel expenses incurred in attending meetings of the Board of Directors
and committees.



EXHIBIT 10.9

Summary Description of
Named Executive Officer Compensation

Effective as of August 4, 2014, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of TETRA Technologies, Inc., which is
responsible for compensation decisions relating to named executive officers of CSI Compressco GP Inc., approved the following annual base
salary levels for certain of our current officers who are identified as named executive officers in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Name  Title  Base Salary
Timothy A. Knox  President  $ 400,000

Ronald J. Foster  Senior Vice President and Chief Marketing Officer  325,000

James P. Rounsavall  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary  240,000

Charles B. Benge  Vice President of Operations  240,000

Anthony D. Speer  Vice President of Manufacturing  190,000

Each named executive officer is eligible to participate in incentive programs generally available to salaried employees of CSI Compressco GP
Inc., including health, life, disability and other insurance and benefits, 401(k) Plan, and vacation, paid sick leave, and other employee benefits.



EXHIBIT 10.31
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated July 20, 2014, but effective as of the Closing (as herein defined), is
entered into by and between COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Charles B. Benge (the
“Employee”). Certain capitalized terms used herein are defined in Section 6 of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Company is the general partner of Compressco Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Partnership”) and
Compressco Partners Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Purchaser”), is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership;

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 20, 2014, by and between the Purchaser and Warren Equipment
Company (“Warren”), Purchaser has agreed to purchase all of the issued and outstanding shares of Compressor Systems, Inc. (“CSI”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Warren;

WHEREAS, the Employee has previously served as the Vice President of Compression Services of CSI and through his position with
CSI, has acquired knowledge of, and experience related to, the business, trade secrets, proprietary and confidential information, and goodwill
of CSI which, if exploited by the Employee in contravention of this Agreement, would seriously and adversely affect the benefit or value of the
assets and business acquired by the Partnership Group pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ the Employee, conditioned upon the closing (the “Closing”) of the transaction
contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Transaction”) and effective as of the Effective Date, and Employee desires to be
employed by the Company under the terms and conditions hereinafter provided; and

WHEREAS, Employee acknowledges that in performing the services contemplated herein for the Company, Employee will come into
contact with customers and suppliers of the Partnership Group and that Employee will have access to trade secrets, proprietary and
confidential information, and goodwill of the Partnership Group not readily available to the public; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to the obligations of Purchaser to consummate the Transaction as contemplated by the Stock Purchase
Agreement, and to preserve the value of the assets of the business being acquired by the Partnership Group, and the confidential information
and goodwill of the business of the Partnership Group going forward, the Employee has agreed to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally
bound, agree as follows.

1. Employment of Employee; Duties.

1.1    Employment. Conditioned upon the Closing of the Transaction as contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement and
subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, the Company hereby agrees to employ the Employee as of the date of the Closing (the
“Effective Date”) and the Employee hereby accepts employment from the Company effective as of the Effective Date.

1.2    Title. During the Employment Period (as defined in Section 2 hereof), the Employee shall serve as Vice President of
Compression Services of the Company.

1.3    Duties. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall have the normal duties, responsibilities and authority
commensurate with such position, and shall perform and render all services and acts necessary to fulfill such duties and responsibilities on the
terms set forth herein. Except for excused leaves of absence, the Employee shall, throughout the Employment Period, devote substantially all
of the Employee’s working time, attention, and ability to the duties and responsibilities of the Employee’s position in furtherance of the business
affairs and activities of the Company and other members of the Partnership Group; provided, that the Employee shall have the right to
participate in the following activities so long as such activities do not conflict with any business of the



Partnership Group or interfere with the Employee’s performance of his duties hereunder: (i) engaging in and managing passive personal
investments and (ii) serving on civic, religious, educational and/or charitable boards and committees. The Employee shall at all times be subject
to, comply with, observe and carry out the Partnership Group’s rules, regulations, policies and codes of ethics and/or conduct applicable to
employees of the Partnership Group generally and in effect from time to time. If the Employee’s other business interests present a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest, the Employee shall fully disclose the conflict or apparent conflict to the President of the
Company (the “President”) or the Designated Officer.

1.4    Location. The Employee's primary place of employment shall initially be located at CSI's office at 7915 FM 1960 West,
Houston, Texas, 77070, and will remain such no less than the remaining term of lease on this office location. Any time after this lease has
expired and during the Employment Period (as herein defined) Employee's office may be located at the Company's offices in the Houston,
Texas metropolitan area no further than a sixty (60) minute commute in normal business traffic from Employee's current home in Waller, Texas.
The Employee will be required to travel to other offices and facilities of the Partnership Group and other locations as reasonably necessary to
perform his duties; provided that, that Employee shall not be required to travel outside the United States without the Employee's consent.

2. Term of Employment. The employment of the Employee hereunder shall continue until the third (3rd) anniversary of the
Effective Date (the “Initial Employment Period”), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Agreement,
and shall automatically be renewed and extended for additional one (1) year periods (each an “Additional Employment Period”) thereafter
unless the Employee’s employment is terminated by either party giving written notice to the other party not less than sixty (60) days in advance
of the expiration of the then-existing Initial Employment Period or Additional Employment Period, as applicable. The period during which the
Employee is employed hereunder shall be referred to as the “Employment Period.” Termination of employment due to non-renewal of the
Initial Employment Period or any Additional Employment Period, after providing the requisite sixty (60) days prior written notice, shall not entitle
the Employee to any Severance Benefits (as herein defined) under this Agreement.

3. Compensation and General Benefits.

3.1    Base Salary.

During the Employment Period the Company agrees to pay to the Employee an annualized base salary in an amount equal to
$240,000 (such base salary, as may be increased from time to time by the Company, is referred to herein as the “Base Salary”). The
Employee’s Base Salary, less amounts required to be withheld under applicable law, shall be payable in equal installments in accordance with
the normal payroll practices and procedures in effect from time to time for the payment of salaries to employees within the Partnership Group,
but in no event less frequently than monthly.

3.2    Annual Bonus. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Cash Incentive
Compensation Plan maintained by TETRA Technologies, Inc. (“TETRA”) or such other bonus programs as may be established for employees
of the Partnership Group, as any such bonus program may be amended from time to time (any such bonus program being referred to as the
“CICP”), in a manner that is consistent with other similarly situated officers of the Company and the Partnership Group in general. The
Employee’s Annual Bonus opportunity under the CICP shall equal thirty-five percent (35%) (the “Annual Target Bonus”) of the Base Salary.
Any right to receive any bonus payment shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the CICP. With respect to the 2014 calendar year,
Employee shall participate in the CICP on a pro-rata basis and any Annual Bonus payable to the Employee shall be pro-rated from the
Effective Date.

3.3    Equity-Based Compensation.

(a) On the Effective Date, the Employee will be granted Phantom Units in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Compressco Partners, L.P. 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Phantom Unit Agreement dated the Effective Date. The number
of Phantom Units to be awarded to the Employee shall be calculated by dividing $300,000 by the Fair Market Value (as such term is delivered
in the Plan) of the Partnership’s common units on the Effective Date and by rounding up to the nearest whole unit. The Phantom Units shall
vest as set forth in the Phantom Unit Agreement.



(b) Beginning in 2015 and continuing during the Employment Period, the Employee shall, subject to approval of the MCC, be
eligible to participate in, and receive annual awards of equity-based compensation pursuant to, the Plan, or such other similar equity
compensation plans as may be adopted by the Partnership, on a basis consistent with other officers of the Company.

3.4    Expenses. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be entitled to receive reimbursement from the Company
for all reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred by the Employee in performing the Employee’s duties hereunder on behalf of the
Company and the Partnership Group, subject to, and consistent with, the Partnership Group’s policies for expense payment and
reimbursement, in effect from time to time.

3.5    Benefits. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be entitled to participate in, and to receive benefits under,
any benefit plans, arrangements or policies made available to employees of the Partnership Group generally, subject to and on a basis
consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of each such plan, arrangement or policy.

3.6    Vacation. The Employee will be entitled to twenty-three (23) days of paid vacation time each calendar year during the
Employment Period, to be prorated monthly for partial calendar years. It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that Employee will use all
vacation in the calendar year in which it is allotted. Any unused vacation remaining at the end of a calendar year will not be carried over to the
next year. The Employee shall provide reasonable notice of any vacation time to be taken by the Employee to the President or the Designated
Officer.

4. Termination.

4.1    General. The employment of the Employee hereunder (and the Employment Period) shall terminate as provided in
Section 2 hereof, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4. Upon termination of the Employee’s employment
hereunder, the Employee (or his estate in the event of this death) shall be entitled to receive (i) all amounts of earned but unpaid Base Salary
accrued through the date of his termination of employment, (ii) such employee benefits, if any, as to which the Employee may be entitled under
the benefit plans, arrangements or policies of the Company to the date of termination as otherwise expressly required by applicable law
(including pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRA”)); provided, that the Company shall not be
required to waive, pay or reimburse any premium or contribution required of the Employee to continue any COBRA coverage or other benefits,
(iii) reimbursement of all unpaid expenses incurred prior to the date of termination in accordance with Section 3.4 hereof, and (iv) an amount
equal to all accrued and unused vacation for the year of termination (collectively, the “Accrued Amounts”). Except as expressly provided
otherwise in this Section 4, all other rights of the Employee (and all obligations of the Company) hereunder shall terminate as of the date of
such termination.

4.2    Death or Disability of the Employee.

(a) The employment of the Employee hereunder (and the Employment Period) shall terminate (i) automatically upon the death
of the Employee and (ii) at the option of the Company, upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Employee or the
Employee’s personal representative or guardian, if the Employee suffers a Total Disability (as defined below). In the event the Employee’s
employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.2, the Employee, or his estate, shall be entitled to receive (i) the Accrued Amounts, which
shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) an amount equal to any unpaid Annual Bonus otherwise
payable for the year immediately preceding the year in which the employment of the Employee is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.2, any
such amount to be paid no later than March 15 of the year in which such termination occurs.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Total Disability” shall mean (i) the written determination by a physician reasonably
satisfactory to the Employee and the Company that, because of a medically determinable disease, injury or other physical or mental disability,
the Employee is unable to substantially perform, with or without reasonable accommodation, the essential job functions of the Employee
required hereby, and that such disability has lasted for ninety (90) consecutive days or any one hundred eighty (180) days during the
immediately preceding twelve (12)-month period, in each case based upon medically available reliable information or (ii) the Employee’s
qualifying for benefits under the Partnership Group’s long-term disability coverage, if any. In conjunction with determining mental and/or
physical disability for purposes of this Agreement, the Employee hereby consents to (x) any examinations that the Company determines are
relevant to a determination of whether the Employee is mentally and physically disabled or are required by the Company physician, (y) furnish
such medical information as may be reasonably requested and (z) waive any applicable physician patient privilege that may arise because of
such examination.



4.3    Termination by the Company Without Cause.

(a) The Company may terminate the Employee’s employment without Cause (as defined in Section 4.3(c)) upon thirty (30)
days’ prior written notice and thereby terminate the Employment Period under this Agreement.

(b) In the event the Employee’s employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.3, and at that time the Employee is ready,
willing and able to continue performing all of his duties under this Agreement, the Employee shall be entitled to receive: (i) the Accrued
Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) subject to satisfying the requirements
and conditions of Section 4.5 below: (A) his Base Salary (in effect at the time of termination) for a period equal to the remaining term of the
Initial Employment Period, payable at such dates and times in accordance with the Company’s normal payment practices and procedures (for
clarification, the Employee shall not be entitled to receive any continued payment of Employee’s Base Salary in the event of any such
termination following the expiration of the Initial Employment Period); (B) if Employee elects to receive continuation coverage for medical,
prescription and dental benefits under COBRA, the Company will, for a period equal to the remaining term of the Initial Employment Period,
waive or otherwise pay at regular monthly intervals the contribution, if any, that would otherwise be required for the continuation of coverage
under a Partnership Group group health plan that Employee and his dependents are eligible to receive, provided, however, that to receive such
waiver or contribution, the Employee must not be eligible to receive health insurance benefits under any other employer’s group health plan (for
clarification, the Employee shall not be entitled to any waiver, or payment, of any contribution as required for the continuation of such COBRA
coverage in the event of any such termination following the expiration of the Initial Employment Period); (C) an amount equal to any unpaid
Annual Bonus otherwise payable for the year immediately preceding the year in which the employment of the Employee is so terminated, any
such amount to be paid, subject to the provisions of Section 4.5, no later than March 15 of the year in which such termination occurs; (D) an
amount equal to the pro rata Annual Bonus for the year in which such termination occurs, if determined to be payable for such year, such pro
rata payment to be paid, subject to the provisions of Section 4.5, no later than March 15 of the year immediately following the year in which
such termination occurs; and (E) the Phantom Units awarded to the Employee as described in Section 3.3(a) shall be accelerated and become
fully vested at such time as the Release (as herein defined) becomes final and irrevocable, and such Phantom Units shall be settled as
provided in the Phantom Unit Agreement or at such later date as provided in Section 4.5. The payments and benefits provided in clause (ii) of
the preceding sentence are collectively referred to as the “Severance Benefits.”

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:

(i) the failure by the Employee to perform his duties in any material respect which is not cured within fifteen (15) days
after written notice to the Employee;

(ii) the indictment or conviction of the Employee of (A) any felony or the plea of nolo contendere to any felony, or (B)
any misdemeanor involving theft, dishonesty or moral turpitude;

(iii) the Employee improperly receiving a benefit (personally or on behalf of another Person) relating to the Company or
any member of the Partnership Group or the funds, properties or other assets of the Company or any member of the Partnership
Group that the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers to constitute fraud, embezzlement or misappropriation;

(iv) the failure by the Employee to comply in any material respect with any previously announced and disclosed written
policy or procedure or article or component of any such written policy or procedure of the Partnership Group, which, if curable, is not
cured within fifteen (15) days after written notice;

(v) the Employee’s knowing or intentional misstatement of the financial records of the Partnership Group or complicit
actions in respect thereof (for the avoidance of doubt, an error or mistake in the financial records shall not constitute Cause);

(vi) the reckless or willful failure to disclose material financial or other information concerning the Partnership Group to
the Board, the President or to any executive officer of TETRA following a request therefor;

(vii) the breach by the Employee of any of the terms of this Agreement which is not cured within fifteen (15) days after
written notice thereof;



(viii) the Employee materially disparaging in a public manner the Company or any member of the Partnership Group or
their respective employees;

(ix) the Employee’s absence from the Company for a period of ten (10) consecutive business days that is unrelated to
approved vacation time, short or long-term disability, illness, or other absence permitted by the Partnership Group’s written policies or
applicable law; and

(x) the misappropriation by the Employee of any business opportunity of any member of the Partnership Group in
violation of the terms hereof.

4.4    Termination by the Employee for Good Reason.

(a) The Employee may voluntarily terminate his employment (and the Employment Period) at any time upon prior written notice
to the Company for Good Reason (as defined in Section 4.4(c)) as provided in Section 4.4(c) below. The Employee’s written notice shall
indicate that he is terminating his employment for Good Reason and shall provide a detailed description of the reasons for such termination for
Good Reason. In the event the Employee does not indicate that he is terminating his employment for Good Reason (including a detailed
description of the reasons therefor), he shall be deemed to have terminated his employment without Good Reason in accordance with Section
4.7.

(b) In the event the Employee’s employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.4, the Employee shall be entitled to receive
(i) the Accrued Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) subject to satisfying the
requirements of Section 4.5 below, the Severance Benefits.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” means the occurrence of any of the following events without the
Employee’s consent: (i) a reduction in the Employee’s Base Salary or a reduction in the Employee’s Annual Target Bonus opportunity, (ii) the
relocation of the office to which the Employee is primarily assigned and expected to report to a location that is outside the Houston, Texas
metropolitan area as provided in Section 1.4 (exclusive of travel incidental to the Employee’s performance of his duties hereunder), (iii) any
diminution in Employee’s authorities, duties or responsibilities or (iv) any material breach by the Company of the obligations imposed upon the
Company under the terms of this Agreement, and the Company shall fail to cure such breach or default within fifteen (15) days after written
notice of such breach or default is given by the Employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing definition of “Good Reason,” any assertion by the
Employee of Good Reason shall not be effective unless all of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the condition described above giving rise
to Good Reason must have arisen without the Employee’s written consent; (ii) the Employee must provide written notice to the Company of
such condition within twenty (20) days of the Employee’s discovery of the initial existence of condition; (iii) the condition specified in such notice
must remain uncorrected for fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice by the Company; and (iv) the date of the Employee’s termination of
employment because of the condition as specified in such notice must occur within ninety (90) days after the Employee’s discovery of the
condition as specified in such notice.

4.5    Severance Benefit Payments. In the event that the Employee is entitled to the Severance Benefits under Sections 4.3
or 4.4, such Severance Benefits shall, subject to the following requirements, be payable in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll
practices and procedures, and shall be subject to all applicable withholding. Except for such later payments as otherwise provided in Sections
4.3, 4.4, or 4.8, Severance Benefits shall begin on the first regularly scheduled payroll date determined by the Company (in accordance with
Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(b)) to occur more than fifty-five (55) days from the Employee’s date of termination (with any deferred Severance
Benefits that otherwise would have been paid during the period beginning on the date of termination and ending on the date the first regularly
scheduled payroll date to occur more than fifty-five (55) days after the Employee’s date of termination to be paid, as applicable, in a single lump
sum on such payroll date), provided, that, within such fifty-five (55) day period, (i) the Employee executes and delivers to the Company a
general release of any and all claims (but excluding (A) any claim for unemployment compensation, (B) any claim for workers’ compensation
benefits, and (C) any vested, future benefits which the Employee is entitled to receive under any Partnership Group “employee benefit plan,”
within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA, or under Section 2 or 3 or 4) in favor of the Company, the Partnership, their Affiliates and their
respective officers, managers, directors, shareholders, partners, members and other Affiliates in substantially the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit A (the “Release”), and (ii) the applicable revocation period, if any, prescribed by law and/or set forth in the Release has
expired without the Employee having withdrawn or revoked the Release. If the Employee does not satisfy the requirements with respect to the
Release as hereinabove provided, the Employee shall not be entitled to any of the Severance Benefits or any amount or benefit in lieu thereof.



4.6    Termination by the Company For Cause. The Board may terminate the employment of the Employee (and the
Employment Period) under this Agreement at any time for Cause by delivery of written notice to the Employee. The Board’s written notice shall
indicate that the Company is terminating the Employee’s employment for Cause and shall provide a description of the reasons for such
termination for Cause. In the event the notice does not indicate that the Company is terminating the Employee’s employment for Cause
(including a description of the reasons therefor), the Company shall be deemed to have terminated the Employee’s employment without Cause
in accordance with Section 4.3. Upon such termination for Cause, the Employee shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts, which shall
be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of such termination.

4.7    Termination by the Employee Without Good Reason. The Employee may voluntarily resign and thereby terminate the
Employee’s employment (and the Employment Period) under this Agreement at any time upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice
to the Company. Upon such termination, the Employee shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum
within thirty (30) days of such termination.

4.8    Section 409A of the Code. This Agreement is intended, and its terms shall be interpreted as necessary, to comply with
Section 409A (“Section 409A”) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, the parties mutually desire to avoid adverse tax consequences associated with the application of Section 409A to this
Agreement and agree to cooperate fully and take appropriate reasonable actions to avoid any such consequences under Section 409A,
including delaying payments and reforming the form of the Agreement if such action would reduce or eliminate taxes and/or interest payable as
a result of Section 409A. In this regard, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4, to the extent necessary to comply with
Section 409A, if the Employee is a “specified employee,” as defined in Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(i), and any partnership interests of the
Partnership are publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise, no payment or benefit that is subject to Section 409A shall be
made under this Agreement on account of the Employee’s “separation from service” with the Company within the meaning of Section 409A of
the Code before the date that is the first day of the seventh month beginning after the date the Employee’s separation from service (or, if
earlier, the date of death of the Employee or any other date permitted under Section 409A). For purposes of determining if amounts payable
under this Agreement by reason of the Employee’s termination are owed, and if so, when they are to be paid or provided, the Employee shall
be considered to have terminated employment with the Company only when the Employee’s employment with the Company ceases on what is
then reasonably expected and understood by the Employee and the Company to be a permanent basis and such cessation constitutes a
“separation from service” with respect to the Company and its affiliates within the meaning of Section 409A and applicable administrative
guidance issued thereunder. To the extent that any amount or benefit under this Agreement constitutes a reimbursement of an expense
incurred by, or the provision of benefits in kind to, the Employee and such amount or benefit represents a “deferral of compensation,” all within
the meaning of Section 409A, then: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, under this
Agreement during or for any taxable year of the Employee shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be
provided, during or for any other taxable year of the Employee; (ii) all reimbursements of expenses under this Agreement shall be made by no
later than the earlier of the date otherwise required under this Agreement and the last day of the Employee’s taxable year following the taxable
year of the Employee in which the expense was incurred; and (iii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not
be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. For purposes of Section 409A, each payment or amount due under this Agreement
shall be considered a separate payment, and the Employee’s entitlement to a series of payments under this Agreement is to be treated as an
entitlement to a series of separate payments.

4.9    Resignation from Officer and Director Positions. Upon the termination of the Employee’s employment for any reason
(unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Company and the Employee), the Employee will be deemed to have resigned, without any further
action by the Employee, from any and all officer and/or director positions that the Employee, immediately prior to such termination, held with
the Company or any member of the Partnership Group. If for any reason this Section 4.9 is deemed to be insufficient to effectuate such
resignations, then the Employee will, upon the Company’s request, execute any documents or instruments that the Company may deem
necessary or desirable to effectuate such resignations.



5. Confidentiality, Work Product and Non-Competition and Non- Solicitation.

5.1    Confidentiality.

(a) In return for and in reliance upon the Employee’s covenants made in this Section 5, the Company agrees to provide to the
Employee during the Employment Period certain valuable and proprietary Confidential Information pertaining to the Partnership Group. In
addition, the Company and the Partnership Group shall provide the Employee during the Employment Period access to certain customers and
vendors and provide the Employee with the unique opportunity to develop business relationships with such customers and vendors based, in
part, upon (i) the Partnership Group’s relationship, reputation and goodwill with those customers, and (ii) the goodwill and business
relationships of CSI being acquired by the Purchaser.

(b) The Employee acknowledges that the confidential information of CSI (the “CSI Confidential Information”) and the goodwill
associated with the business acquired by the Company and Partnership Group are of significant value to the Company and the Partnership
Group bargained for in the Transaction and that any disclosure or use of the CSI Confidential Information in violation of this Agreement would
seriously and adversely affect the benefit or value of the assets and business acquired by the Company and Partnership Group. The Employee
further acknowledges and agrees that in the course of his employment with the Company and providing services to the Partnership Group, the
Employee will be in a position to (i) have access to and develop Confidential Information, (ii) pursue business opportunities of the Partnership
Group and (iii) develop goodwill on behalf of the Partnership Group and that the Company shall provide support for such activity such as the
expense reimbursements as provided in Section 3.4. The Employee recognizes that Partnership Group’s business interests require a
confidential relationship between each member of the Partnership Group and the Employee and the fullest practical protection and confidential
treatment of all Confidential Information. At all times, both during and after the Employment Period, the Employee shall not directly or indirectly
appropriate, download, print, copy, remove, use, disclose, divulge, communicate or otherwise Misappropriate any Confidential Information,
including, without limitation, originals or copies of any Confidential Information, in any media or format, except for the Partnership Group’s
benefit within the course and scope of the Employee’s employment or with the prior written consent of the President or the Designated Officer.

(c) All Confidential Information, and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, shall remain, at all times, the property of the
Partnership Group, the appropriation, use and/or disclosure of which is governed and restricted by this Agreement.

(d) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that:

(i) during the Employment Period the Employee will occupy a unique position within the Company and the Partnership
Group, and the Employee is and will be directly involved in the development and implementation of, or have access to, Confidential
Information and

(ii) in the event the Employee breaches this Section 5.1 with respect to any Confidential Information, such breach shall
be deemed to be a Misappropriation of such Confidential Information and will result in immediate and irreparable harm to the
Partnership Group.

(e) Upon receipt of any formal or informal request, by legal process or otherwise, seeking the Employee’s direct or indirect
disclosure or production of any Confidential Information to any Person, the Employee shall promptly and timely notify the Company and the
Designated Officer and provide a description and, if applicable, provide a copy of such request to the Company so that the Company, or the
respective member or the Partnership Group, may obtain a protective order or other appropriate remedy. In the event that no such protective
order or other remedy is obtained, or that the Company waives compliance with the terms of this Section 5.1, the Employee will furnish only
that portion of the Confidential Information which the Employee is reasonably advised in writing by counsel is legally required and will exercise
reasonable efforts to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

(f) At any time the Company may request, during or after the Employment Period, the Employee shall deliver to the Company
all originals and copies of Confidential Information and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, including, without limitation any Confidential
Information produced by the Employee.



(g) Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Employee shall immediately return to the Company all Confidential
Information, regardless of the form or format, and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group, within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, without the necessity of a prior Company request.

(h) During the Employment Period, the Employee represents and agrees that the Employee will not use or disclose any
confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets of others (excluding the use by the Employee for any proper purpose of any such
information of the Partnership Group’s customers in the ordinary course of business), including but not limited to former employers (other than
CSI and the CSI Confidential Information), and that the Employee will not bring onto the premises of the Company or any member of the
Partnership Group or access such confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets of such others, unless consented to in writing by said
others, and then only with the prior written authorization of the Company.

5.2    Work Product/Intellectual Property.

(a) Assignment.     The Employee hereby assigns to the Company all right, title and interest to all Work Product that (i) relates
to any of the Partnership Group’s actual business, research and development or existing or contemplated products or services, or (ii) is
conceived, reduced to practice, developed or made using any equipment, supplies, facilities, assets, information or resources of any member of
the Partnership Group (including, without limitation, any intellectual property rights).

(b) Disclosure. The Employee shall promptly disclose Work Product to the President or the Designated Officer and perform all
actions reasonably requested by the Company (whether during or after the Employment Period), at the cost of the Company, to establish and
confirm the ownership and proprietary interest of any member of the Partnership Group in any Work Product (including, without limitation, the
execution of assignments, consents, powers of attorney, applications and other instruments). The Employee shall not file any patent or
copyright applications related to any Work Product except with the written consent of the President or the Designated Officer.

5.3    Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation.

(a) In consideration of CSI Confidential Information acquired by the Company and the Partnership Group and the other
Confidential Information being provided, and which the Company herein agrees to provide in the future, to the Employee as stated in Section
5.1 hereof, and other good and valuable new consideration as stated in this Agreement and as provided to the Employee as of the Effective
Date, including, without limitation, employment with the Company, the Phantom Units being granted by the Partnership pursuant to
Section 3.3(a), and the business relationships, Partnership Group goodwill, work experience, client, customer and/or vendor relationships and
other benefits of employment that the Employee will have the opportunity to obtain, use and develop under this Agreement, the Employee
agrees to the restrictive covenants stated in this Section 5.3.

(b) During the Employment Period and until the end of the Restricted Period, the Employee agrees that the Employee will not,
directly or indirectly, on the Employee’s own behalf or on the behalf of any other Person, within the Restricted Area:

(i) engage in a Competing Business, including, without limitation, by owning, managing, operating, controlling, being
employed by, providing services as a consultant or independent contractor to or participating in the ownership, management, operation
or control of any Competing Business;

(ii) induce or attempt to induce any customer, vendor, supplier, licensor or other Person in a current or previous
business relationship with any member of the Partnership Group, (A) to do business with a Competing Business or (B) to cease,
restrict, terminate or otherwise reduce business with any member of the Partnership Group, in each case regardless of whether the
Employee initiates contact; or

(iii) (A) solicit, recruit, persuade, influence or induce, or attempt to solicit, recruit, persuade, influence or induce anyone
employed by any member of the Partnership Group (including any former employees of CSI who are employed by any member of the
Partnership Group as part of the Transaction), to cease or leave their employment relationship with any member of the Partnership
Group or (B) hire, employ or otherwise attempt to establish, for any Person, any employment, consulting, independent contractor or
other business relationship with any Person who is or was during the prior twelve (12) months employed by any member of the
Partnership Group (including any former employees of CSI who are employed by any member



of the Partnership Group as part of the Transaction); provided, however, the Employee may, directly or indirectly, on the Employee’s
own behalf or on behalf of any other Person, hire any former employee of the Company or the Partnership Group whose employment
with the Company or Partnership Group had terminated not less than three (3) months prior to the date of hire and (i) who is not
specifically solicited for employment by the Employee, either directly or indirectly, but who on his or her own initiative seeks
employment with Employee or any other Person with whom the Employee is affiliated, or (ii) who responds to a general ad for
employment published by Employee, or any other Person with whom the Employee is affiliated, that is not specifically targeted to
employees of the Partnership Group.

(c) The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding anything in Section 5.3(b)(i) hereof, the Employee may
own or hold, solely as passive investments, securities of Persons engaged in any business that would otherwise be included in Section 5.3(b)
(i), as long as with respect to each such investment the securities held by the Employee do not exceed one percent (1%) of the outstanding
securities of such Person and such securities are publicly traded and registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”); provided, however, that the Employee shall not be permitted to, directly or indirectly, participate in, or attempt
to influence, the management, direction or policies of (other than through the exercise of any voting rights held by the Employee in connection
with such securities), or lend the Employee’s name to, any such Persons.

(d) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that, for purposes of this Section 5.3, indirect acts by the Employee shall include,
without limitation, an act by any entity directly or indirectly controlled by the Employee. Employee may not avoid the purpose and intent of this
Section 5.3 by engaging in the restricted conduct within the Restricted Area from a remote location through means such as
telecommunications, written correspondence, computer generated or assisted communications including, without limitation, email or the
internet, or other similar methods.

(e) The Employee acknowledges that (i) the restrictive covenants contained in this Section 5.3 hereof are ancillary to and part of
an otherwise enforceable agreement, such being the agreements concerning Confidential Information and other consideration as stated in this
Agreement, (ii) at the time that these restrictive covenants are made, the limitations as to time, geographic scope and activity to be restrained,
as described herein, are reasonable and do not impose a greater restraint than necessary to protect the goodwill and other legitimate business
interests of the Partnership Group, including without limitation, Confidential Information (including trade secrets), client, customer and/or vendor
relationships, client and/or customer goodwill and business productivity, (iii) in the event of termination of the Employee’s employment, the
Employee’s experiences and capabilities are such that the Employee can obtain gainful employment without violating this Agreement and
without the Employee incurring undue hardship, (iv) based on the relevant benefits and other new consideration provided for in this Agreement,
including, without limitation, the disclosure and use of Confidential Information, the restrictive covenants of this Section 5.3, as applicable
according to their terms, shall remain in full force and effect even in the event of the Employee’s involuntary termination from employment, with
or without Cause, (v) the Employee has carefully read this Agreement and has given careful consideration to the restraints imposed upon the
Employee by this Agreement and consents to the terms of the restrictive covenants in this Section 5.3, with the knowledge that this Agreement
may be terminated at any time in accordance with the provisions hereof and (vi) the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.3 are fair and
reasonable in light of the nature and wide geographic scope of the Partnership Group’s operations, which occur throughout the Restricted Area
and the Employee’s level of control over, contact with, and association, with the Partnership Group’s business throughout the Restricted Area.

5.4    Interpretation; Severability.

(a) The Employee has carefully considered the possible effects on the Employee of the covenants not to compete, the
confidentiality provisions and the other obligations contained in this Agreement, and the Employee recognizes that the Company has made
every effort to limit the restrictions placed upon the Employee to those that are reasonable and necessary to protect the Partnership Group’s
legitimate business interests.

(b) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that the restrictive covenants set forth in this Agreement are reasonable and
necessary in order to protect the Partnership Group’s valid business interests, including the assets and business acquired in the Transaction. It
is the intention of the parties hereto that the covenants, provisions and agreements contained herein shall be enforceable to the fullest extent
allowed by law. If any covenant, provision or agreement contained herein is found by a court having jurisdiction to be unreasonable in duration,
scope or character of restrictions, or otherwise to be unenforceable, such covenant, provision or agreement shall not be rendered
unenforceable thereby, but rather the duration, scope or character of restrictions of such covenant, provision or agreement shall be deemed
reduced or modified with retroactive effect to render such covenant, provision or agreement



reasonable or otherwise enforceable (as the case may be), and such covenant, provision or agreement shall be enforced as modified. If the
court having jurisdiction will not review the covenant, provision or agreement, the parties hereto shall mutually agree to a revision having an
effect as close as permitted by applicable law to the provision declared unenforceable. The parties hereto agree that if a court having
jurisdiction determines, despite the express intent of the parties hereto, that any portion of the covenants, provisions or agreements contained
herein are not enforceable, the remaining covenants, provisions and agreements herein shall be valid and enforceable. Moreover, to the extent
that any provision is declared unenforceable, the Company shall have any and all rights under applicable statutes or common law to enforce its
rights with respect to any and all Confidential Information or unfair competition by the Employee.

6. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) An “Affiliate” of any specified Person means any other Person, whether now or hereafter existing, directly or indirectly
controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, such specified Person. For purposes hereof, “control” or any other
form thereof, when used with respect to any Person, means the power to direct the management and policies of such Person, directly or
indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the terms “controlling” and “controlled” shall have
meanings correlative to the foregoing.

(b) “Annual Bonus” means any annual bonus to which Employee is awarded and eligible to receive as contemplated by
Section 3.2.

(c) “Competing Business” means any business that competes in any manner with the business or activities of any member of
the Partnership Group as conducted from time to time during the Employment Period, including, without limitation, any enterprise that engages
in, owns or operates any business that develops, markets, provides, manufactures, distributes, or sells any Competing Products or Competing
Services.

(d) “Competing Products” means natural gas compressor packages and engine-driven crude oil pump packages, each as
used in the petroleum industry.

(e) “Competing Service” means (i) the design, engineering, fabrication, sale, rental, transportation, operation, repair and
maintenance of, or provision of services utilizing, natural gas compressor packages used in the petroleum industry, and (ii) the design,
engineering and sale of, or the provision of services utilizing, engine-driven crude oil pump packages used in the petroleum industry.

(f) “Confidential Information”

(i) Definition. “Confidential Information” means any and all material, information, ideas, inventions, formulae, patterns,
compilations, programs, devices, methods, techniques, processes, know how, plans (marketing, business, strategic, technical or
otherwise), arrangements, pricing and other data of or relating to any members of the Partnership Group (as well as their customers
and/or vendors) that is confidential, proprietary or trade secret (A) by its nature, (B) based on how it is treated or designated by any
member of the Partnership Group, (C) because the disclosure of which would have an adverse effect on the business or planned
business of the Partnership Group and/or (D) as a matter of law. Confidential Information also includes all CSI Confidential Information.

(ii) Exclusions. Confidential Information does not include material, data, and/or information (A) that any member of the
Partnership Group has voluntarily placed in the public domain, (B) that has been lawfully and independently developed and publicly
disclosed by third parties, (C) that constitutes the general non-specialized knowledge and skills gained by the Employee during the
Employment Period or (D) that otherwise enters the public domain through lawful means; provided, however, that the unauthorized
appropriation, use or disclosure of Confidential Information by the Employee, directly or indirectly, shall not affect the protection and
relief afforded by this Agreement regarding such information.

(iii) Inclusions. Confidential Information includes, without limitation, the following information (including without
limitation, compilations or collections of information) relating or belonging to any member of the Partnership Group (as well as their
clients, customers and/or vendors) and created, prepared, accessed, used or reviewed by the Employee during or after the
Employment Period: (1) product and manufacturing information, such as manufacturing processes; (2) scientific and technical
information, such as research and



development, tests and test results, studies and analyses; (3) financial and cost information, such as operating and production costs,
costs of goods sold, costs of supplies and manufacturing materials, financial statements and reports, profit and loss information, margin
information and financial performance information; (4) customer related information, such as customer related contracts, engagement
and scope of work letters, proposals and presentations, customer-related contacts, lists, identities and prospects, practices, plans,
histories, requirements and needs, price information and information concerning client or customer products, services, businesses or
equipment specifications; (5) vendor and supplier related information, such as the identities, practices, history or services of any
vendors or suppliers and vendor or supplier contacts; (6) sales, marketing and price information, such as marketing and sales
programs and related data, sales and marketing strategies and plans, sales and marketing procedures and processes, pricing
methods, practices and techniques and pricing schedules and lists; (7) database, software and other computer related information,
such as computer programs, data, compilations of information and records, software and computer files, presentation software and
computer-stored or backed-up information including, but not limited to, e-mails, databases, word processed documents, spreadsheets,
notes, schedules, task lists, images and video; (8) employee-related information, such as lists or directories identifying employees,
representatives and contractors, and information regarding the competencies (knowledge, skill, experience), compensation and needs
of employees, representatives and contractors and training methods; and (9) business- and operation-related information, such as
operating methods, procedures, techniques, practices and processes, information about acquisitions, corporate or business
opportunities, information about partners and potential investors, strategies, projections and related documents, contracts and licenses
and business records, files, equipment, notebooks, documents, memoranda, reports, notes, sample books, correspondence, lists and
other written and graphic business records.

(g) “Designated Officer” means one or more executive officers of TETRA as identified by the Board from time to time for
purposes of this Agreement.

(h) “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

(i) “Misappropriate,” or any form thereof, means:

(i) the acquisition of any Confidential Information by a Person who knows or has reason to know that the Confidential
Information was acquired by theft, bribery, misrepresentation, breach or inducement of a breach of a duty to maintain secrecy or
espionage through electronic or other means (each, an “Improper Means”); or

(ii) the disclosure or use of any Confidential Information without the express consent of the Company by a Person who
(A) used Improper Means to acquire knowledge of the Confidential Information, (B) at the time of disclosure or use, knew or had
reason to know that his or her knowledge of the Confidential Information was (x) derived from or through a Person who had utilized
Improper Means to acquire it, (y) acquired under circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its secrecy or limit its use or (z) derived
from or through a Person who owed a duty to any member of the Partnership Group to maintain its secrecy or limit its use or (C) before
a material change of his or her position, knew or had reason to know that it was Confidential Information and that knowledge of it had
been acquired by accident or mistake.

(j) “Partnership Group” means the Company, the Partnership and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Following the Effective
Date, CSI shall be included in the Partnership Group.

(k) “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, association, business trust,
joint-stock company, estate, trust, unincorporated organization, government or other agency or political subdivision thereof or any other legal or
commercial entity.

(l) “Restricted Area” means (i) initially the States of Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, New Mexico, North
Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, West Virginia and Wyoming, the parishes of Louisiana listed on Exhibit B
attached hereto, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Canada, China, Columbia, Germany, Indonesia, Italy, Mexico, Poland, Peru, Romania, Ukraine,
and Venezuela, and (ii) shall also include such additional states, countries and territories in which the Partnership Group, during the
Employment Period, engages in or operates a Competing Business.



(m) “Restricted Period” means a period equal to the remaining term of the Initial Employment Period as of the date of
termination of employment; provided, that in the event an enforcement remedy is sought under Section 5.3, the Restricted Period shall be
extended by one day for each day the Employee failed to comply with the restriction at issue under Section 5.3.

(n) “Work Product” means all patents and patent applications, all inventions, innovations, improvements, developments,
methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, creative works, discoveries, software, computer programs, modifications, enhancements, know-
how, formulations, concepts and ideas, and all similar or related information (in each case whether or not patentable), all copyrights and
copyrightable works, all trade secrets, confidential information, and all other intellectual property and intellectual property rights that are
conceived, reduced to practice, developed or made by the Employee either alone or with others in the course of employment with the Company
(including employment prior to the date of this Agreement).

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1    Non-Disparagement. The Employee agrees that during the Employment Period or at any time thereafter, the Employee
will not make any statements, comments or communications in any form, oral, written or electronic to any customer, client or supplier of any
member of the Partnership Group or to any other third party, which would constitute libel, slander or disparagement of such member of the
Partnership Group, including, without limitation, any such statements, comments or communications that criticize, ridicule or are derogatory to
any member of the Partnership Group; provided, however, that the terms of this Section 7.1 shall not apply to communications between the
Employee and, as applicable, the Employee’s attorneys or other persons with whom communications would be subject to a claim of privilege
existing under common law, statute or rule of procedure. The Employee further agrees that the Employee will not in any way solicit or
encourage any such statements, comments or communications from others.

7.2    Injunctive Relief. The parties agree and acknowledge that money damages would not be sufficient remedy for any
breach of Section 5 or Section 7.1 by the Employee, and the Company and the members of the Partnership Group shall be entitled to enforce
the provisions of Section 5 and Section 7.1 by terminating payments or benefits (including Severance Benefits) then or thereafter owing to the
Employee under this Agreement and to specific performance and injunctive relief as remedies for such breach or any threatened breach. The
remedies set forth in this Section 7.2 shall not be deemed the exclusive remedies for a breach of Section 5 or Section 7.1 and shall be in
addition to all other remedies available, at law and in equity, including without limitation the recovery of damages from the Employee and his
agents and the recovery of all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the Company in obtaining any such relief or recovery.

7.3    Entire Agreement; Waiver. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Employee and the Company
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior understandings or agreements, whether written or oral between the
Employee and the Company. No modification or addition hereto or waiver or cancellation of any provision hereof shall be valid except by a
writing signed by the party to be charged therewith. No delay on the part of any party to this Agreement in exercising any right or privilege
provided hereunder or by law shall impair, prejudice or constitute a waiver of such right or privilege.

7.4    Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of
Texas without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Texas or any other jurisdiction) that would
cause the application of laws of any jurisdictions other than those of the State of Texas.

7.5    Submission to Jurisdiction. Each party hereto (a) submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in Harris
County, Texas in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement (b) agrees that all claims in respect of such action or
proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court, (c) waives any claim of inconvenient forum or other challenge to venue in such
court, and (d) agrees not to bring any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any other court or forum.

7.6    Successors and Assigns; Binding Agreement. The rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, successors and permitted assigns. Successors of the Company who
shall assume the Company’s rights and obligations hereunder include, but are not limited to, any successor by way of merger, consolidation or
sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or equity interests. The Company may assign its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to



any other member of the Partnership Group without the prior consent of the Employee and such member of the Partnership Group shall
succeed to the rights and obligations of the Company hereunder. This Agreement is a personal contract, and except as specifically set forth
herein, this Agreement and the rights and interests of the parties hereto may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or hypothecated by
any party without the prior written consent of the others.

7.7    Representation by Counsel; Independent Judgment. Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that (a) such party has
read this Agreement in its entirety and understands all of its terms and conditions, (b) such party has had the opportunity to consult with any
individuals of its choice regarding its agreement to the provisions contained herein, including legal counsel of its choice, and any decision not to
was such party’s alone and (c) such party is entering into this Agreement of its own free will, without coercion from any source, based upon its
own independent judgment.

7.8    Interpretation. The parties and their respective legal counsel actively participated in the negotiation and drafting of this
Agreement, and in the event of any ambiguity or mistake herein, or any dispute among the parties with respect to the provisions hereto, no
provision of this Agreement shall be construed unfavorably against any of the parties on the ground that the party or the party’s counsel was
the drafter thereof.

7.9    Survival. The provisions of Sections 5 and 7 hereof, and those portions of this Agreement necessary to apply, enforce
and interpret them, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

7.10    Notices. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly given and effective
when received, if sent by facsimile or telecopy, or by postage prepaid by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by other
delivery service which provides evidence of delivery, as follows:

If to the Company, to:

Compressco Partners GP Inc.
101 Park Avenue, Suite 1200
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
Attn: Board of Directors

with a copy to:

TETRA Technologies, Inc.
24955 Interstate 45 North
The Woodlands, Texas 77380
Attn: General Counsel

If to the Employee, to:
Charles B. Benge        

or to such other address as one party may provide in writing to the other party from time to time.

7.11    Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile transmission or other means of electronic
transmission of any signed original document will be deemed the same as delivery of an original. At the request of any party, the parties will
confirm facsimile transmission or other means of electronic transmission by signing a duplicate original document.

7.12    Captions. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be considered a part of this Agreement.

7.13    Withholding. The Employee authorizes the Company to make any deductions from Employee’s compensation
hereunder that are necessary to comply with any federal, state or local laws on withholdings, to compensate for any property not returned,
money owed by the Employee to the Company, or to recover advances made to the Employee.



7.14    No Guarantee of Tax Treatment. The Company makes no representation or warranty, and undertakes no covenant,
regarding any federal, state or local tax treatment of amounts or matters subject to this Agreement or any federal, state or local tax treatment
applicable to or inapplicable to the Employee.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement, intending it as a document under seal, to be effective for all
purposes as of the Effective Date.

COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC.

By: /s/Timothy A. Knox                        
Name:    Timothy A. Knox                    
Title: President                            

EMPLOYEE

/s/Charles B. Benge                        
Charles B. Benge, Individually



EXHIBIT A
TO

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

RELEASE AGREEMENT

This Release Agreement (“Release Agreement”) is entered into by and between Charles B. Benge (“Employee”) and Compressco
Partners GP Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the Employee and the Company have entered into that certain Employment Agreement (the “Employment Agreement”)
dated July 20, 2014 which sets forth the terms and conditions of the Employee’s employment with the Company and further provides in
Section 4 thereof that the Employee may be entitled to receive Severance Benefits upon the termination of the Employee’s employment under
the circumstances as described in, and subject to the conditions of, Section 4 of the Employment Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement contemplates that the Employee will execute and deliver to the Company this Release
Agreement within fifty-five (55) days of a termination for which any Severance Benefits are payable (a “Qualifying Termination”), and the
Employee and the Company desire to execute this Release Agreement to resolve all issues relating to the employment of the Employee by the
Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein and in the Employment Agreement, the
parties agree as follows:

1.    Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Release Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Employment Agreement.

2.    Qualifying Termination Payments and Conditions.

(a)    The Employee and the Company acknowledge and agree that the date of Termination is _______________, 201__.

(b)    Subject to the terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement, including the Employee’s execution and delivery of this
Release Agreement and non-revocation of the ADEA Release contained herein, the Company agrees to pay or provide to the Employee the
Severance Benefits as contemplated by Section 4 of the Employment Agreement in the manner set forth therein.

3.    General Release. In consideration of the benefits set forth herein and in the Employment Agreement, the Employee
hereby fully, finally, and completely releases the Company, the Partnership and each other member of the Partnership Group, their
Affiliates and their respective officers, directors, managers, control persons, employees, agents, representatives and assigns of any
of them (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all liabilities, claims, actions, losses, expenses, demands, costs, fees,
damages and/or causes of action, of whatever kind or character, whether now known or unknown (collectively, “Claims”), arising
from, relating to, or in any way connected with, any facts or events occurring on or before the execution of this Release Agreement
that he may have against any member of the Partnership Group or any Released Parties, including, but not limited to any such
Claims arising out of or in any way related to the Employee’s employment with the Company, or any member of the Partnership
Group, or the termination of such employment, including but not limited to, any violation of any federal, state or local statute, any
breach of contract, any wrongful termination, or other tort or cause of action. The Employee confirms that this Release Agreement
was neither procured by fraud nor signed under duress or coercion. Further, the Employee waives and releases the Released Parties
from any Claims that this Release Agreement was procured by fraud or signed under duress or coercion so as to make the Release
Agreement not binding. The Employee understands and agrees that by signing this Release Agreement, he is giving up the right to
pursue any legal Claims released herein that he may currently have against the Company or any Released Parties, whether or not he
is aware of such Claims, and specifically agrees and covenants not to bring any legal action for any Claims released herein. The only
claims that are excluded from this Release Agreement are (i) Claims arising after the date of this Release Agreement, if any, including
any future Claims relating to the Company’s performance of its obligations under Section 4 of the Employment Agreement, (ii) any
claim for unemployment compensation,



(iii) any claim for workers’ compensation benefits, and (iv) any vested, future benefits which the Employee is entitled to receive
under any Company “employee benefit plan,” within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA.

4.    ADEA Release. The Employee hereby completely and forever releases and irrevocably discharges the Released Parties,
from any and all Claims arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”) on or before the date the Employee signs
this Release Agreement (the “ADEA Release”), and hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (i) this Release Agreement, including the
ADEA Release, was negotiated at arm’s length; (ii) this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release, is worded in a manner that
the Employee fully understands; (iii) the Employee specifically waives any rights or claims under the ADEA; (iv) the Employee
knowingly and voluntarily agrees to all of the terms set forth in this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release; (v) the
Employee acknowledges and understands that any Claims under the ADEA that may arise after the date of this Release Agreement
are not waived; (vi) the rights and claims waived in this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release, are in exchange for
consideration over and above anything to which the Employee was already entitled; (vii) the Employee has been and hereby is
advised in writing to consult with an attorney prior to executing the Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release; (viii) the
Employee acknowledges that he has been given a period of up to twenty-one (21) days from receipt of this Release Agreement to
consider the ADEA Release prior to executing it and acknowledges and agrees that any change in the terms of this Release
Agreement, whether material or immaterial, after the date that the Employee first receives this Release Agreement shall not affect or
restart such twenty-one (21) day consideration period; and (ix) the Employee understands that he has been given a period of seven
(7) days from the date of the execution of this Release Agreement to revoke the ADEA Release, and understands and acknowledges
that the ADEA Release will not become effective or enforceable until the revocation period has expired. If the Employee elects to
revoke this ADEA Release, revocation must be in writing and presented to [Name], [Title], Compressco Partners GP Inc., 101 Park
Avenue, Suite 1200, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102, within seven (7) days from the date of the execution of the Release Agreement.

5.    Reaffirmation of Continuing Obligations. Nothing in this Release Agreement shall be deemed to affect or relieve the Employee
from any continuing obligation contained in any other agreement with the Company or the Company’s rights with respect thereto. The
Employee specifically acknowledges and reaffirms his continuing obligations to the Company under Section 5 and Section 7.1 of the
Employment Agreement. The Employee further acknowledges that this reaffirmation is material to this Release Agreement, and the Employee
acknowledges and agrees that his continuing obligations under Section 5 and Section 7.1 of the Employment Agreement are reasonable and
enforceable and that he will not challenge or violate these covenants.

6.    Confidentiality. The Employee agrees to keep strictly confidential all information contained in, or relating to, this Release
Agreement.

7.    Modification; Waiver. No modification or addition hereto or waiver or cancellation of any provision hereof shall be valid except by a
writing signed by the party to be charged therewith. No delay on the part of any party to this Release Agreement in exercising any right or
privilege provided hereunder or by law shall impair, prejudice or constitute a waiver of such right or privilege.

8.    Severability. If any provision contained in this Release Agreement is determined to be void, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in
part, then the other provisions contained herein shall remain in full force and effect as if the provision which was determined to be void, illegal
or unenforceable had not been contained herein.

9.    Fully Understood; Payments Received. By signing this Release Agreement, the Employee acknowledges and affirms that he has
read and understands the foregoing Release Agreement, had the ability to consult with counsel, agreed to the terms of the Release
Agreement, and acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Release Agreement. The Employee also hereby acknowledges and affirms the
sufficiency of the Severance Benefits recited herein. The Employee further acknowledges that upon receipt of the Severance Benefits recited
herein, he shall not be entitled to any further payment, compensation or remuneration of any kind from the Company or any other member of
the Partnership Group, with respect to the Employee’s employment with the Company or otherwise.

10.    Miscellaneous. This Release Agreement shall be subject to the terms and provision of Article 7, excluding Section 7.3, of the
Employment Agreement, which is incorporated herein, mutatis mutandis.

11.    Entire Agreement. This Release Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Employee and the Company and
supersedes any and all prior understandings or agreements with respect to the subject matter



hereof, whether written or oral, except as set forth herein and with respect to any of the Employee’s continuing obligations contained elsewhere
(including, but not limited to, those contained in the Employment Agreement), which shall continue and remain in full force and effect per the
terms of those covenants.

COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC.

By:
Its:
Date:  

CHARLES B. BENGE

___________________________________

Date:
   



EXHIBIT 10.32
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) dated July 20, 2014, but effective as of the Closing (as herein defined), is
entered into by and between COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and Anthony D. Speer (the
“Employee”). Certain capitalized terms used herein are defined in Section 6 of this Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Company is the general partner of Compressco Partners, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the “Partnership”) and
Compressco Partners Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Purchaser”), is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Partnership;

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 20, 2014, by and between the Purchaser and Warren Equipment
Company (“Warren”), Purchaser has agreed to purchase all of the issued and outstanding shares of Compressor Systems, Inc. (“CSI”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Warren;

WHEREAS, the Employee has previously served as the Vice President of Manufacturing and Supply Chain of CSI and through his
position with CSI, has acquired knowledge of, and experience related to, the business, trade secrets, proprietary and confidential information,
and goodwill of CSI which, if exploited by the Employee in contravention of this Agreement, would seriously and adversely affect the benefit or
value of the assets and business acquired by the Partnership Group pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ the Employee, conditioned upon the closing (the “Closing”) of the transaction
contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Transaction”) and effective as of the Effective Date, and Employee desires to be
employed by the Company under the terms and conditions hereinafter provided; and

WHEREAS, Employee acknowledges that in performing the services contemplated herein for the Company, Employee will come into
contact with customers and suppliers of the Partnership Group and that Employee will have access to trade secrets, proprietary and
confidential information, and goodwill of the Partnership Group not readily available to the public; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to the obligations of Purchaser to consummate the Transaction as contemplated by the Stock Purchase
Agreement, and to preserve the value of the assets of the business being acquired by the Partnership Group, and the confidential information
and goodwill of the business of the Partnership Group going forward, the Employee has agreed to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth herein, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally
bound, agree as follows.

1. Employment of Employee; Duties.

1.1    Employment. Conditioned upon the Closing of the Transaction as contemplated by the Stock Purchase Agreement and
subject to the terms and conditions contained herein, the Company hereby agrees to employ the Employee as of the date of the Closing (the
“Effective Date”) and the Employee hereby accepts employment from the Company effective as of the Effective Date.

1.2    Title. During the Employment Period (as defined in Section 2 hereof), the Employee shall serve as Vice President of
Manufacturing of the Company.

1.3    Duties. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall have the normal duties, responsibilities and authority
commensurate with such position, and shall perform and render all services and acts necessary to fulfill such duties and responsibilities on the
terms set forth herein. Except for excused leaves of absence, the Employee shall, throughout the Employment Period, devote substantially all
of the Employee’s working time, attention, and ability to the duties and responsibilities of the Employee’s position in furtherance of the business
affairs and activities of the Company and other members of the Partnership Group; provided, that the Employee shall have the right to
participate in the following activities so long as such activities do not conflict with any business of the



Partnership Group or interfere with the Employee’s performance of his duties hereunder: (i) engaging in and managing passive personal
investments and (ii) serving on civic, religious, educational and/or charitable boards and committees. The Employee shall at all times be subject
to, comply with, observe and carry out the Partnership Group’s rules, regulations, policies and codes of ethics and/or conduct applicable to
employees of the Partnership Group generally and in effect from time to time. If the Employee’s other business interests present a conflict of
interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest, the Employee shall fully disclose the conflict or apparent conflict to the President of the
Company (the “President”) or the Designated Officer.

1.4    Location. The Employee’s primary place of employment shall be located at the Company’s office(s) located in the
Midland, Texas area. The Employee will be required to travel to other offices and facilities of the Partnership Group and other locations as
reasonably necessary to perform his duties.
   

2. Term of Employment. The employment of the Employee hereunder shall continue until the third (3rd) anniversary of the
Effective Date (the “Initial Employment Period”), unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Agreement,
and shall automatically be renewed and extended for additional one (1) year periods (each an “Additional Employment Period”) thereafter
unless the Employee’s employment is terminated by either party giving written notice to the other party not less than sixty (60) days in advance
of the expiration of the then-existing Initial Employment Period or Additional Employment Period, as applicable. The period during which the
Employee is employed hereunder shall be referred to as the “Employment Period.” Termination of employment due to non-renewal of the
Initial Employment Period or any Additional Employment Period, after providing the requisite sixty (60) days prior written notice, shall not entitle
the Employee to any Severance Benefits (as herein defined) under this Agreement.

3. Compensation and General Benefits.

3.1    Base Salary.

During the Employment Period the Company agrees to pay to the Employee an annualized base salary in an amount equal to
$190,000 (such base salary, as may be increased from time to time by the Company, is referred to herein as the “Base Salary”). The
Employee’s Base Salary, less amounts required to be withheld under applicable law, shall be payable in equal installments in accordance with
the normal payroll practices and procedures in effect from time to time for the payment of salaries to employees within the Partnership Group,
but in no event less frequently than monthly.

3.2    Annual Bonus. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Cash Incentive
Compensation Plan maintained by TETRA Technologies, Inc. (“TETRA”) or such other bonus programs as may be established for employees
of the Partnership Group, as any such bonus program may be amended from time to time (any such bonus program being referred to as the
“CICP”), in a manner that is consistent with other similarly situated officers of the Company and the Partnership Group in general. The
Employee’s Annual Bonus opportunity under the CICP shall equal thirty-five percent (35%) (the “Annual Target Bonus”) of the Base Salary.
Any right to receive any bonus payment shall be subject to the terms and conditions of the CICP. With respect to the 2014 calendar year,
Employee shall participate in the CICP on a pro-rata basis and any Annual Bonus payable to the Employee shall be pro-rated from the
Effective Date.

3.3    Equity-Based Compensation.

(a) On the Effective Date, the Employee will be granted Phantom Units in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Compressco Partners, L.P. 2011 Long Term Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Phantom Unit Agreement dated the Effective Date. The number
of Phantom Units to be awarded to the Employee shall be calculated by dividing $300,000 by the Fair Market Value (as such term is delivered
in the Plan) of the Partnership’s common units on the Effective Date and by rounding up to the nearest whole unit. The Phantom Units shall
vest as set forth in the Phantom Unit Agreement.

(b) Beginning in 2015 and continuing during the Employment Period, the Employee shall, subject to approval of the MCC, be
eligible to participate in, and receive annual awards of equity-based compensation pursuant to, the Plan, or such other similar equity
compensation plans as may be adopted by the Partnership, on a basis consistent with other officers of the Company.



3.4    Expenses. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be entitled to receive reimbursement from the Company
for all reasonable and necessary business expenses incurred by the Employee in performing the Employee’s duties hereunder on behalf of the
Company and the Partnership Group, subject to, and consistent with, the Partnership Group’s policies for expense payment and
reimbursement, in effect from time to time.

3.5    Benefits. During the Employment Period, the Employee shall be entitled to participate in, and to receive benefits under,
any benefit plans, arrangements or policies made available to employees of the Partnership Group generally, subject to and on a basis
consistent with the terms, conditions and overall administration of each such plan, arrangement or policy.

3.6    Vacation. The Employee will be entitled to twenty-three (23) days of paid vacation time each calendar year during the
Employment Period, to be prorated monthly for partial calendar years. It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that Employee will use all
vacation in the calendar year in which it is allotted. Any unused vacation remaining at the end of a calendar year will not be carried over to the
next year. The Employee shall provide reasonable notice of any vacation time to be taken by the Employee to the President or the Designated
Officer.

3.7    Company Provided Vehicle. The Employee will be entitled to unlimited use of an appropriate vehicle provided by the
Company and maintained at the Company’s expense, with the value of the use recorded as imputed income of the Employee. If ever the
Company elects to discontinue providing the Company Vehicle, Employee shall receive an automobile allowance in an amount no less than the
demonstrated actual benefit, inclusive of taxes, of a Company provided vehicle. This automobile allowance is separate from any consideration
for cost of living, merit, or any other Base Salary adjustments.

4. Termination.

4.1    General. The employment of the Employee hereunder (and the Employment Period) shall terminate as provided in
Section 2 hereof, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4. Upon termination of the Employee’s employment
hereunder, the Employee (or his estate in the event of this death) shall be entitled to receive (i) all amounts of earned but unpaid Base Salary
accrued through the date of his termination of employment, (ii) such employee benefits, if any, as to which the Employee may be entitled under
the benefit plans, arrangements or policies of the Company to the date of termination as otherwise expressly required by applicable law
(including pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRA”)); provided, that the Company shall not be
required to waive, pay or reimburse any premium or contribution required of the Employee to continue any COBRA coverage or other benefits,
(iii) reimbursement of all unpaid expenses incurred prior to the date of termination in accordance with Section 3.4 hereof, and (iv) an amount
equal to all accrued and unused vacation for the year of termination (collectively, the “Accrued Amounts”). Except as expressly provided
otherwise in this Section 4, all other rights of the Employee (and all obligations of the Company) hereunder shall terminate as of the date of
such termination.

4.2    Death or Disability of the Employee.

(a) The employment of the Employee hereunder (and the Employment Period) shall terminate (i) automatically upon the death
of the Employee and (ii) at the option of the Company, upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Employee or the
Employee’s personal representative or guardian, if the Employee suffers a Total Disability (as defined below). In the event the Employee’s
employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.2, the Employee, or his estate, shall be entitled to receive (i) the Accrued Amounts, which
shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) an amount equal to any unpaid Annual Bonus otherwise
payable for the year immediately preceding the year in which the employment of the Employee is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.2, any
such amount to be paid no later than March 15 of the year in which such termination occurs.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “Total Disability” shall mean (i) the written determination by a physician reasonably
satisfactory to the Employee and the Company that, because of a medically determinable disease, injury or other physical or mental disability,
the Employee is unable to substantially perform, with or without reasonable accommodation, the essential job functions of the Employee
required hereby, and that such disability has lasted for ninety (90) consecutive days or any one hundred eighty (180) days during the
immediately preceding twelve (12)-month period, in each case based upon medically available reliable information or (ii) the Employee’s
qualifying for benefits under the Partnership Group’s long-term disability coverage, if any. In conjunction with determining mental and/or
physical disability for purposes of this Agreement, the Employee hereby consents to (x) any examinations that



the Company determines are relevant to a determination of whether the Employee is mentally and physically disabled or are required by the
Company physician, (y) furnish such medical information as may be reasonably requested and (z) waive any applicable physician patient
privilege that may arise because of such examination.

        
4.3    Termination by the Company Without Cause.

(a) The Company may terminate the Employee’s employment without Cause (as defined in Section 4.3(c)) upon thirty (30)
days’ prior written notice and thereby terminate the Employment Period under this Agreement.

(b) In the event the Employee’s employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.3, and at that time the Employee is ready,
willing and able to continue performing all of his duties under this Agreement, the Employee shall be entitled to receive: (i) the Accrued
Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) subject to satisfying the requirements
and conditions of Section 4.5 below: (A) his Base Salary (in effect at the time of termination) for a period equal to the remaining term of the
Initial Employment Period, payable at such dates and times in accordance with the Company’s normal payment practices and procedures (for
clarification, the Employee shall not be entitled to receive any continued payment of Employee’s Base Salary in the event of any such
termination following the expiration of the Initial Employment Period); (B) if Employee elects to receive continuation coverage for medical,
prescription and dental benefits under COBRA, the Company will, for a period equal to the remaining term of the Initial Employment Period,
waive or otherwise pay at regular monthly intervals the contribution, if any, that would otherwise be required for the continuation of coverage
under a Partnership Group group health plan that Employee and his dependents are eligible to receive, provided, however, that to receive such
waiver or contribution, the Employee must not be eligible to receive health insurance benefits under any other employer’s group health plan (for
clarification, the Employee shall not be entitled to any waiver, or payment, of any contribution as required for the continuation of such COBRA
coverage in the event of any such termination following the expiration of the Initial Employment Period); (C) an amount equal to any unpaid
Annual Bonus otherwise payable for the year immediately preceding the year in which the employment of the Employee is so terminated, any
such amount to be paid, subject to the provisions of Section 4.5, no later than March 15 of the year in which such termination occurs; (D) an
amount equal to the pro rata Annual Bonus for the year in which such termination occurs, if determined to be payable for such year, such pro
rata payment to be paid, subject to the provisions of Section 4.5, no later than March 15 of the year immediately following the year in which
such termination occurs; and (E) the Phantom Units awarded to the Employee as described in Section 3.3(a) shall be accelerated and become
fully vested at such time as the Release (as herein defined) becomes final and irrevocable, and such Phantom Units shall be settled as
provided in the Phantom Unit Agreement or at such later date as provided in Section 4.5. The payments and benefits provided in clause (ii) of
the preceding sentence are collectively referred to as the “Severance Benefits.”

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means the occurrence of any one or more of the following events:

(i) the failure by the Employee to perform his duties in any material respect which is not cured within fifteen (15) days
after written notice to the Employee;

(ii) the indictment or conviction of the Employee of (A) any felony or the plea of nolo contendere to any felony, or (B)
any misdemeanor involving theft, dishonesty or moral turpitude;

(iii) the Employee improperly receiving a benefit (personally or on behalf of another Person) relating to the Company or
any member of the Partnership Group or the funds, properties or other assets of the Company or any member of the Partnership
Group that the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers to constitute fraud, embezzlement or misappropriation;

(iv) the failure by the Employee to comply in any material respect with any previously announced and disclosed written
policy or procedure or article or component of any such written policy or procedure of the Partnership Group, which, if curable, is not
cured within fifteen (15) days after written notice;

(v) the Employee’s knowing or intentional misstatement of the financial records of the Partnership Group or complicit
actions in respect thereof (for the avoidance of doubt, an error or mistake in the financial records shall not constitute Cause);

(vi) the reckless or willful failure to disclose material financial or other information concerning the Partnership Group to
the Board, the President or to any executive officer of TETRA following a request therefor;



(vii) the breach by the Employee of any of the terms of this Agreement which is not cured within fifteen (15) days after
written notice thereof;

(viii) the Employee materially disparaging in a public manner the Company or any member of the Partnership Group or
their respective employees;

(ix) the Employee’s absence from the Company for a period of ten (10) consecutive business days that is unrelated to
approved vacation time, short or long-term disability, illness, or other absence permitted by the Partnership Group’s written policies or
applicable law; and

(x) the misappropriation by the Employee of any business opportunity of any member of the Partnership Group in
violation of the terms hereof.

4.4    Termination by the Employee for Good Reason.

(a) The Employee may voluntarily terminate his employment (and the Employment Period) at any time upon prior written notice
to the Company for Good Reason (as defined in Section 4.4(c)) as provided in Section 4.4(c) below. The Employee’s written notice shall
indicate that he is terminating his employment for Good Reason and shall provide a detailed description of the reasons for such termination for
Good Reason. In the event the Employee does not indicate that he is terminating his employment for Good Reason (including a detailed
description of the reasons therefor), he shall be deemed to have terminated his employment without Good Reason in accordance with Section
4.7.

(b) In the event the Employee’s employment is terminated pursuant to this Section 4.4, the Employee shall be entitled to receive
(i) the Accrued Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of any such termination, and (ii) subject to satisfying the
requirements of Section 4.5 below, the Severance Benefits.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” means the occurrence of any of the following events without the
Employee’s consent: (i) a reduction in the Employee’s Base Salary or a reduction in the Employee’s Annual Target Bonus opportunity, (ii) the
relocation of the office to which the Employee is primarily assigned and expected to report to a location that is outside the Midland, Texas area
as provided in Section 1.4 (exclusive of travel incidental to the Employee’s performance of his duties hereunder); (iii) any diminution in
Employee’s authorities, duties or responsibilities or (iv) any material breach by the Company of the obligations imposed upon the Company
under the terms of this Agreement, and the Company shall fail to cure such breach or default within fifteen (15) days after written notice of such
breach or default is given by the Employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing definition of “Good Reason,” any assertion by the Employee of Good
Reason shall not be effective unless all of the following conditions are satisfied: (i) the condition described above giving rise to Good Reason
must have arisen without the Employee’s written consent; (ii) the Employee must provide written notice to the Company of such condition within
twenty (20) days of the Employee’s discovery of the initial existence of condition; (iii) the condition specified in such notice must remain
uncorrected for fifteen (15) days after receipt of such notice by the Company; and (iv) the date of the Employee’s termination of employment
because of the condition as specified in such notice must occur within ninety (90) days after the Employee’s discovery of the condition as
specified in such notice.

4.5    Severance Benefit Payments. In the event that the Employee is entitled to the Severance Benefits under Sections 4.3
or 4.4, such Severance Benefits shall, subject to the following requirements, be payable in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll
practices and procedures, and shall be subject to all applicable withholding. Except for such later payments as otherwise provided in Sections
4.3, 4.4, or 4.8, Severance Benefits shall begin on the first regularly scheduled payroll date determined by the Company (in accordance with
Treas. Reg. §1.409A-3(b)) to occur more than fifty-five (55) days from the Employee’s date of termination (with any deferred Severance
Benefits that otherwise would have been paid during the period beginning on the date of termination and ending on the date the first regularly
scheduled payroll date to occur more than fifty-five (55) days after the Employee’s date of termination to be paid, as applicable, in a single lump
sum on such payroll date), provided, that, within such fifty-five (55) day period, (i) the Employee executes and delivers to the Company a
general release of any and all claims (but excluding (A) any claim for unemployment compensation, (B) any claim for workers’ compensation
benefits, and (C) any vested, future benefits which the Employee is entitled to receive under any Partnership Group “employee benefit plan,”
within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA, or under Section 2 or 3 or 4) in favor of the Company, the Partnership, their Affiliates and their
respective officers, managers, directors, shareholders, partners, members and other Affiliates in substantially the form attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit A (the “Release”), and (ii) the applicable



revocation period, if any, prescribed by law and/or set forth in the Release has expired without the Employee having withdrawn or revoked the
Release. If the Employee does not satisfy the requirements with respect to the Release as hereinabove provided, the Employee shall not be
entitled to any of the Severance Benefits or any amount or benefit in lieu thereof.

4.6    Termination by the Company For Cause. The Board may terminate the employment of the Employee (and the
Employment Period) under this Agreement at any time for Cause by delivery of written notice to the Employee. The Board’s written notice shall
indicate that the Company is terminating the Employee’s employment for Cause and shall provide a description of the reasons for such
termination for Cause. In the event the notice does not indicate that the Company is terminating the Employee’s employment for Cause
(including a description of the reasons therefor), the Company shall be deemed to have terminated the Employee’s employment without Cause
in accordance with Section 4.3. Upon such termination for Cause, the Employee shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts, which shall
be payable in a lump sum within thirty (30) days of such termination.

4.7    Termination by the Employee Without Good Reason. The Employee may voluntarily resign and thereby terminate the
Employee’s employment (and the Employment Period) under this Agreement at any time upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice
to the Company. Upon such termination, the Employee shall be entitled to receive the Accrued Amounts, which shall be payable in a lump sum
within thirty (30) days of such termination.

4.8    Section 409A of the Code. This Agreement is intended, and its terms shall be interpreted as necessary, to comply with
Section 409A (“Section 409A”) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, the parties mutually desire to avoid adverse tax consequences associated with the application of Section 409A to this
Agreement and agree to cooperate fully and take appropriate reasonable actions to avoid any such consequences under Section 409A,
including delaying payments and reforming the form of the Agreement if such action would reduce or eliminate taxes and/or interest payable as
a result of Section 409A. In this regard, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 4, to the extent necessary to comply with
Section 409A, if the Employee is a “specified employee,” as defined in Treas. Reg. §1.409A-1(i), and any partnership interests of the
Partnership are publicly traded on an established securities market or otherwise, no payment or benefit that is subject to Section 409A shall be
made under this Agreement on account of the Employee’s “separation from service” with the Company within the meaning of Section 409A of
the Code before the date that is the first day of the seventh month beginning after the date the Employee’s separation from service (or, if
earlier, the date of death of the Employee or any other date permitted under Section 409A). For purposes of determining if amounts payable
under this Agreement by reason of the Employee’s termination are owed, and if so, when they are to be paid or provided, the Employee shall
be considered to have terminated employment with the Company only when the Employee’s employment with the Company ceases on what is
then reasonably expected and understood by the Employee and the Company to be a permanent basis and such cessation constitutes a
“separation from service” with respect to the Company and its affiliates within the meaning of Section 409A and applicable administrative
guidance issued thereunder. To the extent that any amount or benefit under this Agreement constitutes a reimbursement of an expense
incurred by, or the provision of benefits in kind to, the Employee and such amount or benefit represents a “deferral of compensation,” all within
the meaning of Section 409A, then: (i) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, under this
Agreement during or for any taxable year of the Employee shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be
provided, during or for any other taxable year of the Employee; (ii) all reimbursements of expenses under this Agreement shall be made by no
later than the earlier of the date otherwise required under this Agreement and the last day of the Employee’s taxable year following the taxable
year of the Employee in which the expense was incurred; and (iii) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits under this Agreement shall not
be subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit. For purposes of Section 409A, each payment or amount due under this Agreement
shall be considered a separate payment, and the Employee’s entitlement to a series of payments under this Agreement is to be treated as an
entitlement to a series of separate payments.

4.9    Resignation from Officer and Director Positions. Upon the termination of the Employee’s employment for any reason
(unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Company and the Employee), the Employee will be deemed to have resigned, without any further
action by the Employee, from any and all officer and/or director positions that the Employee, immediately prior to such termination, held with
the Company or any member of the Partnership Group. If for any reason this Section 4.9 is deemed to be insufficient to effectuate such
resignations, then the Employee will, upon the Company’s request, execute any documents or instruments that the Company may deem
necessary or desirable to effectuate such resignations.



5. Confidentiality, Work Product and Non-Competition and Non- Solicitation.

5.1    Confidentiality.

(a) In return for and in reliance upon the Employee’s covenants made in this Section 5, the Company agrees to provide to the
Employee during the Employment Period certain valuable and proprietary Confidential Information pertaining to the Partnership Group. In
addition, the Company and the Partnership Group shall provide the Employee during the Employment Period access to certain customers and
vendors and provide the Employee with the unique opportunity to develop business relationships with such customers and vendors based, in
part, upon (i) the Partnership Group’s relationship, reputation and goodwill with those customers, and (ii) the goodwill and business
relationships of CSI being acquired by the Purchaser.

(b) The Employee acknowledges that the confidential information of CSI (the “CSI Confidential Information”) and the goodwill
associated with the business acquired by the Company and Partnership Group are of significant value to the Company and the Partnership
Group bargained for in the Transaction and that any disclosure or use of the CSI Confidential Information in violation of this Agreement would
seriously and adversely affect the benefit or value of the assets and business acquired by the Company and Partnership Group. The Employee
further acknowledges and agrees that in the course of his employment with the Company and providing services to the Partnership Group, the
Employee will be in a position to (i) have access to and develop Confidential Information, (ii) pursue business opportunities of the Partnership
Group and (iii) develop goodwill on behalf of the Partnership Group and that the Company shall provide support for such activity such as the
expense reimbursements as provided in Section 3.4. The Employee recognizes that Partnership Group’s business interests require a
confidential relationship between each member of the Partnership Group and the Employee and the fullest practical protection and confidential
treatment of all Confidential Information. At all times, both during and after the Employment Period, the Employee shall not directly or indirectly
appropriate, download, print, copy, remove, use, disclose, divulge, communicate or otherwise Misappropriate any Confidential Information,
including, without limitation, originals or copies of any Confidential Information, in any media or format, except for the Partnership Group’s
benefit within the course and scope of the Employee’s employment or with the prior written consent of the President or the Designated Officer.

(c) All Confidential Information, and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, shall remain, at all times, the property of the
Partnership Group, the appropriation, use and/or disclosure of which is governed and restricted by this Agreement.

(d) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that:

(i) during the Employment Period the Employee will occupy a unique position within the Company and the Partnership
Group, and the Employee is and will be directly involved in the development and implementation of, or have access to, Confidential
Information and

(ii) in the event the Employee breaches this Section 5.1 with respect to any Confidential Information, such breach shall
be deemed to be a Misappropriation of such Confidential Information and will result in immediate and irreparable harm to the
Partnership Group.

(e) Upon receipt of any formal or informal request, by legal process or otherwise, seeking the Employee’s direct or indirect
disclosure or production of any Confidential Information to any Person, the Employee shall promptly and timely notify the Company and the
Designated Officer and provide a description and, if applicable, provide a copy of such request to the Company so that the Company, or the
respective member or the Partnership Group, may obtain a protective order or other appropriate remedy. In the event that no such protective
order or other remedy is obtained, or that the Company waives compliance with the terms of this Section 5.1, the Employee will furnish only
that portion of the Confidential Information which the Employee is reasonably advised in writing by counsel is legally required and will exercise
reasonable efforts to obtain reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the Confidential Information.

(f) At any time the Company may request, during or after the Employment Period, the Employee shall deliver to the Company
all originals and copies of Confidential Information and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, including, without limitation any Confidential
Information produced by the Employee.



(g) Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, the Employee shall immediately return to the Company all Confidential
Information, regardless of the form or format, and all other information and property affecting or relating to the business of the Partnership
Group, within the Employee’s possession, custody or control, regardless of form or format, without the necessity of a prior Company request.

(h) During the Employment Period, the Employee represents and agrees that the Employee will not use or disclose any
confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets of others (excluding the use by the Employee for any proper purpose of any such
information of the Partnership Group’s customers in the ordinary course of business), including but not limited to former employers (other than
CSI and the CSI Confidential Information), and that the Employee will not bring onto the premises of the Company or any member of the
Partnership Group or access such confidential or proprietary information or trade secrets of such others, unless consented to in writing by said
others, and then only with the prior written authorization of the Company.

5.2    Work Product/Intellectual Property.

(a) Assignment.     The Employee hereby assigns to the Company all right, title and interest to all Work Product that (i) relates
to any of the Partnership Group’s actual business, research and development or existing or contemplated products or services, or (ii) is
conceived, reduced to practice, developed or made using any equipment, supplies, facilities, assets, information or resources of any member of
the Partnership Group (including, without limitation, any intellectual property rights).

(b) Disclosure. The Employee shall promptly disclose Work Product to the President or the Designated Officer and perform all
actions reasonably requested by the Company (whether during or after the Employment Period), at the cost of the Company, to establish and
confirm the ownership and proprietary interest of any member of the Partnership Group in any Work Product (including, without limitation, the
execution of assignments, consents, powers of attorney, applications and other instruments). The Employee shall not file any patent or
copyright applications related to any Work Product except with the written consent of the President or the Designated Officer.

5.3    Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation.

(a) In consideration of CSI Confidential Information acquired by the Company and the Partnership Group and the other
Confidential Information being provided, and which the Company herein agrees to provide in the future, to the Employee as stated in Section
5.1 hereof, and other good and valuable new consideration as stated in this Agreement and as provided to the Employee as of the Effective
Date, including, without limitation, employment with the Company, the Phantom Units being granted by the Partnership pursuant to
Section 3.3(a), and the business relationships, Partnership Group goodwill, work experience, client, customer and/or vendor relationships and
other benefits of employment that the Employee will have the opportunity to obtain, use and develop under this Agreement, the Employee
agrees to the restrictive covenants stated in this Section 5.3.

(b) During the Employment Period and until the end of the Restricted Period, the Employee agrees that the Employee will not,
directly or indirectly, on the Employee’s own behalf or on the behalf of any other Person, within the Restricted Area:

(i) engage in a Competing Business, including, without limitation, by owning, managing, operating, controlling, being
employed by, providing services as a consultant or independent contractor to or participating in the ownership, management, operation
or control of any Competing Business;

(ii) induce or attempt to induce any customer, vendor, supplier, licensor or other Person in a current or previous
business relationship with any member of the Partnership Group, (A) to do business with a Competing Business or (B) to cease,
restrict, terminate or otherwise reduce business with any member of the Partnership Group, in each case regardless of whether the
Employee initiates contact; or

(iii) (A) solicit, recruit, persuade, influence or induce, or attempt to solicit, recruit, persuade, influence or induce anyone
employed by any member of the Partnership Group (including any former employees of CSI who are employed by any member of the
Partnership Group as part of the Transaction), to cease or leave their employment relationship with any member of the Partnership
Group, or (B) hire, employ or otherwise attempt to establish, for any Person, any employment, consulting, independent contractor or
other business relationship with any Person who is or was during the prior twelve (12) months employed by any member of the
Partnership Group (including any former employees of CSI who are employed by any member



of the Partnership Group as part of the Transaction); provided, however, the Employee may, directly or indirectly, on the Employee’s
own behalf or on behalf of any other Person, hire any former employee of the Company or the Partnership Group whose employment
with the Company or Partnership Group had terminated not less than three (3) months prior to the date of hire and (i) who is not
specifically solicited for employment by the Employee, either directly or indirectly, but who on his or her own initiative seeks
employment with Employee or any other Person with whom the Employee is affiliated, or (ii) who responds to a general ad for
employment published by Employee, or any other Person with whom the Employee is affiliated, that is not specifically targeted to
employees of the Partnership Group.

(c) The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding anything in Section 5.3(b)(i) hereof, the Employee may
own or hold, solely as passive investments, securities of Persons engaged in any business that would otherwise be included in Section 5.3(b)
(i), as long as with respect to each such investment the securities held by the Employee do not exceed one percent (1%) of the outstanding
securities of such Person and such securities are publicly traded and registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”); provided, however, that the Employee shall not be permitted to, directly or indirectly, participate in, or attempt
to influence, the management, direction or policies of (other than through the exercise of any voting rights held by the Employee in connection
with such securities), or lend the Employee’s name to, any such Persons.

(d) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that, for purposes of this Section 5.3, indirect acts by the Employee shall include,
without limitation, an act by any entity directly or indirectly controlled by the Employee. Employee may not avoid the purpose and intent of this
Section 5.3 by engaging in the restricted conduct within the Restricted Area from a remote location through means such as
telecommunications, written correspondence, computer generated or assisted communications including, without limitation, email or the
internet, or other similar methods.

(e) The Employee acknowledges that (i) the restrictive covenants contained in this Section 5.3 hereof are ancillary to and part of
an otherwise enforceable agreement, such being the agreements concerning Confidential Information and other consideration as stated in this
Agreement, (ii) at the time that these restrictive covenants are made, the limitations as to time, geographic scope and activity to be restrained,
as described herein, are reasonable and do not impose a greater restraint than necessary to protect the goodwill and other legitimate business
interests of the Partnership Group, including without limitation, Confidential Information (including trade secrets), client, customer and/or vendor
relationships, client and/or customer goodwill and business productivity, (iii) in the event of termination of the Employee’s employment, the
Employee’s experiences and capabilities are such that the Employee can obtain gainful employment without violating this Agreement and
without the Employee incurring undue hardship, (iv) based on the relevant benefits and other new consideration provided for in this Agreement,
including, without limitation, the disclosure and use of Confidential Information, the restrictive covenants of this Section 5.3, as applicable
according to their terms, shall remain in full force and effect even in the event of the Employee’s involuntary termination from employment, with
or without Cause, (v) the Employee has carefully read this Agreement and has given careful consideration to the restraints imposed upon the
Employee by this Agreement and consents to the terms of the restrictive covenants in this Section 5.3, with the knowledge that this Agreement
may be terminated at any time in accordance with the provisions hereof and (vi) the restrictions set forth in this Section 5.3 are fair and
reasonable in light of the nature and wide geographic scope of the Partnership Group’s operations, which occur throughout the Restricted Area
and the Employee’s level of control over, contact with, and association, with the Partnership Group’s business throughout the Restricted Area.

5.4    Interpretation; Severability.

(a) The Employee has carefully considered the possible effects on the Employee of the covenants not to compete, the
confidentiality provisions and the other obligations contained in this Agreement, and the Employee recognizes that the Company has made
every effort to limit the restrictions placed upon the Employee to those that are reasonable and necessary to protect the Partnership Group’s
legitimate business interests.

(b) The Employee acknowledges and agrees that the restrictive covenants set forth in this Agreement are reasonable and
necessary in order to protect the Partnership Group’s valid business interests, including the assets and business acquired in the Transaction. It
is the intention of the parties hereto that the covenants, provisions and agreements contained herein shall be enforceable to the fullest extent
allowed by law. If any covenant, provision or agreement contained herein is found by a court having jurisdiction to be unreasonable in duration,
scope or character of restrictions, or otherwise to be unenforceable, such covenant, provision or agreement shall not be rendered
unenforceable thereby, but rather the duration, scope or character of restrictions of such covenant, provision or agreement shall be deemed
reduced or modified with retroactive effect to render such covenant, provision or agreement



reasonable or otherwise enforceable (as the case may be), and such covenant, provision or agreement shall be enforced as modified. If the
court having jurisdiction will not review the covenant, provision or agreement, the parties hereto shall mutually agree to a revision having an
effect as close as permitted by applicable law to the provision declared unenforceable. The parties hereto agree that if a court having
jurisdiction determines, despite the express intent of the parties hereto, that any portion of the covenants, provisions or agreements contained
herein are not enforceable, the remaining covenants, provisions and agreements herein shall be valid and enforceable. Moreover, to the extent
that any provision is declared unenforceable, the Company shall have any and all rights under applicable statutes or common law to enforce its
rights with respect to any and all Confidential Information or unfair competition by the Employee.

6. Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

(a) An “Affiliate” of any specified Person means any other Person, whether now or hereafter existing, directly or indirectly
controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common control with, such specified Person. For purposes hereof, “control” or any other
form thereof, when used with respect to any Person, means the power to direct the management and policies of such Person, directly or
indirectly, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise; and the terms “controlling” and “controlled” shall have
meanings correlative to the foregoing.

(b) “Annual Bonus” means any annual bonus to which Employee is awarded and eligible to receive as contemplated by
Section 3.2.

(c) “Competing Business” means any business that competes in any manner with the business or activities of any member of
the Partnership Group as conducted from time to time during the Employment Period, including, without limitation, any enterprise that engages
in, owns or operates any business that develops, markets, provides, manufactures, distributes, or sells any Competing Products or Competing
Services.

(d) “Competing Products” means natural gas compressor packages and engine driven crude oil pump packages, each as
used in the petroleum industry.

(e) “Competing Service” means (i) the design, engineering, fabrication, sale, rental, transportation, operation, repair and
maintenance of, or provision of services utilizing, natural gas compressor packages used in the petroleum industry, and (ii) the design,
engineering and sale of, or the provision of services utilizing, engine-driven crude oil pump packages used in the petroleum industry.

(f) “Confidential Information”

(i) Definition. “Confidential Information” means any and all material, information, ideas, inventions, formulae, patterns,
compilations, programs, devices, methods, techniques, processes, know how, plans (marketing, business, strategic, technical or
otherwise), arrangements, pricing and other data of or relating to any members of the Partnership Group (as well as their customers
and/or vendors) that is confidential, proprietary or trade secret (A) by its nature, (B) based on how it is treated or designated by any
member of the Partnership Group, (C) because the disclosure of which would have an adverse effect on the business or planned
business of the Partnership Group and/or (D) as a matter of law. Confidential Information also includes all CSI Confidential Information.

(ii) Exclusions. Confidential Information does not include material, data, and/or information (A) that any member of the
Partnership Group has voluntarily placed in the public domain, (B) that has been lawfully and independently developed and publicly
disclosed by third parties, (C) that constitutes the general non-specialized knowledge and skills gained by the Employee during the
Employment Period or (D) that otherwise enters the public domain through lawful means; provided, however, that the unauthorized
appropriation, use or disclosure of Confidential Information by the Employee, directly or indirectly, shall not affect the protection and
relief afforded by this Agreement regarding such information.

(iii) Inclusions. Confidential Information includes, without limitation, the following information (including without
limitation, compilations or collections of information) relating or belonging to any member of the Partnership Group (as well as their
clients, customers and/or vendors) and created, prepared, accessed, used or reviewed by the Employee during or after the
Employment Period: (1) product and manufacturing information, such as manufacturing processes; (2) scientific and technical
information, such as research and



development, tests and test results, studies and analyses; (3) financial and cost information, such as operating and production costs,
costs of goods sold, costs of supplies and manufacturing materials, financial statements and reports, profit and loss information, margin
information and financial performance information; (4) customer related information, such as customer related contracts, engagement
and scope of work letters, proposals and presentations, customer-related contacts, lists, identities and prospects, practices, plans,
histories, requirements and needs, price information and information concerning client or customer products, services, businesses or
equipment specifications; (5) vendor and supplier related information, such as the identities, practices, history or services of any
vendors or suppliers and vendor or supplier contacts; (6) sales, marketing and price information, such as marketing and sales
programs and related data, sales and marketing strategies and plans, sales and marketing procedures and processes, pricing
methods, practices and techniques and pricing schedules and lists; (7) database, software and other computer related information,
such as computer programs, data, compilations of information and records, software and computer files, presentation software and
computer-stored or backed-up information including, but not limited to, e-mails, databases, word processed documents, spreadsheets,
notes, schedules, task lists, images and video; (8) employee-related information, such as lists or directories identifying employees,
representatives and contractors, and information regarding the competencies (knowledge, skill, experience), compensation and needs
of employees, representatives and contractors and training methods; and (9) business- and operation-related information, such as
operating methods, procedures, techniques, practices and processes, information about acquisitions, corporate or business
opportunities, information about partners and potential investors, strategies, projections and related documents, contracts and licenses
and business records, files, equipment, notebooks, documents, memoranda, reports, notes, sample books, correspondence, lists and
other written and graphic business records.

(g) “Designated Officer” means one or more executive officers of TETRA as identified by the Board from time to time for
purposes of this Agreement.

(h) “ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Security Act of 1974, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated
thereunder.

(i) “Misappropriate,” or any form thereof, means:

(i) the acquisition of any Confidential Information by a Person who knows or has reason to know that the Confidential
Information was acquired by theft, bribery, misrepresentation, breach or inducement of a breach of a duty to maintain secrecy or
espionage through electronic or other means (each, an “Improper Means”); or

(ii) the disclosure or use of any Confidential Information without the express consent of the Company by a Person who
(A) used Improper Means to acquire knowledge of the Confidential Information, (B) at the time of disclosure or use, knew or had
reason to know that his or her knowledge of the Confidential Information was (x) derived from or through a Person who had utilized
Improper Means to acquire it, (y) acquired under circumstances giving rise to a duty to maintain its secrecy or limit its use or (z) derived
from or through a Person who owed a duty to any member of the Partnership Group to maintain its secrecy or limit its use or (C) before
a material change of his or her position, knew or had reason to know that it was Confidential Information and that knowledge of it had
been acquired by accident or mistake.

(j) “Partnership Group” means the Company, the Partnership and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Following the Effective
Date, CSI shall be included in the Partnership Group.

(k) “Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, association, business trust,
joint-stock company, estate, trust, unincorporated organization, government or other agency or political subdivision thereof or any other legal or
commercial entity.

(l) “Restricted Area” means (i) initially the States of Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona, Colorado, Kansas, New Mexico, North
Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, West Virginia and Wyoming, the parishes of Louisiana listed on Exhibit B
attached hereto, Argentina, Australia, Austria, Canada, China, Columbia, Germany, Indonesia, Italy, Mexico, Poland, Peru, Romania, Ukraine,
and Venezuela, and (ii) shall also include such additional states, countries and territories in which the Partnership Group, during the
Employment Period, engages in or operates a Competing Business.



(m) “Restricted Period” means a period equal to the remaining term of the Initial Employment Period as of the date of
termination of employment; provided, that in the event an enforcement remedy is sought under Section 5.3, the Restricted Period shall be
extended by one day for each day the Employee failed to comply with the restriction at issue under Section 5.3.

(n) “Work Product” means all patents and patent applications, all inventions, innovations, improvements, developments,
methods, designs, analyses, drawings, reports, creative works, discoveries, software, computer programs, modifications, enhancements, know-
how, formulations, concepts and ideas, and all similar or related information (in each case whether or not patentable), all copyrights and
copyrightable works, all trade secrets, confidential information, and all other intellectual property and intellectual property rights that are
conceived, reduced to practice, developed or made by the Employee either alone or with others in the course of employment with the Company
(including employment prior to the date of this Agreement).

7. Miscellaneous.

7.1    Non-Disparagement. The Employee agrees that during the Employment Period or at any time thereafter, the Employee
will not make any statements, comments or communications in any form, oral, written or electronic to any customer, client or supplier of any
member of the Partnership Group or to any other third party, which would constitute libel, slander or disparagement of such member of the
Partnership Group, including, without limitation, any such statements, comments or communications that criticize, ridicule or are derogatory to
any member of the Partnership Group; provided, however, that the terms of this Section 7.1 shall not apply to communications between the
Employee and, as applicable, the Employee’s attorneys or other persons with whom communications would be subject to a claim of privilege
existing under common law, statute or rule of procedure. The Employee further agrees that the Employee will not in any way solicit or
encourage any such statements, comments or communications from others.

7.2    Injunctive Relief. The parties agree and acknowledge that money damages would not be sufficient remedy for any
breach of Section 5 or Section 7.1 by the Employee, and the Company and the members of the Partnership Group shall be entitled to enforce
the provisions of Section 5 and Section 7.1 by terminating payments or benefits (including Severance Benefits) then or thereafter owing to the
Employee under this Agreement and to specific performance and injunctive relief as remedies for such breach or any threatened breach. The
remedies set forth in this Section 7.2 shall not be deemed the exclusive remedies for a breach of Section 5 or Section 7.1 and shall be in
addition to all other remedies available, at law and in equity, including without limitation the recovery of damages from the Employee and his
agents and the recovery of all attorney’s fees and costs incurred by the Company in obtaining any such relief or recovery.

        
7.3    Entire Agreement; Waiver. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Employee and the Company

with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes any and all prior understandings or agreements, whether written or oral between the
Employee and the Company. No modification or addition hereto or waiver or cancellation of any provision hereof shall be valid except by a
writing signed by the party to be charged therewith. No delay on the part of any party to this Agreement in exercising any right or privilege
provided hereunder or by law shall impair, prejudice or constitute a waiver of such right or privilege.

7.4    Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of
Texas without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Texas or any other jurisdiction) that would
cause the application of laws of any jurisdictions other than those of the State of Texas.

7.5    Submission to Jurisdiction. Each party hereto (a) submits to the jurisdiction of any state or federal court sitting in Harris
County, Texas in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement (b) agrees that all claims in respect of such action or
proceeding may be heard and determined in any such court, (c) waives any claim of inconvenient forum or other challenge to venue in such
court, and (d) agrees not to bring any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any other court or forum.

7.6    Successors and Assigns; Binding Agreement. The rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement shall be
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, successors and permitted assigns. Successors of the Company who
shall assume the Company’s rights and obligations hereunder include, but are not limited to, any successor by way of merger, consolidation or
sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or equity interests. The Company may assign its rights and obligations under this
Agreement to



any other member of the Partnership Group without the prior consent of the Employee and such member of the Partnership Group shall
succeed to the rights and obligations of the Company hereunder. This Agreement is a personal contract, and except as specifically set forth
herein, this Agreement and the rights and interests of the parties hereto may not be sold, transferred, assigned, pledged or hypothecated by
any party without the prior written consent of the others.

7.7    Representation by Counsel; Independent Judgment. Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that (a) such party has
read this Agreement in its entirety and understands all of its terms and conditions, (b) such party has had the opportunity to consult with any
individuals of its choice regarding its agreement to the provisions contained herein, including legal counsel of its choice, and any decision not to
was such party’s alone and (c) such party is entering into this Agreement of its own free will, without coercion from any source, based upon its
own independent judgment.

    
7.8    Interpretation. The parties and their respective legal counsel actively participated in the negotiation and drafting of this

Agreement, and in the event of any ambiguity or mistake herein, or any dispute among the parties with respect to the provisions hereto, no
provision of this Agreement shall be construed unfavorably against any of the parties on the ground that the party or the party’s counsel was
the drafter thereof.

7.9    Survival. The provisions of Sections 5 and 7 hereof, and those portions of this Agreement necessary to apply, enforce
and interpret them, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

7.10    Notices. All notices and communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed properly given and effective
when received, if sent by facsimile or telecopy, or by postage prepaid by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by other
delivery service which provides evidence of delivery, as follows:

If to the Company, to:

Compressco Partners GP Inc.
101 Park Avenue, Suite 1200
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102
Attn: Board of Directors

with a copy to:

TETRA Technologies, Inc.
24955 Interstate 45 North
The Woodlands, Texas 77380
Attn: General Counsel

If to the Employee, to:
Anthony D. Speer        

or to such other address as one party may provide in writing to the other party from time to time.

7.11    Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Facsimile transmission or other means of electronic
transmission of any signed original document will be deemed the same as delivery of an original. At the request of any party, the parties will
confirm facsimile transmission or other means of electronic transmission by signing a duplicate original document.

7.12    Captions. Paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be considered a part of this Agreement.

7.13    Withholding. The Employee authorizes the Company to make any deductions from Employee’s compensation
hereunder that are necessary to comply with any federal, state or local laws on withholdings, to compensate for any property not returned,
money owed by the Employee to the Company, or to recover advances made to the Employee.



7.14    No Guarantee of Tax Treatment. The Company makes no representation or warranty, and undertakes no covenant,
regarding any federal, state or local tax treatment of amounts or matters subject to this Agreement or any federal, state or local tax treatment
applicable to or inapplicable to the Employee.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement, intending it as a document under seal, to be effective for all
purposes as of the Effective Date.

COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC.

By: /s/Timothy A. Knox                        
Name:    Timothy A. Knox                    
Title: President                            

EMPLOYEE

/s/Anthony D. Speer                        
Anthony D. Speer, Individually



EXHIBIT A
TO

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

RELEASE AGREEMENT

This Release Agreement (“Release Agreement”) is entered into by and between Anthony D. Speer (“Employee”) and Compressco
Partners GP Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), as follows:

WHEREAS, the Employee and the Company have entered into that certain Employment Agreement (the “Employment Agreement”)
dated July 20, 2014 which sets forth the terms and conditions of the Employee’s employment with the Company and further provides in
Section 4 thereof that the Employee may be entitled to receive Severance Benefits upon the termination of the Employee’s employment under
the circumstances as described in, and subject to the conditions of, Section 4 of the Employment Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Employment Agreement contemplates that the Employee will execute and deliver to the Company this Release
Agreement within fifty-five (55) days of a termination for which any Severance Benefits are payable (a “Qualifying Termination”), and the
Employee and the Company desire to execute this Release Agreement to resolve all issues relating to the employment of the Employee by the
Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herein and in the Employment Agreement, the
parties agree as follows:

1.    Definitions. All capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Release Agreement shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Employment Agreement.

2.    Qualifying Termination Payments and Conditions.

(a)    The Employee and the Company acknowledge and agree that the date of Termination is _______________, 201__.

(b)    Subject to the terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement, including the Employee’s execution and delivery of this
Release Agreement and non-revocation of the ADEA Release contained herein, the Company agrees to pay or provide to the Employee the
Severance Benefits as contemplated by Section 4 of the Employment Agreement in the manner set forth therein.

3.    General Release. In consideration of the benefits set forth herein and in the Employment Agreement, the Employee
hereby fully, finally, and completely releases the Company, the Partnership and each other member of the Partnership Group, their
Affiliates and their respective officers, directors, managers, control persons, employees, agents, representatives and assigns of any
of them (collectively, the “Released Parties”), from any and all liabilities, claims, actions, losses, expenses, demands, costs, fees,
damages and/or causes of action, of whatever kind or character, whether now known or unknown (collectively, “Claims”), arising
from, relating to, or in any way connected with, any facts or events occurring on or before the execution of this Release Agreement
that he may have against any member of the Partnership Group or any Released Parties, including, but not limited to any such
Claims arising out of or in any way related to the Employee’s employment with the Company, or any member of the Partnership
Group, or the termination of such employment, including but not limited to, any violation of any federal, state or local statute, any
breach of contract, any wrongful termination, or other tort or cause of action. The Employee confirms that this Release Agreement
was neither procured by fraud nor signed under duress or coercion. Further, the Employee waives and releases the Released Parties
from any Claims that this Release Agreement was procured by fraud or signed under duress or coercion so as to make the Release
Agreement not binding. The Employee understands and agrees that by signing this Release Agreement, he is giving up the right to
pursue any legal Claims released herein that he may currently have against the Company or any Released Parties, whether or not he
is aware of such Claims, and specifically agrees and covenants not to bring any legal action for any Claims released herein. The only
claims that are excluded from this Release Agreement are (i) Claims arising after the date of this Release Agreement, if any, including
any future Claims relating to the Company’s performance of its obligations under Section 4 of the Employment Agreement, (ii) any
claim for unemployment compensation,



(iii) any claim for workers’ compensation benefits, and (iv) any vested, future benefits which the Employee is entitled to receive
under any Company “employee benefit plan,” within the meaning of Section 3(3) of ERISA.

4.    ADEA Release. The Employee hereby completely and forever releases and irrevocably discharges the Released Parties,
from any and all Claims arising under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (“ADEA”) on or before the date the Employee signs
this Release Agreement (the “ADEA Release”), and hereby acknowledges and agrees that: (i) this Release Agreement, including the
ADEA Release, was negotiated at arm’s length; (ii) this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release, is worded in a manner that
the Employee fully understands; (iii) the Employee specifically waives any rights or claims under the ADEA; (iv) the Employee
knowingly and voluntarily agrees to all of the terms set forth in this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release; (v) the
Employee acknowledges and understands that any Claims under the ADEA that may arise after the date of this Release Agreement
are not waived; (vi) the rights and claims waived in this Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release, are in exchange for
consideration over and above anything to which the Employee was already entitled; (vii) the Employee has been and hereby is
advised in writing to consult with an attorney prior to executing the Release Agreement, including the ADEA Release; (viii) the
Employee acknowledges that he has been given a period of up to twenty-one (21) days from receipt of this Release Agreement to
consider the ADEA Release prior to executing it and acknowledges and agrees that any change in the terms of this Release
Agreement, whether material or immaterial, after the date that the Employee first receives this Release Agreement shall not affect or
restart such twenty-one (21) day consideration period; and (ix) the Employee understands that he has been given a period of seven
(7) days from the date of the execution of this Release Agreement to revoke the ADEA Release, and understands and acknowledges
that the ADEA Release will not become effective or enforceable until the revocation period has expired. If the Employee elects to
revoke this ADEA Release, revocation must be in writing and presented to [Name], [Title], Compressco Partners GP Inc., 101 Park
Avenue, Suite 1200, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102, within seven (7) days from the date of the execution of the Release Agreement.

5.    Reaffirmation of Continuing Obligations. Nothing in this Release Agreement shall be deemed to affect or relieve the Employee
from any continuing obligation contained in any other agreement with the Company or the Company’s rights with respect thereto. The
Employee specifically acknowledges and reaffirms his continuing obligations to the Company under Section 5 and Section 7.1 of the
Employment Agreement. The Employee further acknowledges that this reaffirmation is material to this Release Agreement, and the Employee
acknowledges and agrees that his continuing obligations under Section 5 and Section 7.1 of the Employment Agreement are reasonable and
enforceable and that he will not challenge or violate these covenants.

6.    Confidentiality. The Employee agrees to keep strictly confidential all information contained in, or relating to, this Release
Agreement.

7.    Modification; Waiver. No modification or addition hereto or waiver or cancellation of any provision hereof shall be valid except by a
writing signed by the party to be charged therewith. No delay on the part of any party to this Release Agreement in exercising any right or
privilege provided hereunder or by law shall impair, prejudice or constitute a waiver of such right or privilege.

8.    Severability. If any provision contained in this Release Agreement is determined to be void, illegal or unenforceable, in whole or in
part, then the other provisions contained herein shall remain in full force and effect as if the provision which was determined to be void, illegal
or unenforceable had not been contained herein.

9.    Fully Understood; Payments Received. By signing this Release Agreement, the Employee acknowledges and affirms that he has
read and understands the foregoing Release Agreement, had the ability to consult with counsel, agreed to the terms of the Release
Agreement, and acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Release Agreement. The Employee also hereby acknowledges and affirms the
sufficiency of the Severance Benefits recited herein. The Employee further acknowledges that upon receipt of the Severance Benefits recited
herein, he shall not be entitled to any further payment, compensation or remuneration of any kind from the Company or any other member of
the Partnership Group, with respect to the Employee’s employment with the Company or otherwise.

10.    Miscellaneous. This Release Agreement shall be subject to the terms and provision of Article 7, excluding Section 7.3, of the
Employment Agreement, which is incorporated herein, mutatis mutandis.

11.    Entire Agreement. This Release Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Employee and the Company and
supersedes any and all prior understandings or agreements with respect to the subject matter



hereof, whether written or oral, except as set forth herein and with respect to any of the Employee’s continuing obligations contained elsewhere
(including, but not limited to, those contained in the Employment Agreement), which shall continue and remain in full force and effect per the
terms of those covenants.

COMPRESSCO PARTNERS GP INC.

By:
Its:
Date:  

ANTHONY D. SPEER

___________________________________

Date:
   



EXHIBIT 21

CSI Compressco LP
List of Subsidiaries or Other Related Entities

December 31, 2014

Name Jurisdiction
Compressco, Inc. Delaware
   Compressco Testing, L.L.C. Oklahoma
      Compressco Field Services, LLC Oklahoma
         CSI Compressco GP Inc. Delaware
            CSI Compressco Investment LLC Delaware
            CSI Compressco LP Delaware

    CSI Compressco Sub Inc. Delaware
       CSI Compressco Finance Inc. Delaware
       Compressor Systems, Inc. Delaware
          CSI Compression Holdings, LLC Delaware
          Rotary Compressor Systems, Inc. Delaware
          Compressor Systems de Mexico, S. de RL de CV Mexico
          Compressor Systems Australia Pty Ltd Australia
          Pump Systems International, Inc. Delaware
      CSI Compressco Operating LLC Delaware

   Compressco Australia Pty Ltd. Australia
   CSI Compressco Field Services International LLC Delaware

                        Compressco de Argentina SRL Argentina
   CSI Compressco International LLC Delaware
   CSI Compressco Leasing LLC Delaware
   Compressco Netherlands Cooperatief U.A. Netherlands

Compressco Netherlands B.V. Netherlands
                            Compressco Canada, Inc. Alberta
                            CSI Compressco Mexico Investment I LLC Delaware
                               Compressco de Mexico S. de RL de C.V. Mexico
                            CSI Compressco Mexico Investment II LLC Delaware
                            Providence Natural Gas, LLC Oklahoma
                               Production Enhancement Mexico, S. de RL de C.V. Mexico



EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:           

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-175007) of Compressco Partners, L.P.
(2) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-195438) of Compressco Partners, L.P. and in the related
Prospectus;

of our report dated March 19, 2015, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of CSI Compressco LP (formerly known as
Compressco Partners, L.P.) included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2014.

/s/ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Houston, Texas
March 19, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1
Certification Pursuant to

Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 
I, Timothy A. Knox, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, of Compressco Partners, L.P.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: March 19, 2015 /s/Timothy A. Knox
  Timothy A. Knox
  President of Compressco Partners GP Inc.,
  General Partner of Compressco Partners, L.P.

  (Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2
Certification Pursuant to

Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act
As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
 
 

I, James P. Rounsavall, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, of Compressco Partners, L.P.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

 

Date: March 19, 2015 /s/James P. Rounsavall
  James P. Rounsavall
  Chief Financial Officer of Compressco Partners GP Inc.,
  General Partner of Compressco Partners, L.P.
  (Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1
 

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 
 

In connection with the Annual Report of Compressco Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,
2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Timothy A. Knox, President of Compressco
Partners GP Inc., the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Partnership.
 

Dated: March 19, 2015 /s/Timothy A. Knox
  Timothy A. Knox
  President of Compressco Partners GP Inc.,
  General Partner of Compressco Partners, L.P.
  (Principal Executive Officer)
 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Partnership and will be retained by the Partnership and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



EXHIBIT 32.2
 

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 
 
In connection with the Annual Report of Compressco Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31,

2014, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, James P. Rounsavall, Chief Financial Officer
of Compressco Partners GP Inc., the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

 
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Partnership.
 

Dated: March 19, 2015 /s/James P. Rounsavall
  James P. Rounsavall
  Chief Financial Officer of Compressco Partners GP Inc.,

  General Partner of Compressco Partners, L.P.

  (Principal Financial Officer )
 
 
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Partnership and will be retained by the Partnership and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


